TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
Town Hall Board Room
123 Boone Street
Jonesborough, TN 37659

MEETING NOTICES
MONDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2023
7:00 PM

PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING AGENDA ITEMS

Members of the public wishing to speak concerning any item on the agenda during the
Public Comment period must sign up by calling the Town Administrative Office at 423-
753-1030 with their name, address, and subject about which they wish to speak no later
than 2 hours before the meeting if the meeting occurs during normal business hours or
by 4:45 p.m. the day of the meeting if the meeting occurs after hours. Otherwise, such
member of the public must sign in at the location of the meeting, prior to the beginning
of the meeting, by seeing the Town Recorder at meetings of the Board of Mayor and
Aldermen, or the secretary or staff of any board, commission or committee constituting
any other governing body under this resolution.

Each individual shall be given three (3) minutes to address the Board regarding Agenda
items. Comments shall be limited to items on the meeting’s Agenda

PUBLIC HEARING

1. Amend the Town of Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 11, Entitled “Planning and

H w NP

Zoning” by Deleting Section 11-516B of Chapter 5 in its Entirety and Replacing with
a new Section 11-156B

2. Amend the Town of Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 11, Entitled “Planning and
Zoning” by Deleting Section 11-517D of Chapter 5 in its Entirety and Replacing with
a new Section 11-157D

REGULAR MEETING

Call to Order
Opening Prayer
Pledge to the Flag
Roll Call



N o o~ WwWN P

CONSENT AGENDA

. Approval of Minutes

. Approval of Bills

. Town Administrator Report

. Operations Manager Report
. Committee Reports

. Supervisor Reports

. Report on Debt Obligation:

a. Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2023
b. Capital Outlay Note, Series 2023

. Update Rental Agreement — Leeboy Paver

. Outdoor Use Permit for Crystal Raven, 103 East Main St

AGENDA

Financial Report

Communications from the Mayor
a. Committee Appointments
b. Employee of the Month

Citizen Comments
Aldermen Communications

Town Attorney Comments

OLD BUSINESS

A. Discussion and possible action concerning second and final reading of an
Ordinance amending the Town of Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 11, Entitled
“Planning and Zoning” by Deleting Section 11-516B of Chapter 5 in its Entirety and
Replacing with a new Section 11-156B

B. Discussion and possible action concerning second and final reading of an
Ordinance amending the Town of Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 11, Entitled
“Planning and Zoning” by Deleting Section 11-517D of Chapter 5 in its Entirety and
Replacing with a new Section 11-157D



7. NEW BUSINESS

A.

Discussion and possible action concerning approval of Amendment #2 to the
Community Development Partners, LLC, Consulting Contract for the ARPA
Funding;

Discussion and possible action concerning approval to submit an application and
agreement to participate in the State of Tennessee Local Government Investment
Pool (LGIP);

Discussion and possible action concerning approval of a Property Agreement for
Drainage Work at 260 East Main Street;

Discussion and possible action concerning approval of a Resolution to Extend and
Renew the Series 2022 Note Through the Issuance of that Certain Not To Exceed
$10,000,000 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Note, Series 2023,
Jonesborough K-8 School Project;

Discussion and possible action concerning approval of an Initial Resolution
Authorizing the Issuance of a Not To Exceed $1,200,000 General Obligation Bond
to complete the Jackson Theatre Project

Discussion and possible action concerning approval of a Resolution to Extend and
Renew the Series 20221 Note Through the Issuance of that Certain Not To Exceed
$2,832,100 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Note, Series 2023,
Jackson Theatre Project;

. Discussion and possible action concerning first reading of an Ordinance, Title 10

Offenses-Miscellaneous, creating a new Chapter 4-Parks, Green Spaces, Trails,
and Public Property;

. Discussion and possible action concerning approval of a Resolution of the

Jonesborough Water Department Amending “The Town of Jonesborough Water
Conservation Resolution” Section 7;

Discussion and possible action concerning approval of the bid for Tiger Park
Accessories;

Discussion and possible action concerning approval of Resolutions for Tiger Park
and Jonesborough K-8 School Project;

Adjournment.



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

Consent Agenda
DATE: QOCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #: 1

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes

Attached for BMA approval are the minutes of the following BMA meelings:

June 12, 2023 - Regular Meeting

June 26, 2023 — Called Meeting

June 30, 2023 - Called Meeting

July 10, 2023 — Regular Meeting
August 2, 2023 - Work Session
August 7, 2023 — Regular Meeting
September 11, 2023 - Regular Meeting



BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
REGULAR MEETING

JUNE 12, 2023

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen (BMA) met in Regular Session on Monday,
June 12, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., at Town Hall, 123 Boone Street, Jonesborough, TN.

Mayor Chuck Vest called the meeting to order. Alderman Dickson led the group
in an opening Prayer, and Jim Wheeler led the pledge to the Flag.

Upon call of the roll those present were: Mayor Chuck Vest, Alderman Virginia
Causey, Alderman Terry Countermine, and Alderman Adam Dickson. Alderman Kelly
Wolfe was absent. Also present were: Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff, Town
Recorder Robert Anderson, Operations Manager Craig Ford, and Town Attormey Jim
Wheeler.

The next item was the Consent Agenda. Mayor Vest asked if there were any items
that the Aldermen wished to have pulled from the Consent Agenda. There were none.
Alderman Causey made the motion, seconded by Alderman Dickson, and duly passed to
approve the following items on the Consent Agenda:

1. Approve the following bills for payment:
Insert Payment

2. Approve the following Town Administrator Report:
Insert Report

3. Approve the following Operations Manager Report:
Insert Report

4. Approve the following Committee Reports: Jonesborough Board of Zoning
Appeals, Jonesborough Planning Commission, and JRT Board of Directors.

5. Approve the following Supervisor Reports: Fire Department, Director of Special
Events, Building Inspector, Director of Tourism and Main Street, Utility Manager,
Water Quality Department, Water Distribution, Wastewater, Water Treatment
Plant, Senior Center, Animal Control, Street Department, and Police Department.

6. Approve the adoption of Cyber Security Policy and Plan, as presented.

INSERT POLICY



7. Approve the Special Event Request Application from the Heritage Alliance for a
“Taste of Tennessee" mini-festival sponsored by the Heritage Alliance of NE
Tennessee & SW Virginia on September 24, 2023 from 12:00 PM to 5:00 PM to
be held in the Washington County Library Parking Lot and to use the Visitor's
Center restrooms as part of the festivities, and the parking lot reserved for vendors;
and with the notation that the Proof of Insurance and Hold-Harmless Agreement
are complete,

8 Approve the Special Event Request Application from the Heritage Alliance for
*Constitution Week Bell Ringing” sponsored by Heritage Alliance and State of
Franklin NSDAR for September 10, 2023 from 1:00 p.m. — 4:00 p.m., to be held at
the Oak Hill School; and with the notation that the Proof of Insurance and Hold-
Harmless Agreement are complete.

9. Approve the Special Event Request Application from the Jonesborough
Genealogical Society for the “Washington County, Tennessee Heritage Fair” to
take place on Friday, September 1, 2023 from 11:00 AM to 5:00 PM through
Saturday, September 2, 2023 from 10:00 AM to 4:00 PM in various locations within
the downtown area of Jonesborough, with setup scheduled for Thursday, August
31%, closing of Christopher Taylor Lane from Main Street to College Street; and
with the notation that the Proof of Insurance and Hold-Harmless Agreement are
complete.

10. Approve the Outdoor Use Permit for the Crystal Raven, 103 East Main Street, for
the intended use of a display made of metal and wood for selling potted herbs and
plants. And with the notation of the following: Proof of Insurance and Hold-
Harmless Agreement are complete, a Certificate of Appropriateness has been
issued by the Historic Zoning Commission, and the display will not interfere with
the sidewalk and the sidewalk will remain ADA accessible.

The next item on the agenda was the approval of the Financial Report. Mayor Vest
said the sales tax collections were still looking good with the March collections coming at
$43,000 over February. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had comments or
questions. There being none, Alderman Causey made the motion to approve the
Financial Report as presented. Alderman Countermine seconded the motion and it duly
passed.

Communications from the Mayor was the next item on the agenda. Mayor asked
Shane Atkins to come up to accept the Employee of the Month Award. Mayor Vest read
the following:

| would Like fo nominate Fleet Dept Employee Shane Adkins for Employee of the
Month. The Fleel Department is one of the smallest departments in the Town of
Jonesborough, with only 3 technicians serving 16 depariments with over 200
vehicles and engine powered equipment, our schedule is tight. Police vehicles are



replaced every so many years which requires new vehicles coming in and being
sent fo specialized “Upfitters” that install all the equipment and fixtures necessary
fo create a fruly customized Cruiser for the Police and Fire depariments. The
budget was tight for the new vehicles and with a last-minute increase in prices by
the "Upfitters”, equipping all the new vehicles would put the Police Department
over budget on the new Units. Matt Rice approached Shane asking if he thought
he could do the upfitting for the new Police Fleet. Shane had been servicing the
Police units already but hadn't upfitted a unit yet. He was given 2 units to prepare.
Shane researched the necessary details online, and through a supplier of upfitter
equipment and went to Washington Co. Sheriffs garage to clarify some guestions
he had about their units. He starfed slow and spent a few weeks doing the first
car, then the second car went a little betfer. Along the way he improved the wiring
design he was taught and came up with a belter way fo design the add on electrical
system fo support all the equipment to turn an Explorer into a Police unif. Shane
compfeted 10-unit upfits saving $1,500.00 each, adding up to $15,000.00 in labor
savings. He also saved the departments another $1,600.00 in shop supply
charges. Both combined 16,600.00 saved. Another benefitis he knows everything
about upfit work and that makes him the expert on our Police and Fire units. In
order fo complefe this task Shane worked overtime without complaint to complete
this project on time. After the new units were completed, he also changed three
Police unit info Fire units. A job well done! Submitted by: Steven Beckett, Fleet
Maintenance Director

Mayor Vest asked Shane Atkins if he had any comments. Shane Atkins stated that he
was thankful for the award.

Mayor Vest said that Music-On-The-Square is going great this year, and Lincoln Park is
a great addition to the community. Mayor Vest said Candace Kane is in town producing
a movie titled, Love in Story Town, and will be filming in different locations in the
downtown area.

Mayor Vest announced that there was a new business opening up in town, The
Opossum's Tale Restaurant located on Fox Street. Mayor Vest asked staff to look at
current overlay zone that mostly applies to Depot Street and Fox Street and evaluate that
to see if we are handling the definition of beer correctly to address any changes in the
State Ordinances, or do we need to develop a new overlay zone that addresses that
issue. Mayor Vest said he would like to see if we have an updated overlay zone, or
develop a new one to also include the potential for serving. Mayor Vest said he feels that
is something we should study and discuss and also along the same lines have staff
update our current Beer Ordinance to reflect the recent passed changes in the State
dealing with beer. He said he is not that knowledgeable about beer and most of our
Ordinances, in the State, always in the past has addressed beer that is under 5% alcohol,
and now with the changes in the industry a lot of alcohol, that we know as beer, is greater
than 5% alcohol. Mayor Vest asked the staff to look at that and get back with Board.



Citizens Comments was the next item on the Agenda. Mayor Vest asked if there
were any citizens present that would like to comment at this time. Anne Mason, Executive
Director of the Heritage Alliance, 212 East Sabin Ave, announced that they have found a
mass grave from the 1873 cholera epidemic which was discovered under the wood line
area of the old cemetery. Anne Mason said there is possibly fifteen to twenty individuals
buried in the mass grave, there is no way to know exactly who it is, and they do have a
list of most of the people who died during that epidemic. Ms. Mason said they would like
to put up a tempaorary marker and then to work with Town te put up a permanent marker,
that the Heritage Alliance would fund.

Allyson Wilkinson, 107 Sevier Ave, Regent for Jonesborough's State of Franklin DAR
Chapter, announced the Flag Day Ceremony that will be held at 12:00 noon, June 14™ at
the flag pole at Town Hall, and Mayor Vest will be participating in the ceremony, and
extended an invitation for everyone to attend.

Candace Kane said she makes wholesome, faith-based, faith friendly, conservative
meaning, Christmas movies. Ms. Kane said she is from Long Island, New York, and since
2015 she has made 15 films, 3 television series which have 2 seasons, which is on Pure
Flix, and her television show Welcome to Hope is currently in contention for the Emmy's
and it is the first faith-based show from Pure Flix. Ms. Kane said it is a female film
company, Gemelli Film, and she is the president and also the director/producer of Love
in Story Town, and they are here filming exterior shots of Jonesborough. She said the
story takes place in Jonesborough, and they are filming it in New York. Ms. Kane said
they are offering business owners the opportunity to do what is called brand integration,
and they will be filming in the morning at 8:30 in front of McLeod's Organics. The story is
a Hallmark type a romantic movie and she anticipates it being released in the Spring of
2024,

Dana Helvey, 100 Woodrow Ave, expressed his concemn in regard to the sale of the
Herald & Tribune building, and even though it is a private enterprise paper, he feels the
newspaper really belongs to this community,

Alderman Communications was the next item on the agenda. Mayor Vest asked
the Aldermen if they had comments or questions, and no Alderman noted a comment.

Town Attorney Comments was the next item on the agenda. Town Attorney Jim
Wheeler said no report this evening. Jim Wheeler said we may need to go into Executive
Session a little later. Mayor Vest asked Town Attorney Jim Wheeler if the Board could
go into executive session now for about five minutes. Jim Wheeler replied yes. Mayor
Vest recessed the Board meeting, in order for the BMA to go into Executive Session. The
Executive Session meeting adjourned, and Mayor Vest reconvened the regular BMA
meeting.

The first item under New Business was approval to construct a new building for
the Solid Waste and Street Departments that was deemed a total loss by the Town's
insurance camier (Public Entity Partners) who advised staff that the building had to be



completely removed from the site and a new building erected, or they would not insure it.
The building was insured for $217,070. Staffs recommendation is to enclose the shed
and put Solid Waste in that building. The new building would house the Street
Department and the Parks and Recreation Department in this facility and give them office
space and a shop area to work out of because they have not had a facility of their own.
The proposed size of a new building is 60-foot by B—foot for the Street and Recreation
departments, and place siding on the 50-foot by 200-foot shed for the Solid Waste
Department. Town staff will be removing the structure from the site. The total expense of
approximately $208,000.00, we would have a balance of $2,070.00 from the insurance
payment. The estimated cost of the total project is $285,000.00 and we have entered
that into the FY2023-2024 budget. This will be $77,000.00 for the office build outs and
an additional $69,930.00 in town funds. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had
comments or questions. With there being none, Alderman Countermine made the motion,
seconded by Alderman Dickson, to approve the construction a new G60-foot by 80-foot
building for the Street Department and Recreation, and placing siding on the 50-foot by
200 foot shed for Solid Waste with the Staff's recommended plan to pay for the buildings.
The motion was duly passed.

The next item on the agenda was the Jackson Theatre project. Mayor Vest asked
the Aldermen if they had comments or questions. There being none, Alderman
Countermine made the motion to approve using existing funds up to $250,000 to cover
Todd Hensley's initial expenses for the sound system and interior work until the additional
loan funds are in place. Alderman Dickson seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

The next item on the agenda was first reading of an Ordinance Amending the
Fizscal Year 2022-2023 Budget for the General and Drug Funds. Mayor Vest asked the
Aldermen if they had comments or questions, There being none, Alderman Causey made
the motion to approve on first reading the Ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 Budget for the General and Drug Funds, as presented. Alderman Countermine
seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE

The next item on the agenda concerned the FY23-24 budgets for the General
Fund, Solid Waste and Drug funds and setting the property tax rate. Mayor Vest read the
following Ordinance caption: Ordinance No. B-23-01 An Ordinance of the Town of
Jonesborough, Tennessee, Adopting the Annual General Fund, Solid Waste Fund and
Drug Fund Budgets and Setting the Property Tax Rate for the Fiscal Year Beginning July
1, 2023 and Ending June 30, 2024. Mayor Vest said our General Fund is a little over
$12,000,000 and the property tax we collect in Jonesborough really only covers
$2,000,000. Mayor Vest said he feels that 52,000,000 property tax for a $12,400,000
budget illustrates how efficient and cost-conscious the Town has been over the many
years, using our own labor and prison labor and that is why we have built a pretty special
place here on a shoe-string budget. Mayor Vest said that property tax only covered about
50% of what's needed to provide the services to our town and at the level our town
desires. Mayor Vest said this year the Town finds us needing to find about $500,000 in



additional revenue and this year it is a little bit different and it needs to come from local
funds. He said its not borrowing from somewhere else, it's going to be using local funds,
and that is where we find ourselves today. He said there are projects that we have to get
done in Jonesborough this fiscal year which are very costly, as well as equipment that
has to be purchased to maintain our town. Mayor Vest said in going back in looking back
in 2011 the tax rate was $1.28 and now we are looking at a $1.45 which is still the lowest
in the area. He said Erwin is $1.53 unless they increase theirs too, Elizabethton just went
to a $1.65, Johnson City, Kingsport and Bristol are right at $2.00, Greeneville is at $2.46,
so for Jonesborough to be at $1.45 he thinks it tells us that for so many years how effective
we have been spending money. Mayor Vest said we should finish this FY22-23 he is
estimating that the local sales tax will finish at approximately $2.8 million and that is a
record for Jonesborough, and it is mandated by the State that we have to give half of that,
1.4 million to the County school system, Town Administrator Glenn said the local option
sales approximately will be $2.8 million this fiscal year is half of the total which is basically
$5.6 million and half of that ($2.8 million) goes to the education system. Mayor Vest
called for a motion. Alderman Countermine made the maotion, seconded by Alderman
Dickson, to approve on first reading Ordinance No. B-23-01 of the Town of Jonesborough,
Tennessee, Adopting the Annual General Fund, Solid Waste Fund and Drug Fund
Budgets and Setting the Property Tax Rate for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2023
and Ending June 30, 2024, The motion was duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE

The next item on the agenda concemned the garbage and refuse fees for FY23-24,
Mayor Vest read the following Ordinance caption: Ordinance No. B-23-02 Setting the
Garbage Collection Fees Within the Town of Jonesborough. Mayor Vest asked Town
Administrator Glenn Rosenoff to comment, Glenn Rosenoff said Solid Waste is one of
those departments that since the pandemic everything has gone up and one of the big
things that we did last year was the level of retention and recruitment that we faced. Mr.
Rosenoff said they look at where garbage collection and recycling program was. Mr.
Rosenoff said it is very unigue for a town to continue with curbside recycling, and its not
to say that we are doing away with it, but it is more of a rarity today that it has been in the
past, because places are looking at more regional approaches at hubs for collection. He
said one thing about our garbage collection is that it not only includes trash pickup, but
also includes junk pickup, leaf pickup, and brush pickup; and a lot of other places do not
pick up junk. Mr. Rosenoff said this also positions us with our growth to look at the
demands of the more homes and businesses that we have coming in which helps us to
leverage a whole lot more this year. Mr. Rosenoff said looking at the future aiso leverages
funds for the year based on all things going well, and it also leverages to where we invest
in ourselves for when we do need a new garbage truck or recycling truck by putting money
in reserves for the future, so that we don't come up three or four years down the road and
we don't have a source other than looking for other revenue sources. Mayor Vest asked
what a new garbage truck would cost. Glenn Rosenoff said probably in the neighborhood
of $500,000. There being no further comments, Mayor Vest called for a motion.
Alderman Causey made the motion to approve on first reading Ordinance MNo. B-23-02
Setting the Garbage Collection Fees Within the Town of Jonesborough for FY2023-2024,
seconded by Alderman Countermine and duly passed.



INSERT ORDINANCE

The next item on the agenda concerned the establishing water and sewer rates for
FY23-24. Mayor Vest read the following Ordinance caption: Ordinance No. B-23-03
Establishing Water and Sewer Rates to Provide the Necessary Funds for the Operation,
Maintenance and the Debt Service of the Jonesborough Water and Sewer Systems.
Mayor Vest said this is one the areas that we have to start thinking about the future, the
water plant was built in the 1970’s and it has served us well, but we have a greater
population now and more challenges and we are starting to make plans for a new water
plant, which will be about a $35,000,000 building. Alderman Dickson expressed his
appreciation to Mayor \Vest in regard to the way he articulated everything, and as a Board
member he feels Mayor Vest did an outstanding job in conveying to the public the
situation. Alderman Dickson said he feels the public understands that these are strategic
investments in our community and for the up building and the future growth of the
community; and there were investment that were made in the 1980°'s — 1990's that have
brought to where are today. Alderman Dickson said we have seen population growth and
we see a community that we all love and now we want to make these strategic
investments for the next 30, 40, 50 years. Alderman Dickson said he really appreciates
the way that Mayor Vest articulated everything and appreciates his leadership in the
matter. Glenn Rosenoff said in looking at all the different departments on the utilities side,
inflationary costs, materials, whether new pipe or chemicals, which has gone up about
200 - 300 percent. Mr. Rosenoff said the big plan is not only looking at expanding to look
at 30 — 40 years in the future, but also taking care of the older lines needing to be replaced,
transmission lines, a new plant, and inflation is probably the largest increases based on
what we need to operate a utilities. There being no further comments, Mayor Vest called
for a motion. Alderman Dickson made the motion to approve on first reading Ordinance
Mo. B-23-03 Establishing Water and Sewer Rates to Provide the Necessary Funds for the
Operation, Maintenance and the Debt Service of the Jonesborough Water and Sewer
Systems for Fiscal Year 2023-2024, as presented, seconded by Alderman Countermine
and duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE

Town Attorney Jim Wheeler recommended that this meeting be recessed, given
what may be presented at the Beer Board meeting, in the event that the Board may need
to do some BMA action, if you choose to do somewhat is being proposed. Jim Wheeler
said it would help if the BMA meeting was just recessed, and that you can come back in
as the Board of Mayor Aldermen, if you needed too, and follow-up with some of the
requests, and that adjournment be after the Beer Board meeting. Mayor Vest announced
that the Board of Mayor meeting is recessed until after the Beer Board meeting is
adjourned.



Mayor Vest reconvened the Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting, and with there
being no further business, Mayor Vest adjoumed the Board of Mayor and Aldermen
meeting.

ROBERT ANDERSON, RECORDER CHUCK VEST, MAYOR



BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
PUBLIC HEARING

JUNE 26, 2023

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen (BMA) met in a Public Hearing on Monday, June 26,
2023, at 7:00 p.m. at Town Hall, 123 Boone Street, Jonesborough, TN.

The first item on the Public Hearing agenda was an Ordinance Amending the Fiscal Year
2022-2023 Budget for the General and Drug Funds. There were no comments.

The next item on the Public Hearing agenda was Adoption of the annual General Fund,
Solid Waste Fund and Drug Fund budgets and Setting the Property Tax Rate for the Fiscal
Year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024. There were no comments.

The next item on the Public Hearing agenda was an Ordinance Establishing Garbage
and Refuse Collection Fees for FY2022-24. There were no comments.

The next item on the Public Hearing agenda was an Ordinance Establishing
Water/Sewer Rates for FY2023-24. There were no comments.

The Public Hearing was closed.

ROBERT ANDERSON, RECORDER ADAM DICKSON, VICE MAYOR

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
CALLED MEETING

JUNE 26, 2023

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen (BMA) met in a Called Session on Monday, June 28,
2023, at 7:00 p.m., at Town Hall, 123 Boone Street, Jonesborough, TN,



Due to the absence of Mayor Chuck Vest, Vice Mayor Adam Dickson presided and called
the meeting to order. Alderman Wolfe led the group in an opening Prayer, and Alderman
Causey led the pledge to the Flag.

Upon call of the roll those present were: Vice Mayor Adam Dickson, Alderman Virginia
Causey, Alderman Terry Countermine, and Alderman Kelly Wolfe. Mayor Chuck Vest and
Town Aftorney Jim Wheeler were absent. Also present were: Town Administrator Glenn
Rosenoff, Town Recorder Robert Anderson, Operations Manager Craig Ford, and Matthew
Musgrove, associate of Attorney Jim Whesler.

The first item on the agenda was a Resolution to Apply for Federal Assistance for a
Community Facility Loan Administered by the United States Department of Agriculture Rural
Development. The application is for acceptance of a Community Facility Loan to be
administerad by the United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development (USDA RD)
in an amount not to exceed $1,200,000 under the terms offered by the Government, and the
purpose of said funds is to assist in the completion of the renovation of the Jackson Theatre in
downtown Jonesborough. Vice Mayor Dickson asked if there were questions or comments.
There being none, Alderman Wolfe made the motion, seconded by Alderman Countermine and
duly passed, to approve the Resolution to Apply for Federal Assistance for a Community Facility
Loan Administered by the United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development as
presented.

INSERT RESOLUTION

The next item on the agenda was second and final reading of Ordinance No. 2023-07
amending the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget for the General and Drug Funds, Vice Mayor
Dickson asked if there were questions or comments. There being none, Alderman Countermine
made the motion to approve the Ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget for the
General and Drug Funds on second and final reading. Alderman Causey seconded the motion
and it was duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE

The next item on the agenda was second and final reading of an Ordinance adopting the
annual budget for the General Fund, Solid Waste Fund and Drug Fund and setling the property
tax rate at $1.45 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024, Vice
Mayor Dickson asked if there were questions or comments. There being none, Alderman Wolfe
made the motion to approve on second and final reading Ordinance No. B-23-01 of the Town
of Jonesborough, Tennessee Adopting the Annual General Fund, Solid Waste Fund and Drug
Fund Budgets and Setting the Property Tax Rate for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2023
and Ending June 30, 2024, Alderman Countermine seconded the motion and it was duly
passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE



The next item on the agenda was second and final reading of an Ordinance Setting the
Garbage and Refuse Collection Fees for FY2023-24 within the Town of Jonesborough. Vice
Mayor Dickson asked if there were any comments or questions. There being none, Alderman
Wolfe made the motion to approve on second and final reading Ordinance No. B-23-02 setting
the garbage collection fees for FY2023-24, as presented. Alderman Causey seconded the
motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE

The next item on the agenda was second and final reading of an Ordinance Establishing
Water/Sewer Rates for FY2023-24. Vice Mayor Dickson asked if the Aldermen if they had
questions or comments. There being none, Alderman Wolfe made the motion to approve on
second and final reading Ordinance No. B-23-03 Establishing Water and Sewer Rates to
provide the necessary funds for the operation, Maintenance and the Debt Service of the
Jonesborough Water and Sewer Systems for FY2023-24, as presented. Alderman
Countermine seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE

The next item on the agenda was approval of a Resolution Establishing a Budget for the
Water/Sewer Fund for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023. Vice Mayor Dickson asked if the
Aldermen if they had questions or comments. There being none, Alderman Wolfe made the
mofion and seconded by Alderman Causey, to approve Resolution No. B-23-01 establishing a
budget for the Water and Sewer Funds for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024. The motion was
duly passed.

INSERT RESOLUTION

The next item on the agenda was the FY2023-24 Employee Compensation Plan. Vice
Mayor Dickson asked if the Aldermen if they had questions or comments. Vice Mayor Dickson
asked if the Aldermen if they had gquestions or comments. There being none, Alderman
Countermine made the motion to approve the FY2023-24 Employee Compensation Plan as
presented. Alderman Causey seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT COMPENSATION PLAN

There being no further business the meeting was duly adjournad.

ROBERT ANDERSON, RECORDER ADAM DICKSON, VICE MAYOR



BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
CALLED MEETING

JUNE 30, 2023

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen (BMA) met in a Called Meeting on Friday, June 30,
2023 at 8:00 a.m., at Town Hall, 123 Boone Street, Jonesborough, TN.

Mayor Vest called the meeting to order. Alderman Wolfe led the group in an opening
Prayer, and Mayor Vest led the pledge to the Flag. Upon call of the roll those present were:
Mayor Chuck Vest, Alderman Virginia Causey, Alderman Terry Countermine, Alderman Adam
Dickson, and Alderman Kelly Wolfe. Also present were: Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff,
Town Recorder Robert Anderson, and Town Attorney Jim Wheeler.

The first item on the agenda was approval of a Resolution to adopt certain rules of
procedure and decorum. There are changes to are changes to state law regarding the open
meetings law including the timing of producing an agenda and making it available to the public
at least 48 hours before a meeting. Also, required is public comment periods. Mayor Vest
asked the Aldermen if they had questions or comments. There being none, Alderman Waolfe
made the motion to approve Resolution No. 2023-09 to Adopt Certain Rules of Procedure and
Decorum as presented. Alderman Causey seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT RESOLUTION

The next item on the agenda was Ordinances amending the Alcoholic Beverage
Ordinances. Mayor Vest said the three ordinances will be addressed separately and asked the
Aldermen if they had questions or comments and there were none.

Mayor Vest called for a motion to amend an Ordinance of the Town of Jonesborough
Municipal Code, Title 11, Entitled *Planning and Zoning" by Deleting Section 11-517D of
Chapter 5 in its Entirety and Replacing it with a new Section 11-517D. Alderman Countermine
made the motion to approve on first reading the Ordinance to amend the Town of Jonesborough
Municipal Code, Title 11, Entitled “Planning and Zoning” by Deleting Section 11-517D of
Chapter 5 in its Entirety and Replacing it with a new Section 11-517D. Alderman Dickson
seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE

Mayor Vest called for a motion to amend an Ordinance of the Town of Jonesborough
Municipal Code, Title 11, Entitled “*Planning and Zoning” by Deleting Seclion 11-516B of
Chapter 5 in its Entirety and Replacing it with a new Section 11-516B. Alderman Causey made
the motion to approve on first reading the Ordinance to amend the Town of Jonesborough
Municipal Code, Title 11, Entitled “Planning and Zoning" by Deleting Section 11-516B of



Chapter 5 in its Entirety and Replacing it with a new Section 11-516B. Alderman Dickson
seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE

Mayor Vest called for a motion to amend an Ordinance of the Town of Jonesborough
Municipal Code, Title 2, Entitled "Alcoholic Beverages” by Deleting Chapters 1 and 2 in their
Entirety and Replacing them with new Chapters 1 and 2. Alderman Countermine made the
motion to approve on first reading the Ordinance to amend the Town of Jonesborough Municipal
Code, Title 2, Entitled “Alcoholic Beverages" by Deleting Chapters 1 and 2 in their Entirety and
Replacing them with new Chapters 1 and 2. Alderman Causey seconded the motion and it was
duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE

The next item on the agenda was a proposal from Tennessee Hills Distillery to purchase
a parcel of land at 127 Fox Street. Mayor asked the Aldermen if they had any questions or
comments. Alderman Wolfe made the motion to table this item to a future time, because there
are guestions that he has on it that he would like to be able to investigate, and find some
answers on his own, and would like for the BMA to defer this action at this time. Alderman
Countermine seconded the motion. Mayor Vest asked if there was any discussion and with
there being none, called for a vote, Upon call of the roll, the following Aldermen voted Aye:
Alderman Wolfe, Alderman Countermine, Alderman Causey, and Alderman Dickson. Those

voting Nay: none. The motion was duly passed.

There being no further business the meeting was duly adjoumned.

ROBERT ANDERSON, RECORDER CHUCK VEST, MAYOR



BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
PUBLIC HEARING
JULY 10, 2023

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen {BMA) met in a Public Hearing on Monday, July
10, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. at Town Hall, 123 Boone Street, Jonesborough, TN.

The first item on the Public Hearing agenda was an Ordinance amendment to Title
1, Chapter 15 Business Roundtable Committee, Section 1-1502, Compositions,
Appointment, Membership, and Terms. Mayor Vest asked if there were any comments

and there weare none.

The next item on the Public Hearing agenda was an Ordinance to Amend the Town
of Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 2, Entitled “Alcoholic Beverages” by Deleting
Chapters 1 and 2 in their Entirety and Replacing them with New Chapters 1 and 2. Mayor
Vest asked if there were any comments and there were none.

The Public Hearing was closed.

ROBERT ANDERSON, RECORDER CHUCK VEST, MAYOR

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
REGULAR MEETING
JULY 10, 2023
The Board of Mayor and Aldermen (BMA) met in Regular Session on Monday, July
10, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., at Town Hall, 123 Boone Street, Jonesborough, TN,

Mayor Chuck Vest called the meeting to order. Alderman Dickson led the group
in an opening Prayer, and T. McLeod led the pledge to the Flag.



Upon call of the roll those present were: Mayor Chuck Vest, Alderman Virginia

Causey, Alderman Terry Countermine, and Alderman Adam Dickson. Absent was
Alderman Kelly Wolfe. Also present were: Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff, Town
Recorder Robert Anderson, Operations Manager Craig Ford, and Town Attorney Jim
Wheeler.

The next item was the Consent Agenda. Mayor Vest asked if there were any items

that the Aldermen wished to have pulled from the Consent Agenda. Town Attorney Jim
Wheeler requested that Item 9-d Special Event Request — 2023 Storytelling Festival be
pulled for discussion. Alderman Causey made the motion, seconded by Alderman
Countermine and duly passed, to approve the following items on the Consent Agenda:

1.

2.

Approve the minutes of the April 10, 2023, Regular BMA meeting.
Approve the following bills for payment:

Insert Payment

Approve the following Town Administrator Report:

Insert Report

Approve the following Operations Manager Report:

Insert Report

. Approve the following Committee Reports: JRT Board of Directors, Jonesborough

Board of Zoning Appeals and Jonesborough Planning Commission.

Approve the following Supervisor Reports: Solid Waste and Recycling, McKinney
Center, MBM Program Director, Fire Department, Visitor Center Manager,
Marketing and Promotions Coordinator, Police Department, Building Inspector,
Animal Control, Street Department, Utility Manager, Water Quality Department,
Water Distribution, Environmental Services/\Wastewater, Water Treatment, and
Director of Tourism and Main Street.

Acknowledgement of the Debt Obligation Report CT-0253 related to the General
Obligation Capital Outlay Note, Series 2023 in the aggregate principal amount of
not to exceed $1,000,000.

Approve the surplus of the 2014 Ford Interceptor VIN #1FM5KBAROEGATO961 to
the Erwin Police Department for the sum of $6500.00 payable prior to change in
ownership; and surplus of the Music on the Square van and to place on GovDeals.

Approve the following Special Event Application requests:



a. Halloween Haunts and Happenings scheduled for Friday, October 27, 2023
from 6:00 pm = 9:00 pm on Main Street, with Main Street and associated side
streets being closed at 5:30 pm, the intersections of Main Street and Fox Street
to Main Street and Second Avenue.

b. “A Spoton the Hill" sponsored by the Heritage Alliance as presented, to include
the dates and times of the six (6) performances: Friday, October 13, 2023 at
8:30 pm: 1 show - Saturday, October 14, 2023 at 2:00 pm and 6:30 pm - 2
shows *Saturday Matinee will take place inside the Auditorium of the Visitor's
Center - Friday, October 20, 2023 at 6:30 PM - 1 show, Saturday, October 21,
2023 at 2:00 PM and 6:30 PM - 2 shows,

c. Approve the Pumpkin Fest Special Event Application sponsored by JAMSA on
Saturday, September 23, 2023 from 11:00 am to 5:00 pm; and for Main Street
to be closed form Fox Street to First Avenue on the 23 by 8:00 am until 6:00
pm, or when the police deem it safe to recpen.

10. Approve (1) the capital projects plan with its affected changes and that the TDEC
ARPA, funds be utilized in full to repay the 1M Capital Outlay Mote as soon as
practicable when received; and (2) recognition of the original intent of utilizing the
1.25M Capital Outlay Note to reclaim/replenish our local funds that were otherwise
utilized as specified within our plan.

The next item on the agenda was the approval of the Financial Report. Mayor Vest
said the local sales tax revenues are still looking good, and called for motion to accept
the Financial Report. Alderman Dickson made the motion to approve the Financial Report
as presented, seconded by Alderman Causey and duly passed.

Communications from the Mayor was the next item on the agenda. Mayor Vest
said this year's Jonesborough Days Festival was a great event, Music-On-The-Square
(MOTS) is doing great, attendance has increase and the diversity in the music is great.

Mayor Vest said there is a recommendation to appoint Joe Smith to the JRT Board
of Directors, which is a three-year term expiring June 2026, and called for a motion.
Alderman Countermine made the motion to appoint Joe Smith to a three-year on the JRT
Board of Directors expiring June 2026, seconded by Alderman Dickson and duly passed.

Mayor Vest asked Arthur Casey to come forward for the July 2023 Employee of
the Month Award. Mayeor Vest read the following:

1 would like to recommend Arthur Casey for employee of the month for June 2023,
Arthur has been employed by the Town of Jonesborough for 32 years and has
shown to be sedulous and an arfisan at his position. Arthur was recently promoted
to Consitruction Supervisor and has evolved as a lrue leader with a meliculous
attention to detail in all of Water Distributions line maintenance and construction
affairs. Arthur is well respected by his colleagues for his leadership skills and his
knowledge of our intricate water system and has a propensity to share his



knowledge to the incoming neophytes at water distribution. You can always call
Arthur day or night at any time and he is willing to give advice to the people on call
or come in and help with the repair of the water line. Arthur was insfrumental in
getting Lincoln Parks loilets plumbed and installed again, showcasing his
knowledge and his abiiity to help other departments when needed. Arthur also took
out the old water heaters at Wellands Park and plumbed in and installed two water
heaters that were antiquated and were leaking; along with repairing several leaks
the park had this year. These are just a few examples of what Arthur Casey does
on a daily basis besides his regular job duties. His kindness and generosity go
beyond his normal working hours into his personal time by helping others thal may
need help with any home repairs or mechanical issues. These are the qualilies
that exemplify the traits of what Jonesborough, TN is known for and is expecled
by our residents and also whal makes us flourish as a community. In conclusion |
ask the Board to please consider Arthur Casey for Employee of the Month for his
performance as a representative of the Town of Jonesborough to go above and
beyond his normal job description for the greater good of the Township.
Submitted by: Allen Hicks, Water Distribution Supervisor

Mayor Vest asked Arthur Casey if he had any comments. Arthur Casey said he was
thankful for being nominated.

Mayor Vest announced that the next item to be addressed was the Special Event
Application from 1SC to hold the 2023 Storytelling Festival beginning October 4 — 8, 2023.
The request includes use of the Visitor Center auditorium during registration through the
festival az well as Mill Spring Park and gazebo for use for Ghost Stories. Beginning
Thursday evening, October 5, close College Street from Second Ave to Sabin Drive and
Sabin Dr. from Boone Street to Oak Hill School to allow only vendors to park between
Cherokee and First Ave on one side of College 5t, Thursday — Sunday (Oct. 5 = 8). Main
Street and associated side streets are to be closed throughout the Festival early Friday
moming through Sunday evening. Spring Street will be closed from Main Sireet to
Franklin Ave along with the associated side streets from 6:00-10:00 PM on Friday and
Saturday evenings for Ghost Stories. The Library parking lot, Parson’s Table lot, East
Courthouse Square, and Visitor Center lots are requested for use. Tents will be erected
beginning Monday, September 25" at the Library parking area for the annual Library Book
Sale. Various Town services are required for the event. The festival boundary includes
Boone Street where a 5-mph speed limit is requested during the festival. Also included
is the Special Event/Special Occasion Outdoor Use Permit for the Wine Garden to be set
up at the ISC Plaza from Thursday, October 5" through Saturday, October 7™ from 4-8
PM daily, and the Beer Garden to be set up at the Library Tent on Thursday, October ot
for the evening concert from 6:30-9:30 PM. Identifiable boundaries are included, signage
stating that alcohol is not permitted beyond this point {the boundary), and wristbands (21
and over only). Attorney Jim Wheeler said he had been provided the Proof of Insurance
Certificate and it does appear to be in order, so we are good from a legal standpoint.
Mayor Viest asked the Aldermen if they had comments or questions. There being none,
Alderman Causey made the motion to approve the Special Events Permit application from
the International Storytelling Center to hold the Mational Storytelling Festival October 4 —



8, 2023, including street closures and Boone Street with a festival speed limit of 5 mph
along with the use of the Visitor Center, Mill Spring Park, Christopher Taylor lot, Parson’s
Table lot, and front plaza of the MBM Storytelling Hall, and other accommodations, as
requested. The motion was seconded by Alderman Dickson and duly passed.

Citizens Comments was the next item on the Agenda. Mayor Vest asked if there
were any citizens present that would like to comment at this time. Jennifer Richman,
1338 Lemongrass Drive, Jonesborough TN. Ms. Richman said she moved to
Jonesborough 19 months ago from Cherry Hill, NJ, which is about 15 minutes outside of
Philadelphia. Like many out of staters, | came to Jonesborough for a different kind of life.
| can assure you it isn't easy to move away from everyone and everything you know. But
s0 many of us out of staters did that because our states and hometowns have completely
lost their way, The reason people like me are descending on places like this is because
we desire what Jonesborough offers. It has charm, a spirit, a soul, a heartbeat, palpable
energy, and unbelievable pride in residency. It is a slice of America that is disappearing
before our eyes, The reason Jonesborough is exploding is because people are
desperately craving traditional values, quaint small-town culture and dripping in patriotism
Americana that makes your heart just swell. What Jonesborough is doing is so attractive
that people are coming in droves. The sales pitch is working. People are coming here for
what Jonesborough already 1S. This town has bottled the secret sauce. The board and
mayor are the citizens’ line of defense to navigate the evolution of a town. In many ways
it's like a parent, where sometimes you say yes, sometimes you say no, and sometimes
a compromise is reached. At the core of every issue and subsequent decision is what is
best for the family. People like me can only hope that at the heart of each Jonesborough
decision, the elected representatives look at things in a reasoned, rational way, with
guardrails in place to make sure the best interests and core values of this town are being
honored. Ms. Richman thanked the BMA for their service to the community and for their
time.

Matthew Paul, 126 Sarah's Way, Jonesborough, TN, addressed the Board with traffic
concems on North Cherokee Street with the new school nearing completion. Mr, Paul
asked the Board about adding sidewalks and protected or separated bike infrastructure
to the school from along South Cherokee Street in order to help the traffic, and which will
help with the physical well-being of students aitending the new Jonesborough School,
and adults as well. Mayor Vest thanked Matthew Paul for his comments. Mayor Vest
noted that the Town has a plan to widen North Cherokee Street and run a trail from the
school over to the new Saylor's Place development across the street and connect into
Morth Jonesborough Subdivision and then at some point connect with the trails that we
have downtown.

T. McLeod, 101 East Main Street, Jonesborough, TN, addressed the Board. Mr. MclLeod
zaid he started attending the Board meetings about four or five months ago with the
intentions of finding out what might affect his business or what might affect JAMSA as an
organization, which he is the President of. Mr. McLeod said he has been in Jonesborough
for almost 2 years, since moving from Morth Carolina, and he hasn't publicly stood up and
issued his support of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen. He said we love this town and



the McLeod family moto is to” Hold Fast”; and we appreciate the fact that you are holding
fast to things that we really love to what Jonesborough is today. Mr. McLeod said they
are here to support the Board in any possible way that we can, and thanked the BMA for
the job and support your elections and terms as they are right now and you all do a great
job. Mayor Vest thanked T. McLeod for his comments.

Dana Helvey, 100 East Woodrow Ave, Jonesborough, TN, addressed the Board, with his
concerns in regard to TN Hills Distillery, who is a great friend and a good neighbor to him,
and when he has issues concerning the distillery he has been able to call Stephen and
address those issues. Mr. Helvey said he was at the last BMA meeting, and was in
support of everything that he heard at that meeting - we want to brew some beer in
Jonesborough, TN, we want to distribute that beer through growlers and other facilities,
we want to have a bases for ETSU students to come in and learn about this process. Mr.
Helvey said but when the picture was posted on Facebook of all of the Board members
looking like pirates, he thought what kind of neighbor is that and why is that happening.
Mr, Helvey said but when it comes down to slandering people, calling people names, it's
just distasteful. Mr. Helvey said people should come together, without the lawyers
present, and just talk about what are our differences and where is our common ground.
Mr. Helvey said we have a responsibility to this historical community to work together.
Mayor Vest thanked Dana Helvey for his comments.

Clark Jordan, Attorney for Tennessee Hills Distillery, asked the Mayor if he could address
the Board with a couple of comments. Mayor Vest said yes and that he would give him
60 seconds to comment. Clark Jordan said first of all | love your passion (in reference to
Dana Helvey's comments / citizens comments) , and secondly we are trying to work it
out, and he thinks they have resolution. Mr. Jordan said there has been a lot of discussion
and he his optimistic about it, and would be happy to talk with you about that after the
meeting. Mr. Jordan said it is unfortunate that it got to the place that it did, honestly; and
he is appreciative of those who have worked to try to find resolution, and would love to
have some discussion with you after the meeting. Mayor Vest thanked Clark Jordan for
his comments.

Alderman Communications was the next item on the agenda. Mayor Vest asked
the Aldermen if they had comments. Alderman Dickson said he wanted fo say to Town
staff just a great thanks for Jonesborough Days, which he thought was just outstanding
this year, every year before hand has been wonderful, but this year was just really nice,
the parade was nice, and the weather out outstanding. Alderman Dickson said in
particular he wanted to bring up something that has really caught his attention, and he
thinks that we as a Board should be very public in recognizing Town staff. Alderman
Dickson said he had the opportunity to meet new Public Safety Officer Art De La Cruz,
and really enjoyed meeting and talking to him; and another thing that he noticed in the
BMA agenda tonight that we just voted to approve the hire of Artivan Hart, Jr. Alderman
Dickson said for the local people, there is a family here in Washington County, the Harts,
Mr. William and Ms. Mary Hart were both just beautiful people, with four children,. and
they both have passed away. He said one of their children is Artivan Hart, and his son
was a Washington County Deputy, and the BMA has just hired him for the Town of



Jonesbhorough and that is a xrar'yr pleasant surprise and very glad to see that happen. He
said thirdly, as he was thinking Officer De La Cruz, Officer Hart, and Officer Hannah
Fleming, and Sgt. White, and in 2020 we all know that year the living epiphany it rocked
everybody in this room on a few levels. Alderman Dickson said 2020 was rough for this
community and there were a lot of tough conversations that we had as a community, we
weathered the storm, we got to the other side, and the four people that he just mentioned
today are reflective of the leadership that's taken place in terms of making sure in terms
of public safety that we have diversity, and also to strengthen our community. Alderman
Dickson said he thinks Police Chief Rice, Director Ford, and Town Administrator Rosenoff
ought to be recognized for the leadership that it takes and it didn't necessarily have to be
overt and flagrant, it was just being mindful and he just want to say publicly, thank you
and expressed his appreciation to the Town Administrator and it is really positive and it is
reflective of our community. Mayor Vest thanked Alderman Dickson for his comments.

Alderman Causey said she would like to say one thing. Alderman Causey said at the last
meeting she had to leave early because her husband was sick. Alderman Causey said
on Thursday she had to call EMS and Sagt. Jeff White came, he was the first one there,
and really did a good job and EMS, and she expressed her appreciation to the fact of how
fast our people really do respond. Mayor Vest thanked Alderman Causey for her
comments.

Town Attorney Comments was the next item on the agenda. Mayor Vest asked
Town Attorney Jim Wheeler if he had any comments. Jim Wheeler replied no.

The first item under Old Business was second and final reading of an Ordinance
to Amend the Municipal Code of the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee to Amend Title
1 Chapter 15 Roundtable Advisory Committee. This is to re-ignite the already established
Roundtable Advisory Committee, which has been inactive for several years, and to take
a new roster of members, The few revisions to the composition section of the ordinance
includes: The few revisions to the composition section of the ordinance includes: (1)
Reducing the number of total members from 25 to 11, and still having staff and other ex-
officio members. The number 25 reminded me of the past when the County Commission
was composed of 25 members. To be more efficient | opine that a number like 11 of very
strong members will be to our benefit more than a higher number like 25. (2) Rather than
terms expiring with 1 year and 2-years, staff is proposing 2-year and 3-year terms. (3)
Currently, to Town staff's knowledge, the Washington County Economic Development
Council is the entity to serve our economic development needs. Mayor Vest asked the
Aldermen if they had comments or questions. There being none, Alderman Dickson
made the motion to approve second and final reading of the Ordinance amending Title 1,
Chapter 15 Business Roundtable Committee, Section 1-1502, Compositions,
appointment, membership and terms, as presented. Alderman Countermine seconded
the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE



The next item on the agenda was second and final reading of an Ordinance to
Amend the Town of Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 2, Entitied “Alcoholic Beverages®
by Deleting Chapters 1 and 2 in their Entirety and Replacing them with New Chapters 1
and 2. Mayor Vest asked Town Attomey Jim Wheeler to address the change. Jim
Wheeler said we are making changes on second reading and pointed out that most of
these involve the wording of the two requirements in regards to food sales from 73% to
50% which is in line with ABC; and the beer alcohol content from 5% to 8%. Jim Wheeler
said they made some changes, in individual conversations that the Town Administrator
and he had with Aldermen, and the Town Administrator made the decision in consultation
with me, to recommend to the Board, some changes that you all had talked about possibly
making a little later in the year. Mr. Wheeler said one of those is 2-225 to change from
one-hundred (100) barrels annually to twenty five (25) barrels annually. Mr. Wheeler said
they are recommending changing and creating an option for the food requirement that will
involve the distribution for a second facility within close proximity to the first facility or to
actually have food on site. Mr. Wheeler said they worked on that very diligently and very
quickly put that together. Mayor Vest said he appreciates that the leaders in the past felt
like the food component with alcohol was important and appreciates the Alderman
continuing to feel that way, and he thinks this still addresses that importance. Mayor Vest
asked the Alderman if they had any comments or questions. There being none, Alderman
Countermine made the motion to approve on second and final reading the Ordinance to
amend the Town of Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 2, Entitled “Alcoholic Beverages”
by Deleting Chapters 1 and 2 in their Entirety and Replacing them with New Chapters 1
and 2. Alderman Causey seconded the motion. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if there
were any further discussions. Alderman Countermine said this has been a discussion
and he appreciates the many calls concerned about this. Alderman Countermine said he
believes Glenn Rosenoff and Jim Wheeler have done a good job of comprising, and he
is a believer in comprise, and he does want assure who are concerned that we will do our
best to have that neighborhood be a neighborhood. Alderman Countermine said he
received calls on the term limit situation and that's interesting. Alderman Countermine
said he appreciates very much those who have supported him, he loves Jonesborough,
yes he has been daoing this job a long time, we believes we have a record of doing many
good things in this town, and we hopes we can continue and do hope through this
compromise work with TN Hills and have that comer be a part of the neighborhood.
Mayor Vest thanked Alderman Countermine for his comments, Alderman Dickson said it
has been said a few times how much we love this town and himself, Mayor Vest and
Alderwoman Causey were bom and raised in Tennessee's oldest town. Alderman
Dickson said we have a great love for this town and we are so glad for our new citizens
that have moved into town and make this town their home. Alderman Dickson said he
doesn't want to be ignorant, wants to be balanced, we live in the 21* century and we
understand that people from all over the world are coming into our community. Alderman
Dickson said its very heart warming and uplifting to hear comments about the values that
people see, and doesn't think that is by happenstance or by coincidence, he thinks that
is intentional to make this community a very special place. Alderman Dickson said with
all that said he just wants to say he appreciates Attorney Wheeler and Administrator
Rosenoff, and appreciates this Board. Alderman Dickson said the Mayor mentioned back
in the early 2000's this food requirement, it seemed like it was very important for the



moment and he will say and go on the record that he still thinks it is important. Alderman
Dickson said from a legal standpoint, and it may not a hold bit of strength in court, but he
thinks as a community that we need inclusive spaces where we gather. He said we don't
need to be insolent people, and he has very dear friends who enjoy a glass of wine with
their meal and he thinks there is a lot of citizens in this town who understand that and are
open to that. Alderman Dickson said but having a space where we can gather and not
just be singular, he doesn't want to lecture too much, but if you look at American society
today we have too many places that are singular; and the notion is if you don't want to go
then don't go, so now they are just singular places. Alderman Dickson said that
polarization just continues to yelp, because if you don't want to go, don't go, but those
who do want to go, go; and they are not inclusive. Alderman Dickson said we need
inclusive spaces in town and the food requirement in a very round-about way creates that
kind of climate. Alderman Dickson said he is grateful the Board, he is grateful for the
compromise, and he believes that the majority of the votes are there to make this thing
move forward. Alderman Dickson said he hopes that Dickson want be seen as insolent
or backward or stupid, if his votes is not one of the votes. He said he thinks this is for the
health of this town, he appreciates the leadership in trying to strike a balance and he
wants to be public about that, Alderman Dickson said he was just thinking about an
episode of the Andy Griffith show, Bill Bixby was a spoiled brat and came through
Mayberry and got arrested and had to spend sometime in jail, and Andy talked to him
about the importance of standing on your own two legs, what means for an individual to
stand on your own two legs. Alderman Dickson said so he thinks that is what Dickson is
going to do this evening. Mayor Vest thanked Alderman Dickson for his comments. With
there being no further comments, Mayor Vest asked the Town Recorder to call for the
vote. Upon call of the roll, the following Aldermen voted Aye: Alderman Countermine
and Alderman Causey. Voling Nay. Alderman Dickson. The metion carried

INSERT ORDINANCE

The next item on the agenda was first reading of an Ordinance to Amend the Town
of Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 8, Entitled "Motor Vehicles And Traffic” by Deleting
Chapter 5 Parking in its Entirety and Replacing it with a New Chapter 5. Mayor Vest
asked the Aldermen if they had questions or comments. With there being none, Alderman
Countermine made the motion to approve on first reading the Ordinance to Amend the
Town of Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 9, Entitled “Motor Vehicles And Traffic” by
Deleting Chapter 5 Parking in its Entirety and Replacing it with a New Chapter 5, as
presented. Alderman Causey seconded the motion and it was duly passed,

INSERT ORDINAMNCE

There being no further business the meeting was duly adjourned.

ROBERT ANDERSON, RECORDER CHUCK VEST, MAYOR



BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
WORK SESSION

AUGUST 2, 2023

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen (BMA) met in a Work Session on Wednesday,
August 2, 2023 at 6:00 p.m., at the Visitors Center, 117 Boone Street, Jonesborough, TN,

Mayor Vest called the meeting to order. Upon call of the roll those present were:
Mayor Chuck Vest, Alderman Virginia Causey, Alderman Terry Countermine, Alderman
Adam Dickson, and Alderman Kelly Wolfe. Also present were: Town Administrator Glenn
Rosenoff, Town Recorder Robert Anderson, Operations Manager Craig Ford, and Town
Attormmey Jim Wheeler,

The purpose of the Work Session was discussion of Capital Projects for the
General Fund Departments.

With no formal action acted upon and there being no further business for
discussion, Mayor Vest adjourned the work session, and the BMA went into Executive
Session.

ROBERT ANDERSON, RECORDER CHUCK VEST, MAYOR



BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
PUBLIC HEARING
AUGUST 7, 2023
The Board of Mayor and Aldermen (BMA) met in @ Public Hearing on Monday,
August 7, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. at Town Hall, 123 Boone Street, Jonesborough, TN,
The first itern on the Public Hearing agenda was an Ordinance to amend the Town
of Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 9, Entitled “Motor Vehicles and Traffic” by Deleting
Chapter 5 Parking in its Entirety and Replacing it with a new Chapter 5. Mayor Vest asked

if there were any comments and there were none.

The Public Hearing was closed,

ROBERT ANDERSON, RECORDER CHUCK VEST, MAYOR

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEMN
REGULAR MEETING

AUGUST 7, 2023

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen (BMA) met in Regular Session on Monday,
August 7, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., at Town Hall, 123 Boone Street, Jonesborough, TN.

Mayor Chuck Vest called the meeting to order. Alderman Dickson led the group
in an opening Prayer, and Gary McAllister led the pledge to the Flag.

Upon call of the roll those present were: Mayor Chuck Vest, Alderman Virginia
Causey, Alderman Terry Countermine, Alderman Adam Dickson, and Alderman Kelly
Waolfe. Also present were: Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff, Town Recorder Robert
Anderson, Operations Manager Craig Ford, and Matthew Musgrove, Associate of Town
Attorney Jim Wheeler.



The naxt item was the Consent Agenda. Mayor Vest asked if there were any items
that the Aldermen wished to have pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
there none. Alderman Wolle made the motion, seconded by Alderman Causey and duly
passed, to approve the following items on the Consent Agenda:

1. Approve the following bills for payment:
Insert Payment

2. Approve the following Town Administrator Report:
Insert Report

3. Approve the following Operations Manager Report:
Insert Report

4. Approve the following Supervisor Reports: McKinney Center, MBM Program
Director, Director of Tourism and Main Street, Utility Manager, Water Quality
Department, Water Distribution, Environmental Services/Wastewater, Water
Treatmenl, Solid Waste and Recycling, Fire Department, Street Department,
Animal Control, Marketing and Promations Coordinater, Building Inspector, Visitor
Center Manager, Senior Center, Police Department, and Director of Special
Events.

5. Declaration of the following Town equipment as surplus: a service truck bed that
has rusting flooring to be sold on GovDeals and six new children's tables through
a direct sale to a public school system.

6. Approve an Excess Material Dumping Policy including a Dump Site Agreement, as
presented.

INSERT AGREEMENT
7. Approve a Record Retention Policy, as presented.

INSERT POLICY

8. Approve Change Order No. 1 from Merkel Brothers Construction in the amount of
$67.588.80. for the Northern Loop improvements (North Cherokee Water System
Improvements (the total cost of the project was $1,346,184.00. Change Order No.
1 was submitted to the town and it reduces the overall cost of the project by
$67,589.80, and provides for a final contract in the amount of $1,278,594.20); and
approve final payment to Merkel Brothers Construction, Inc. in the amount of
$69,367.51 which includes the retainage in the amount of $63,643.51.



9. Approve the change order with GRC Construction adding $960,000 (not to exceed)
of work to be performed by Appalachian Light and Production under GRC’s scope
of work for a 2% fee ($19,200) and authorize the Town Mayor or Administrator to
sign the AlA Change Order document as soon as it is made available by the
architect.

The next item on the agenda was the approval of the Financial Reporl. Mayor
Vest called for a motion to accept the Financial Report. Alderman Countermine made the
motion to approve the Financial Report as presented, seconded by Alderman Dickson
and duly passed.

Communications from the Mayor was the next item on the agenda. Mayor Vest
introduced Dana Jones Certified Administrator, Washington County Election Commission
and Gary Mcallister, Chairman of the Washington County Election Commission. Dana
Jones gave a presentation on their new pilot program for Washington County voting
centers. Ms. Jones said in 2022 they had 23 precincts and three of those precincts were
in one location, and their number one complaint on election day is they were at the wrong
precinct because they were redistricted; and then they would have to go some place else
to vote. Ms. Jones said they are now going to have 20 voling centers, and voters can
now go vote at a precinct closest to their home. Ms, Jones said they have done the
highway studies and all the planning. Dana Jones said the paper work for the Election
Office is greatly reduced after an election, and they will be able to get elections certified
much guicker and get the numbers out to the people of Tennessee. Ms. Jones said they
have received unanimous support from both parties in Washington County, the Mayors
and the County Commission. Dana Jones said they are grateful for the support that the
BMA has given due and for making it possible for the Visitor Center and the Middle School
going with BrightRidge, which is not internet but direct hardline cable. Ms. Jones said it
is their own cable and nobody else can get on it and it is a very safe system that people
can vote on and their vote will not be diluted and every legal vote will be counted as is
cast. Ms. Jones said they would have 160 voting machines in 2024 and they are hoping
to add an additional 20 machines by the time of the 2024 presidential primary. Dana
Jones expressed her gratitude and support of the Jonesborough Board of Mayor and
Aldermen. Mayor Vest thanked Dana Jones and Gary McAllister for the update.

Mayor Vest expressed his appreciation to Police Chief Matt Rice and the Police
Officers for the hard work and efforts in regard to the drug bust at the car wash located
on East Jackson Blvd. Mayor VYest announced that Curtis and Carol Johnston have
purchased the Eureka Hotel. Mayor Vest said there was a huge turnoul for the Harry
Potter event in spite of the weather and thanked Town staff for all their work in making it
a great event. Mayor Vest said there are two new businesses in town, The Opossums
Tale Restaurant, 103 Fox Street and First Class Floral Design, 137 East Main Street
(farmer GiGi's Pantry location).

Mayor Vest asked David Gillenwater to come forward for the August 2023
Employea of the Month Award. Mayor Vest read the following:



I would like to nominate David Gillenwater for Employee of the Month. David has
worked for the Town of Jonesborough for 11 years. David does an excellent fob
of caring for the senior center and Lincoln Park. The pride he puts into all he does
is a huge reason the senior cenler will fooks brand new, seven and a half years
fater. He works very hard to maintain the center both inside and out, and the above
and beyond he gives comes from the heart, He cares about our members
experience while they are here and he is always willing to lend a hand, jump start
a car, whatever is needed. David never says thal is not my job, he is a team player.
In fact, Dawvid serves as our chef for the Café Connection program. On
Wednesdays each week, the senior center provides a home cooked meal prepared
in our kitchen. As we are working fo change the dining experience for seniors, he
makes this program a posifive expenence for our members, David works difigently
maintaining the grounds of the senior cenfer and now Lincoln Park; weeding,
spraying, watering. He has jumped right in fo help with planl care and staking
frees. He helps with our Master Gardner's with the gardening efforts. David works
well with everyone in the office, and I have never hear David gel frustrated with
anyone needing his help. He exemplifies the atfitude that everything is our job and
we are here for the members. David plays a key rofe in that ensuring that the
mambers have a safe, clean and fun space lo take parl in the programs of their
choice. These qualities make David Gillenwater a greatl candidate for Employee
of the Month. Submitted by: Mary Regen, Senior Center Direclor

Mayor Vest asked David Gillenwater if he had any comments. Daivd Gillenwater
expressed his appreciation to Mary Regen and the Town for a great senior center.

Mayor Vest presented a Proclamation to Allyson Wilkinson, Regent of the State of
Franklin Chapter of the Daughters of the American Revolution, proclaiming September
17-23, 2023 Constitution Week for their 236" anniversary and Sunday, September 10,
2023 as the 10" annual Bell Ringing Ceremony at Oak Hill School. Allyson Wilkinson
said this year's program will include the 13" Amendment - Abolition of Slavery and
expressed her appreciation to the Town for their support.

INSERT PROCLAMATION

Cilizens Comments was the next item on the agenda, Mayor Vest asked if there
were any citizens present that would like to comment at this time. Dr. Tim Morganstern,
401 East Main Street, Jonesborough, TN, addressed the BMA and expressed his
thankfulness for the new sidewalk, the senior center, and the new Lincoln Park. Dr.
Morganstern said he doesn't have complaints, but observalions in regard to traffic
increasing along East Main Street and expressed safely concermns due in the rate of speed
of vehicular traffic. Dr. Morganstern said the crosswalk from the Senior Center over to
New Halifax has signage that traffic is to stop if pedestrians are present, and that rarely
happens. Dr. Morganstern said another observation is a vehicle coming from Johnson
City and turning onto Long View Ave to the Lincoln Park beside Senior Center, is a pretty
fast turn and drivers do not observe the right-of-way of pedestrians who are crossing the
sidewalk, and feels that striping thal area will be beneficial. Dr. Morganstern said the



main thing he is concemead about is the safety of the people and said he hopes the Town
can do a little more study in that area. Mayor Vest thanked Dr. Tim Morganstern for his
comments.

Mayor Veslt asked staff to look at that intersection. Operations Manager Craig Ford said
that they are currently doing a speed study through thal section in that area and they
could possibly look at the intersection itself as far as squaring it up a little bit more by
taking the curb out and making it more of a turn. Mr. Ford said they have discussed
adding some additional raised crosswalks in that area, but the speed limit would have to
be lowered. Craig Ford said that Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff had a received an
email requesting a speed study done in that area, and Street Director Malcolm Highsmith
has put the speed cables, and will probably being taking those up in the next few days,
which will us a better understanding of what the speed actually is in that area of East Main
Street. Alderman Dickson asked about the cost of the signalization at the intersection of
West Main Street and Oak Grove Avenue, and if we were to have those at other locations
is it productive or profitable. Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff said that signal was
from TDOT, and staff was not included in any kind of communications that they were
going to put those types of crossings there. Glenn Rosenoff said staff did meet with
TDOT, which was a very productive meeting, and they took the opportunity to say it is not
just the safety of the crosswalk but there is also the historic district and you have
galvanized steel in an area that people have to abide by different colors. Mr, Rosenoff
said they asked TDOT to tone down the steel and use a color that is more conducive to
the historic district; and the other part is whoever installed the signals also mixed them up
with other existing signs and depending on the angle now there is conflict between the
different signs. Mr. Rosenoff said they are ideal because they are solar and they are
push button versus the other ones that they have that are solar and flash all day and
pretty much into the evening. Glenn Rosenoff said the Traffic Advisory Committee and
staff are looking at mitigation techniques and the crosswalks we are looking at different
options Lthat are not so glaring and are more push butlon oriented.

Alderman Comments was the next item on the agenda. Mayor Vest asked the
Aldermen if the had comments. Alderman Countermine announced that the Storybook
Trail in Jimmy Meil Smith Park is completed; and the story is the one by Marilynn
Buchanan and Becky Isabel about Jonesborough and there is 18 signs that you can take
your children to walk along and read it. Alderman Countermine thanked Mancy and
Harold Dishner for supporting though the Governor's Committee on Children's Literature.
Alderman Countermine said the annual bocce toumament will be held at 2:30 pm,
Sunday, October 22™ rain or shine, to benefit the Jonesborough/\Washington County
Library.

Alderman Causey expressed her appreciation to Town Recorder Robert Anderson for all
he has done for the Town, and we are going to miss him. Mayor Vest announced that
Robert Anderson is going back to work for the State of Tennessee. Alderman Wolfe said
Robert is a high-interest commodity, and we are going to miss Robert very much and
appreciate the high level of professionalism and efforts that he brought to the Town,



Alderman Wolfe said he was inquiring based on circumstances and the recent flow of
events, and is a little concemed upon obsearvation with the amount of time being on spent
on one particular item that has been on our radar screen here at a Town. Alderman Wolfe
said we have a lot of tremendous things going on in the Town of Jonesborough that
requires a lot of careful attention, that requires shepherding, hard work and stick-to-
intuitiveness to get accomplished. Alderman Wolfe said he would like to offer a motion,
after consultation, to add to the agenda for a motion, he would like to present, to establish
a Point of Contact for Tennessee Hills with the Town of Jonesborough that they would
need o use as a conduit in communicating with our Board and with our Town staff, and
he would appreciate a motion, Aldermen, to allow us to have that discussion and with him
offering a full motion. Alderman Countermine made the molion lo add this to the agenda,
seconded by Alderman Causey, and duly passed.

Alderman Wolfe said in talks with Town Attorney Jim Wheeler and Town Administrator
Glenn Rosenoff, he thinks the logical course of events that they should follow is since
there has been a lot of legal discussed in this situation, and that the Board should
astablish Jim Wheeler as the primary point of contact with the people from Tennessee
Hills if they want to have discussions with our Board or with Town staff. Alderman Wolfe
said that would be his motion is that Jim Wheeler would be donated as the point of conlact
for Tennessee Hills people and any discussions we have with them regarding anything
they got going on at their establishment at the Parsons Table and at the Salt House and
any discussions aboul parking lots, sidewalks, easements, and anything imaginable and
that way we can hopefully be productive, maintain productivity, and streamline the point
of communication. Alderman Dickson seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

The next item on the agenda was Town Attorney Comments. Matthew Musgrove,
Associate of Town Attorney Jim Wheeler, said he had no comments.

The first item under Old Business was second and final reading of Ordinance No.
2023-10 to amend the Town of Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 89, Entitled *Motor
Vehicles and Traffic” by Deleting Chapter 5 Parking in its entirety and replacing it with a
new Chapter 5. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had questions or comments. With
there being none, Alderman Countermine made the motion to approve on second and
final reading Ordinance No. 2023-10, as presented. Alderman Causey seconded the
motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE

The first item under New Business was approval of a design variance for the Dairy
Queen Restaurant at the corner of East Jackson Blvd and Baileigh Lynn Loop, and
located within the Design Overlay District. Mayor Vest asked Town Administrator Glenn
Rosenoff to explain the request. Glenn Rosenoff said Dairy Queens, like other corporate
or franchised type businesses have a select few building designs that meet their corporate
architectural and aesthetic model preferences, Glenn Rosenoff said staff has had several
communications with DO representatives over the project and both parties have
attempted to reach the minimum 75% exterior wall standards as provided for in the design



guidelines. The sides and rear of the building will be buffered and therefore meet our
minimum requirements of buffering from Baileigh Lynn Loop; and the front fagade has the
following materials and percentages proposed: (a) Stone 13.2%, (b) EIFS (External
Insulated Finishing Systems) 24 8%, (c) Glazing (glass) 25.5%, (d) Metal Red Panel
20.8%, and {e) Metal Eyebrow Trim (black) 15.7%. Mr. Rosenoff said nearly 64% of the
front building fagade is made up of stone, EIFS, and glass, however glass is not counted
toward exterior materials. The buffering on all sides and rear “buffer” the majority of the
building and provide for a strong landscaping presence at the site which is in close
proximity to a residential development; and the developer reported to staff that the
property was pursued and put under contract before the town adopted the design
guidelines, but they reported that changing their model will diminish their standard build
that DQ corporate slands behind. The EIFS at 24.8% is a type of synthelic stucco but
provides for a more flexible and aesthetic product and meels energy codes. EIFS provide
for an exterior wall cladding system that consists of an insulation board attached either
adhesively or mechanically, or both, to the substrate; an integrally reinforced base coat;
and a textured protective finish coat. Staff opines that the overall building with the
buffering on 3 sides and the front fagade do provide for a goed building design (visual
appearance). Glenn Rosenoff said the Design Review Commission recommended
approval of the exception to the 75% primary materials for the front fagade to the Board
of Mayor and Aldermen. Mayor Vest called for a motion. Alderman Countermine made
the motion to approve the design of the building as presented, and recommend an
exception to the 75% primary materials, as presented. Alderman Causey seconded the
motion and it was duly passed.

The next item on the agenda was approval of a Resolulion authorizing the Town
to Participate in the FY23-24 "Safety Partners Grant™ Matching Grant Program through
Public Entity Partners. Mayor Vest Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had questions
or comments. With there being none, Alderman Dickson made the motion to approve the
Resolution as presented, seconded by Alderman Wolfe and duly passed.

INSERT RESOLUTION

The next item on the agenda was first reading of an Ordinance adopting the 2018
International Energy Conservation Code (IECC), in order for the Town to meet minimum
State of Tennessee requirements. Mayor Vest asked if there was any comments or
questions. Alderman Wolfe asked if this was a requirement to update the Town's codes
in accordance with State code requirements within 5 years of the established date. Glenn
Rosenoff said yes, and it is very much in-line with those in the Tri-Cities that have same
similar code. Mayor Vest called for a motion. Alderman Causey made the maotion to
approve on first reading the Ordinance adopting the 2018 International Energy
Conservation Code (IECC), as presented. Alderman Countermine seconded the motion
and it was duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE



The next item on the agenda was approval of a design vanance for the Trushine
Car Wash VIl located on West Jackson Boulevard, and is located in the Design Overlay
District. Mayor Vest asked Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff to explain the request.
Glenn Rosenoff said Trushine, like other corporate or franchised type businesses, have
a select few building designs that meet their architectural and aesthetic model
preferences. Staff have had several communications with Trushine representatives over
the project and both parties have attempted to reach the minimum 75% exterior wall
standards as provided for in the design guidelines. The majority of the building facade is
made up of split faced block. Split-face block, also called rock-faced, is a concrete
building unit with a faux finish on one side that mimics natural stone, providing for an
exterior finish that is more aesthetically pleasing. The different shades of gray graduating
from darker at the bottom, lighter in the middle, and dark again at the top provides for a
very aesthelic looking building. Glass is included in the design however glass is not
counted toward exterior materials. Ingress and egress are from West Jackson Boulevard,
buffering will be provided to screen partial view of the building from the Persimmon Ridge
Road visual side. Mr. Rosenoff said staff opines that the overall building with the painted
split-faced concrete textured fagade and the buffering at the Persimmon Ridge Road
visual side provide for a good building design (visual appearance), and the Design Review
Commission recommended approval of the alternative material, split face block — rock
faced — natural stone finish, to the Board of Mayor and Aldermen. Town Attorney Jim
Wheeler in discussion with the Design Review Commission further stated that the
variance for the project was to allow for the split-face block - rock faced - natural stone
finish to be used as the primary materials, not listed in the Design Guidelines, as a primary
material for the building design. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had any questions
or comments. There being none, Alderman Wolfe made the motion to approve an
exception to the primary materials list by allowing split-face block - rock faced — natural
stone finish, not listed in the Design Guideline, to be used as a primary material for the
building design, seconded by Alderman Causey and duly passed,

The next item on the agenda was approval of a Resolution for a Bond Anticipation
Mote for the Jackson Theatre Project. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they questions
or comments. There being none, Alderman Countermine made the motion to approve
the Resolution authorizing the issuance, sale, and payment of the Jackson Theaire
Project Bond Anticipation Note 2023 not to exceed $1,200,000, as presented. Alderman
Wolfe seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT RESOLUTION

The next item on the agenda was approval of a Resolution for a Capital Outlay
Note for the following FY23-24 General Fund Capital Projects:

General Admin. = Other Capital Projects 149,742
Street Dept — West Main Sidewalk 105,000
Oak Grove Curbing and Sidewalk 30,000
Lincoln Park — Parking Lot 106,000

Thompson Meadow Lane Paving 22,000



Boone Street Faving 185,000

3 - 2500 4WD Trucks 150,000
Recreation - Depot Street Park Improvements 30,000
Slemmons House Painting 16,000
Jonesborough Fitness Center 49,000
Gillespie Building Roof 41,758

Water Park - Pump Room Renovation (Equip. Only) 120,000
McKinney Center - Building Maintenance - Capital___15,500
51,000,000

Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had any questions or comments. Alderman
Causey said in regard to the Slemmons House she thought the Board had agreed o
$30,000 instead of $16,000. Glenn Rosenoff said during the Budget Work Session we
had talked about flexibility of the balance of the $16,000 for the painting and then there is
flexibility in the current budget to come up with the other $14,000. Alderman Wolfe said
s0 part of it comes from the budget and part of it comes from the Capital Outlay Note.
Glenn Rosenoff said there is the other Capital Qutlay Projects which is the balance of
almost $150,000 and we have quotes on those already. Alderman Wolfe made the motion
to approve the Resolution authorizing the issuance, sale, and payment of various capital
projects and departmental vehicles Capital Outlay Note 2023 not to exceed 31,000,000,
as presented. Alderman Dickson seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT RESOLUTION

There being no further business the meeting was duly adjourned.

ROBERT ANDERSON, RECORDER CHUCK VEST, MAYOR



BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
PUBLIC HEARING
SEPTEMBER 11, 2023
The Board of Mayor and Aldermen (BMA) met in a Public Hearing on Monday,
September 11, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. at Town Hall, 123 Boone Street, Jonesborough, TN.

The only item on the Public Hearing agenda was the Ordinance Adopting the 2018
International Energy Conservation Code (IECC). There were no comments.

The Public Hearing was closed.

JANET JENNINGS, RECORDER CHUCK VEST, MAYOR

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
REGULAR MEETING
SEPTEMBER 11, 2023

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen (BMA) met in Regular Session on Monday,
September 11, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., at Town Hall, 123 Boone Street, Jonesborough, TN,

Mayor Chuck Vest called the meeting to order. Alderman Dickson led the group
in an opening Prayer, and Chuck Lewis led the pledge to the Flag.

Upon call of the roll those present were: Mayor Chuck Vest, Alderman Terry
Countermine, Alderman Adam Dickson, and Alderman Kelly Wolfe. Absent was:
Alderman Virginia Causey. Also present were: Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff,
Operations Manager Craig Ford, and Town Attormey Jim Wheeler.

The next iterm was the Consent Agenda. Mayor Vest asked if there were any items
that the Aldermen wished to have pulled from the Consent Agenda. There were none.
Alderman Countermine made the motion, seconded by Alderman Wolfe, and duly passed
to approve the following items on the Consent Agenda:



. Approve the minutes for the following BMA meetings: May 8, 2023 — Regular
Meeting, May 23, 2023 — Work Session, May 31, 2023 — Work Session, and June
B, 2023 — Work Session.

. Approve the following bills for payment;

Insert Payment

. Approve the following Town Administrator Report:
Insert Report

. Approve the following Operations Manager Report:
Insert Report

. Approve the following Supervisor Reports: Fire Department, Visitor City Manager,
Building Inspector, Sclid Wasle and Recycling, Marketing and Promotions
Coordinator, Utility Manager, Water Quality, Water Distribution, Wastewater,
Water Plant, Animal Control, Street Department, Director of Special Events, Senior
Center, Mary B Martin Program Director, McKinney Center, and Director of
Tourism and Main Street.

Approve the 2023 Concession Agreement with the Persimmon Ridge Soccer
Association authorizing the use of the Town concession buildings associated with
the ballfields at Persimmon Ridge Park from August 1, 2023 — December 31, 2023,
subject to the terms of the Agreemant.

INSERT AGREEMENT

Approve the following two revisions to Jonesborough Locally Grown (JLG) Special
Event Applications as requested: (1) Thursday Burger Night to be extended
through October 26, 2023, and (2) Jonesborough Farmers Market to be extended
through October 28, 2023,

Approve the Town to hold the Veteran's Day Celebration to be held on Saturday,
November 11, 2023 from 11:00 am to 3:00 pm, and include the short street closure
from Fox Street to First Avenue for 30 minutes (11:00 am - 11:30 am) for the
beginning ceremony to take place in front of the Washington County Courthouse.

Approve the Town to Hold the "Christmas in Olde Jonesborough” to be held
between November 25, 2023 through December 18, 2023, and include the
following street closures: Intersections of Main Street and Fox Street to Main Street
and Second Avenue, on the following dates: November 25— Whoville and Small
Business Saturday — 11:00 am — 3:00 pm and 6:00 pm Lighting of the Tree,



December 2 - Doggone Christmas — 11:00 am - 3:00 pm and December 9 —
Santa's Christmas Village - 11:00 am - 3:00 pm, and Christmas Parade at 6:00
pm (parade route intersection of Boone Street and Hwy 11-E, along Boone Street,
up to North Washington Ave to 11-E; and one lane of the east-bound lane of 11-E
from Boone Street to Forest Avenue be closed for the duration of the event to allow
parade participant traffic fo travel from the staging area at Jonesborough Middie
School to downtown); and December 16 — Church Christmas Tour,

10. Approve the heliday lighting contract to Christmas Décor Knoxville in the amount
of $41,750 by adding lights to the tree at the corner of Main Street and 1% Ave.,
and wrap the light posts on Fox Street in candy cane lights to tie in the candy cane
tress by the Storytelling Center.

11. Declare the following three trucks with the snow removal equipment as surplus to
be sold on GovDeals.com: (1) 1987 Chevrolet 3500 4X4 Pickup 6.2L Diesel
Automatic - Ving GBHD34J7GF410930; (2) 1987 Chevrolet 2500 4X4 Pickup 6.2L
Diesel Automatic - Vin# 1GCHD34J2HF321624; and (3) 2004 Chevrolet 2500 4X4
Pickup 6.0L Auto - Vin# 1GCHK24U14E302606.

12. Approve Zackary Brulon as a part-time Public Safety Officer for weekends and
officer fill-ins as needed, al the current rate of $19.49 per hour, with no benefits,

The next item on the agenda was the approval of the Financial Report. Mayor Vest
asked the Aldermen if they had any comments. Alderman Wolfe said we just had a
transition occur where Robert Anderson was rehired by the State of Tennessee to go
back and work for the Comptroller's Office, and Robert did a very, very good job of getting
the Town in good order financially, and there was a great need when Robert showed up
for this to happen, Alderman Wolfe said for the record we need to say, "Thank You
Robert” because he certainly did a yeoman's job in helping the Town get itself put back
together after an unfortunate set of circumstances. Alderman Wolfe said we have hired
a new Town Recorder, and her name is Janet Jennings who spent a couple of decades
in Jehnson City running a much bigger organization and Ms. Jennings is from Fall Branch
and with a very, very high level financial mind and a wonderful Town Recorder. Alderman
Wolfe asked Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff about the financial health of the Town.
Glenn Rosenoff said it is doing very well. With there being no further comments, Mayor
Vest called for a motion.. Alderman Wolfe made the motion to approve the Financial
Report as presented. Alderman Dickson seconded the motion and it duly passed.

Communications from the Mayor was the next item on the agenda. Mayor Vest
presented the following commillee appointments to the Jonesborough Planning
Commission: reappoint Richie Hayward for a three-year term expiring August 2026,
appoint Robin Harpe to fill an unexpired term (due to a resignation) expiring August 2025
and appoint Bob Williams to fill a vacant term expiring August 2026. Mayor Vest asked
the Aldermen if they had questions or comments. There being none, Alderman
Countermine made the motion to approve the appointments to the Jonesborough
Planning Commission as requested, seconded by Alderman Dickson and duly passed.



Mayor Vest requested that the October 8" regular meeting date of the Board of Mayor
and Aldermen be changed to Monday, October 16, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. Alderman Wolfe
made the motion to approve change of the October 9" regular meeting of the Board of
Mayor and Alderman to Monday, October 16, 2023 at 7:00 p.m., seconded by Alderman
Countermine and duly passed.

Mayor Vest said that Anne Mason and Frank Collins were present to give an update on
the Heritage Alliance Historic Jonesborough Specialty License Plate. Anne Mason said
the design that was chosen is the iconic Chester Inn, the oldest building in the oldest
town, and the background will be our beautiful Blue Ridge Mountains. Ms. Mason said
that 1,000 pre-orders of the plate is required by the State of Tennessee, and the cost of
each plate is $35, which is the same for all TN specialty license plates, and will benafit
the Heritage Alliance and the Jonesborough Genealogy Society. Ms. Mason said once
the 1,000 pre-orders are received, it will take a little over four months for the plates to be
produced and mailed to the local County Clerk offices across the state. Anne Mason said
all Tennessee residents who have a wvehicle registered can purchase the Historic
Jonesborough specialty license plate, but that the plate is not available for motorcycles,
RVs, or commercial vehicles. Anne Mason and Frank Collins expressed the appraciation
to the BMA for their support of the Historic Jonesborough Specialty License Plate. Mayor
Vst thanked Anne Mason and Frank Colling for their update on the license plates.

Mayor Vest said that the BMA, will establish a Shanks Oak Tree Committee which will be
made up of seven members. Mayor Vest said he was recommending the following people
to be on the commiltee: Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff, Alderman Kelly Wolfe, T.
McLeod, a member of the Shanks family, a member of the Cruise family, a representative
of the Heritage Alliance, and a member of Jonesborough's Tourism & Marketing
Department. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had any questions or comments.
There being none, Alderman Countermine made the motion for approve the
recommendation of Mayor Vest appointments to the Shanks Oak Tree Commitiee as
presented, Alderman Dickson seconded the motion and it was duly passead.

Mayor Vest read a Proclamation honoring the 125" Anniversary of the Schubert Club and
proclaiming Wednesday, October 4, 2023 as The Schubert Club Day in the Town of
Jonesborough. Mayor Vest presented the Proclamation lo the members of The Schubert
Club.

INSERT PROCLAMATION

Mayor Vest asked Ruth Verhegge to come forward to present the following Paws In Blue
Recognition Awards: (1) Foster Signs — Fundraising Partner and Conlinued Support, (2)
Arby's of Jonesborough - Appreciation of Continued Support; (3) Jonesborough Wine
and Spirits — Donation of $500 — “Fundraising Partner”, (4) Crystal Raven — Jerome
Powers — Paws In Blue VIP™ — Donation of 1,000 and Dedication and Hard Work to
Support our K-9's 2023.



Mayor Vest asked Michael Kincheloa to come up to accept the Employee of the Month
Award. Mayor Vest read the following nomination letter;

I, Luke Cale, Director of Water Treatment, would like fo nominate Michael
Kincheloe for Employee of the Month. | believe thal Mr. Kinchelog should be
considered for several different reasons. Michael Kincheloe is a Plant Operator IV
at the Water Treatment Facility. He has stepped up fo several challenges af the
plant over the last few months. He has come in to work several imes on his days
off and even cancelled scheduled vacation time off to help plant staff handle
emergency situations. He will consistently stay lale or come in early o complele
sampling evenis thal are mandated by TDEC. When a coworker was out for
medical leave, he stepped up fo help with those job dulies as well. Michael has
also taken the lead in fraining new operators. He feads by example and can be
counted upon to go above and beyond his job duties. He is always helpful and will
drop whatever he is doing fo answer the phone whenever another employee calls
him for help, even on his days off work. Working with Mike over the years has
been a pleasure. He helps inspire the people around him to be their best. Michael
is an assef to the Water Treatment Facility for the Town of Joneshorough.
Submitted by: Luke E. Cole, Water Treatment Flant Director

Mavyor Vest asked Michael Kincheloe if he had any comments: Michael Kincheloe said
he appreciated being nominated.

Mayor Vest said Mary Regen, Senior Cenlter Director, will give an update about their Cafe
Connections Program. Mary Regen said the Café Connection Program serves lunch
every Wednesday for member of the senior center. Ms. Regen said last fall the center
was awarded a grant to support this program, which tumed into a farm-to-table
experignce and uses the gardens from Lincoln Park. Ms. Regen said the program started
with a group of 5 - 10 people and now has up to 30 altendees. She said they have really
seen a difference from the beginning to now, and are very glad that they can make
additions to this mean such as fresh salads and vegetables, which changed the
presentation of the meals. Mary Regen said this program caught the attention of the
Tennessee Commission on Aging and Disability, and then was picked up by the ACL
(Administration for Community Living) which is an honor to be recognized on the federal
level. Mayor Vest thanked Mary Regen for the update and asked the Aldermen if they
had comments. Alderman Dickson said Jonesborough is unique to have this building to
bring the community together, and it is so important to who we are in Jonesborough.
Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff commended Mary Regen and the Senior Center staff
for their hard work and efforts.

Mayor Vest expressed his apprecialion to Jules Corriere who is reliing from the
McKinney Center, and she has given the Town many years of greal service and
performance.

Citizens Comments was the next item on the Agenda. Mayor Vest asked if there
were any citizens present that would like to comment at this time. Ruth Verhegge, 601



West Main Street, Jonesborough, TN, said as a retired dietitian, commended Mary Regen
for trying to look out for the nutritional needs of our senior population. Ruth Verhegge
said she want to commend the Board of Mayor and Aldermen. Ruth Verhegge said she
has recently, on more than one occasion, heard criticisms of some of the members of the
Board that she thinks are very inappropriate and basically cruel to those members. Ms.
Verhegge said she has heard them say we need term limits, but we have term limils every
two years, because every two years our Aldermen and Mayor are elected. Ms. Verhegge
said she has been coming to Board meetings on a very regular basis for a very long time,
and this Board appears to work together to accomplish what the citizens of Jonesborough
would like to see accomplished, better than any she has seen in the past. Ruth Verhegge
said she just wanted to say, thank you, to every one of you and she thinks you are worth
every penny we pay you. Ms. Verhegge said she is a litlle bit disillusioned because of
the change of date to the BMA meeting in October because on October 16", at 6:00 p.m.,
we will be having a welcoming for our new K-9. Ms. Verhegge said the K-9 is a
bloodhound, and a puppy, and he is going to be our PR dog, so everybody is going to be
able to interact with him, and she hopes the Board members can make it to meet him.
The Aldermen suggested bring the new K-8 to the BMA meeting for everyone to meet.
Ruth Verhegge said the name of the new K-9 is Darrell and the reason for the name is
the person who donated the money to purchase this dog, wants to honor her father and
his name is Darrell. Mayor Vest thanked Ruth Verhegge for her comments.

Nancy Kavanaugh, 112 East College Street, Jonesborough, TN, addressed the Board
with a procedural question, and wanted to know what separates a Consent Agenda from
a Regular Agenda, because sometimes there are items that are on the Consent Agenda
and are zipped right past it or jusl sounds like it is prelty arcane and the Board knows
whal it is, and she and citizens sit in the audience and wonder what those items are, what
is be approved or are there any questions about those things. Ms. Kavanaugh said, for
her, it is simply a matter of learning more about her government and what items make it
to a Consent Agenda and what is on a Public Agenda. Mayor Vest said he appreciated
that question and normally what is on a Consent Agenda is items that he, the Town
Administrator, and others do nol perceive any disagreement from the Board and that is
why an item can be put on the Consent Agenda, and we feel it is going to be unanimous
and it saves some time, Mayor Vest said there are items like the Town Administrator and
Operations Manager reports, which are items that are going to get approved and a
Consent Agenda helps expedites the meeting so that BMA doesn't spend 20 minutes
talking about items that they know are going to eventually approve. Nancy Kavanaugh
expressed her thanks to Mayor Vest for the clarification. Mayor Vest thanked Ms.
Kavanaugh for her comments. Glenn Rosenoff the Board meeting agenda is published
in its entirety on-line which gives more information. Mayor Vest said if an Alderman does
have an item that they want pulled off of the Consent Agenda, then the Board pulls it off
and discuss the item.

Alderman Communications was the next item on the agenda. Mayor Vest asked
the Aldermen if they had any comments. Alderman Dickson said a couple of weeks they
had a really good play at the McKinney Center called Crowns, and it was really healthy
to see this community come together and it was just so well done. Alderman Dickson



said he thinks there were two shows initially and then there three shows added for five
shows total. Alderman Dickson said it was just a really excellent production. Alderman
Dickson said the Heritage Fair that was held recently, and Chad Bailey did a great job
and it was good to history going back from the Cherokee period up to beyond World War
2, and it was really good to see.

Alderman Countermine said he would like to thank everyone for the love, prayers, emails,
and cards for when he was in the hospital. Alderman Countermine said it does make a
difference

Alderman Wolfe said he would like to reflect just a minute on a series of events thal
happened when we had the series of tornadoes touch downtown back in August.
Alderman Wolfe said we had our Shanks Oak Tree go down, as well as many other trees
in town, and our Street Department, Park and Recreation Crew, Fire and Police were all
out cleaning stuff up and it was an incredible amount of stuff to clean up. Alderman Wolfe
said our Town staff did a phenomenal job and it was a literal on all hands-on deck for
about three or four days, Alderman Wolfe said the Water and Sewer Departments were
involved in the clean up too. Alderman Woelfe said the Shanks Oak was a 112 feet tall
and 122 feet wide and said that he feels God placed his hands on that tree to put it in the
only place that it would not kill somebody and that was between the Shanks and the
Cruses homes, went clear across West Main took out 5 telephone poles, power and it
was 30 feet over in the yard of the houses across the street. He said our crews showed
up about 1:00 am in the moming and started trying to clear the street and it was hard to
do because there was a lot of stuff in the street. Alderman Wolfe said the Farm Bureau
of Washington County did a phenomenal job helping the Kruse family and the Town with
this incident, when they didn’t necessarily have to, and the Town will be splitting the cost
of the recovery, salvage and clean up of that tree, and that was part of a contractual
obligation from many years ago when a conservation easement was pul on the tree.
Alderman Wolfe said he just wanted to say thank you to the Shanks family, who have
heen stewards of the oak tree for several generations. Alderman Wolfe said that 90% of
the bigger parts of that tree was save and has been preserved and the committee that
the Mayor appointed will be able to help make decisions about what happens to that wood
in the communily interesis and preserve the legacy and just what it meant for our town
for future generations.

Town Altorney Comments was the next item on the agenda. Mayor Vest asked
Town Attorney Jim Wheeler if he had comments. Jim Wheeler said the 140 easement
documents for the waler transmission line going from the new Water Plant to the
Persimmon Ridge Water Tank has been sent out by certified mail. Jim Wheeler said that
the BMA will need to go into Executive Session before discussion of the Agenda Item 7-
M.

The first item under Old Business was approval on second and final reading of an
Ordinance amendment to the Jonesborough Municipal Code as related to Title 4, Chapter
1, adding Section 4-107 Energy Code and adopting the International Energy
Conservalion Code ({IECC). Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had questions or



comments. There being none, Alderman Countermineg made the motion to approve on
second and final reading the Ordinance amendment to the Jonesborough Municipal Code
as related to Title 4, Chapter 1, adding Section 4-107 Energy Code and adopting the
International Energy Conservation Code (IECC) as presented. Alderman Dickson
seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT ORDINANCE

The next item on the agenda was approval of the revised Resolution Authorizing
the Issuance, Sale, and Payment of Various Capital Projects and Departmental Vehicles
Capital Qutlay Note 2023 by changing the terms from10 years to 12 years.. Mayor Vest
asked the Aldermen if they had questions or comments. There being none, Alderman
Dickson made the motion to approve the revised Resolution No. 2023-12R authorizing
the issuance, sale, and payment of various capital projects and departmental vehicles
Capital Outlay Note 2023 not to exceed $1,000,000 for a 12-year term, as presented.
Alderman Wolfe seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT RESOLUTION

The first tem under New Business concemned the renaming of the McKinney
Center Scholarship Fund in honor of our great friend Maricn B. McKinney, and approve
renaming the scholarship from the "Ermest L. McKinney Memorial Scholarship Fund® to
“The Ernest L. and Marion B. McKinney Memorial Scholarship Fund”. Mayor Vest asked
the Aldermen if they had any comments or guestions. Alderman Dickson said its
important to think about the legacy of this family and their contribution to the Town.
Alderman Dickson said Ms. Marion was a stable of Jonesborough life, and we do miss
her and miss her candor, miss her encouragement, and she really helped motivate him
on more than one occasion. Alderman Dickson said it is fitting that we include Ms. Marion
McKinney in this scholarship fund. Alderman Dickson said he also wanted to mention fo
the public that we as a Board did approve the formation of the McKinney Endowment and
the thought was that if we could ever raise the money that we could lake the proceeds
from the interest to go into the McKinney Center Scholarship Fund. Alderman Dickson
said the endowment is set up through the East Tennessea Foundation and it would be
great to see if we could make that work so that long-term there would be funds to fuel the
scholarship fund, Alderman Dickson made the to approve In honor of our great friend
Marion B. McKinney, approve renaming the scholarship from the "Emest L. McKinney
Memorial Scholarship Fund” to “The Emest L and Marion B. McKinney Memaorial
Scholarship Fund®, as recommended by Town Staff. Alderman Countermine seconded
the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT RESOLUTION

The next item on the agenda was an Agreement with the Washington County
Election Commission (WCEC). WCEC Director Dana Jones requested approval for the
Agreemenl between the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Jonesborough,
Tennessee and the Washington County Election Commission to use the Visitor's Center



on the following election days; March 5, 2024, August 1, 2024, and November 5, 2024,
with access and use of the reserved space in the auditorium the day prior to each election
day on March 4, 2024, July 31, 2024, and November 4, 2024. Mayor Vest asked the
Aldermen if they had questions or comments. There being none, Alderman Wolfe made
the motion to approve the Agreement with the Washington County Election Commission
in its entirety as presented, seconded by Alderman Countermine and duly passed.

INSERT AGREEMENT

The next iter on the agenda was approval of revisions to the Jonesborough Senior
Citizens Advisory Committee By-Laws. The Senior Cilizens Advisory Committee
unanimously voted to approve and recommend the changes to the Board of Mayor and
Aldermen. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had questions or comments. There
being none, Alderman Countermine made the motion to approve the revised
Jonesborough Senior Center Bylaws, as presented, seconded by Alderman Wolfe and
duly passed.

INSERT BY-LAWS

The next item on the agenda was approval of bids for Town projects:

(7-D-1) Roof Replacement at the Elmer Gillespie Building (Persimmon Ridge) to Bamard
Roofing in the amount of $53,670.00.

(7-D-2) Roof Replacement at the Fitness Center Building (Persimmon Ridge) to Bamard
Roofing in the amount of $59,930.00.

(7-D-3) Boone Street Milling/Paving/Curbing to Summers-Taylor in the amount of
$365,290.00.

(7-D-4) Parking Lot at Lincoln Park to Pavewell in the amount of $194,193.00.

(7-D-5) MNorth Cherokee Street Curb/Sidewalk/Asphalt Construction to Pavewell in the
amount of $302,114.48,

(7-D-6) Melal Buildings for the Street Department and Solid Waste & Recycling Center
to Brant Construction, LLC in the amount of $379,200.00, and allowing the Town
Administrator to negotiate or value engineer a lower price.

(7-D-7) West Main Street Sidewalks to Complete Construction Company in the amount
of $145,000.00, and allow the Town Administrator to negotiate with Complete
Construction Company on the Oak Grove Avenue section of sidewalk for an
amount of up to $50,000.00,

Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had questions or comments. Alderman Wolfe
made the motion to approve the following bids as presented: (7-D-1), (7-D-2), (7-D-4),



(7-D-5), and (7-D7);, and defer bids (7-D-3) and (7-D-6). Alderman Countermine
saeconded the motion and it was duly passed.

The next item on the agenda was approval of the Lincoln Park Rental Request and
Agreement and Guidelines. The highlights of the Agreement is 1) Rentals apply to
weekends only (Saturday and Sunday); 2) Only one rental per structure is permitted daily;
3) Pavilion fee is $30.00 per hour; 4) Amphitheatre fee is $50.00 per hour; and 5) Rentals
require a 2-hour minimum. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had questions or
comments. There being none, Alderman Wolfe made the motion to approve the Lincoln
Park Facility Rental Request and Agreement, and the Lincoln Park Rental Guidelines, as
presented, Alderman Dickson seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT RENTAL AGREEMENT

The next item on the agenda was approval of the Town's Leeboy Trail Paver
Agreement. Town Aftorney Jim Wheeler has reviewed the agreement, revisions were
made based on that review, and staff is recommending approval. Mayor Vest asked the
Aldermen if they had questions or comments. With there being none, Alderman
Countermine made the motion to approved the Leeboy Trail Paver Rental Agreement as
presented, seconded by Alderman Dickson and duly passed.

INSERT RENTAL AGREEMENT

The next item on the agenda was approval of Change Order #2 for the AMIJAMR
water meter additions for the Water Project. the meter replacement project continues is
moving to completion, the following change order is necessary to reconcile the meters
based on their sizes at the end of the project. The description of the change order is an
adjustment of quantities adding more 1" water meters to the project thal were necessary
whereby other sized meters like the 5/8" - 1/2° or 3/4" melers were needed less overall.
The overall bid award amount is 54,447 000.00. With Change Order Number 2, the
adjusted contract price is $4,446,149.00 or an additional $681.00 decrease after Change
Order Number 1 at $170.00 decrease was approved previously by the BMA. In total, the
adjusted contract price decreased by $851.00. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they
had questions or comments. With there being none, Alderman Wolfe made the motion
to approve the Change Order Number 2 "AMI/AMRE Meter Additions for Water System
Improvements” to adjust quantities to add 1" waler meters to the project. Alderman
Countermine seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT CHANGE ORDER #2

The next item on the agenda was approval of revisions to the Public Records
Request Policy, including Forms A and B. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had
guestions or comments. With there being none, Alderman Dickson made the motion to
approve the revisions to the Public Records Policy for the Town of Jonesborough, as
presented. Alderman Countermine seconded the motion and it was duly passed.



INSERT RECORDS REQUEST POLICY

The next item on the agenda was approval of bids for the Tiger Park project. Staff
received formal nolification that the Town has been awarded the Local Parks and
Recreation Fund Grant for Tiger Park at the new Jonesborough K-8 School and grant
dollars awarded total $2,445,250.00. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had any
questions or comments. Alderman Wolfe said what this 2.4 million dellar grant is going
to do is let this school open with fully equipped ballfields, lighted, restrooms, concession
stand, tennis courts, pickleball courts, and 4 playgrounds; and it is going to be fantastic
and Washinglon County is going to be a partner in it to help the Town meet the match
with this. Alderman Wolfe said it is a fantastic investment for the county and the town,
and will benefit people in Jonesborough because all these areas when not in use by the
school, will become public park use for the people of the Town of Jonesborough.
Alderman Countermine asked Jim Wheeler if all of the bids approvals could be approved
together. Jim Wheeler said yes. Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff said there is one
thing he needs to add, which is in the recommendation versus the "as presented”, that
any approvals of the 7 bids be subject to acceptance of the grant award by the Board of
Mayor and Aldermean.

{7-1-1) Athletic Area Fencing to McCall Commercial Fencing in the amount of
$51,015.00.

(7-1-2) Playground Equipment {o Recreational Concepts in the amount of
$1,228,184 66,

(7-1-3) Bleachers to Bliss Products & Services, Inc. in the amount of $108,834.00.

(7-1-4) Restroom/Concession Building to BurWill Construction in the amount of
$953,00.00.

(7-I-5) Tennis Court Construction/Asphalting to Summers-Taylor, LLC in the amount of
$155,600.00.

(7-1-6) Track and Tennis Court Surfacing - Court Nets to Competition Athletic Surfaces
in the amount of $106,000.

(7-D-7) Field and Court Lighting lo Premiere Sports Lighting in the amount of
$649,000.00.

Alderman Wolfe made the motion to approve the bids for Items (7-1-1), (7-1-2), (7-1-3), (7-
I-4), (7-1-58), (7-1-6), and (7-I-7), pending the Board of Mayor and Aldermen approving the
LPRF Grant funding to pay for it. Alderman Countermine seconded the motion and it was
duly passed.

The next item on the agenda was approval of GRC's (Goins Rash Cain, Inc.)
Change Order #12 for the Jackson Theatre Project in the amount of $286,385.11, There



being no discussion, Mayor Vest called for a motion. Alderman Countermine made the
motion to approve GRC's Change Order #12 for the Jackson Theatre Project in the
amount of $286,395.11, Alderman Dickson seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT CHANGE ORDER

The next item on the agenda was approval of the Finance Director/Town Recorder
Employment Agreement between the Board of Mayor and Aldermen and Janet Jennings.
Mayor Vest said we are blessed to have someone with the qualifications of Janel
Jennings to come in after Robert Anderson and are excited about having her experience
here in Jonesborough, Alderman Waolfe made the meotion, seconded by Alderman
Countermine, to approve the Finance Director/Town Recorder Employment Agreement
between the Board of Mayor and Aldermen and Janet Jennings, and formally appoint
Janet Jennings to that position The motion was duly passed.

INSERT EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

The next item on the agenda was approval of the School Bond Resolution Series
2023A, with supporting General Obligation Bond Series 2023A, Registered No. R-1
through R-4, totaling $32,750,000, subject to review and approval of USDA Rural
Development. Mayor Vest said in the long-run this will save the Town some money on
interast. Alderman Wolfe asked Town Attorney Jim Wheeler if he had reviewed the Bond
Resolution. Jim Wheeler replied yes. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had any
further comments or questions. There being none, Alderman Countermine made the
maotion to approve School Bond Resolution Series 2023A, with supporting General
Obligation Bond Series 2023A, Registered No. R-1 through R-4, totaling $32,750,000,
subject to review and approval of USDA Rural Development, as presented. Alderman
Waolfe seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT RESOLUTION

The next item on the agenda was approval of the School Bond Resolution Series
2023b, with supporting General Obligation Bond Series 20238, Registered No. R-1
through R-2, totaling $10,000,000, subject to review and approval of USDA Rural
Development. Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had any comments or questions.
There being none, Alderman Wolfe made the motion to approve School Bond Resolution
Series 2023B, with supporting General Obligation Bond Series 20238, Registered No. R-
1 through R-2, totaling $10,000,000, subject to review and approval of USDA Rural
Development, as presented. Alderman Dickson seconded the motion and it was duly
passed.

INSERT RESOLUTION

Mayor Vest recessed the Board meeting, in order for the BMA to go into Executive
Session. The Executive Session meeling adjourned, and Mayor Vesl reconvened the
regular BMA meeting.



The next item on the agenda was a Resolution for Condemnation of the Shane
Adams property, in order to acquire the alley between the Jackson Theatre and the Main
Street Café, as well as a 5-foot by 52.30-foot parcel for utility and building access and
maintenance purposes immediately behind and adjacent to the Jackson Theatre building.
Mayor Vest asked the Aldermen if they had any comments or questions. Alderman Wolfe
asked Town Administrator Glenn Rosenoff what was the necessity of this exception for
things at the Jackson Theatre. Glenn Rosenoff said the immediate necessity is the
permanent power, which he will refer to as the switch gear, to the Jackson Theatre; and
in public interest of a public building we have to power. Mr. Rosenoff said in discussions
with Mr. Shane Adams, who owns the alley, much of the conversations aboul the electric
has been focused on the alley and location. Mr. Rosenoff said both himself and the Town
Attorney Jim Wheeler, and others have talked to Mr. Adams for guite some time about
different scenarios and different locations of the switch gear all of which are predominately
for access repair and maintenance through the alley. Mr. Rosenoff said the alleyway also
has other public infrastructure through it. Mayor Vest asked Glenn Rosenoff what other
public utilities are through that. Glenn Rosenoff said there is water, stormwater, and
electric. Alderman Wolfe said this is the alley betlween Main Street Café and the Jackson
Theatre. Glenn Rosenoff said yes. Alderman Wolfe said he knows there is an electrical
vault that is in there and a 3-phase power line comes from Main Street in through there,
and the water comes in there, so that alley is loaded up with utilities. Alderman Wolfe
asked If there is a nead in terms of the operation of the Jackson Theatre once it is open
for use of that alley on a continual basis. Glenn Rosenoff said yes. Mr. Rosenoff said
when you are talking about pedestrians or in particular performances or anybody utilizing
the public building, the Jackson Theatre access, or people basically gaining access to go
to a show, the alleyway is predicted to be the number one access point or driving through.
Alderman Wolfe asked what is that garage door for in the alley. Glenn Rosenoff said that
is for loading and unloading for anyone, more on the performing end, to have their
equipment, wardrobe, or anything to do with performance will be unloaded in the alley.
Mayor Vest said he always thought that was a public alleyway, because he has seen so
many cars use that to drive around those buildings. Glenn Rosenoff said the access
serves as public. Alderman Wolfe said that even Main Street Café has their drive up
window on that alley. Mr. Rosenoff said the project the switch gear has been the number
ane urgency of the project to move forward us forward to complete, and we have no
choice but to look at the alley and to look at the scenarios that they had talked to Mr.
Shane Adams about. Mr. Rosenoff said the first ime they looked at, if you are in the allay
going towards the back where the Jackson is, to the right to the garage doors, the onginal
location of the switch gear was going to go there on a 4 X 3 pad and the remaining
components of the switch gear was going to be located on the building. Mr. Rosenoff
said Mr. Adams did not like that location, and falked about obstruction to where access
you access his property to the rear. Mr. Rosenoff said they pivoled and looked at an area
that Mr. Adams which is where they refer to as the hedge which is at the end of the
alleyway and they consider it more of a hedge for privacy and the thought process is that
it is in the alley where all of our utilities are and all of our other essential components and
to place a 4 X 6 pad to accommodate the switch gear in the alley against the hedge. Mr.
Rosenoff said if you are looking from Mr. Adams' property you would not be able to see



the swilch gear component and they thought that was important. Mr. Rosenoff said the
reason the pad increases in size to 4 X 6 is because you no longer have a building to
hang any of the CT or any gear at all so you depending the pad that is poured in place
and everything from the switch gear would be located on the pad. Mr. Rosenoff said Mr.
Adams also lalked about questioning if we could put swilch gear behind the Jackson in
the corner where the corner of the Jackson meets up with the JRT. He said we had
received cost information on that at that time to just go 20 feet on the rear of building was
$50,000 and to go 50 feet was $125,000 which made it cost prohibitive at that particular
time. He said another area that Mr. Adams had mentioned to them to look into which they
did was can we not recess the switch gear unit into the building in a similar location in the
alley on the side of the Jackson closer to where the door is and just recess it like a ATM
rmachine and behind that wall is a basically the only access to the basement where there
is electrical panels and things like that, and there is a stair case so there was no way 1o
do that without impeding the access to the basement up and down and providing for
unsafe conditions, so we had to abandon that. Mr. Rosenoff said they looked at around
the corner so if you come down the alley the Jackson is on you right still, you just come
around the corner to the back of the Jackson they look al that option was another
consideration equivalent to the original one and that way you have about the same pad,
a4 X 3, and you still hang some of the switch gear components onto the building. Mr.
Rosenoff said these were not favorable to Mr. Adams as well, He said that also poses a
little bit of issues as you get to the back as far as access as repair and maintenance
because it is not just a fuse box, this is a major unit that a utility truck would have to be
able lo get in there and often times they talk about using cranes or different types of
equipment. He said there is a lot to it if had to do repairs or even maintenance. Mr.
Rosenoff said there was an option of talking about 4 X 6 and where the hedge was again
and thera is the Herman Jenkins propearty to the left and Mr. Adams talked about putting
the 4 X 6 and having 3 feet on his side, and 3 feet side on Mr. Jenkins' side. Glenn
Rosenoff said one of the issues they are talking about is the alley is essential to our public
interest whether we are talking about the switch gear or talking about our existing utilities
and being able to do work within the alley way. Mr. Rosenoff said again, we are looking
at locating it in the alley way. Mr. Rosenoff said another "why not locate it at the Chester
Inn across the street” which the switch gear back and forth the cost was prohibitive on
that and we didn't get a cost, but we do know it is much more than a $125,000 that we
had got estimates on to go in that corner is between the Jackson and JRT and this was
probably double the price of that. Alderman Wolfe said there is a recommendation in the
Resolution that they are being asked lo consider, and asked Glenn Rosenoff if he
supported the recommendation in that Resolution. Glenn Rosenoff replied yes, and said
we have no choice in an urgent matter to acquire the alley, that information is in the
Resolution, the price that was included in there as well. Mr. Rosenoff said all of this
information talked about with Mr. Shane Adams right now, he is not aware of any
immediate agreement, but as you look at agenda presentation, it does talk about that
were are still working with Mr. Adams to try and find a resolve together. Mr. Rosenoff
said we have no choice but lo take action the Resolution to move forward on the alley.
Alderman Wolfe said anytime you are talking about condemnation that is a high ball and
it has to be very highly documented as to the urgent need and necessity of this to happen.
Alderman Wolfe said he never realized before that this was a piece of private property



just because of how much public use there is on it on a continual basis all hours of the
day. Alderman Wolfe said he knows that we have utilities that the Town has paid and
saw already on this property, and he does see an urgent need for it and especially when
it comes to the ongoing operations of the Jackson Theatre, and he wants to see that big
investment that we have made for the citizens of Jonesborough flourish and be
successful, and if we can't get consistent reliable access to the building through that
garage door for road group bringing their essentials that he thinks we will be in trouble.
Glenn Rosenoff said one point is in the Town acquiring the alley there is still public access
in the alley because we are not denying anybody through the alley. Alderman Waolfe
asked even if the Town acquires the alley the use will not be lost. Glenn Rosenoff said
that is correct. Mayor Vest said currently it is gravel, because of the utility work that was
put in there and asked if had been paved in the past. Alderman Wolfe said it was paved
in the past. Mayor Vest asked who paved the alley, Glenn Rosenoff said he did not
know. Jim Wheeler said one thing the Board ought to consider is the little triangle on the
back of the building that is on the diagram attached to the Resolution, because that is
where the building is encroached on this property 1.81 feet in the back. Mayor Vest asked
if this was part of the alley condemnation. Jim Wheeler said it is part of this condemnation,
which is both pieces as showed on the diagram and the BMA needs to consider whether
that is in the public interest to put that building square on the property. Alderman
Countermine said we are not going to move the building. Mayor Vest asked if Main Street
Cafeé gets deliveries behind their building. Alderman Wolfe replied yes. Mayor Vest said
Is Main Street Café is going to have public access down the alley, and the parking spaces
behind Dr. Bill Kennedy's building. Glenn Rosenoff said the drive-through window at Main
Street Café people drive up on the left side, and do not back out onto Main Street they go
around just like a thru-way, and the access of the alley is where people flow through there.
Mayor Viest said he thinks this has always been critical to have public access there, and
it has always been there and it is more important now to have that alley. Jim Wheeler
said the Board has the recommendation to approve Resolution to Condemn the Property,
choosing the option of what is on Exhibit A the diagram including the 1.18 feet at back of
the building. Mayor Vest called for a motion. Alderman Wolfe made the motion to adopt
the Resolution for Condemnation as presented based on critical need of this property for
the future function of the Jackson Theatre, maintenance of the Town's utilities and in the
public interesl, and referencing the drawing with that has the word West at the top of it,
as the Mayor pointed out, as the article to define what property the Board is talking about.
Alderman Countermine seconded the motion and it was duly passed.

INSERT RESOLUTION

There being no further business the meeting was duly adjourned,

JANET JENNINGS, RECORDER CHUCK VEST, MAYOR



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN

AGENDA PRESENTATION
Consent Agenda
DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #: 2

SUBJECT:_Approval of Bills

Attached for BMA approval is the list of the September 2023 bills.



Check Register - General Fund - September 2023

08/01/23 107174 - 107207 $58,707.00
08/01/23 107208 - 107210-damaged checks $0.00
08/06/23 107212 - 107231 $36,832.39
0907723 107232 $17,257.00
09/07/23 107233 107322 $62,219.37
0912723 106226 - void ($526.76)
09/12/23 103440 - void ($200.00)
0912723 107323 - 107352 $237,981.66
09/13/23 107353 - 107355 $18,826.40
09/14/23 107356 $34,915.50
09/18/23 107233 - void (3278.32)
09/19/23 107357 - 107365 $106,707.76
09/20/23 107386 - 107374 $8,344.90
08/22/23 107375 - 107453 $166,846.15
$747,633.05

Check Register- Water Fund -September 2023

09/01/23 66291 - 66309 $50,860.85
02/06/23 66310 - 66313 $28,398.27
09/Q7/23 66314 - 66365 $435,833.26
09/12/23 BE366 - GBITT $16,627.75
09/13/23 66378 - 66380 $16,189.63
09r14/23 66381 $66,413.38
0919923 66382 - 66388 $63,856.14
0e/2023 66389 - 66390 £1,306.44
09122123 66391 - 66430 $162,847.33

$843,423.03

Check Register -Sanitation Fund - September 2023

08/01/23 10154 - 10155 $825.42
08/06/23 10156 - 10157 2 174.41
090723 10158 - 10164 $900.53
09/12/23 10165 $102.75
09/13/23 10166 $6.479.38
09/19/23 10164 - void {$165.00)
09/19/23 10167 - 10170 $7,806.62
08122123 10171 - 10181 318.431.09
$38,655.20

Check Register -School Fund September - 2023

09M11/23 1130

$ 1,566,348.19
$ 1,566,348.19

Frepared by Sheila Watson 1002023 Page 1



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

Consent Agenda
DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #: 3

SUBJECT: Town Administrator Report

9-11-23 - Randy Dople — Water Worker | @ Grade 2 Step 1 ($31,836)

8-11-23 — Robert Stinson = Wastewater Maintenance Technician (Non-Certified)
@ Grade 6 Step 1 (837,1321)

8-12-23 — Zach Williams — Equipment Operator || @ Grade 5 Step 6 ($40,535)
Water Distribution — County Crew

9-13-23 - Breanna Walker-Schadler — McKinney Center Manager @
Grade 3 Step 1 ($33,122)

9-14-23 — John Edwards — Equipment Operator | @ Grade 3 Step 1 ($33,122)
Water Distribution — County Crew

9-28-23 - Howard Brown — Recycle Collection Worker | @ Grade 2 Step 1 ($31,836)

9-29-23 — Heath Saine — Public Safety Officer @ Grade 8 Step 6 ($45,911)

Employee Resignations/Retirements:
9-8-23 — Cody Smith resigned as Equipment Operator | (Water Distribution — County Crew)




MEMORANDUM

To: Glenn Rosenoff, Town Administrator
From: Craig Ford, Operations Manager
Ref:  September 2023 Monthly Report
Date: October 12, 2023

This month, I met with Tommy Burleson, Todd Wood, Malcolm Highsmith, and a couple of
representatives from Summers Taylor regarding a sight issue on North Cherokee/Tavern Hill at the
intersection of Skyline Drive. It was determined that grade work on Skyline would be necessary
to improve the sight distance.

I notified the vendors whose bids were approved at the September meeting that they could proceed
with their projects. 1 spoke with Todd Bernard, and gave him the purchase order numbers for the
two roofs. He did not give me a start date.

I notified Josh Russell that he could proceed with the West Main Street/Oak Grove sidewalk
project. If you will recall, the BMA gave you the authority to negotiate with Mr. Russell to include
Oak Grove, not to exceed a total of $195,000.00. His total cost came in at $190,000.00.

Mr. Russell is ready to proceed. The Street Department has some minor drainage work to do and
we are awaiting the survey for the east side of Oak Grove. I hope to have this project started before
the end of October.

Pavewell was given the notice to proceed with the Lincoln Park parking lot and the North
Cherokee/Thompson Meadow Lane project. Pavewell has all but finished the needed grade work
at Lincoln Park and plan on putting asphalt down beginning October 15, 2023.



The Street Department has completed the work they need to do for Pavewell to be able to start the
North Cherokee project. We are still awaiting construction easements for the properties on the east
side of the street. This is becoming critical to the project at this point.

Finally, I have been working with the contractor on the Street/Solid Waste building(s). After
negotiating with the vendor, we were able to get the building to $273,000.00 from the original bid
amount of $379,200.00. This gets the Town under the budgeted amount for the buildings; however,
we will probably need to look for additional funding for the finished office space.

We sold the three old snow removal pick up trucks on GovDeals in September for a total of
$9,175.00.

Town staff did an excellent job this year in getting the Town ready for the Storytelling Festival.
The Town looked great and staft did an excellent job during the festival.

I worked with Shane Adams and Travis White, (GRC Construction), on the placement of the power
switchgear pad in the alley at the Jackson Theater. Th initial meeting went well and I believe we
will be able to put that behind us the week of October 16.

Finally, the Police Department had $43,000.00 budgeted for a vehicle for the grant Investigator
position. The Department is unable to secure a vehicle. They were able to find one in Georgia for
$46,000.00, which is well under the current Tennessee State-wide contract, which is over
$47,000.00.

The Police Department is going to secure this vehicle, which will put this line item over. We will
come back to the BMA in December or January with budget amendments to cover the cost. The
Police Department has the funds needed to cover the additional expense.



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN

AGENDA PRESENTATION
Consent Agenda
DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #:___ 3

SUBJECT: Committee Reports

No Commiltee Reports were submitted,



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

Consent Agenda
DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #:___©

SUBJECT:_ Supervisor Reports

Police Department

Fire Department

Director of Special Events
Street Department
Animal Control

Utility Manager

Water Quality

Water Distribution
Wastewater

Water Plant

Director of Tourism & Main Street

“SemNonswNa

-1 —



23 BOONE 5 1I 'EET JOMESBORDUGH TN 37658  PHI INE 423-753-1053 FAX 473-T5

Jonesborough Department of Public Safety
September 2023 Monthly Report

& CITATIONS

The department issued a total of (161) citations for the month of September which conskted of the
fellowing violations: (48) Speeding, (35) Financlal Responsibility, (11) Registration Violations, ()
Seatbelt Law, (9) Failure to Obey Traffic Control Device, (0) Due Care, (4) Light Law Violations, (15)
Hands-Free Cell Phone Use/Cell Phone in School Zone, as well as other moving violations. There were
also (134) written warnings kssued for various violations. There was (1) Parking Citation and (0}
Municipal Ordinance Violation.

= ARRESTS

A total of (S6) arrests were made for the month of September, including (2) DUIs, (4) Felony Charges,
and [52) Misdemeanor Charges.

«  CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS

CID Investigator C. Couch had (7} Assigned Cases for the month of September. He was able to dose
(4) of those cases with (3) remaining active. Additionally, CID closed (3) other cases that were
assigned in the months of April, July, and August. Lt. C. Reece had (2) Assigned Cases for the month
of September. He has (2) cases remaining active,

* MOTOR VEHICLE CRASHES

A total of {19) crashes were reported and investigated for the month of September, Most crashes
occurred on East/West Jackson Blvd; most crashes were over 5400 in damage with some resulting in
a possible or confirmed Injury.

& CANINE

For September, K9, Cygan, was involved in (1) deployment, (16} Training Hours, and (0] Arrests. K9,
Folco, was involved in [4) deployments, (8] training hours, and [0) arrests. K9, Bond was involved in
(0) deployments, (18] training hours, and [0) Arrests.

= RESERVES

The reserve officers contributed (7) hours for the month of September. Reserve Officer C. Greenway
contributed the most hours with (7) hours,

= CODE ENFORCEMENT

There were (0) ordinance violations issued during the month of September. These matters will be
heard in Municipal Court in the coming weeks.

« DISPATCH TRANSACTIONS FOR ICPD

For September, our dispatchers assisted Johnson City Police Department with approximately (37
Transactions.

#« DTHER CALLS FOR SERVICE

There were (1179) CAD Entries for the month of September.



SE_-Ptember 2023 Redflex Re_pnrt

From September 1 through September 30™ the traffic cameras registered a total of (711) violations with (17) violations
remaining for processing. OF the total violations, Redflex and Jlonesborough officers rejected (124) resulting in (590}
violations mailed. The primary reasons for violations being dismissed were Plate/Signal/Vehicle Dbstruction {41) and
Incorrect/Incomplete DMV, Sun GlareWeather/Nature, and Extended Vehicle (52), There were [31) rejections for Wrong
or No DMV/ Paper Plates.

The highest numberof violations ocourred at Forrest at lackson- Food City { Southbound ) with | 365) violations followed by
lackson at Forrest [Westbound) with [115).

Violations Mailed

AMOUT




DEP.- IRT'H’ "\T nf PL h! I( 's IPLI}

123 BOONE STREET

Jonesborough Department of Public Safety
August 2023 Monthly Report

» CITATIONS

The department issued a total of (316] citations for the month of August, which consisted of the
following violations: (113) Speeding, (27) Financial Responsibility, (36) Registration Violations, (10}
Seatbelt Law, (18) Failure to Obey Traffic Control Device, (2] Due Care, (60] Light Law Violations, (34)
Hands-Free Cell Phone Use/Cell Phone in 5chool Zone, as well as other moving violations. There were
also (154) written warnings issued for various violations. There was (1) Parking Citation and (2)
Municipal Ordinance Violation,

« ARRESTS

A total of (61) arrests were made for the month of August, including (6) DUIs, (0) Felony Charges, and
[61) Misdemeanor Charges.

* CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS

CID Investigatar C. Couch had (4) Assigned Cases for the month of August. He was able to close (3)
of those cases with (1) remaining active. Additionally, he closed (4) other cases that were assigned
in the month of July. Lt. C. Reece had (0) Assigned Cases for the month of August,

s  MOTOR VEHICLE CRASHES

A total of (37) crashes were reported and investigated for the month of August. Most crashes
occurred on East/West Jackson Blwd; most crashes were over 5400 in damage with some resulting in
a possible or confirmed injury,

& CANINE

For August, K9, Cygan, was involved in (1) deployment, (16) Training Hours, and (0) Arrests. K9,
Falco's hours were not reported. K9, Bond was involved in [5) deployments, {16) training howrs, and
(D) Arrests.

= RESERVES

The reserve officers contributed (17) hours for the month of August. Reserve Officer R. Collins
contributed the most hours with (8) hours.

* CODE ENFORCEMENT

There was (2} an ordinance violation issued during the month of August. These matters will be heard
in Municipal Court in the coming weeks.

+« DISPATCH TRANSACTIONS FOR JCPD

For August, our dispatchers assisted Johnson City Police Department with approximately (29)
Transactions.

« OTHER CALLS FOR SERVICE

There were (1294) CAD Entries for the month of August.



DEPARTMENT of PUBLIC SAFETY

123 BOONE STREET JONESBOROUGH TN 37638 PHONE 423-753-1053 FAX 423-753-1072

August 2023 Redflex Report

From August 1" through August 31 the traffic cameras registered a total of {718) violations with {7} violations remaining
for processing, OF the total violations, Redflex and Jonesborough officers rejected (150) resulting in [361) violations mailed.
The primary reasons for violations being dismissed were Plate/Signal/Vehicle Obstruction (55) and Incorrect/Incomplete
DRV, Sun GlareWeather/Nature, and Extended Vehicle (43). There were (31) rejections for Wrong or No DMV/ Paper
Flates,

The highest number of violations occurred at Forrest at Jackson- Food City [Southbound) with {362] viclations followed by
Jackson at Forrest (Westbound) with (118).

Violations Mailed

AMOLUT




:

Y BREMT R USOIER e, T RS oS aag 0 peqmiaual Loday

CFREEREEEEEEEEBE EEHEBEHBEE

EZ0Z/0E/G - EZ0T/ LG
uopels ulel - ayeq Aq podey luoys|H |1eD
juswyedeag an4 yBnosogseuop




C2OLTHEL T RIS A e T 0SS Losmg By & pemususd Loty sbay
I | iEay 0] B AL
aLon 3 IEUmW S @88 | %0 eoummesy 0L MBI Gy TS TOSEE [EAPRp TOE00LE Ty WoreW | S05: CO0T00E0 NS
" Zoon T ] ok [T Ty WAreE e TR DOS00EE WopIRG Olang | OC0% CIDLBERI Bl |
o 3 e T e [ L ) L G W LS pREOUED | peSIROEg | B FOULE 1] BL180 ECOCALE0 13
e - 3 5T9l uspcinbe B0 g2 BONAS 2GNS T1T BEFOOEE PAAIOE TGN BO:B0 E202REG0 Pl
=] WO maiHE gL | SEDmead ag T BT, 1O RN R R IOFOOEE [T B9 R L EZUTLTE0 Fam
00 4 ........__._ JURLCNDG BpEsllg § Beonsag 3N (55 BEFOOET BOLIRG OROng BET EDOT LTAD PRV
TR ] T (8 BUDG e WA UN PRMIEOES B8 | EFd U pRBouEs @ peasiedng || GEFDOLE TG IUEL EOOE/LERD R |
B z JO0 e Ty, | WD TURPEE BPRGUGW UGS FEF FEFOOEE BV T 2590 LZOLLL0 PR
2w ¥ HEDEEAN B TR0 D U POCE) O EAFOILE G ¥ V2 EOOLSLG0 o
EE00 z BRI EEDYY L00T medosnss 5 (D7 49 500 UM} yeN B0 Tl ZEFOOEE 1 T ELILL FRORGEE) Loy
foan ] ¥ A B FEL alaiaiany o3 LRI ~ DU T IR A R LY G EPDOEE L G080 EDOETIMD 114
] 15 ] VA UEOUNE Sqn SAEY BAGic TE | DN UIPA DOSCIS0N Dpegoa DUSrEHe 'BES Sy FEL DB s oy BE.0% EO0L LT AL
Lo TN BT BT S0 RoUTsEY Of WIS GYIY (NGRS THE RS LLE BEPOOLE e [EAPOY POCE [ICR/OED P, |
LE00 mebeRna o5 ] s BRI Wi KON BT BEPOOEZ - T ETETp———
B o SRR PO B hL FoeCTnbE Sl Han D e 008 LEFOOET EE B0 CEOEOERG Do |
w00 AT UoEoE 3 001 ajeBpEney o BiU) L, IUBDOOT SFELRA KON TIT BRPONT -_n._ﬂmm_ﬂ: FEILE EROFM LD a0l
E] B0 SERURSET Lo ~ BiEC E TEw1 20 98D [EImEd] §e5 565 21 p FUFEAT T Vo2l CLOLBI D 0L |
B MLZE RIRDEARAL) G TRCTILRTUT - Bdy G UGIPAIEN SSRaihy BWEAS ERL|  FEFODED ey 8y BE00 COOEeL s WL |
) a [ L TR WBID ST 1S5S0 JRITEE [ENIPER LLT ERFOLE TRy (BARWN | LE.EC ELOLILE0 oW
| ex00 =0 e L T BT B THFFE THEE (RS0 | LE TEPO0LE Ty [EFRH BECOC ECOLo o0 |
FLO0 TURainbe Bmndid G2 =0 g SAEs G VEFOULE TopaeG oong BE5E EOUZ LD oW
BL00 RIRBCRarLE o M0 PR BRIRS 005 [ v T ErFr EROE L oo
E3GE TeL MOILYM E00% IBRGOUTL B ] WalID IS TNIEE THEER R LLE LIFOOEE [ErEy [EApap PELZ CZOLOLB0 0S|
L0 lunz;w.uh!u S L EREUREE USTRHD I AU U0 POy WRDEU ON I8 | BLRO0EE = OEET CZ0TNLB0 19
el ueaoy ATl sk juspisig Hasprauy wadfy neg
EES0Z/0L/6 - EZ0Z/LI6
uonels ulew - syeqg Aq podey AioysiH 11eD
awpedag snd ybnosogseuop




) LWL S U M. T

T RO U R 6 S uadiy

¥T T [SUBpUITY WE3 BAY [

uopels ujel - ejeq Aq uodey Aoisiy jieD
wewyedsg aii4 ybnosogssuop

EZOZ/OE/G - EZOZT/LIE




Jonesborough Fire Department
Incident Type Report by Date
9/1/2023 - 9/30/2023

Incideni Type

Todsl ncidents

140 Wbl wogeistion fim, ofesr

161 Oulssde nibbish, irash or waske fm

11 FAAS et irar

321 mgﬂﬂﬂmhﬂlw

A2 Mobor wehicle socdent with injunos

412 Gas lnak jnatueni gas o LPG)

424 Cartran snonooics incidend

440 Electrical witngeguipment problem, olher

1500 Sanvice Call, othor

53 Public sarvion

ol

B11 & cungarkd o iouid

it Mo incident i on arval ol dispeich address

43 Bmaks delacir sethvalion, re fivn - imissmiionsl

Ln-mgmg.._.uﬁ..l_mu..
==

| 745 Alarm sysinm acivaion, re fins - eninlensonal

Total Mumbar of ncidents:
Terlal Nusmibor of inciderd Typea:

Page 1 Ripor genemind by Fire Stolon Sofwa, LLC wew freslaSonsofwars com



Jonesborough Fire Department

Call Distribution Report
9/1/2023 - 9/30/2023

Total (49 Calls)

—
Lu_.phlunu_na—-bﬁﬂg

ir

b e (pd e = oo i | fra
|

%

:

] H_I.!ﬂt-f
| Sundey | - £
il | = . |
Tikiri — — 3
W dnin sy - Lk
o e S T 7
i B
SHal e L= i S = NP W Cerr ey e el ¥

P 14 Fopor] penrmied by Fine Slalion Sofwesn, LLE wes linesiationsoliears. oom LEN e e



4

v

HIRTHEIL

Joneshorough

TEREESSEE (2rp
el mp Capelad o e erid

September 2023 Monthly Report

Amber Crumley, Director of Special Events

Continue to work with Matt Gulley on purchasing items and prepping for the National
Storytelling Festival and working on two new shirt designs for the festival, with one
being a haunted courthouse shirt we will push for Halloween.

Ticketing duties for September 2023 completed:
o September 2023 ticketing revenue and donation through the ticketing site was

$55,461.00.

o Completed event audit & financials for: Easts on Main Street, Affralachia Dinner,
Basic Fermenting, Cast lron Clinic, JAMSA's Pumpkin Fest, September StoryTown
Radio Show.

o Input tickets to sell: multiple dates for A Spot on the Hill, True and Chilling Tales.

Completed payables and purchase order requisitions for the Old Town Emperium,
Department of Tourism and Visitors Center.

Completed the Stripe transaction reconciliation for all ThunderTix September 2023
transactions/payouts and submitted to Gina Larkins.

Continue to assist with setting up the merchandise tent, prepping table for volunteers
and accounting for “pass the hat™ with Music on the Square. Assisted with coardination
and implementation of a 1" Annual Volunteer Appreciation Event for the Town of
Jonesborough- Department of Tourism. We hosted around 60 attendees, including a
short awards ceremony, at the International Storytelling Center. We had a great
turnowt, and are looking forward to partnering with ather departments for the 2024
event,



Organized and attended two meetings in September to discuss merchandise needs for
the Old Town Emporium and display/portico décor for storytelling festival weekend.

Attended the JAMSA merchant meeting to discuss the Jack-O-Lantern Drive Thru,
Halloween Haunts & Happenings and the Lick-or-Treat Paw Parade put on by Tennessee
Tails.

Assisted with the purchase and set up of a new Clover POS system for the Stage
Door/IRT.

Worked with T. Mcleod to organize two food trucks to be present in Jonesboarough from
noon-6pm on Labor Day. This was very well received and both trucks had great sales for
the day! We should look at doing this again for 2024 and potentially add a couple more
trucks, some street vendors and potentially live music.

Attended the September JAMSA Board meeting held at Renasant Bank.

Organized and attended a meeting with lessica Gourley with David Creckett High School
Culinary Arts Team to discuss their participation as our caterers for our Volunteer
Appreciation Event.

Attended the September Supervisor's Meeting held at the Visitors Center.

Attended a meeting with the Old Town Quilters Guild to discuss their fall market sale
held within the Visitors Center during the National Storytelling Festival. All proceeds
from sales are donated to the JAMA Food Pantry.

Attended a lunch meeting with Visit Johnson City’s new Events Coordinator to discuss
their upcoming activities and what we have planned for Jonesborough.

Assisted with tickets sales during JAMSA's Pumpkin Fest. We sold over 1,100 tickets for
the event, and lots were sold on the day of the event. | also organized and assisted with
setting up 6 different vendors for the event, as a small fall market in front of the
International Stoerytelling Center.

Continue to work on treat stops and activities for Halloween Haunts & Happenings on
October 27 from 6pm-9pm in Jonesborough. | have been working with Kath Latham
with the Washington County Emergency Management Agency on a Touch-A-Truck
event, laser tag with Paradise Acres, treat stops throughout Main Street and of course
our popular costume contest.



TowN OF JONESBOROUGH

123 BAONE ETREET
JOHESBOROUGH, TH 37659
TELEFHOME {423) 753-1030

Fax (423) 753-1074

Street Department
Monthly Report
September 2023

The month of September was another full court press effort to bring projects as far along
as possible during the month. The weather was for the most part cooperative, which
helped ensure a productive month, Street Forces® primary focus was on the several
different components to the streets/areas connected to the K-8 School property on N.
Cherokee Street. Forces worked on both the north and south end of N, Cherokee, as well
as doing work for extensive improvements to the Thompson Meadow Lane arca. Forces
also performed the vast array of ‘normal” street and animal control duties, and as well as
several traffic control requests and street closures.

The project receiving the most attention again this month, was the N. Cherokee Street
improvement project. Having several different facets of work being performed onfaround
M. Cherokee Street and the K-8 school, coordination and logistics remain the key to
project success. Street Forces coordinated timing and work type with several different
entities on the N, Cherokee area improvement project, Sinee work continues on
construction of the school, the new access road and parking lot, the Saylor's Place
development, and Town driven improvements, there are many moving pieces to that area
overall. For Street Forces, an overview of the N. Cherokee comridor projects could be
divided up into work on the south end of N. Cherokee Street, the north end of N.
Cherokee, and Thompson Meadow Lane improvements.

Improvements on the south end of the N. Cherokee Street project:

Forces began the project by following behind Bright Ridge tree cutting Forces, who cut
offending trees on the south end of N. Cherokee just north of the entrance to the Ivy
Trace subdivision. Street Forees then picked up and removed brush and tree stumps, and
performed grading operations to remove an embankment on the west side of N.
Cherokee. Forces then removed an existing drainage structure &2 the beginning of the
project, near Ivy Trace, and tied into existing drainage and crossed under N. Cherokee
Street to the west side. A catch basin was set there to collect/channel drainage from the
surface of the street down thru piping. The storm water runoff would then be
‘daylighted’ in the original location. Removal of the existing drainage structure, (small
headwall), on the east side of the street, would allow for a sidewalk to be constructed on
the east side of the street, from Ivy Trace to Thompson Meadow Lane. The curbing and
sidewalk would all be contained within the Town Right of Way, with some finish grading



being behind the sidewalk and onto some property owners. The sidewalk and all utilities,
were 1o remain on Town Right of Way, Forces then removed road shoulder material
from the west side of N. Cherokee, replacing that organic material with compacted Grade
D base stone to eventually serve as the new widened portion of N. Cherokee. In
conclusion, the sidewalk would be placed on the east side of the sireet on Town Right of
Way, and the road would be widened on the west side of the street, also on Town (ROW).

Improvements on the north end of the N. Cherokee Street project:

Street Department Forces were also involved in several different construction activities
on the north end of the N. Cherokee Street project. Forces excavated/trenched and
installed (2) - 2" diameter conduits for future use from the exterior to the interior of the
new round-a-bout. Forces also trenched for Bright Ridge conduit placement beginning (@
a power pole on N. Cherokee 5t, traveling 25007 along the new school access road on the
north side of the school. Forces backfilled the excavation after Bright Ridge Forces had
installed the conduit and junction boxes for street lighting. Forces also worked to widen
the segment of N. Cherokee to the north of Thompson Meadow Lane. Forces graded
back a large embankment on the east side of N. Cherokee. The grading included
widening of the road (on the east side in this section), as well as rough contouring for a
drainage ditch beyond the new edge of pavement. Forces also graded for the future
paved asphalt trail that would begin (@ Thompsen Meadow Lane and travel north to the
school. Forces stockpiled the dirt generated from the excavation for use in backfilling
after sidewalk placement on the south end of the project.

Improvements to Thompson Meadow Lane:

Thompson Meadow Lane also had several road/infrastructure improvements to be
implemented on the N. Cherokee Street comprehensive plan. Forces again worked along
side Bright Ridge Forces to trench/excavate for the addition of street lighting along the
north side of Thompson Meadow Lane. Forces began by removing several scrub trees on
the cast end of Thompson Meadow, The trees were in line with the routing of the conduit
layout by Bright Ridge. Also, the trees were hanging over the existing road and had been
an 1ssue for the trash truck/Solid Waste Department. Forces removed the trees/stumps,
and carefully trenched/excavated for Bright Ridge to place electrical conduit. Forces
backfilled the excavated area where Bright Ridge had placed their conduit and junction
boxes. On the east end of Thompson Meadow, Forces worked with Solid Waste Forces
to reconfigure the turn around arca to better suit the large trash truck, and to better
preserve the asphalt in that area, Forces worked withe resident @ the east end of
Thompson Meadow 1o ensure all parties were satishied w/the reconfigured turn around.
Forces removed cracked asphalt and organic material, and used heavy compacted base
stone to prepare the area for asphalt paving. Forces also excavated and area to the north
side of the entire length of Thompson Meadow, to increase the width of the road. Forces
placed and compacted base stone so the road width could be increased. Forces also cut
the road surface of Thompson Meadow, near the intersection with W, Cherokee, so
drainage improvements could be accomplished. Forces removed a section of asphalt,
removed the single 12" diameter dramage pipe under Thompson Meadow, and replaced
with (3) — 15" diameter drainage pipes under Thompson Meadow Lane. Forces placed
the pipes to grade, and bedded the pipes in compacted Grade D base stone.

Street Forces removed bucked sections of sidewalk in the Main Street Village
subdivision, and poured back a pair of sections of new sidewalk. Forces also made a
concrete repair (@ a water valve that was above sidewalk grade in that subdivision.
Forces poured concrete to repair a failed drain tile near 146 N. Lincoln Avenue,



As ever, Forces monitored, maintained and repaired the storm water system and
drainage inlets and structures throughout town. Forces performed animal control duties
as well. Forces responded to debris/trees/Timbs in roadway calls during the month,
Forces also continued to mow town Right of Ways (ROW’s) and to trim/clear vegetation
at intersections and from around signage at every opportunity.

As an ongoing commitment to motorist's safety and driver information, the Street
Department continues a *sign replacement and upgrade’ program. Street Forces continue
to bring faded or non-retroreflective signage up to modern standards set forth by the
MUTCD (Federal standard).

There are many more daily maintenance and routine operations the street department
undertakes. The Street Department strives to give Town management and the Town's
people an excellent return on their investment. The Street Department is happy to serve
the town, the leadership, and other departmenis to provide better, safer roadways, more
effective drainage, and safety and support during special events and happenings in town.

Dhirector of Streets
Malcolm Highsmith



Street Department — 1320 - September 2023 Daily Work Record (DWR)

9/1/2023

1.

9/5/2023

1

9/6/2023

972023

1.

2.

Street Department Forces continued work on the M. Cherokee Street improvement
project. Forces set catch basin on the west side of the project (600 block) so

storm runoff from the east side of the project near Ivy Trace, could be piped to this
location and daylighted. Forces cut/removed asphalt and placed drainage piping
and bed the pipe with backfill stone (Grade D base stone], then compacted

Farces used brush truck to remove fallen/fcut tree debris from recent storm. The
brush had temporarily been pushed onto the road shoulder, and had begun to fall
back into the roadway. Forces took brush to be processed @ brush yard

Street Department Forces hauled [2) loads of base stone for the M, Cherokee 5t

road improvement project, Forces hauled (1) load of Rip Rap stone from the

Watauga quarry to the N, Cherokee 5t project for use

Forces excavated and placed (2) conduits @ round-a-bout of N. Cherokee 5t

for future use/fstreet lighting. Forces placed and compacted Grade D base stone
Forces excavated wider road shoubder area of M. Cherokee 5t, and placed and
compacted base stone in new shoulder area

Forces grubbed scrub cherry and locust trees on east end of Thompson Meadow Lane
Forces loaded out tree debris from Thompson Meadow Lane and hauled to brush yard

Street Department Forces continued work on the N. Cherokee 5t road improvement
project. Forces loaded and transported old pallets, brush and trash tree debris off
the project site

Forees leveled area where scrub trees were cut/removed by Bright Ridge on the
south end of the M, Cherokee 5t project

Forces placed Class A-1 Rip Rap around outlet end of storm drain on N, Cherokee 5t
Forces continued excavation of widened road shoulder area of M. Cherokee 5t.
Forces backfilled the excavated areas, then compacted the stone base

Street Department Forces cutfremoved treas/debris on Thompson Meadow Lane

as part of the N, Cherckee St improvement project

Forces loaded out and removed brush from Thompson Meadow Lane and transported
to the brush yard facility

Forces loaded and removed cut off logs impeding access to fire hydrant in Walnut Grove
as a request from IPDSIFD



9/8/2023

1.

9/9/2023

1.

a/11/2023

1,

9/12/20223
1.
2.

3.

9/13/2023

i

Street Department Forces repalred broken/bucked sidewalk panel in Main Street
Village. Forces removed (1} sidewalk panel and leveled area, and repoured that
sidewalk panel (slak)

Forces continued to work on widening shoulder area of the south end of the

M. Cherokee 5t project, as well as cutting/removing scrub trees from the east end
of Thompson Meadow Lane [also part of the broader M. Cherokee 5t project)
Forces prepped/inspected the semi tractor and trailer for road trip to transport
the old lkeaf vac to Richmond Virginia, and to return w/the new (to us) leaf vac
Forces left for Richmend to exchange the equipment

Forces dropped off old leaf vac machine and loaded new leaf vac machine. Forces
had mechanical issues, but were able to get the mechanical issues resolved and return
with the equipment

Street Department Forces transported a rented stump grinder and ground tree stumps
on Thompson Meadow Lane. Forces waorked over to complete stump grinding
operations so the stum grinder could be returned the following morning

Forces transported (2) loads of Grade D base stone to the N, Cherokee 5t project,
Forces continued to excavate the road shoulder to widen N. Cherokee St, and to

place and compact the Grade D base stone

Street Department Forces loaded and transported the stump grinder from

M. Cherokee 5t to the rental store

Forces completed loading/transporting the tree/brush/vegetation from the
Thompson Meadow Lane area. Forces took the brush to be recycled into mulch
Forces used dump truck and track hoe to remiove all brush from road shoulders of
Ben Gable Road. Both brush trucks were inoperative @ the current time

Street Department Forces cut/removed/loaded brush from road shoulder area of
Ben Gamble Road. Forces used dump truck and track hoe to load out brush as both
brush trucks were ingperative @ the current time

Forces loaded the Link Belt track hoe @ N, Cherokee 5t and transported to the
Industrial Park project for Water Distribution to use on that project

Forces used open broom to sweep/clean Thompson Meadow Lane of dirt/dust/stone
dust etc

Forces used shoulder mower and tractor to clear vegetation from road shoulders on
Depot 5t, College 5t and Payne Rd



9/14/2023

1.

2.
9/15/2023

a1

9/18/2023

1.

Street Department Forces used Waste Water's John Deere track hoe to excavate

for catch basin/drainage box installation on M. Cherokee 5t, Forces set double catch
basins on west side of N. Cherokee 5t near intersection w/Thompson Meadow Lane.
Forces placed drainage piping in drain boxes, and grouted the drainage piping. Forces
used Grade D base stone to backfill. Forces compacted the backfilled stone

Forces hauled (2] loads of Grade D base stone to M. Cherokee 5t project

Street Department Forces continued to excavate road shoulder of N. Cherokee 5t
so N, Cherokee 5t could be made wider, Forces placed and compacted, Grade D
base stone in the excavated shoulder areas

Forces sloped/contoured pipe outlet area of newly installed double catch basins on
west side of N. Cherokee near intersection w/Thompson Meadow Lane. Forces
installed Class A-1 Rip Rap @ invert of the outlet side of drain piping exiting twin
catch basins

Forces used tractor and box blade to grade parking lot @ Lincoln Park in advance of
the Senior Games occurring the following week

Forces used tractor and box blade to grade alley in Mew Halifax that had washed
during the recent storm events

Street Department Forces used traffic control devices to close a section of

M. Cherokee Street to thru traffic, so catch basins and drainage piping could be
installed under M. Cherokee Street. Forces provided an alternate travel route

thru the corner of Mr. Baines property (with his permission), so that motorists and
emergency traffic would have full access to Thompson Meadow and N, Cherokee St
Forces had alerted all parties possible, that the temporary road closure was taking
place

Street Department Forces used excavator 1o excavate area to place single catch

basin on west side of N. Cherokee near intersection w/Thompson Meadow Lane, and
a double set of catch basins on the east side of N. Cherokee St

Forces cut removed asphalt, then removed material from roadway so drainage piping
could be installed under N. Cherokee, connecting drainage on the east and west sides
of W.Cherokee 5t. Forces placed/grouted drainage piping. Forces then placed and
compacted grade D base stone in all excavated areas. Forces set curb inlets, frame,
grates and hoods on all installed catch basins

Forces hauled (2) loads of grade D base stone to the N. Cherokes St project



9/19/2023

1.

2.
3.

9/20/2023

1.

9/21/2023

1.

9/22/2023

1.

Street Department Forces excavated along road shoulder of M. Cherokee and
Thompson Meadow Lane so road shoulder could be extended (widened), Forces
placed and compacted, grade D base stone in the excavated areas on both

streets

Forces transported grade D base stone from Locust Mount quarry to N, Cherckes 5t
Forces mowed ROW's on Patton Ave, 4™ Ave and Forestview Dr

Street Department Forces excavated road shoulder on Thompson Meadow Lane for
shoulder widening, Forces placed and compacted grade D base stone in excavated
areas of Thompson Meadow Lane

Forces closed an area of Thompson Meadow Lane so the road could be excavated and
an existing pipe removed so larger drain piping could be installed, Forces provided an
alternate area on which to drive, 5o traffic on Thompson Meadow would never

be impeded or cut off from access to N. Cherokee 5t. Forces alerted as many residents
to the traffic pattern change as possible

Forces excavated and removed the single 127 CMP drain pipe under Thompson Meadow
Lane near the intersection with M, Cherokee 5t Forces set grade and installed {3} 15"
drainage pipes under Thompson Meadow Lane. Forces spaced the drainage pipes such
that base stone fill could be compacted between the pipes, locking all pipes into place.
Forces placed class A-1 rip rap stone @ inlet and outlet ends of newly installed drainage
piping under Thompson Meadow Lane, Forces regpened Thompson Meadow Lane to
the normal traffic patbern

Street Department Forces excavated shoulder areas of Thompson Meadow Lane so
road surface width could be increased. Forces placed and compacted grade D base
stone,

Forces hauled grade D base stone for use on Thompson Meadow Lane road shoulder
backfill

Forces used class A = 1 Rip Rap stone to protect inlet and outlets of newly installed
drainage piping under Thompson Meadow Lane

Forces continued to excavate the road shoulder along the left side of Thompson
Meadow Lane., Forces used grade D base stone in the excavated areas to increase
eventual width of Thompson Meadow Lane. Forces placed and compacted grade D
base stone in the excavated areas.

Forces hauled {4) loads of grade D base stone from Locust Mount quarry to Thompson
Meadow Lane for use

Forces removed, leveled the substrate, and replaced several brick pavers around the
granite monument @ the Courthouse due to differential settlement and being a trip
hazard. Forces worked in two areas removing, repairing the substrate, then reinstalling



9/23/2023

1.

9/25/2023

1.

9/26/2023

1

9/27/2023

1.

Street Department Forces close Fox — 2™ Ave and auxiliary streets for the Pumpkin
Fest event, Forces later reopened the streets to the normal traffic pattern

Street Department Forces continued to excavate and increase road shoulder width
on Thompson Meadow Lane. Forces used grade O base stone in the excavated areas
to increase road width after asphalt paving. Forces placed and compacted the

base stone after placement in the excavated areas

Forces cut and cleaned up fallen tree over fence of property located @

1879 Ida Sue Drive. The tree had fallen on Saturday, spawning multiple phone calls to
Street staff and IPD. Glen Woodfin visited the site on Saturday (9/23), and spoke
w/residents. The residents were satisfied that the tree would be removed on Monday
19725}, Forces removed the tree to find that only ¥ of 1 fence panel to have
sustained damage. The residents were informed of any information regarding the
tree removal throughout the day. Street Forces cut/removed the tree & hauled away
the brush. A sheet of plywood was placed over the missing/broken fence panel area
50 residents would have full unlimited use of their rear yard. The residents were
Trevor and Rachel Rice - Trevor (423) 946-2985, Rachel (423) 723-3480

Street Department Forces used rental trencher attachment on skid loader to trench
for Bright Ridge to install electrical conduit for street lighting on the north side of
Thoempson Meadow Lane, Forces also used a mini excavator to dig trench near the
intersection of Thompson Meadow and M. Cherokee 5 for the conduit to be placed.
Forces used a backhoe to remove tree stumps that were in the way of installing the
electrical conduit, Forces worked w/Bright Ridge Forces to install and backfill the
conduit.

Farces backfilled the areas in which the electrical conduit was placed along the side of
Thompson Meadow Lane

Street Department Forces laid out area to be excavated for future expanded
‘turn around’ @ east end of Thompsoen Meadow Lane. Forces used eguipment

to remove existing material 50 the area could receive base stone and be prepared
for asphalt. Forces worked w/Gary Miller of Solid Waste to execute ‘trial runs’

of the newly claimed turn around area, in the large trash truck, Gary deemed the
area adequate to turn the trash truck and to execute his ‘stop’ with much room
to spare, Forces attempted to shape the turning area, such that the trash truck
would not be on the edge of the asphalt @ any time, thereby minimizing damage
to the surface/substrate

Forces continued grade work on cutting down/reshaping bank on the school property
on the east side of N, Cherokee near 679 N, Cherckee 51,

Forces mowed ROW's on W, College, Shell Road and Spring 5t



4,
5.

9/28/2023

1.

9/29/2023

1.

9/30/2023

1.

Forces hauled |2] loads of Grade D base stone from quarry to Thompson Meadow Ln
Forces replaced missing street blades in several different locations around town

street Departrment Forces continued working on excavating road shoulder on the east
side of M, Cherokee Street in the 679 M, Cherokee 5t area. Forces removed material
so road width of M. Cherokee could be increased thru that area. Forces placed and
compacted grade D base stone in that area. Forces also laid out placement of a
drainage ditch as no curbing would be added in this area. Forces contoured the
sloping bank beyond the new road shoulder and ditch areas,

Forces placed grade D base stone in the excavated areas of the "turn around’ @

east end of Thompson Meadow Lane. Forces compacted the stone after placement.
The turn around area had been increasaed in size to accommodate larger town services
viehicles

Forces completed road shoulder widening operations on the east end of

Thoampson Meadow Lane.

Forces investigated a hole in yard/ROW @ corner of Lawing Ave (north end) and

M. Lincoln Avenue. Forces discovered that a portion of an old drain tile had collapsed
causing a drop off/hole area near the roadway. Forces placed traffic cone to alert
matorists until such time an adequate repair could be made

Street Department Forces excavated the area around a drop off area near

146 M. Lincoln Avenue. Forces formed the area so concrete could be poured to
repair a damaged/rotting existing drain tile

Forces continued to excavate along the east road shoulder of N, Cherokee Street,
Forces then placed and compacted grade D base stone to increase the road width
in this area of M. Cherokee 5t.

Force completed fence repair @ 1879 ida Sue Drive. A tree from town drainage
easement had fallen across the corner of the fence, damaging a portion of one
section of fencing. Forces installed the fence pickets into place completing the
repairs

Forces loaded the large military “Lull® telehandler on tractor trailer to transport

to repair facility for Fleet Maintenance Department

Forces used tractor and bush-hog to mow ROW's on Boones Creek Road, Depot 5t,
2™ Ave, College 5t, First Ave, Sabin, Cemetery Ln, Correll Ln, N. Lincoln Ave and
Lawing Avenue. Force cut grass @ corner of Jackson Blvd/Jefferson 5t and

sunset Drive/lackson Blvd

Saturday
Forces loaded and transported boom mower Mew Holland tractor from tractor

repair shop in Morristown TN. Forces brought tractor to Fleet Maintenance for
reassembly with the boom mower equipment/arm etc



STYWINY 031d00Y HOFHDIIN 107 Advean/Inigys X Eu_ TINVSINN/ISOON [ EZT0T/EL/6

TWINY 031400V HOEHOIEN 15 IINOWIHD "N 00T ._.qu_ JONVSINN/ISO0T|EZ0E/TL/6

40 03504510 PE HS 010 01T ¥330| YOO |E20Z/1L/6

40 03504510 aNT8 NOSHONT OZ% 310402 YOO (|EZ0Z/8T/6

40 Q3504510 Y ¥42 SIN0OE 006 ¥330 YOO |EZ0Z/BT/6

HIANMO OL OINHMNLIH 15 NIVIA MY LST 200 FIDINVSINN/ISO0T|EZ0Z/9T/6

40 03504510 HO AYW,/HO NOSITY NOODJOVH YOO |E20Z/¥1/6

HINMO HLIM IHO4S ANIOd AHOMDIH SE 904 TINVSINN/ONINYYE |[EZ0Z/ET/6

40 Q3504510 15 Xv4NvH MIN EET WN5SS0440 dVHL NI LHONYD|EZ0E/ET/6

dvdl 440 A34d0u0 Td NIMTANYHS OTL 1o AINVSINN/ISO0N|EZOZ/ETSE

SYOIDM OL OFLHO4SNYEL] 3NV MOOYIIN NOSINOML 94T 900 AINYSINNSISOO0N|EZ0Z/TT/6
HINMO OL QINENLTY LNVId HILVM JLSYM 204 FONVSINNSISO0N|EC0Z/B/6
031%¥201 5900 ON HO NOSITIV S0OT SO00 € JINVEINNSISO0T|EZ0Z/8/6
g3Lv201 5900 ON av0Y 39014 NOWWISH3d S9040 £ JINVSINN/ISO0T|EZ0Z/8/E
SYIDA OL 0ILE0SSNYHL 15 10430 LTE T dvdl NI LHONYI|E202/9/6
d¥HL WOWd 034v053 15 10d30 L1 =) d¥WHL NI LHDNYD|EZ0Z/S/6
40 Q3504510 12 ATTHHIA BOE ANIAS dVdL NI LHONYD|EZ0Z/S/6

NINVYL NOLLOV 40 3dAL 5534Qdv 2 INVN 53123dS TYWINY 40 NOILISOdSIa Jiva

jodjuo)) |ewiuy
£207 Joquiaydas




Utility Manager Monthly Report
September 2023

All utilities departments operated under nermal operating conditions for the month of September.

Dstribution department installed 26 new service taps and repaired 24 service leaks for the month of
September, The distribution department also completed 62 miscellaneous work orders and located 217
TH 811 one calis, The distribution construction crew installed 20007 of 12° i at the Industrial Park.

Water Quality Department read 12,941 meters for the month of September. The Water Quality
Department cut off 418 meters with 124 of those for nonpayment. The Water Quality Department had a
total of 14,729 total actions taken in the month of September. As of September 307, Water Quality
Department has changed out 12,224 meters to the new AMER meter system. The Water Quality
Departmant completed all scheduled flushing for the month of Septamber.

Water Plant processed 83.147 million gallons of water with & dally average of 2.771 million gallons per
day in the month of September. The Water Treatment plant is operating at full capacity and isin nead of
an upgrade, Persimmon Ridge Tank has maintained an average level of 38 feet for September and
woodlawn Tank has maintained an average level of 24 feet for September.

Wastewater Department operated under normal conditions for the manth of September. Wastewater
had 2 releases in September due to aging infrastructure. The North Cherales extension is at the B5%
campletion mark, The new school sewer was completed, All industries are within compliance. The
WWTP is operating well, The diesel redundancy pump did operate in September. The manth of
september experienced 7 days of precipitation for a total of 1.25 inches. The need for further 1&1 work is
still apparent, Current data indicates a dally inflow rate between 30-45 %. For September, this rate was
42%, equating to an average of nearly 311,000 gallens daily,

County water line construction crew finlshed the Saylor Hill Rd project which ks the 7" of B projects that
are planned. The construction crew will start the Dry Creek/Rockhouse Rd water line extension in the
month of September, The Construction crew started the Dry Creek project on September 11" and has
installed 3200° of 6 DIP. To date the Construction crew has Installed @ 48 700 of 6 DIP.



We had a busy Seplember in Utllities. As of September 30', 2023, Distribution has 3 total vacancies.
The Water Quality Department has no vacancies, Water Treatment Plant has no vacancies and
Wastewater has no vacancles. We are actively interviewing potential employees, but we struggle when
it comes to start put pay to attract the people with the skill set, we need. | am working daily with GRW
an the planning and design phase of the Water Treatment plant and transmission line. We have
submitted the new Water Plant plans to SRF and USDA for review. We should be getting feedback in a
fow weeks on what the next steps are that we need to take. | am also working with Brightridge to
formulate a plan to install generators at cur pump stations and at the Water Treatment plant,

Kevin Brobech

Utility Manager



Town of Jonesborough
Water Quality Department
Monthly Report

September-2023
12,941 AGT 418 125
Meter Maintenance: Water Cut Off List. Customer Complaints:
35 Meter lids replaced 124 meters 13
41 Meters marked
53 Meter locates
52 Meters changed to AMR
Total Changed: 12,224
Water Line Flushing: Service Line Laaks: Programmed AMR Meter Haads:
56 Points flushed 83 52
49 \alves exercised Checked for 10 cross connections 217

{No cross connection)

Total Act Taken:
14,729




TowN OF JONESBOROUGH

123 BoOMNE STREET
JOMESBOROUGH, TH 37650
TELEFHOME [423) T53-1030

Fax (423) 7E3-1074

Monthly Report September 2023

Water Distribution
Complaints Total - 4 4- Total Complaints Last Month
Taps Installed - 26 23- Total Taps Last Month
Tennessee One Call - 217 247- Total Last honth

This Month there were 217 locations marked on our Water System for proposed waovk stch as
Telephone Co, Gas co, Cable co, and Power Board

Water Leaks Total- 24 _28- Total Last
Month

Down Meters Installed Total - 8 id4 - Last Month
Meter Box Replaced Total - 9 5- Total Last Month
Paving Locations - 1 0- Total Last Month

Yard Work Clean Total - 11 2 - Total Last Month




Projects to be Completed.

1. Yards to sow (198 to sow)
2 Work on the Grant Funding with GRW Engineering for water line replacement

3. Taps to be done =4

GPS Project Goals
September 2023: For the month of September 2023 there were no GPS points surveyed.

The GPS crew started back up in November 2021. This is @ summary of the progress made since
the end of February 2022

s 163,901 meters or 101 miles of water line
Valves =430

s Meters=1,703

¢ Hydrants — 94

s BlowOff- 75

The following data is a summary of the work provided by our part-time interns mapping our
water system from Jufy 2020- July 2021.

Linear feet of water line GPS- 906,626

Miles af water line GPS- 171 miles

Meters GP5- 3,546

Valves GFS- 767

Hydrants GPS-193

We currently have 1/3 of our woter lines GPS.

GPS- The Town of Jonesborough water system is approximately 35% map ped, with
approximately 1,848,000 feet of water line in the ground. The Goal is to get all water lines,
valves, hydrants, and meters mapped in a GI5 format that can be used on an IPAD for reference
anline size and valve location. This will reduce time spent on leak repair and help with isalating
the water system in putting the fewest customers out of water during a leak repair. It has been



suggested that we utilize an intern program from ETSU for the summer, This will help
tremendously due to the department being shorthanded and having only limited time to
dedicate ta GPS program. Currently we are looking at 10-15 years before the water system is
completely mapped.

Meter Change Out Program

Water Distribution is working to have our large meters updoted and functioning at AWWA
standards [101% and no lower than 98.5%). All large meters will have a bypass so they can be
repaired and tested without customer water interruption. It Is suggested the meters be tested
on a yearly basis for accuracy. Working with a spreadsheet of our top water consumption
customers we have been replocing antiguated meters with new compound meters, We have
about 21 businesses on the list that are due for meter change out. Koyo 47, Academy Hills 2%,
Davey Crocket High School 4°, Chuckey Sales meter and Hexpol have been changed out as part
of the program bringing the total to 16.

It is the goal for the Water Distribution to replace 1 large meter a week when in stock, The
agenda is ta maintaln accurate melers, 50 the Town of Jonesborough does not lase revenue, We
have around 1,300 residentiol meters to replace.

For the month of September Town Crew

The Tawn crew has also assisted in changing out old meters and replacing with automatic reads
{8). The Town crew has installed 1,200" of 12% D.I. at the industrial Park this month.

ming Lin Ta rew
industrigl Park, Performance Drive 127 moin- Town Crew
Paynetown Road 300'of 6 water main for joe Wilson,
Tie in &° fire line to 16 K-8 Schoo
Blg Wood Road 750

Exiem. Crew
Joneshorough School- 6 Ductile iron 1700°-Town Crew- (install 6 Fire protection) Completed
Wolfe Boones Creek — 1,000° Ductile iron- Town Crew- Taps- Completed
5" lvy trace to Thompson Meadows- 1,000°- Town Crew



Extend 6 water line at K-8 School and add 2-2" waterlines for athletics and concession. Town
Crew Completed

Ling Ex 5 CoLin
¢ Rock House Road - 1,900° DI
+ Taylor Bridge Road
& Dry Creek Rd-15, 700" OV
o Jlackson Bridge
i Co cts

Treadway Trail- 3,000 Di— County Crew Completed

Greenwsod Drive- Cecil Gray to Mill Springs 3,100 D1, Shipley Ct to Oliver Edwards 2,000° DI
- County Crew Completed

Ralph Hoss 4,300° I — County Crew- completed

wathes Circle/ Nolechuckey Fire Dept 800° County Crew- Completed
Malone Hollow- County Crew- Completed
Saylor Hill Road- County Crew -Completed

County Construction Crew

For the month of September 2023, the County Construction Crew has installed 3200 of water
iine on Dry Creek Road this month. The crew has also Installed 12- valves, 3- fire hydrants, 3- 6x6
tees and 2 taps. The crew has also sewn 800’ feet of the ditch line where the water line has been

instalied,

rew ¢ i
3.200° D). total to date
Count rted Creek Road September 11, 2023,




Town OF JONESBOROUGH

123 BODNE STHEET
JoHESBSOLGEH, T 37655
TELCrHONE (£23) TES- 1030

Fax (423) 7231074

Wastewater — September 2023
Monthly Operations Summary

Date: October 2, 2023

LT

ustome
Tetal: 7 Resolved: 7
THELL: Taken: 273 Required Action: 113
Sewer Taps:
New: 6 Completed: 1* Pending: 3*  Pending Contracted: 143*

*Our department has not received the CO report to verify contracted Taps

1. Washington County Industnal Park
2. Boones Creck Extension

3. HN. Cherokes Extension

4. Wilson/Day Extension

Projects Completed:
N. Cherokee Sewer Extension is 50% complete across May Drive (0% overall)
System Maintenance:
Line Cleaning: 0" Line Inspections: 0 System Repairs: 2
Station Repairs: 2 Station Cleaning: 17 STEP Unit Repairs: 3
Overflows/Releases/Bypusses:

Release: 9123 — 109 Forest View Drive - Line Collapse
Y223 = 1412 Walnut Grove Road - Force Main Break



Town of Jonesborough S:-p'tﬂhzgul. 2023
Environmental Services
Department Monthly Report September 30, 2023

Wastewater Plant: The WWTP is running well. The Diesel Redundancy Pump did operate in
September. The month of August experienced 7 days of precipitation for a total of 1.25 inches, The need
for further 1&] work is still apparent. Current data indicates a daily inflow rate between 30-45%. For
September, this rate was 42%, equating to an average of nearly 321,000 gallons daily. No Bypass®
occurred in the Month of September

Wastewater Plant ce — September 2023
Iy s ey i Te! Febh iy W e L s s R T
CBOD Monthly Smg/l - 321b/d 21mg/l - 1671b/d
CBOD Weekly Smg/l — 300h/d 25mg/l — 2081b/d
CBOD Daily Smp/l — 9T%ERmy I0mp1 - +40%REmy
Ammonia Mo. 0. 7mg/l - 81b/d Byl — 671b/d
Ammonia Wk 0.9 mg/1 - 6lb'd 12mg/1 — 1001b/d
Ammonia Day, 1.2my 16mg/l
TS5 Monthly dmg/l - 251b/d 30mg — 2501b/d
TSS Weekly 6mg/l - 20Ibid 40mg - 3041b/d
TSS Daily Tmg/l - PE%Rmy 45mp/l — +40%Emy
E coli Monthly 2.4/ 00m| 126/100ml
E. coli Daily 16/100ml 941/100ml
Chlorine 0.13 mg/l 2.0mg/
Sett, Solids 0.1ml1
Diss. Oxygen 7.3mg/
pH 75507 Sau
Sewer Construction/Collection System: 2 Releases occurred in September due to line failures.

The N. Cherokee Extension is underway and 80% complete.  The Boones Creek Extension is 0%
complete. The Wilson Property Sewer is 75% Complete. Tle Washington County Industrial Park
Extension is pending the completion of the previous extensions.

Industrial Pretreatment: September is the end of the Bi-Annual indusirial prefrestment eycle,
NPDES Permit: Our facilities are in full compliance with our NFDES Permit.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at: Office; 753-1022

Cobern O, Rasnick
Dvrectar of Environmendal Services



Work Orders By Type
E/Q1/2027 to 0930/ 3023 a5 of JOY2/ 2023
Powered] By eWork@rdors.com

Status; 2-Cloged

Departmenti Town of Janesborough

Work Order Type Quantity
WW-Preventive Mointenanos 154
Total Waork Ordars: 254

Work Orders By Type
Q801 200 F to (S 30F202F as of 1072742023
- Jgwared By elWark Groers. corm

Status; 0-Opan

Departmeant: Town of Jonesborough

Work Order Type Quankity
WW-Pravaniive Malntanance TF
W -t *Emergency*® Plant Work 3
WiW-Requasted Waork ¥
W -Corrective 13
Total Waork Ordars: L5
Current Manth " Previous Month % Change _
Wark Orders Generated G2 304 L5 =T%
Percentage of Complation . Bk 1%
| Work Orders Completed 254 79 -0

*Data Entry related to Preventative Maintenance Tasks are currently ongoing. As additlonal tasks are
added the number of work orders generabed increases. This will significantly Impact values, Until the
data entry Is completed a relative value of the work belng completed will not be avallable, Tasks not
logged In the electranic system are still being logged utflizing traditional paper tracking methods,




Jonesborough Water Treatment Facility
Monthly Report

September 2023

For the month of September, the total amount of water processed was 83,147 million gallons,
with a daily average of 2.771 million, 3 maximum of 2,864 millien, and a minimum of 2.688

mitlicn.

¥ 9/5. Collected first round of bacteriological samples and finished all monthly
operations reports for TDEC.

% 9/6 Collected TOC, DOC, and fluoride samples to be sent to Waypoint Analytical for
our manthly verifications.

% 9/7-Collected quarterly TTHM and HAAS's samples and sent them in o be analyzed at
Pace Analytical.

¥ 9/8-Completed all Monthly Operations Reports and tummed them into TDEC, Changed
buffer and indicator solution in cur Hach Ci17sc machine. Also, due to a decrease in
affluent pressure and an increase in effluent flow, we contacted distribution for a
possible leak in the south side of the water system.

% 9/10- Persimmeon Ridge tank was losing water height at approximately 4 feet and hour.
Contacted distribution crews to hastily locate this leak. One of the larger leaks was
discovered on 81 south and repalred. The largest leak was discovered at Persimmon
Ridge Rd, water treatment and distribution staff work tirelessly through the night to
track down this emergency leak.

% 9/12- Power surge caused our High Service pumps, Rockhouse pump, and our Miox
disinfection machine to kick off, We followed our start up procedures and had the

plant back up running properly In a timely manner.



% 9/13- GRW and BrightRidge electrical engineers arrived to discuss future facility plans.

%  9/14- At the Intake the air compressor tank that applies compressed air to our Johnsan
Screens to clean debris off had a broken water drain fitting at the bottom nhl-;e tank.
Parts for the alr compresser tank was retrieved and appropriate repairs were made.

% 9/15- Preformed routine maintenance on our coagulant system ¥ strainers, We also,
received a load of coagulant.

% '0/16- We repaired a broken water line that connected two pressure switches at
Rockhouse Rd. pump station,

¥ ©/20- Due to a decrease in effluent pressure and an increase In effluent flow, we

contacted distribution for a possible leak in the south side of the water system. The

leak was discovered and repaired,

9,/21- Met with customers concerning easement for transmission line,

9/23- Changed VFD filters and greased pumps at Rockhouse, Intake, and the plant.

9/25- Collected the 2° & final round of bacteriological samples for the month.

b A A

9/26- TDEC came and conducted a sampling Initlative to test public drinking water

sources for 29 PFAS compounds,

* 9/28- Our main gate had a broken bottom cantilever roller which caused the gate to
remain open. Contacted B&M Gate Operations and they came and resolved the issue.

¥ ©/30-Started preparing the September MOR information.

All pump stations/tanks have been checked and maintenance performed as needed
In conclusion, all in house laboratory test results as well as all external labaratory test results
came aut well within appropriate standards and regulations.

Prepared by Luke Cole, Director of Water Treatment, If you have any questions, you can reach

me by email {lukeci@jonesboroughtn.org) or by phone at 423-791-3837.



a
Joneshorough

Storytelling Capital of the World”
Cameo Waters

Director of Tourism & Main Street
September 2023 Monthly Report

Updates and Projects
1. Main 5treet and Downtown Update
2. Tourism Update
3. Marketing
4. Events

Main Street and Downtown Update

Attended the JAMSA board meetings for the month, multiple marketing meetings, event
meetings, etc.

Invalved in assisting JAMSA with event planning and marketing

Held Main 5treet work session and individual meetings with board members

Tourism update

Continued working with Visit JC on a few large events coming to the area in a year (motorcoach
association and Miss TN pagent)

Began working to plan TN Songwriters event

Attended Governor’s Conference

Worked with Jenni with TDTD on the partner pedal

Met with the new Eureka owners

Marketing

Marketing was heawvy for the last weeks of Brews & Tunes, MOTS, and the Pumpkin Fest

We are continuing our weekly segment on WICW. The goal is to share information regarding
Town projects and to keep individuals informed

Finalizing billboards for a number of events

Met with Belocal Magazine on marketing opportunities



Events

Finalized Made Around Here Market vendors
Planning Brews & Boos and working on holiday events
Hosted Jonesborough's Volunteer Appreciation event

Brews & Tunes

Main Street Jonesborough Brews & Tunes
2023 Season

Revenue

Began season with $2,461.23
REVENUES 3-10-30000-3674:
Sponsorship:
JAMSA, $500
L.A. Fulton $200

$700
Beer Sales:
G6/04 5181
611 101
6/18 $167
625 £192

5641
Food Truck Fees:
G/04 575
611 175
618 8175
625 8175

$600
TOTAL Revenue 1/1/23-6/30/23 $1,941
Sponsorship:
Main Street Café $1,500
Beer Sales:
709 $203
M6 $123
723 5172
T30 $121
a8or CANCELLED
8/13 5127
820 H108
arzy $123
903 $89
a0 $101

M7 $103



9/24

Food Truck Fees:
7/05(late from 6/04)
7/09
76
723
T30
B/O7
813
820
Br27
903
8M0
9/17
9/24

$100
$100
$100
$200
$175

$1,270

CANCELLED

$100
$100
$175
$100
$100
$100
175

1,525
$4,295



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

Consent Agenda
DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #:__ 7-a

SUBJECT: Report on Debt Obligation — Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2023

BACKGROUND:

When public entities borrow money, they must file a Debt Report with the governing body
within 45 days following issuance. They must also file a copy with the Division of Local
Government Finance. Effective May 3, 2023, the State implemented a new online
process. Prior to that date, entities filed Form CT-0253 in paper form. Attached is a copy
of the Report on Debt Obligation for Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2023, which was filed
online with the State. This $1.2 million loan closed on August 31, 2023, with the Bank of
Tennessee.

RECOMMENDATION:

No action is required, just acknowledgement that the report was presented to the
governing body.,



TenNESSEE

COMPTROLLER
OF THE TREASURY
Lamcem | ol mergmrace
¥ im oy ol
Report On Debt Obligation
Entity and Debt Information

Entity Name

Tiram of Jonesboeough

Entity Address

123 Booms Sweet Jonesborough, Tennessee IT655-1350

Crebd fue Name
Bomd Anpoipaton Mo, Sedies 2023

Dot Beguie Facs Ammounl
FL.300,000.00

Faca Ampunt Pramium or DEcount?
A

T Status

Imterest Type Other Interest Type Description
Other Fined Ran

et Obligation
Mote - Bomd Anticipation Note

Moody's Ratling Standard & Poor's Rating Fitch Reating
Urmmied Unraied Unaled

Odhior Rabing Agency Mame Crther Rating Agency Rating
MiA Pl

Security
Gereral Chbigation

Type of Sale Fer Authorizing Document
Infiarmal Bad

Duated Dase BaueiCloting Dale Fimal Maburity Date
EILAR023 RALI023 115y

fage 1 of 4



Debi Purpose

Purpaose Parcanmiags Dessnpan
Other 10094 Crdngal
Education [ [T
General Govemment o s
Rekanging 0% A,
LUtilities % Y

Costof Issuance and Professionals

Does your Debt Issue have costs or professionals 7

Yes

Description Amang Reciming Porion Firm Mame

Bark Clasing Costs SE00.00 il Bank of Tennessee
TOTAL COETS SE00.00

Page 2 of 4



224

Maturity Dates, Amounts, and Interest Rates
Amauni Inienesl Fabe

$1.200,000.00 290

*5en Bnal page fov Submissson Detsls and Signahwres®

Page 3 of 4



Submission Detalls and Signatures

b thane an official stabement or disclosure docunsent, as ap phicabbs, thatwall be poated 10 EMMA: hitps:Nemma.merh.ongh?
Ho

Signature - Chiel Executive or Finance Officer of the Public Entity

Mame TitleiPosition

Janes Jennings Finarce DirsctonTown Recorder
Emad Ahernate Email
lenningsionesboroughr.ceg (TS

Signatene - Prepaner (Subamiter) of This Form

Mame Tideasition
[ LS

Eirusil Alarmate Email
I, Blis

Relationship b Public Entity Cuganlzation
ik ]

werification of Form Accurscy

By checking the b below &5 th sigrang of #es form, | abess the ilfowing:
I--lwriP:'MHHhﬂ'ﬂm{huhnni:dq:m informatian in this km s accuras,
Z. Thir deit Frengin comgplies with the apgoved Dok Manpgement Policy of the pullic enlity,
3. the form has been prepared by somecns ater an the SEQ ar CRO, e CEO or CFD has authorized te submisaion ol

this document.
| Wewify Fonm Accurncy
Dot b e Presemed af Public Meeting [rate o be emadedimailed to members of the goverming bosdy
10162023 M
Final Confirmation:

| hieraby subimit $iis rapor & B Division of Local Govemment Finance of e Tennesses Comproller of te Treasury and
unidarstarsd iy legal resporsibility to; Filo this repoet with e members of e governing body no laser than 45 days ahier e
Esuance of execution of e dobi disclosed on tis fomn, The Repart is o be delivered to gach membes of the Goveming Body and
presented af a public mestng of he bedy, Il there is not o scheduled public meating of e governing bady within fomy-fve (45)
clays, Fro nepoe il be delvered by el o reguiar U5 mail to meet e 4 5-day requiremenl and also presenied al the e
scheduled meetng,

Page 4 of 4



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

Consent Agenda
DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #:__ 7-b

SUBJECT:_Report on Debt Obligation — Capital Outlay Note, Series 2023

BACKGROUND:

When public entities borrow money, they must file a Debt Report with the governing body
within 45 days following issuance. They must also file a copy with the Division of Local
Government Finance. Effective May 3, 2023, the State implemented a new online
process. Prior to that date, entities filed Form CT-0253 in paper form. Attached is a copy
of the Report on Debt Obligation for the Capital Projects and Departmental Vehicles
Capital Outlay Note, Series 2023, which was filed online with the State. This $1 million
loan closed on September 19, 2023, with the Bank of Tennessee, and provides funding
for paving and sidewalk projects, roofing and building improvements, park improvements
and the purchase of vehicles.

REC ION:

No action is required, just acknowledgement that the report was presented to the
goveming body.



TenmEssEE

COMPTROLLER
OF THE TREASURY
i b ol g
Lompiraier
Report On Debt Obligation
Receipt Date: 08212023
Entity and Debt Information
Emlity Namz
Towm of Jonesbomugh
Enity Address

123 Boone ammm_g.'rmmu ATa5S-1590

Dbt Issue Mame
Capiml Projects and Departmental Vehides Gapital Outlay Note, Series 2023

Db Issue Face Amaunt
51000 000 D

Face Amouni Premfum or Discount?
LG

Tix Slatus
T - Exgmpt

Interest Type Other Interest Type Description
Cither APR 3.306%

Dbt Ohligation
Moin - Cagital Outlay Hole

Moody's Rating Standard & Poar's Rating Fitch Rating
Uinrated Lnenbed Urnimbed

Osher Rating Agency Mame Ciher Raing Agency Rating
L A,

Security
General Obligaton

Type of Sale Per Authorizing Document

Informal Bid
Dated Dabe lsgustCioging Date Fimal Maturity Date
BHSREY SIREI023 WLHE03S

Page 1 af 4



Debt Purpose

Purpose Pafeadnlags Dascrptian

Ganeral Govemnmant 100 Public Warks ard Retieatan
Educanan 0% M

Crar i A

Ratunding 1 A,

Llites o ]

Dons your Debi lssue have costs or professionals®

Cost of Issuance and Professionals

Y&

Descriplion Amalsnt Recurring Portion Firm Mame

Bank Closing Costs £500.00 MIA Bark of Tennessee
TOTAL COSTS 500,00

Page 2 of 4



Maturity Dates, Amounts, and interest Ratas

Year Amount Interest Rate
2023 $17,085.70 3135
2024 $05 586.78 15
2028 £72.004 80 325
2026 7441342 azs
2027 $76.902 82 328
2028 $70.412 83 325
2020 $82.132 14 328
2000 S84 67074 325
2031 $47,710.28 325
2002 $00,622.25 a:z5
2033 $93,685.45 325
2034 $36,619.54 325
2035 $74,735.45 3.25

*See final page for Subsmission Details and Signanses®

Page 3 of 4



Submission Detmils and Signatures

ks there an official statemant or disclosure document, as applicable, that will be posted to EMMA; Fritps:Teemmsmar.o g7
Ha

Signaturg - Chisl Executive of Finance Officer of the Public Entity

Mame TiiniFoskion

Janet Jarnings Finance DirecionTown Recordar
Erma#l ARarrale Email
fienning=@joreshoroughin.og (Y

Signature - Preparer (Sutsmitter) of This Form

s Thie/#osition
A BliA

Eirmanil Aleinate Email
B, BLA
Relationship to Public Emtity Drgankzation
i, LA,

Warification al Farm Accumcy

By ehacking the box below as the signing of thés loem, | atinst the foBowineg:
1. | coertity gt Ao thie beesd of mmy kntrdedips the Infarmation in this form i accuraie,
2, Thie disti herein complies with the appeoved Debd Managamant Podcy of the public entb
3. il the lorm has been prepared by someons other Ban e CEQ o CFO, the CED or CFO has suthorized the submission of

Tis docurrenl
Werily Form Accuracy
Drate io be Presented at Public Mesting Duate o be emailedimallied to members of the goveming oy
106023 A
Final Confirmatian

I vty bl this pespa o the Division of Local Gowemmaent Finance of #he Tennesses Cormptoller of the Treasuny and

understand my begad responsibility o: Fds this repoi wash the members of the goveming body no laser than 45 days aher ihe

issuance o expculion of the debl disclosed on this form. The Repon I5 10 e delivened 1o each member of the Govweming Body and

presenied af a public moedng of the body, I thene is net & scheduled public meetng of the goveming body within lmy-fve (45)

clanys, d hepon will be defivesed by emall ormgular LIS madl g0 maet e 45-day requiremenl and also presented al the nesd
scheduled mesting,

Page 4 of 4



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

Consent Agenda
DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #;__8

sUBJECT: Updated Rental Agreement — Leeboy Paver

BACKGROUND:

At the September 11, 2023, regular meeting of the Board of Mayor and Alderman, the
Board voted to allow town staff to rent the small Leeboy paver to private contractors who
were paving trails inside the Town's corporate limits.

Since that time, we have come to the realization, that there may be times a paving
contractor may want to rent this piece of equipment for paving a trail outside of the Town's
corporate limits. We certainly do not want this equipment to be "womn out” by private
contractors; however, this is a piece of equipment that gets very little use.

We would like to have the opportunity to rent this piece of equipment to contractors to
pave trails outside the Town's corporate limits and place the funds received in the Town's
in-lieu-of sidewalks revenue line item. This would have a positive impact on this fund and
actually help the Town in repairing, or building new sidewalks and/or walking trails,

The same rental agreement can be utilized and a Town project would always have priority
should we have a project scheduled. The paver would only be rented to a private
contractor for trail paving in Washington County, and nothing else. As an example, a
contractor could not rent this paver for small parking lots or smaller roadways and private
drives.

Attached to this agenda presentation is the original agenda presentation from the
September 11, 2023 Board of Mayor and Alderman meeting.
RECOMMENDATION:

Approve rental of the Leeboy paver for paving trails outside the Town's corporate limits,
but within Washington County, with the proceeds designated for the in-lieu-of sidewalk
line item in the Town's general fund.

Approve the new rental agreement with the additional language as presented.



AGREEMENT FOR USE OF LEEBOY TRAIL PAVER OWNED BY THE TOWN OF
JONESBOROUGH

The Town of Jonesborough owns and operates a Leeboy paving machine for the purpose
of paving trails and small parking lots. Although not suitable for paving roadways due to
its size, it is the ideal piece of equipment for small parking lots and walking trails.

is engaged in paving walking trails for

. Once completed, these trails may be
deeded to the Town of Jonesborough, or connect to the Town's trail, or walkway system.
does not own a small paver for paving trails, as this
is typically not done very often and would be costly.

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen find that it is the public interest to make the paving
machine available to to complete the public
trails as part of the overall project and to enhance the Town's program of building trails
throughout the Town, or as revenue for the Town's in-lieu-of sidewalk fund.

desires to rent the Leeboy paver for the
purpose of paving the walking trails in whereby
said trails are either to (1) be dedicated to the Town of Jonesborough through deed, or
(2) the trail is to connect with an existing public street or walkway, or (3) the trail is a
requirement through the town’s site plan approval process, or (4) revenue from the rental
will be deposited into the Town's in-lieu-of sidewalk fund for future projects within the
Town's corporate limits .

agrees to the following terms:

A representative of will meet with the
operator employed by the Town of Jonesborough for the purpose of discussing the
proper use of the equipment and to inspect the paver for any damage prior to the
commencement of any trail paving work.

* Any damage  shall be documented in  wriling prior to
taking temporary possession of the machine.

. agreas to utilize the machine within
operating guidelines, to provide all fuel for the project, and to return the paver
absent any damage not documented in writing as provided for above.

» The paver is to be returned within 48 hours of (Name of Company) completing the
specific job and no later than 500 pm. on the day of
.20




The Street Department Director shall inspect the paver upon (Name of Company)
returning it to the town, and the company agrees to cover the cost of any repairs
to damages or cleaning that are reported by the Director as part of the inspection
process.

agrees to hold the Town of Jonesborough
harmless for any accident which may occur while in possession of the paver.

agrees it is solely responsible for the paver
while in their possession, custody, or control, and is responsible for covering the
total cost of replacement of the equipment in the event of theft.

also agrees in the event of a dispute, (Name
of Company) will pay any attorney’s fees that may arise in dispute.

hereby agrees to pay to the Town of
Jonesborough a $500.00 deposit and a fee of $100.00 per hour as determined by
the hour meter (time counter) on the rental equipment. The hour meter reading on
the equipment will be recorded at the time the rental begins and recorded again
when the equipment is returned to the town.

Company Representative Date

Town Administrator Date



BACKGROUND: (September 11, 2023, Agenda Presentation)

As the Town progresses in our development, a huge emphasis is placed on sidewalks
and walking trails. Obviously, sidewalks are concrete and are typically formed and poured
by contractors. An asphalt walking trail is completely different.

For an asphalt trail, the area is graded, stone is applied and compacted and then asphalt
Iz applied. Most paving machines you see are designed for roadways, and as such are
very large. Typically, they are capable of paving a 10-foot to 12-foot lane. A paving
machine for trails is much smaller.

The Town purchased a Leeboy paver several years ago when we were constructing
numerous trails throughout the Town. More recently, many of the contractors are
developing walking trails throughout their development instead of sidewalks.

The difficulty for most contractors is finding a paver small enough to pave trails. It is not
like they can just drive down to "Pavers R US" and rent or lease a small paver. We have
had a couple of inquiries in the past from various paving companies regarding leasing or
renting the Town's small paver for these developments.

Most of the time these trails are turned over to the Town once the development is
complete. Again, this may not be the case every single time, but a walking trail certainly
adds to the quality of life in the Town.

With this in mind, we have developed a rental contract that would allow the Town to rent
the Leeboy paver to a contractor who is paving a walking trail inside the Town's corporate
limits. VWe are not suggesting we rent this machine out to anyone outside the Town's
corporate limits.

As stated earlier, we have a stake in these trails as they enhance the quality of life in the
Town's corporate limits.

The agreement requires that the renter pay a $500.00 deposit and a fee of $100.00 per
hour meter (time counter) for the rental of the equipment.

Town Attorney Jim Wheeler has reviewed the agreement, revisions were made based on
that review, and staff is recommending approval.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Leeboy Trail Paver Rental Agreement, as presented.



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

Consent Agenda

DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #: g

SUBJECT: Outdoor Use Permit — Crystal Raven, 103 East Main Street

BACKGROUND:

Owner Jerome Bowers of Crystal Raven located at 103 E. Main Street has applied for
an outdoor use permit for the intended use as a photo opportunity with the placement of
hay, pumpkins, metal arbor, and metal chairs as part of the scenery. A Certificate of
Appropriateness has been issued by the Historic Zoning Commission. The display will
not interfere with the sidewalk and the sidewalk will remain ADA accessible,

The Proof of Insurance and Hold Harmless Agreement are complete.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Qutdoor Use Permit for Crytal Raven, as presented.



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
OUTDOOR USE PERMIT
APPLICATION

Cavsme  Voaven 103 E Mad St

Buginass Mama = Outdoor Use Araa Fhyzical Addrass

E ME oS §23- 767 - 151
Cwrer's MNarmis Telephone [ Call §

188 £ Mawa L Ju-:uh-‘u# C?rtf:-?ﬁm.ﬁ#?.m quumﬂ.m--
Email Addrass

Mailing Address

Describe Intanded Use:_Parp (77 [Aflour OF _Sopte /ﬁm)

Describe aquipmant, structures, furnishings, etc, (o be used; &) it P 4%
bttt 4 > Ak

[ Photosischematics of equipment, structures, fumishings, sic. are attached?
Yas __ Mo

Applicant must provide a schematic showing proposed Ouldoor Usa Area in relationship
with building{s). Schematic must show propety Enes, démensions approximate
locations of equipment, slruclures and fumishings as well as location of poles, signs,
planters, ete. Dimensions of pedesirian walkway area muzl also be labaled.

Has a Certdficate of Appropriatenass from Histore Zoning Commission been issusd?

¥es o
Has proof of Babillty insurance besn provided? v Yes No
Town of Jonesbarcugh been namad co-insured? ¥ _ Yes [

Data of policy lerm: From Ja | oI 1o D SI', {02

Fieview by Town Altormay:

Shgniatune Cate

alement aof U i | have read the enfire Town of Jonesborough Outdoor
Usa Policy, | understand and agree o abide by all requirements and conditions,

R Seions Roas —3yfes
Z/@ B s
Signatune




Executed on the date first written above.

Signature; 8 ‘fia- e

J‘ﬁ'l‘-ﬁh_ﬂ" Ia-ﬂ-rl!""l-}

Frinted Name:;

STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public in and for the State and County

aforesaid, personally appeared with whom | am
personally acquainted (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence), and

who, upon oath, acknowledged executing the foregoing instrument for the purposes
therain contained by signing the sama.
WITNESS my hand and seal at office in the State and County aforesaid,

this, the |5t nlm 20 23 .

NOTARY PLIBLIC
¥ ULLLILIETEP
My Commission Expires: & ﬂ.ﬂﬂn Fl'i"-: d;“-:,#
Co | i
F i rr oY
FTE CIF i R
Di—aﬂ'agﬂﬁ = | TENMEsseg ¢ =
z£: NOmagy & =
% T, PUBLIC 0 &
.5, G



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE

Outdoor Use Permit Application
Hold Harmless and Indemnity Agreement
This agreement made on the #y dayof _Setredse. 2022 | inthe
City of Jonesborough, County of Washington, Stale of Tennessee.

The parties lo the agreement are the undersigned {:iﬁﬂl. gﬂigj.-l gy
[Mamo o

_Mgtoer howa . called "Indemnitor,” and The Town of
Drganization or Spomair)
Jonesborough, Tennessee, called “indemnitee. "

Indemnitor has submitted an Outdeor Use Permit Application to indemnilar.
This agreemenl is attached as an exhibit to that application. Approval of that
application is expressly conditioned on the execution of this agreement, indemnitee
has agreed lo review for approval the application for & special event and if
approved to allow the indemnitor's outdoor use of public property lo lake place
within the limits of tha Town of Jonesborough in consideration of the indemnilee’s
allowing the event to take place and $1.00, receipt of which by indemnitor is
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

Section |
Scope of Indemnity

Indemnitor undertakes o indemnify and to save harmless indemnitee from
any liability, loss or damages indemnitee may suffer as a result of claims, demands,
cosls, or judgments against it arising out of the operation within the limits of the
Town of Jenasborough, County of Washington, Stale of Tennesses, of the outdoor
use outlined in the application or the management thereof,

Indemnitor assumes full respensibility for all damages and injury that may
result to any person or persons or to adjoining property by reason of the excavation
for, and the erection, construction, and maintenance of, any structures put in place
for the outdoor use, and agrees and covenanis to indemnify Indemnitee against
any such claim or claims.

Indemnitor expressly undertakes to indemnify and to save harmless
indemnitee from all liabiity andfor loss or damages for or arising out of the outdoor
use oullined in the application, whether it be caused by the negligence of
indemnites, indemnitee’s agents or employees, indemnitee’s contractors or
otherwise.



Section ||
Period Covered

The indemnity will extand from the date of this agreement to and including
the date the permit expires or is terminated by either party, including and period
nacessary for the indemintes to remowve any structures aracted under the permit.

Section I
Expenses, Attormeys' Fees, and Costs

Should it become necessary for purposes of resisting, adjusting, or
compramising any claim{s) or demand(s) arising out of the subject matter with
respect fo which indemnification is provided by this agreement, or for purposes of
enforcing this agreement, for indemnitee to incur any expenses, or become
obligated to pay any attorneys' fees or court costs, indemnitor agrees to reimburse
indemnitee for such expenses, attorneys’ fees, or costs within a reasonable time, in
no event to exceed thirty days, after receiving written notice from indemnitea of the
incurring of such expenses, alttomaeys' faes, or costs,

Section IV
Interast

Indemnitor agrees to pay indemnitee interest at the rate of ten percent per
annum on any necessary expenses or costs incured by indemnitee in the
enforcement of this indemnity contract, or on any sums indemnites is obliged to pay
with respect to the matiers to which indemnity is given in the contract, from the date
such axpenses or costs are imcurred, or such sums ane paid.

Section VI
Motica of Claim Against Indemnites

Indemnitee agrees to give indemnitor ten days' written notice of any claim
made against indemnitee on the obligations indemnified against.



CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE mﬂm".mlzj.."j"'"”'
— THIS CERTIFICATE I5 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION DMLY —
Hami Cftce « 100 Bf Riurncs Place + Ere Pefdayhvisa 18530 « 14 670 X000
Ticd Irew 1,300, 8580811 » Fux B4 BP0 N2E » www erieisunence. oom
WAME AND ADGRESS OF AEWCY | OMES INSURANCE SERVICE AGENTS WO =
PO BOX 1516 HHTI3T [ Cn
JOHNSON CITY, TH 37602 .
A and
R R e caricat bt HEIE "
Crvatsl Raven LT ] costaised i Ithe
Richard J Bowers IVBIA “‘“%.uﬂﬂw
103 E Main 51 B & Sairad Bakts B Bty
Jomesbarough, TH 17659 aod represenialive s prodecar and ihe
I ;
b okl LS 'S
1000000 [ T
i | 2
s000fe 0
1 + g % Tk
o] | e A T
= i
i '.H'.'._
ETATTNT
ACCEENT § EACH KDSIDINT
. DESEASE 5 RO LT
| _ar DISEASE & IEACH PO
[eTwER ,

The Town of Joneshoroegh is an addational insured on this policy

EINERT AFERIAL RO Rk

EHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIV-
ERED W ACCORDANTE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

IMPORTANT:

If the cenificate hoider is an ADIMTIONAL INSURED, the palicy{les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION ES WAIVED, subject to the
berms and conditions of the poiicy, certain poliches may require an endarsement. A statemant on this certificale does not conler

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CERTIFIGATE HOLDER
Towan of Joneshorough

123 Bogme St
lomeshormagh, TH 17659

rights 1o thie certificato hoddar Im Beu of Such endorsement[s).
dHelod iﬁdd.m

R 0 B

Paga 1ol 1




TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN

AGENDA PRESENTATION
DATE: QCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #: 1
SUBJECT: Financial Report
Attached for your review are the September, 2023 Financial Operating Statemants!
" Current Year Prior Year
Seplember ¥TD September YTD
GEMERAL FUND
Revenues 1,680,021 2.9%3 BBE 1,344 583 1,861,451
Expendifures 1,144 667 2,633,881 2,026 625 2568074 |
Rev, Over/{Linder) Exp, 545,254 360,205 (682,082) {508,823)
DRUG FUMD
Revenues 6,142 B25 B25
Expenditures - 2,000 2,000 2,000
Rev. Over/(Under) Exp. . 4,192 {1,175) 1,175)
SOLID WASTE FUND p
Revenueas B2 835 212,33 127 845 176,821
Expenditures 58 533 160,667 105 418 137,000
Rev. Over/{Undar) Exp. 4,302 51,646 22,433 39,821
HRA INTERNAL SERV. FUND
Revenuas® 5,740 17.370 11,580 17,120
Expenditures® < 33,625 | 4,308 0,258
Rev. Over/(Under) Exp. 5,790 (16,258) 7,274 7,862
WATER/SEWER FUND
Revenues T22 645 3,147 640 1,489 132 2088 808
Expenditures 1,026 614 3,507,418 | 1,000,572 1,698,765
Rev. Over/{Undar) Exp. {303,969) (350,774) 488 580 399,843
K-8 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
Revenues 1,566 348 1,882 572 4, 750,449 4,750,449
Expendiiures 1,566,348 2.444 918 4,833,583 4678071
Rev. Overl(Under) Exp. . (482 348) (B3, 144) (127.822)




=TE'E8E  -ET"CEE°NT
LT7EE EE ¥R IR
(118 1% TE 0016
DO OOT  DD” GD0'DE
“BRTORT -BE'ESI'T
Do sL DO OSE"TOT
PB'BET  DETODE'E
GO0°ODDT  GOTODD'E
DOTDDT  BETRBD'E
L - T Lt Ll 'LET
SR S0 NEL'RE
ETTIR EFTER'D
[ T ET"¥T#'L
FIER ER-IIE'E
EETRE ERTEER'E
2R 7 ERIET'S
e il s ]
BETHDT  BETORL'E
L34 19 LS TEE REE
L WE O REL'E
FROLL SETNRECEL
SEC0ET bE-0Ed
L EL DB TED T
~BE EDT BB EEE'E
R B2 RERTES
(- --E -
IR SE°QLE"dtL
SRR M ada'y
SITEIT SRTEEATW
eRUEET  sdtadat
i T 8L'T
TETEE 0T ESS ST
SRt ddtaaa'td
[ -
(- | LU
1 LT FIL'WT
WIULL LE 830" L3T
SETRET 06 Ead "It
SLOEL QL ERL LT
LLTTE LA i A1 -0 4
RETEET  @ETada Tt
43°94T ag-ooo’omT
-39t QaToaf‘ad
9274t 4a'9daan
(4 ' GE e "ot
Q37@3aT  eETedn el
96 TE A aRL ELR "2
o -t B3srrTid
L]
= Lifeirann -
ALreT HMIL
T BCNA

IR Cis 4%
[ [0 b Aa ]
EL HER'E
aig-

b E ol £
aEEsL LT
og-

ag"

ag*

14 B4 4
PECTAE"T
T It 'z
[T A
ST HeL"E
R T
TI-CaC T
ERTHATTY
og*

EE " ROA"ELT
po§aLL
SL°Eta‘s
bg-

DO EIETAT
poOSE"T
DO-RLTE
oo-
DEDERL
be"

-]

1N

Do oom

TP LPE"EE
be”

boi*
PEETLRT
CE " GpR"d
ER 01T EX
bE-
DE“¥a9'E3
TH EPL ¥EL
no-

bE”

Bo-

1o
DETELT'W
Do~
DETRTE'RIE

Er‘écm's
DE OTE'®
BETREE
B
FETREE'T

it
LA - o
8-

B #TH 'Sk
aa-SeC'c
TL 3% 'E
ag’
aa-tie't
oaTase T
o asit
aa’
- 8
aa-

[[: &

ad’

oo*
¥LOTEE LT
i’

B3 LTIT IR
LA A e
og’

oo’

g’

-1

4 R [ 4
og*

Do ATETRIE

fzoz/oc/e

oo oon T
op"oog 68
oo boo"ET
T ] T o
oo’

OO~ GbD "SET
bb bbb 'S
OO OO0 ' ¥
SETRRR'E
Db ObD 'ORE
OO DDD o
BETREE 'R
-1l
ohTBEstE
DL bEl 'OL
SR dEE'H
Bl B " 3T
BRTEELE
[N T
LR ]
S ada Sl
Lo

" 88 o
g

ERTEEE T
ad 340 0%
-0l e B
3300y
010
a9 gea 't
a8 2aa e
GEa0a ant
00 000 ‘T
-1 E
g9 a0 5L
207080734t
11001
a4 000 8T
BE ada alE
d9'gaa"gam "z
o 00 g
aa- 0o “eaE
L 11 P
aotooa“os
0a- 999 "§T
ag gaa 9t
OO ZHE"RESCE

* CEOZSTOML

LREnE Anssgd
BOGOYEERNCT 40 KMOL

BNOARYTTESE IH HEisyn BO1TETR,

AoHS LATH TRLEWS WOLIFIA

il MOTHOLTONY - LD WOLIfIs
BEAd LIEGEENGd SodiTEd TOomDE
M WETA-DAASY TYIDESS - LIND " BEY
BN ANTd ASAWOS EOSFETESYS
WRRDCHE INRD ADERAON] - 434
LD LLEAE miaten sma

EENTIAN 50741 -IRYED SLEAYS d%4
SRMEATN OT% 9FLLd SIS
IHEAROUNARTY A0AMEERLNI N divos
OHILINUSLADSY EIVI

LRENLS KLTL ALWSE

Nl ASGAASO0 THOOT LLNIS

L NMOONT ECYEY

L ROTIMNDITHIRCOATAL ALved

WML WHTHI dAENTe aLvey

ML WASEAE AIMIS

L BETYE AiNis

EElE BITH d- dELNED dOIESS

SEO0 AINSHEUKEW - WHINED NOTNES
TN TR - LMD aoTEEn
EoHUEW BEVID 7 OWOWd HUTVEM-29
ONTOKOE AWM OJRLTHR - o4

EOMEAREH BEIMIE ~ METILID"NEE
ENEEATE LSS -HEE LTS kah

BIEOS ROTIVHITHOGD So1ndEs-o5
OEd SOIiVIHOSENYHL WENLINIFIEA « 36
ROIIVIEDSSNWHI ATTT FILIL-8

BEAd SRIMMGADIO

381 EIVITes/METARH N4 /DMTNORTY
BLTHHES CHITILNG

ERd BETHOWIE TIovD

S0 TWEEED ey
Q0.

TRAT
11 14
DESL
(4311
Etat
TT8E
RERLE
EEYE
PERE
:T3 1+
DEYE
11114
DEFE
FEFE
R
114 14
DERE
BERE
FEFE
LEET
SLEE
®EEE
Eefi
sl
[ 144
OELE
L2011
SE0D
atit
ST
E1£34
[ hxas
TET
astr
aeTr
duii

Tt
astt
OsTT
Lt
i
IFIL
THIT
LA
TTTd
aTIL
Dooong

lllll

o10-8 M
EEDE/E0/0T



LE'DR EL'OI®"EY
~E8° D% ~EF L%
DD-OOT  DOUORETE
Rl ] Oo“BZE"S
OO-DDT DO DOEYE
- DL BES"¥
[N ] EE-ZOOn DR
“ERTEEN -EEUTNT
CL Ly oo OED'E
BETEAT <SR RER'Y
G4 34T S OFE'E
aLtEe SITLER
227E9T SRS
G5 34T  Gd-oEd'em
ag°8aT  adtEEsEtm
Qo @t A TTERTEE
GU 94T G S4B EE
§4°'0a [l b
T aatEw"Y
a8 €4 ad*ETE"EL
~00°'00T =00 %LT
LA ] g ads et
[ B I3 FIOCIRLT
LE'EL #ETRASTE
T1'Z8 oy TAESE T
11 0 1 TETERRTETT
BE'HAT  o0'dds"C
T or L LT A
ELa LT 19
DRRAT  ob'Gas"i
i 8K LR 1R 44
TT %L B0 O%ETEE
F¥ EE DU HIA LT
DEC LB LY 09T "ER
RE° LR PO HOLTRE
FL OO Cem L
IE°TE FRLBE'E
¥ TE boodeE
[ 1984 SEERY
1t ] DO EER“ER
L= ET ERT &%
=" edN b 000'DE
@2°&aT oo oDn"T
b o ERENETEE
=Tedl SdU0do'OE
[ 1] BB BER'E
BT SRTOEL
Y 1 FECEFE"Y

oorELw
LO*LEE T
R TOT

b oEd"E
DO OO%*
e’

DO EWT
Do”

bE"

et

Do

oo

8" ELS
f300 11 )
SRTEEL'Y
Lot 144
EETENEE
LTk TR
ol
aEME 'R
3T IRESw
e’
FEOLEL'T
SE-Las'w
Qi
GrSEd "
TEEF0'TET
A3 &L "L
i st

29 TET D
AATLET "
WL ZIIZ
au'ask
SH'OTOCLT
oo SLEfLT
LRLERTE
oa’

oo*

TR RE0ET
o’
] ]
g’

Ev vl L

IIIIII

BEEEL'L oo mEn*Ld
ant BOTARE "L
e Do'oo0s"E
[N DO LRER
- PO BOS'E
-l OO~ GO0 ' 6
wEMRL PETBRD"EL
ad* on-
SETEL DEUERETEL
g -
ag* o
ag aL o
ag’ e
ag*” a3 i
ao” aRTREE"N
g’ a9 Ten" e
an* a0 -deR ' LE
oo Lt -
ad'aET aa-asL e
00" SAL"T a8 gea Sk
an’ ag-
oo ‘o%e 007 N
PEERL aiHag LT
TLAER aa*0as L
LR -1 R | go-ooofos
oE‘DRe LT o000 et
oe” QoToRe"E
14 e gea"c
BB LAY o0 ooo e
Bo* L
DO ETE'E LT TR
SFRER'S bo° 600 "DEE
8 oLo'T b0 poR " sE
LN bocoooo¥
ROUE OO ODE"TIE
SITRER bh boD'ET
- oo oogE'E
- BETRRR'E
ETEFD DO BEE'LY
[ b 00D 'OE
-§H §EL"S DO LDD'LE
aE" sho bbb el
ag" eb-pBo'L
LT"O%E"C LR
ae- - -l
@’ DR L
[: L [
T EEL"Y = ME'CT
e
LHEFWARS E e

fzazjatfe * BEOC/TASE
LSS ALY
RECCHCHERNGS 40 meos

LENE EOTALD 1904

O30T SEEERLNT

Al RATINGED NI REGD SEED el
HOHE GOOWH KMOL Xd0I5-LEWED SW3
JLEAEY AINGHEERIN HALGD EameIvoe
UEAEY i ATHENWIONDS ANsoQrise
SEEL ROTIMOONH-HILEE LEwe
ENDTINKOD- " B0 RN

TELL TRINTE - MEINED LA
TANID ENREARE ENTHWD EGTH KI SEWS
BN BOd S£00 HENCWOETENGD

TIE B4 S0TIWLID JTMTRLIESE e
SMYVED L1ESVE LHM ML

A0 BADG oI

S TYERKED RN
ORI T0s

OTO-N N4
EEDESSASAT



B EL

EE"SE
=RRTRET
=00 00T
=R BT
-00* 00T
“BD° OET
=RRTBRT
=-00" BT
=00 DOT
=R0 BaT
-pR'onet
=06 00T
=00°0aT
-0 aat
00700t
-0a "4t
=08 gaT
=RaTQeT
-aa" 4T
=03 -aaT
=04 a4t
=2273aT
RETEEE
-9~ e4T
-39~ G0E
EERTRRT
—ERTean
[
BRTENT
o
00 - DET
=5
1l 1
=G &L
=BOBET
TLTTE
TR |
R PE
=R boT
-E% BT

GTIET
T

FE“LFE'BETE

BETLEE'SOT'E
FETRERE
¥R RER'H
“LETERE'T
-t aRdT
=ET LEE' Y
“ET"&TR"Y
SE'T9E'%
G- TIBC"9
“B1TERE"T
-E1'ZEE"T
=80 65T LT
=B0TEREET
~49 ' g0@"EE
=G GOE“GE
[ L1

ot oze
LA 13
LES T4
-13 - aan
-£%"aad
BECREE'T
L1744
-EE LER'F
-ER-LER'¥
EE-TES AT
~FE"EHS "2
= EELEE
SBTEELTE
[ T
el D DD T
SR 0bE ' TER
R R
=0 TLR'E
]

BB FRRIOE
DO GEL'ST
DO OO R
=R REETODLT
-Egf el 1T

BLCEEECTEE T

FLUSHE LA T

~RE REE L
“HE"BEE'T
BT LER"®
ETLEZR Y
EC EEDTOT
EE'EGLTOT
oo-

oo”

au’

oo*

ai’

LR 441

o0 TLiE E
Qo @y
FLOSEE
ogtase'e
o0 toaEty
U T
b4 B2 kv

AT 6T

900 ads 't
“ERELEE
-§9°ELE'E

TER'Y

i L Al

kT EDE'T

LETECE'T

-

Boi*
=bE"FEE
~pE"ERE

vECLTEET

*ETETE'ET

EE"ETE

EETETE

DOTERRE

Do Esm"E
=BETEET
=ROTEET

pOCRELTT

po osL"t
=00 ELT
=QATSET

-1 R4

of-TEd"E
“ET TER"E
~EE"EESTN

L & i
aeTREL

4 TT TR
i ELs'CE

CEOEFHESE

S EET'BBT ' ET

S CLT'OOT'ET

ag’

oo TEL'LT
O TELEE
L0 TS
00" i ipla ' T
& a4 "TEE
[ Lo
SRTERE

e
]
0 D0b ' OE
eB BDDET
[N

oo OEE"OT

= EEDE/TDfL

ARV SRR
HOOOHOUSENALC 40 KHGL

--THLGL ENE

YISWISWEY - LD
FOGCW FEL GIAE - 1EP

-—TEIOE ERE--
COL T0d ETVED

--MRLGE EE--
B TR

--MRLOE Bl
pal i fay oy
BACA FE0O INEL LV EHL 1P

--THIOL mAS--
d OIcWE LiET TOrERSSOM ¥ 5.1I 1A
== TRIOI ==
CESOTER ATHVED LHE
--T¥20z mAE--
N¥Z ERimA IHC
==TH1O1 Ang--
waME bEO LHE
=~ THIOL ANE=-
LEHELAT g8
LHI ROFEN-MTT WIHRLINT - SONEScds
ON AYTILOD THLIIAYD ECOE = ROEEDONA
TLAIV B-E Bhd CiNSd ‘6D (S
EOMIATE WINSNN I0SED KNCNU
FOMEARH LHIMADYIASE DA
BuEAEE S LLIOVER  BENGS JEE
i SLOErOHS TYISEAE-HAINED MOTEAS
EAHEEEH INEWAME WTHHSOTS NEIT KT
TAINDE RUTIANNS < PONEDONN MGIIDAN

LREE

LERAL

ERE

LEBE

LN

LORE

LIRE

LETT

(111

4331

[EL 1

Bl

atwi
THET
LA6T
SLET
FLEE

FLAT
6L

L5211
L
CERE

AR TSRS Boairaie oT0-8 oMo

i f Do i

ETOESROART



TR ¥ L L ALl o
TR™¥ ERTLOTT
L LA B Qa7
aa*aat aa-qaa "t
[ S0 1] AETHEECT
“EDTWeIE EOETYR
L 1
= aNBLTERg -
[ 14811 1l
L st

" -1 -1-1 B ]
o oo gas e
oo* 0ot gas 't
ba- LA LR
oo* aa‘ gad"t
SRR

SR b AR

TTATS 548 = FESLTAFE
AWl AT
EOOEOSSTNAr £0 el

== =THEIGL ONfd---
» EIUGEATYE RO SYBg

SUNETNEY RO IATNTY OILE
SARTSIAA P04 LR STLl
SNTE S0 oTLk

SaSATE O OED L1

RO Tid THYERG [ Faa

Lot 1]

OMIE OOHE ANKEARY TTO-0 oSl
0090 0= CrarSes et



TLTEL TH FLELER

p Tl T8 TH WL LZY
=~00° 00T =007 00"
ba"LE ] hd |

LT | ] oo osE T
DETRET OO O0S
EE'TE 90 0dE et
LE TB o8 WLEET
DO*OOT OO0 0%

GE' B bOCHGETET
EE i ERg f4 TR

rrrrrrr

SETERLIERE

ST ITE'ERE
RN
[0 e
SITCER

e
SECEIRT
SRREL"Y
e

[ 001
ORISR EIE

LLTFEREN

TLTHER'ER
=ae
BTETE
SRTEET
L2
EETTER
-8RTIIR
e

DO DEL
FI"FEE TR

ANEEELD

EEDESBEFE

oD EEL "ECA

BO" WEL TEER
BoD”

bR ROE

bo' oo "
OO DO&

B0 RS TET
PO ooD T
[l R ]

0o’ one TRt
bOT BTy "OAL

- EEBE T/

ANVOES RINEATY
REGIHAERENGE &5 Medlh

GO ELTYWM OITOF EOMEATE
sSTRITD.

DIE®
ELER
DLEE
EPEL
RT3
BILE
[ LA
BOLE
oL
1011 S

TI0=8 OHLA
LEDE/S0/ 0T



0B E0T -DETDLE'LT LR T 4 SEeEL Y L - == <THIGL Qrnd---

=0T ~PRTOLETLY 00 oL LT ERTRELS e ++ SRNHAATY LHAKRFUNERNIEE TN
~LB 00T -DOOEE'Y aeTafE’s [l o L0 MO WEHER/INW - ENDIINETERNCO W 1444
=BO-0DT DB OEE'E 6a“aft e S8 eEL [N ONNE MS - SNOTINETEISSD Wil §TRE
=BRTRET  -RRTRETL'ER aa-ast e [ T - O THMENED = ENOILASTELESS wibr &TRE
snBENHEARY LHESGIEIONI Y LT s - fa—-1

HTwsE Eaiviva A MR il ot o oo

& EH S fee g g pa —STE imie o]
- e EY A TESESt e CebEfTE L
[ 34141 EEWRE RSESTE v EREANYE IENMESUNTNTEY HITYEH: = $T8-0 ot

mHI
] el EECOOEIRMON 40 sieds YA CERES e 8T



EE &R ER TSR "MIT L

EE‘ES % TEEROTOL

=00 00T =00 OSE"6E

=RRTBET  -0D'OSCTEE

L Bk 1 [T | EAR

=R DRT =RETRIT ELL

GE'ER SE'SEZ"Y

~B0*0BT ~KE°0Z

OOTOOT  O0'000°08F

=[] 1 00 aas"gat

OO°OET 00 OOECL

LR QO RES"T

LR Qi ada T LTE

0w EEEET HLE

TR &L B0 AL T

% S 114

¥ EL W0 EGECRATCT

1 TS A LS

LT3 1 L4

' RIS AT
¥

- SAEEIEIEE -

dfvEee EWIZ

& by o

BEETRCLMED

a8 a5 "8t
go ‘et ant
WETFITELL
g8 waL'L
L ar

ag’

ag*

aa"

ad s

a8 3da ' ET
T3
L
oETTETER
TETEELEER
RS TERET
CL-wrt'c

TERTERRTEDL

B ERRERL
SR RET IR
SO DEL'SE
[ S

-

-1 N

EE"EE

ba"

po-

ot

po-oiy

bo- 60D 0T
TE DOE" Y
Do OoE"¥
FL™BER'F
PROLBOTRET
L TS L B 1] ]
oo*

LA

fzoz ocse
AL

b0 TER"EEE"OT

LL* TEY "EGE"SLT
-1

po*

OO DR 'ANE
1

oo o060 'ot
aa”
j-1-B8-1-1- -] } 4
OO OO0 "DOT
PR RRE "

DO OOE "

DO” 000 "EEE
111 R TR
0D oDo fSE

PO DAE"ET

o 000 "EZR T
DO T¥E“¥EZ0L
Do oon'e

RN
ACEIng

= frariTajfL
AnAAARN

HEALMITSARDS 40 KDL

A Leh WA LENONT YO TEOE
SHEd HOTHARLNS HNI7 Efivm

BEAd ITWdEd dHAN TILLANT TENEE
SHAE KOTIZALAGHD J¥WZD EReEf

3934 JYaS EENET

SHEJ £YZ ELIVH

FADED FoIAERE

Sild SOEEEOCFETO

STTYS EE=RR

SFTYE FRLVH

CHAYE SEEEELNT

= EfRREARE OMnd ST FERIYN s

Cedl =¥ ¥ ELIWM EOMEAEN
L=t L=<

j1119
SEEE
CRER
RBEE
CRET
RLER
:]-1.14
EEER
BEEL
b1 9
I6ER
11114
E¥EL
QEEL
QTIEL
otec
oooog

OF0-8 oML
CEOZ/S0/aT



=00~ DOT ~LT ELE"IE"T LT TLY T84 T ST FRC BEE'T on* === THLOE K-

-BR°BOT -LT ELSTERETT B IR ENER F1 WREREE"T aa- = 3NKEATE OfNd " PONd TYLIIND §-Haw
-BOCOOT  -BECCIZT9EC wd - EEE TadE B0 * L1 R IpEaSAaS SETTENIEE KN oo
=HRTRRT =BT RARETRASTT ETTERNURRECT ETERERRE'T aa- WAIMI=TIT I5WHA -5EI0EI 18R] B-3 QRET
sa AN OGS DO TWSDOND B-Na= noaac

‘R 38T S LAY B34 Ida8%0 [ S

L] avi-a LeEwEn Lo o
- SHERIAAET - CEDEJOL/ B - CEQESNISFE
ERICT ATNedS ANSTATE # ¢ ECBILATE (SHOCDOHS TELTOND @edss 0500 OEng

AWIZ
T oy HERGACEFIR0D 40 Bmil L L L TESE Sa/an



YRR BE- ALY po-
"R SETEER LT oE
B OEE OB DDRE'E B
ST BT L
EE" i T UEE -0
o¥ca S5 [
TRt SRTE'E -
S8 0RT  BDCeEE AT b
SO BET  BETETE'EL oe-
1158 LR L]
FI-®OT DD OEE'S oo
5" 18 #5° LEE 1]
e PR LBE'E oo
BEHTODT  GOTOOL =]
Lk o ] O LET'F e
bE"Ed (] -1 - ] oo*
DO DOT DD GDT'E 1.
WO RE FETRERE oo”
R R OO SEER e’
0o GOT ] R ] - (1] 0
BT 16 FECONTLHE oo*
BOTONT  BOCOORTEE oo”
BT BE L1 LR ] oo’
e ] ] 00 GBS GE oo’
Qi 6B FEOETETTIT Bg’
ot Td LA 99T oo*
EX"GR BETELL'ET on-
L -1h S 1 L
L R R T R oo’
ET"WIT  ~E0° WL 6 oa-
TH GETHTTR L1
LLtid LA ETRE aa*
ELw LEEWE T ao*
4 g T AL ¥IETE o’
Eitid W TLHE ST ALY
G089t  da 0oLy ao*
GQTART A AAECST L
o aa it aa-
(T 1 [L RLC 8% e’
Ed" kL [E L hld -5
44 ¥ - el T aa*
LY 5R L2 010 ] aa-
5" R |-
T LL 8- LLC ' aa”
o et | TR TRELE ga”
R TETENR N LN
EEUEL [as T4 o 14 - &
“ M IV Elay TR .y
L] [y oo el a ] iy

- LMEWLEVERT -

ERIET ERIL

B BindE

DO ORT
T O0E"ET
oo’

oo
SETE¥YTES

~00° 08T

FEOERE

-} B

Bl *
BEEIL

o0 a0%
on-

E¥'Ti

DO ELETE
oo *

9T RALC'S
by’
-1

oo ELN's
S LFET
[ B
BLTLET'E
ag’

ag*
ETECELT
an ik
Creans'E
-3
LAt

T ESE
ae-

-

M -TET'E
EETRRLR
BLoRRE'ER
FLOLER
TETRET'T
EL"#E
CE-OTR'ET
EEDRE'R
EETRETE
SL EpE"SEL

a0 08T sateat'y
A HIT W SRR R
an* 8" eha "E
ag’ e e e
ag’ B e E
CTA 0 R
ag’ " eEE'E
] -5
oo’ 23 aTE'Ce
a9 @At L L-1- -
oa- a3 esa'e
4T TET -]
an L -
aa- ERTERE
&5 TAT RTEEE R
aa*- [ 0-10 R
aa- L2 4
TL"RT RTREEE
garasL RTREETTY
aa* bi- EEC'E
AT TER'T 0D B0 OB
g 2R DN "SR
ag-a4 po- oo s
ATELE' Y BooDD 'ER
-ER"4S BEBOSTET
3Ly OO0 D0S'T
22T LEE SRTDRETRT
- PR REE
- o000 "%
(9 S U Y Qe Eog e
FEOEEL PR oEeTE
3" LiE L5
- Oo°0oo°E
ERTVER aorpgaTe
TE"EME DooBE"E
b 0o ooz ¥
= oo’ aeg st
CO-TEL'E o0 pos e
- QRTEER "L
ER-iHD "R 0o0¢ 00 ‘e
oo- 1R J= [ B 4
ER"RE gotagaTe
EC"#E oo’ Gdw
BE"ETE'E 00" ERT"H@
BETERIE'E LRk B
BERETTE LR L R 3
TO LEE"¥Y¥ 0" 91 '%19
LAl
LI LR

fZOZ 0L 6 = TEQESTOSL
LS THALTENEAEE
HEADHCEETRCS 40 a0t

CEOE TVEENSN SEEILLIONESN
Lisbl Lo ]

oTo-§ oRng
CEOE/S50,/8T



BB & EE ELR'LBE'T LETRRETL BZ TOL"LE® EETLTAELT SO OER'ECR'E # KROTIMNEIOTHTHY THEESS &

o TE FL-EIC'LY -1y EOEERTEST L] PEOERLTERT BLiASCH TELTAVG LD e
THOLE BLTEETETRLE ZT ELL'E og* aa- bb - obb e ELIAM0HA EWdADM JTTENA SHROTEYA SLTR
oo‘oot oot oootot -1 [ L BETOED'ET AHVHT HOTIMADGRY A0WTWA i 38 )
DO~ OE DO ooD'tT oo* ao‘aaa"t -3 ada "t bE- S0 E BEEGD ESEOGIEST LEEnT SIS
=BOTBHBT =WETEE ag* w132 f oo ] bo” ONTITd EINT 0Jd SETLTYNNS =5 73
PETHRT  RTERTET ag’ aa” % oD ERRCET HOO ORI ONCE TRMW KD OT3T- LRI BEFR
DO OOT  DOCoOO0"IZET agt ag* ad Do bbb "IET HEO Odd OKid DN KR GE00-"EEd LLoE
TH" %L RETE0E "D oa’ EOCRTEIEE [ < 5 A Do oEr'en MO ALTTIONS S Weals of 9TdE-"INT TLEE
14814 EO"GIT 5 aar FEETEYT SETEEE' Y R ] DT RLTTIONG RMCG O QTS T-"HIEd DLRE
poopt o0t odd"as - a9’ =" LA -1 -1 Bt WONOAT - DSt (51 1]
DO-OO0T  Do-OSZ“ck ag- ag* = oo oSE Lt 0 EoEwD -iSwEwisT 111
DOTORT  DOTOQOTSR gar [ o OD* Don*SE KOO WL {240 » ZSEELINT *HEE
-gafaet -giwEtCT ad" LMD j ] ba’ B EESEEERNGS- - L8 NIV LEE¥
=00°00T =36 9Lt aa- 4 CBLE ¥ BLE oo’ WD SWMOC 7 SHENE- oS HIVH PEGY
“H0'00T  -~HQ"Ted°T - FTTERT EETENE g’ TR WO SRS LETELE MIvH GEEW
g0 9dt a4 -gddst g [N oo og° 000 "9% SEOTATES CREIOYWELEGS BOSEYE DEGY
0074t =2a7ast 2% ST EEE oo” oo’ ROISWILIOGLLY TR IR REEY
gd2eT  aatddE =2 oL- oo® oo gos SIAINED BAOD OullaOT DTEILETH GEE®
G T GdTEEE'C ] e ag’ LI LT S0 afd MOOE ALASD MGl FHEH RIdY
04 00T 00" 04d ' od [N oo’ oo* ad° 0ad o4 EOIIVIBSOELSY. 6 W'E IM EICY
29799T ST EmEEE =B oo” on” 108 1.5 & TR CNCETHLCE TEE+
- [ HH] OEEYR'T g’ L1 MOIAvIEddEENY '3'd'd'4 GEdw
BLoLL ;5 k4 R 1] EE‘DRE'T | a1 ad 35" L THEINATS IEWHIE JIWTO ATEW
Hivele f = ] A AR ey NOLLATHIEED [ Eha
1 [=r -t D EINHERLINE [ &5 3F ] Fi-rcival SETOCE W
- AMEMIEYERD - fToL ot - EEREfTafL
&EIET HHTL AR SRS ICURS R QH TVHRERD BIANLIOMAAXE GTS-9 e

-1 a4 B EcE SRRl 40 Medl Rtk Lol CEatS S eT



B0 BaT 58" mas
«00° 00T =05 4TT"OZ
61" 0% S TR
oo* oo*
QE°EET QO G T
oe BT L] B
GOYOBT  OO0°00S°R
AR aat ARTRARSTE
1Rl 00 000 "SE
~00° 00T  -iE°¥EICR
6" ER BRTETET
peted L0 ¥E0°T
e T Ti'm
BT DE EE'LB§"EE
oo opt  o0toon's
TR ELTROE'E
LR EE'S@80"¥
B0 Le 10" LLB KT
Qo ot a0 oRe s
DE'ER Ed'#E¥ L
B0 LR Laa-H1 -1 3
OOTOOT OO 000°E
“EE'ER TR GRT T
EE' T8 L0 EEA i
pO*OOT  DOCooDtE
Qo agt AR RRe T
Ll LT HEL
ootoot 00T QOEST
QR RaET AR AR TS
go‘aat oa‘aaa‘at
Qo oot oo ggact
HE"RW Lo a4
LR} Ba'ada "t
TLCLE LT T
3 1 EEUMEECT
e G4 TAEE"HT
Lt FLOAAETE

F A+ [ TR

“FRTORT =BT AY

IX'ER 0o E9T'L

[ {44 GLTETH

6919 L LTS | R
BEsoR
L L@ E5T
BE 1w "Ed
C¥ LL¥'TL
BT HEE"THE

HTWW 2T

L Gl MR LR

= LNAWIYYIRD -

SI°ET EMLL

T TN

ag* -§8"¥iL oo* oo*

oy’ FULTT SR ba" an’

ag’ SToke'C i esn'c DO BZT S
og- 58 ETT 0D DEDETT OO 0D "ATT
an’ [ L-h oo oo gog “Ew
-1 L Do- oo oon &
on* - bo” b BGas"a
ag’ ag- eEe ] 4
g’ ag- b OO Dob "EE
¥ AL LE-EE'T FETETE'T LN

ag’ (A ] BECEST 0o poo "t
oo’ LE EHE DO BEE T
TL830°L YIOHE T FETETE'E LN R 1
og* LLEEM'E ET DEE'T OO Do "
oo- [T po” TR TR
ag’ TETERT ~ER"SET o o0 "8
ag’ | Ll FEOTRE OO DEZ 'R
LA ) RRTHEED ES"TER'T L1103
ag’ aa- pE- OO Do0 "8
ag’ FEC 94 oo- 0o opon “g
oo* SCCFL'ET LEEEFE TR T 1]
ag’ anr -1 oo ooo "9
Ed 8EC LT L e ] E1°ERF'S 00" DO0 *8T
oo* ERTRE'T B GRE OO OOE "6T
og’ ae" bR bh'oabrE
ag’ - (] oo ooo "t
og* CE-TAE 11} TR TR 4
o’ L -1 oo oo% "t
ag’ b oo 0o-ooo s
o’ - oo” Gl oot et
e’ L -1 poooo"t
ag’ iCveL'1 L Ll 4 T 0O DOE“TT
o’ et oo” on-oon T
Qe EITRIR bR FIY o o0 "y
oo’ EI°5F EE'Te oo oos "2
ag* SE-LLE'E EB ¥OE'T OO 000 fog
LR 5] PL-EEE'T DE" &L 0o 000 "L
=L 10 SRR BE okt oo‘oog "L
a4’ i 4 FT°ET oo”

00 TIL T BaTREL'E EB"HOL'E oo SLzeT
ag’ SETIFE FE‘ T8 0o-Boz ‘g
aa- BTEL'T {3 1 14 LL 0
aa’ R -l 1] [l ]
ag* L3~ TeR'CL FROOETOE OO GEE "aEE
ao- TLTCEL'ST TE'LER'S o TIE "L
ag’ EETERTDE B0 ODR'S 0o-ET3'EE
ag* 3l CELYERE EE TR 'EE 00 OLL"TEE"T
vy Sy INNOWY
iy g e a=2=3 SN LAGENE

EZ0T/0E/ S * EEOESTONE
L L B E R LR+
IEGOE0NTENDE 40 KMOL

ALTTIONS CSINEIWEL B4 -RWLlhd ' dvs
BFSIHEA BT TS -awiino - @) TZDE
ATEET AoCHES 5 TROE-LEFHRLNT
JEYET FIOIERA B TEOE-TWaIaNTHE
LN IOOE oS FIITHRS

SRANSANT LeWED LSEAWE AVaHDIH Ml
LG SLlda HOTEE LFTEW HOO
SCIN R 500 ECOEOEERRIT
WOl 400 ¥ HIIK £S0HE
BEEERANE SMIEYD DOYDE HI SMes
TIDOIDE BHTATEC/ROCINDOIE TR
@ THIWAEhET5 ! SobaE 24 TeatE / hg

WD O RAEREEE

ASHAAET @S SIWERd SNDGNYH
HARGE GO -TIRlATE EUVIRIMTYH
XN EANNSEN ROTLWLID - RIDWTR FRELD
TEXE RANARTE MOIIWIIDTELIETE B4

SERTHSTRLN % S50 TIHE
SIENTHACHAAY TWCOT BS-JI008 TTUKS
ELTWNLIHOO " IRTYE T BRIV 4150
FEEO FAEENOIIYLE

SEITLLOE EOILED

TR WYL SRR RTIOWN NN

EEIENT RO

ST LA

IWSEE] NS TERrEANE

EDO¥WE T SETEYTEE

O TERNED DEROLLTOHRANE
L1 o i B

QI0-B OMfl
tzZOrfEn 0T



EIRNTYT LHnoenr LHnoR RO RARILADSSAE [EEay
CHEARANHRNT BIEEHGIES AMEEETLD IEooTR HACEH
FEESfBL/E - REDEMTONL
AHTL AEGAANS SELIONALSES AR TERED SdnLICEa IHE
b ] BRORDHERHDC A0 HEOL =009018= = EREE/EH/DT



ool (TR EL RIS ]
=00700T =3 AEET
-90'G8T ~TE"NE
L G SEL"'®
ag- -

|t 1 SL-LEE'E
EXTHL TETLETEE
L
(s ERCRiE'T
a3 09T e HHOTIE
8097E3T SRTSBD'T
LERFS ¥EORRE
Fa-EL ER-ETETED
S-ET  DBCOOO"R
FUTLE FRORET T
i ] DU LRE'S
L2 ] LETLEE"E
058 BETRETE
14 5 73 454 1 B8]
BETTL TETLERTY
PECERT  BRTEOOTT
SO ¥E FEEZR"H
PO EE ET"%ET
EF°EL boToRDTER
SE“ 41 bE HEL"T
[ 4.4 4] 29°CSFAT
FE DL OETRRE"E
DUTHRT R HOE
S0°TE [ E 5 R
L5 11 TT 611
HILD BEEIE L
|4 T8 TE LI 6T
[1 ) T3 AR LTERE
Ti gL [Tt B
" KW et

Ll

- LFWITYANT -
LA 2 FHIZ

1 F oo o

8- %08 'LE
.-
g
s
s
ba"
Do
-
-1-H
bo*
oo*
bat
S0 ENETS
oo*
bo*
-]
oo*
g’
oot
oo ooa T
-1
ag’
oo*
00T aLE "L
ad' dad"a
udTdd s
aar
ag”
aa-
aar
LN
ag-
(Lo
g

W¥ECE"SEE
SE"HEC'T
EE T

BE EEE"S
oo- OO0 ey
SE'BLR

Ey EORTE
oo”

oo het
-

oo*
FTORLY
LS4 115
ag*
BLTHLTZ
LR -15 B
L ETC
L1081 1
LriLtt

ar e
ag’
AL
LE°ST

ag*
L -
LM et
SLETET
pre

F

Lo
EE“FSLCE
LLGED'H
WEOFERT L
EG-LEL "BET

a=3~&

EE LEE WAL -l fa bt
po* ag*-
|11 aa-
bETEREL"S - -1
00" goo ey [
L GRE [
BT @O L L W
oo* 0
BaTaeT SnTREE'Y
ag- [ 4
oo* [0
LATATE B BB
To-wds DEBRE'RE
ag* Do oDo'R
ST LLW'T Do~ ODD'ET
GRTRTRTY BETRRE'R
S 114 Lo OEE'H
as- oDt DOE'E
LTt Do oob "ot
TL 0 DO ODE"S
ae" DETERR'T
[Ehat oo GoE's
LYW Do ooz
[~ 00000 *og
SROTERE bETEOETIT
1 e ] ] oo oo "s¥
ETETR ooTooREe
- Gu ' uaE
[ o0 goa "t
Ll on-owe
L LBE'S g ddd "ol
DL EED°E LR S 5+
ERFIRE 0 TERR T
B ERE"EE o0 L5 TEY
LIENOE
SHANELD =l =t
fzaffoi/é - CEdEfafL

EiRES AL ICHEL
HEGCHOISAMOS 40 mdd

» LMERIHVER] Huld

EOTEL ETTEE - AVILO0 TELIAYD
SEITIL EINT WL SERILTMHRA
EPWET EOEl ENIS TEOT-IBEMALINT
EEYET LEEL THId TE0E-"THaAIINTHA
EFWET EfEl EHIf FIOE-lEEYALNT
EFYET EXTEL EHId STOZ~TEaIdKTHa
HOLINOINOE JTIENA
FEITLATHEANE S FAND

EEIINERE SELTLAGS HEMLG
THALL

EITINKETEL - 545D

RMIVHS BT TISEELA

EXELL

IID ONY ENCTOSEYE

GHENIWES
IENWRINT / SO IR TES
FINATN DERIIR0E

ASHVMELNTYW DI TTION

TECEEN

i TVEEARD PRRLLIONAANE
[rald Joge 20

a6
EE5E
12
]

431
STEs
(213
ORLY
SELE
pECY
DELY
DICY
18 L]
DEER
bERE
DT¥
EEEY
bEEY
D¥E¥
RERY
LEEW
LEd ]
PIEY
ETL%
1w
DIE¥
PLE®
TIZ¥
TIE®
atEw
ooty
ABEET

aTa-3 od
oz fEafot



L i ] EESES'IFE'T
1 ] DO~ FET'E
BETBET  DDCODBDVEET
BECBOT  DEURDR'ES
DO GOT OO 00D "SOT
BOTBOT  GDTODDDE
PECET O BODTEOT
[ .14 R R
=p0TOOT ~E¥TER
DOTBET  DOTDOD'E
Ll L LRTARPETT
GBI TR [ b4 ] 4
ERRE PEOTALTR
Th a8 B CESE LT
to'L L HLTTE
|+ 411 9 EIZ o8
AT°TH BLTAITAST
[ [l 1 S T I 1 Bl R
BLtOE &L TER S
A5G4 W ELETET
ad'maT ooto0f't
28708T  2QToRa’y
[ [t GE"ELE"E
ag aaT  ad-earir
Ji-0 s THEL
ECTF Er- Il
Mt eetEdaet
R 3 RER'E
Ei" LS SET ALY
BLTEL LT
ERTEET SETENE
5t ] B ER
BLEL LE-DLE'LT
o T3 ELCTHE'EE
L BE ECE"LEE
WiV BTl
L
- LifhciAdadd -
[ 14k 44 AMLL
T RIWA

F%°TRL"EST
DO 99E"0FT
]

e’

1]

oo”

g’

oo oss
1]

oo’

L

EF SR T
agr

g’

aa’
oo-gaa st
aa°

ag’

aix-

anr

[+ L 3

as"

-

-

e

[

at

(-2

-

0"

EE

Bo~

1]

bo”

be-

EE'EPACTAT
aa’

aa*

-1-

]

aa*

Ba-

aa-

TEOEE

ae”
[E"E5F
THUSL'S
R ECE
TETTERTH
% ¥EE
~ER"SEE
TETHE'BE
E-N
ETEEE
ER"FEE'E
oo

po"
DE'LEE
L
BRTERT

ES REE"E
LN
PETELE
SL'TETT
t0-s0T
oo

T# @09 "oz
to-oze’s
287ILTR
A5 L9 "E6

EETRLETER
[

aa"

a8"

i

i

e

e
EEFEE
it

2T ELE

L T 4
oon”
BETIELCE
FECOEET
no*
ERCRITET
a8

S8 OZE
BR"ESE"T
oo’

oo-

Ba ERT
oo
G095

La et
ga*

ELT T
WLTETS
[a-

aa’

| L | |
BT D& T
WETELLTE
55§58 °TL

LEDESOEfE

SETEFTILTL Y
[ T
b EET
0 RER TR
[-1-R-1 -
1l 2R ]
RN R )
-1l -1 RE
DO”

DO~ GDD &
bE DRE'T
Do oSE " TH
OO OO0 T L
DECRAT'ER
DO EERE"E
Do oooootT
00°00E“EET
GO hod"ELT
oo‘osD®e
GETHRRTET
o0° 008"t
ao-ogoT@
aatgoL
ga-aoziz
AaRsL"E
ga-pdm*c
ag gaa*at
aa-goats
L0
ga-aow

e et

a4 $4L" €
g THTCE
SR RLEC AT
-

- EEDESTOSL

ATHHOS IELLIOMESNG
HODRETREENDD 4D WAL

» LHAHLAYARD [RF4CF
MlOALE aonk 359E €
BRTAWA INWELS RO

BHIAMA BIT] ROWEN DR
L] GRTNN 0O EOOEIT
NTHMEOLS ONY SHIWWLY RACHES 190

ENTTAANS /AOESAN MRIVH WEOLE
SHITIA EINT ¥0J4 SETSTYSRL

ETTTTETERERE

ROTLATESSED

=0 AT

ESCY
TEEH
£ 114 ]
HFES
LEER
SRER
L34 ]
DRER
DEER
SEi®
OgLE
OILE
ATL®
a9sE
1443
aTE®
9%
aarE
e
e
ATeR
g9
asie
awvlE
ATCE

L8]
ETEW
i
HiLH
ETER
TILR
anEw

SSECY

| et
B

NI THRARED SWLLICSTANE STo-§ SR

EEDESSR/DT



il | M RILUETD
“HETART  <LL'i
aa'8aT A& 95C
maTLE ¥aCTRD
LETEN ERTEEE

-1 I - S - - -
Ii-zd SEOTEL'E
Qa3 @t 2RSSR

[ 448 1 S
L [T b "3
STo3L L LER'E
0334T BB
L] i
TEOLL ST
T e LR
oW i3 e
LT T ] OIS LTR
TE°bF S EFE'T
SRTeat  SDTOIE'T
080T DD DOk
L1 LB DIE'E
] o gl

[ o] DL WEL'T
SR LE DI ERY
SR 0BT LU EET
BOOEL CL EDE'RT
ET &8 DE- DELE
11 Y LS HERTE
EL" 88 L L P ]
P HIWHEHE ATV

u

r INEMIAY&ED =
BE:IET AL

51 e

o ¥I BLE'LE
L bk

a8 bE-

[ YRR
LN BN BED T
o -1

[ FLOBLT
BE- Do-

BE- EN°ESE
[N it 1
oo P CET"T
T bo”

- pEEER
no- £L°TEE
L BECBST
BE” B TET
] D% ZRT
BE” §¥ LEE
- oo

op* no*

1 EF EST
e oo E0zz
oo- DE-EPZ T
oo’ BTl
an’ oo’

oo* LI PLE"D
oo’ oL Tam
n’ [ 811 )
oo’ HCEIOTTT
LHIC L

TE" %8R 0T
Lk

o]}

EZ" X

L L
oo’

LT

oa-

B 9TE
oo*

aa*-

BT LEE'T
B4 ENE
FROGLT
oL EIT'E

FESESO0S§

00" B¥L BT
e’
oot

Qo oaw

A ade "R
aa'gda's
aa-aac’'s
RETRAF
aa'asee
a3 8aa'tc
00-008 "%
QETads

45 9q4'te
a0 0as'T
@iz a4
ag-aae 't
gaTaae's
QG e4d 't
a3 098 'T
[-L
GEELRH'T
' E
L
[

[ 14
23 TR
SRR R
R eEL'S
ST ERT R

- [ERESTOSE

LS TR IONELZNE
POOOBEGUSENOC S0 HHAL

[1}-] £
OTEY
SiLk
arLE
QELY
CLES
arsr

QEEe
atss
oTEr
| 114
aTH
SSLF
agie
awiw
ATTE
LW
STLCF
¥LOW
[§44]
f 443
aTiw
YLER
fata]
TITH
anEe

[-L- 444

NI THMRNGT GAMLLIONEATE 250 -0 o

w0300

CESE &0/ 0T



STER ]l T R
DETDOT  DOCETE
494 | L

TE OB DETELE'E
DETBAT OO ESE

L 3 T e pLLT
11 & TS LLRFY LR
DO OOT OO oOo°w
1158 T BECLEETET
OE'BOT  OUTTRETTIT
po‘oot o0 CdETLL
~00'ODT  ~0OTERECAT
po'ooT o' 0SETEE
oo o0t 0O 00008
=007 0BT ~TLTLS
-00'08T -¥E E0T°4
[T LT B
=IR°E =30 wEE
g’ ang’

go* 0T 00-0dd'ET
GETERT  @9TRAT

LL it g qdn'e
50k dL-E¥E'E
i [} T
T EL &R

G T adTiaR'R
bt It L& ' E
§EOFE (1% 10 ]
(31 FECERRT
¥E-EN POCLEERE
SRR SLTEER
5 EE ER"LUD'E
BioEE 5 -1 A6 4
¥ECER BLTETR'E
(4 DEERE'Y
BETTE ERCELL

(1 % EF°LUIE

i ¥ #L H0E

LT G DE EHIF'E
EE D& BTTERETH
ES“ES PLOTEETET
EL7ER PETIET'E
(1913 [0 211
fE"8a BOCESETSY
Et ee E0°TEE"ET
| |5 13 BETTERIDE
ES"dd GE TR TISE
- KTV T

Ll

= INEMCEMART =
STAET FWIL
&t S

“aaa'n

i T
"RCEEY

1]
“Hin
"ERE

‘AT
‘gee L

L
ac”
Ly
AT
@

aT THE
Ll TR
L1
FLOTRLYL
@

34
EEE'LT
b

e
RLOER
FETEETT
SE"OOO"S
[l 2
BRTRER’T
BB~

+1:
SETERR"E
1T PEE
FROEET
ERED
R’
EB"BOY
TZE¥E"T
#5065
EETETR"S
OO0 " Z%L
BT 95671
E5'TLT W
L L
a%'al
L3°0TF
ETTEAT
SE'THE
au-ans
Y
STEELER
L
£T7E
TELLT Y
L't
EOarlE
L "Wk S0

TET LR
-1 3 4]

ag-
garans s
a0 oSt
e 1]
LA 1
ag’

GL THE
WEOTOL
TL"ETE
AL L
33" e
SUTaLE"T
i b |
FROERT
LA 5]
FLTWELD
ERTER
SETRE
S CEE
e
{20k - -l
ERTRER
L1

TE LR ¥
LA BLE'T
EE"TRL'T
SE“WER'FE

EEOE/BE/E

b HEE"T
DO OEY
-1 -] T

DO ¥EL FE
DO EEY

oo HEE"E
DETRRETRE
Do oo
Do* ERE "OL
DO TRECTT
b f9E LT
oo*

GO ESE"TE
o0 ooo “of
oo”

aa’

oo oo “ss
R TL I T
1Rl -1 Bl B 4
goado’eT
@@ aat
11
og‘da%'E
[ [ o T e 4
aaraesty
adEed N
44" #aL"E
aa-gaa'eT
[0
S0 ok
[
-
o BEk'BE
o eEEE
[
- bEE'T
S2TDER

b3 bof

[ 10
P2 EDR'Y
DO oob " IE
bETOOE'E
bE " BIE
LR L]
DO EELTHT
bR ERLTRE
bo‘ 810 LEE

= FEOE/TfL

LEWEEiE HENLTOARAKE
HEGOHGHBARSE 40 KoL

EOTTIAYE O Wi - WL v

G AT BEEE As-AVRLGO"
AnS FOIE AM-RWLLONCOND
RRSEL ] EetE DeSSIXE TEODE-'1MI
(ST O] S FEICREE TEOZ- MINA
ERITIA EIWT Wod ERILTVIERA

N VoL L8rEH ELVAS ELLMEY dOTWNS
IN SLOEONNES TYIORSS-ERLNES WOINNE
EEDTEL SOI10WOEE WLTERN
EECES EEEATTIEN BRI HEINWY
EOIAWANOLSHYEL U~III WILLL
EDMVITTEHGD IV
ELIWERL NG LA THOENNS / Eang
OHINTWAL THAWEL

SEILIVHETEL = A0

" LUTVR AN TVERN BTOTHRA

BHALL

L4/ ENIT0EYD

IRMEEIHT  ERCHITTEL

EREm

3, Tl A

FUIVANY DENRITROE

HVEAINIYE SCrnodn

ENMEINTYN ENICTIINGE

gt e ]

ol TR STEOL DONEA
sO0RD T

SHEE
{84

G
CFEF

SHEY
({11
S5
dns53
L]
S9Ta
0sTH
L E 11
iTtE
aaEs
ThEE
THE¥
arEd
SEEW
atEy
oRLE
FOLY
giLw
SELY
GTLE
A5ER
&rir
ITER
SERE
STEF
TR
SEEE
[ {4 3
ELis
VELH
FEER
YEGE
FIEH
ETER
DIEH
¥IZ%
EiEk
TiTH
oIzt
DoTR
BOTRT

rrrrr

oTo-8 oNna
fzoz /e T



[ {0 TR A 1 4 CE ATL CL FOLAE'TAT ELTEEESS DO ATE"LIE P WEIRED WOIEER -

oo ¥EE -1 -1-3s [ 00" ¥56 ~«THLOL HENE--

b’ ¥55 og’ ag* LN TR 1] SEITIANE §-IIT (1111
LB -1 B s og* LOTEAN FOFEL Do LNE"E ==THLOL A5§--

EE"PEET an- L E%E S0°¥ET DO LRE°E JATHEHIIEY - BLTAENIE CT4ME Em-10T EREW
E¥ ETH @’ 5 cfa'c LE" DO OO OGE "8 - PELOE S -

L A4 ] *[: Iy LA s L5 CEE po‘odm’T EINMUNENT « BITAANAR T4E §-151 C¥EY
[ g’ 10 -3 TR ] -~TEIOL WS-~

[-1- 8] o oo’ aa- == L4 4 WLNA - HOTININC 3ol Tl S¥ER
R ] 8 oo- ag- -0 [l 1o LN -A LTINS ok d-152 4 71]
ET #RT% o’ b1 as [ OO bE —*TLOL ==

LR 0-1- B g’ [ [N L 1] R HASNT EEACTINE -HDI INDECIFSWEL " Tos L1 T
BT #9T°Z oo TH ST b 0D 'O0SE "% THAES d-1EE 4743

ATV LHT N LRI Lifitesd SO IA TR By
OHYNTRISHANT ATNERNS B=f=R SHEHHID Imoang WOCWH
LHIRIAEAAT - EEEESOE e = CEDESTO/L
HWLL AESRTE SdLTAONEANE NS TS SIS IONESYE OTO-§ HILE

BOWa EOOTEORTRNAD A0 Hadl DI TS EEBESSO/0T



@900 DD DDETSET
FETEL DY DER ISR
E& EERERTE
=ERTERT ~F1ER

3 08t ob DOOTSET
=BT EBAT =L EOE
EL°EL E§'Gab"s
E5ER ETI FRE'E
L] GEEREEE
ER°RL 11 Te8'ET
e EF DeR'E
ST DDTOERTET
o] bEBE'E
S4CLL DO ELD "SE
CE-TH FREER'T
Ly T4 ESELE
~CE“EC ~GOTOO0'T
EL°LE BETERLLTR
EE“5d SL EH0"E1
LE"TR EC GRE 0%
SETRET bR DODTE
[t | o T1Y
{55l 1) N1 WAL
LETDE POETE"R
BLTHOT DETDOD'T
¥i Ed bl TER "
eCeeT obtopd
EE-EL LE"CZR'R
SRR L RLRET
B0 TE fen"IK
ERE EL %ET™R
EL 1% THERRTER
L BL BTN
[ 2 ] DECTERT
P RE 16 TiE

DO GOT  OO0°O0E™T
LR R PRI

T8 Ee LT Ot "t
g1 s BE TER"L
LD HE BECEOE T
EE° LB BE'ETL"T
bo oot  00'ooE
EE°IE TE O&T

Ei BB (R TS 1
S0°En ¥ ELE"OT
PCER BO " ®ET AT
TL TR B RLOTOTE

" RIVEY, HOFTE
1 OHUREOENTY

- iRENLERD -

EXizT ENIL

) Arva

oo”
og’
#EEWNTEE
g
fat
oot
oo*
oo’
bE’
-1 N
oo*
LN
LN
DO ERRTS
oot
]
oo
L
og*
oo’
ga’
L
oo*
LN
oo’
-1
oot
og*
Qg
ag*
oot
GO STETE
ao*
g’
g’
-1l
L
aa*
ao*
g’
g’
aa*
g’
gt
gg*
L&
aa-

oa-
QR ERTIATE
Lt ate"EL
ET &1

g’
LTFRS
BCELE"T
T RIT T
LR S
LR [ E 0+
LETEET
i’

LD E ]

oo Loy
AT TET
LTSRS
oo oga ¥
BL'GEE L
b+ 21
LR -
Qi

o5 mw
UEET
O RAS
Qa’
nziawd
] e
089494t
SEUTELE
dL'azay
4E'5dA

df Ter "y
TEWML'E
LA |1
LT B

aa”

594

(1 B 143
S0°EE

LT L1
TE 80
Qe”

L1 A

LT 'S
8T O0IL'T
SEELML
a0 €ae Ly

o DO DOR'EYT
1M SIE ] B ] R TN ]
[ 1 T Tt 0O~ 00D " oot
EL"SE L
ag- DO OO0 EET
5T 1N
AL TL oo ooo'e
BETLFT phTBOE®
] DO BOE"SE
TSI OO OO0 " ST
ag- ot pREtE
-} DO OER"ET
@ oo~ ooD e
A TRty BETROD'ER
WETET bE"bob'E
TL0%E"S DO 000 ER
an” bRTRODTE
L] bbb boo"ot
LT TEL oo pootoE
SEERE'S bh ooo'od
G- Do 000 E
as” DOTDOR
TE T Do LSE
a8 -0 B )
- po oot
2950 oo oD e
" <L 1
| T DO GG R
SiHe4 oo*ooo st
MEELTE DOTDOR'LE
LETHEL bh bob'e
T4 'CC DO- 00D 5
BETERETD DEBOGE'L
L 0k bo*ooE"z
[ OO~ O&E
- phrBeEt
[ 19 oo ooY
"LETERL ooTooR't
EE-Eet DoTooET
R oo gan’s
B oocozE*z
== LR 1]
[ 5B 1 oo-s0£
TL-ETE"T oo TEO LY
e ElE OOERETET
¥ fct't oo-L99"ET
FITERE'ET 00T ¥R "LGE
AN
REL oy 1 e LEPONG
FREOESOE/E - CEOE/TE/L

AMGENE HNLTOIE
VDNDECHERKDD A Kml

SETGAN TTEILTIVE - ANTANG dvD L E1 4]
"ALEEY WALHL KOSMINC- KNI S¥D BIEE
EHOTIMACHEN WD REMLIS- KWLLNG d¥D LTES
GNIIId BT dfd STLLTYSES DNES
BLGDD RINWHALALIWE §-% (114
BEEMEAXE BELOHITON ZEr LIEY
FREKASNA DNIIWKESD 10480 A= PRER
BELLIILLA 1k 1EHHLE dmoom EFEY
SEILTIILN WHINTHL KOS L 1T
IAANSYSWLLITILLA OIS NT4SWTTIO™ (11
"dEE BANEBEY KOEROM 104HT AMMCOCHD CHEF
SOLISTALENDD WH¥d S00= LFLLG " Y0 PEEY
HOdES TLETLTERR HODEDASRRLS 45T 414
ArSamEmOs DSEE
EHHALTAMEAKE ERLLTW0D P LL 11147
FHINVAHL LHCTHRARES T S¥E¥
BIWNY ATHEWWIGHDE $InDE moc-ZEr *ELY
SWYHO0WA DTLETELY 411
BHWHEGHA TWIDEdS THET
WHB0EA KOLINOOON SWELYIL LEr {11
ELTWHES f SEOTLA T RS, 30 PIEE
EHIATYEL/ TEAYEL D¥Lw
BILivrin: - S48 BELY
" LNTWW/ CUTWaEY FIIas LT
SIS bDELY
TG ANE YD g4

ERTELATES O¥aE

HMCEATTEL DEGY

TR bEST

SIELOETE DISY

SETVARY INRTOlE 1141

' LHTWH LA GTRATT K ETHS
ENOOELNTYN RETITING LT
TG S9C%

BiXAYE DECY

EiTiadns snoameTmoSIH 174 ]
AU S0 BELE
BHTHESTS /oo e | Fi4 3

AT T DL s D PIEE

SONINSINGNG 3 4IR0E TTeHE L it
BEOWUTHOS " LHTWH ¥ BREWET" Si05E Etie
SAITA4ANS EOTLED oIge

(MINGT Yol LRFRACTAREEAE wiZH
BHHCNSNT TR TS EIZ¥

LAENEEISEE TIE®
(¥2TA] FFENE TIOHAvE DIE¥

EREMN oY SETEYTIYE oHTH

& BOIINEOEE % FIOd « BHEWT

frtabtat by =l da) Bl

HOO

DO TEED ST IONEE 010-8 and
B30 EI0Z/E0/0T



LH L L sac " wad’c L 1 EY CER"LEY ES°LEDTIOR Oo0"®EF"ALT"E s BOTINEECEY ¥ BHHNd

40" eeT  0QtoRgtE Ll ae” Ber 101 B “dIE ESVOSMMAL T EIHL EEg ]
ol 1B |- “Q0 " ET6"TT LT R 6 -h bo* a0 asL"T¥ J00¥ DNTTTIONE RILBETIID Tiid
-LtET -00 “otd ‘ot a0 IiE ' eE oo oo* a0 " aan “Ew LD PERALIE HDSOEbEEERAD agfts
0o0*gaT 007000 9T ae” BE” bE” T Haa Tt EISIYE ESI0H SHOWWTIS EIT3
GETHAT  adtdadtat ae’ [ oo- oa‘oan ot SETVENAT WOV 18 LOPSd - JWLLn £ BELH
TR HIEWTYR S LN Hovety ) ROLLATHISED ooy

L i A i AlenEESnaNE a-i-x LHNWENS LanonE et ]
r LEEMOYARD - REGESOL/E = EGESWASL
ST THID L P e TR N TYHEMES SHUNLTONSEYE OTO0«# o8

&2 nod IIENCECAEERGT A0 a0l Lkl L ] TEAE/9408%



L Lo P2 B CTIE RS I3 ETL ST EF LER"RHT EETDELTLE 0o0° TER "ERE
-00°00T  -d6° &% i TEE (1814 og*
poTo00T 00T 0d4'0% a3 e -1 1B -1 -1
LT E% LETEIT ST an* EL-DER'DE oo ossa [ LB ]-1- I 18
il S dLsEL Lo BECREETE LERLT 00" 008 "I%
[ L 4 [ Cll T [0 (101 T | oG GaE"E -1 I 44
i 38T SFTFER'ET . T RLE 3 Bl 44 aa‘oda ‘gz
LA GREETRE e oF EDE BT HL¥ 00" 000 sz
(T4 T ETECE'S [T PLUEET ag" a4 §i5"9
aL"T¥ SETRER'Y BETERE DO EEE"T 00°TTE T aa-gas L
£ S G ] [ ba" =R 3] it ™ 297005°T
Nt = 5] o oo 4 B ] A9 8 44" E
CE-RL SOCHTEME SLUWRE'R SE966"E LT L1 2T I
S ek o Bl 3 ] oo* [ R-1 2 B L § SR EEd 2R
EETLE FIBST'IT Do o ELETE HCLEF SETFLLEY
-l T DE-TOR'T oot BT Ld¥ - [
EE LR BETRRL'TT po* BLCTTLYT T Tl
BETBRT  pbCDRETY ba’ ag’ o BB ORE'T
BL°%E EE-LTIR'RT ELtLEe | R ] LY TE SRR
GO ER O¥ PEE"T oo* a9 €9t [ B e Db EE'Y
DEHAT  GRCGed 1N ag’ L =L =1
EO°¥T LLETE ES'5@Y IL"ReE EL7ERT bETEOR
TE LY EY RAT T FofLETL EOLFE'R [258 1] 31 00 oG OE
So°Ld BESHER"T g’ TS o oD DOE‘E
L9°ER AT AT il EL SAE FEOTHT Do DEL"T
:LErA ] LA 1101 TR I "T SF°NRE PR ROT oo Doo s
ooogt ogcoas aa- - bo” -1 -1-1
AT 66 00 0a& Tt oa* a0 BT oo* oofoog'EL
| P+ ESEIa"s agr EFELE'E ER"RER'T oo ooocE
A6 44t  ad°ddd ad" = LN -L T -1
£0°TL L3 OTR'T ag- CC-ELE pE et a9 ooa"E
ag°08T  AdAFE 33" - oo- oo-ozE
5% T LEs SE N BETERT'PT GETRIRTE auTINTET
TR L e R T DL RRT"R LA TR G HVIETHT
= 9 T TREE =2 TEEZZTR ETTEEDCE LA L
39 LL S0 FE R e D8 ROR R LN LA L @ T e
" ETeEN EINYTYE JaThOnn LRI SN
L] CHUIRETDERAN FDRAANLDHR geL=f SRR =R
= IMIGIHYERT - teaEfelié = EEDESTOfL

ANVNE FELLIONEEYE
BIOOHIERRNOY 4D Hed

EETTIL EOWT ECM SEIITENRS [.F-T1-
T IEOIT THROEYER FEE
TENDOE NI 80 DIBNM SHEN
SAYD EECOEORSINOD - 16 HIWH FHEE
SFENNC T PEEEE - IERRLE HIWH TN
EEEOEs EAROOEOETEROLS 18 KIWH i
SWYEDTES THIEAS THIF
BROTIATEDRRNG . BAN ATER
OHINTWELTRAEL TELE
" INTV TR FIOTHEN IS
A ENTIOED SRLE
LHILIKLDHL SFEE
T BT HRAT S LT LT AER
ARHERINT S AN HAA TR TEEE
Eef 1510
L h i A g oTEN
SHIWANY LEIRATRSE f14 1
ASEWHRLATYWN CHTOTINS R L
THoEEEH SUER
ALEIYT OEEY
SRIN44NS ANOCIRTTTEIEIH LEER
EEENANE A0S StH TEE®
GEEA oD LA DEEY

PSSO BEEY

DN T 0L IND TEE®

(=t CELH

SEEiESTarnd 9 4I00E TS L a4
ELWLIECO " INTWH T SESWET LIl EIEH
EEo ) LERENTIIE TIE%
RITAENE ESIELD 544

WL THI SEEWIOTONERT FIZF
FoLEND EEATAER t44 40
L R TEER
2t EEWI TTONANE ATEw
TN oY ERIETIVE 104

¢ ELANES TEOLITIA/METHNGL = acye

HOIIATHIEND oo

Lt L]

AN TWWEHED BRWLIONEINE oT0-F G0
el Lt ] [ESESS0/0T



LT LITCTEE T EeE'E

-1 R 1-1 S 1 BT -k

po oot 00T Qa9 oTt -
GETRAT ~BETEAT T

o0a- 0% s daw [

00 00T 09" gdE Er DE-

Ld' 8 HLLEE LN
3L ag a4 '§ PR RDR'T
HETTL 80 L3 'LE -850 BEE"IT
437387 9aTRBER'Y oK”
- - i

(- 1h+ ] T sC'ET Bl ESE
BETRAT  BIToEL oo”
LE"E# TS HEF'EL QO R0 "R
SeTdeT  BBTODO'T oo
BLEE DO RLL'T oo*

- ic EE"Bod'E g’

pE &8 EE-DRL"E on*
¥ITLE FOTLTIE" DR o’

T 1 BT EOLTAT BEOTEE
Lo 1E LL'LOT'E LER 44 Bt
DO ODOT OO 000°% ag’
DETHET ORI OOETE e’

T i8 EE'TRC"% g’
po‘Got  og‘oos as"
oo‘oot  00foom aa*
LI LEATATT e
oo*ogt  o6‘ade L&

TE 6T L1 1% A T
L [ L 17 -

00T ORT 00 QadtE Lo

ot Le TITEICL L
EE 14 0 nLE'E L

L Il 4 Lt 4+ S N
L1 Li"39%L 8e

SL 6% SLOEER -]

oL LL-®LL"'T Dii-
EE"Wi §5TITR'E oo®

L5 ELOFRLE N

AL FE LT85 "9ET 1]
“NIVHEE YTV 2t N

1 CEER TR i BE LR |

= INEHINWERD -
BEIET AHIL
i 1 fin )]

EL“BEL"OF¥E
non

Lo
PEORET
POEER
oo
BE"EET
e’

L EIETEE
Do*

g’
T 1 PRS- 1
oo*

BE O
o’

0o GIT

AL ERLTT
LL'HTE'S
SECCALWT
aa’
agTRE
ag’

an-

L3 WER'E
e’

ag*
Lt i
545"

g R
=3 1}

e

R
E£'IC
BUTPRE'T
ERTED
BEORER

EZ GED

E¥ EEL
EFETE"TT
EE Lo st

[1'¥SE"IS 0" LLd "FRL
po” oo-oaa‘ow
og’ A ada et
¥IOERT ao*
LR 11 aaTEELYE
g’ 03" 394 'EL
oo’ an-aae et
o’ 2T
B LAGTE -0 -
oo’ e aes 't
g’ a3 °89C
an" @ETERDWE
an* S T
66 OTETE Lo R -1
G e2ebi'T
[ L £ oo oo e
(At BOTBRE'E
ag" D& bob'ET
¥EOD03 'L DO GO0 "E%
[ B0 GO0 *ET
FEOTFR BT RRETRT
(-5 bo'oonTe
[N DO OoZ *g
ELFD Do Oon "ot
-l -1 11
-] oa'oos
bo- oo ooo *E
bb" ol 45
no” oo-gos L
EE"ET poroor
oo* oo-goo e
oo” a7 009 s
ob- ad‘oaq's
C¥ ¥EP LR -1 B
oo” ggroog
PEBER G I
[ 4 1.1 43" gar't
BT TEZ pa~sar'c
WECESTE a4 ERd'NE
E{ B 411 Bl o o 3G 08s " ERE
s
LIS LR

CECE/ACIE = CERESTOSE
LSS TELIOUTEYE
EASOEESEE 40 KRAL

e HEIYA BOINVLLEHRs

SEOTIWACENE CETOTION - AW LI A LOTH
FEOIAYACHTE HO0E SWhd- ARG SR SOLH
OEITIL EIvT HBOd SEETITYNES a9Es
W00 OEnd QEDE L TEOE-TLIHT i 1341
BD e anNOd Wl TEDE- - MIdd a55d
ERCVURARE a¥TE
FITLEIA FHRIYA 2ERF
oG -39+
EE LA T EEn S L TR A  Sana anEr
TIVERE WD ESTONVHONREH sy
FTHTHEHD (- 1)
OHTNTWAL ST FELY
JHIALINWLEE LS ¥ DHTLSWNTR IR
i LT HA (12 1)
DHINTYEL dddis (-] 1]
RECHARTAS (431
pr LR - e ] DESH
TR LIEN
LMEETANE ST AN L TO f111)
AOACE D TYR Tosd L
AoeOCLLAT Sion 14 1]
SHIYATE LS Tola DEWS
ESTROLLNT YN DRICTIOE hd 1]
SAITARS "2°F QLORd 114
BIRAYE 4Ly
TNIICEH DEEY

FLIMANS SOCEAVTTESRTH b¥Ch

SR CEYD LIS SENYE DEEY

iy S BECY

ERIELO WL TaT BEEY

CETRE T TR TN PECH
FORINTINEOL -0l TIERE FICH
SRLOVELROD - INIVM T SESYETJI00N ETC¥
FRITLLER BOTLED Ot
WL B LSl CFIEREMS L at4]
EONYEIGNT ERLT O ETTW
SARAEHILAR TTEW
[Yaid) R TIodYd aTI¥
TN ONY ERIHWIYE BaTE

ENE HALWK BOHNILEK. QEFHT

KOTLATHRSRD arooy

b il ]

O TMENSE FRNLIOKEIEN STS-0 aRnd
G TE CESEFED/OT



RTeL FL FERURDE ETEERLEW
L1 ¥9 ET e ETE DE"GRE'SE
-@2"edt -RE°RE o
eI B0 ODD'E o

BETR FECERT'T bO-BEE'E
2 EW P2 EERTIE SR FIEIE
- o A B BE-

&b EDT  BOTODO'E Bl

FI R e RER BE”

[ Do GEE Béi”

B DDT po-oEL po*

EE° TR DE-¥RE'E oo”

LT EF EB"SAR'T oa”

DE“§E EE BER"Y oo*

25C0E DEEEY oo*

LT 1% BETERL'S LR
-1-T-1- S -1- R -1 - Rt | I

DO OOT DO OOE"ET oo*

5 06 B0 TIL BT oo-

[ 1 bi'EBS BE’

¥R 9d-éot :[.
“ERTLE -ERERT og-

b1 EL LA L au’

ji T} [1-34-H oo-

FELE BEREEE BR’
BO‘§0T  ERCEETCT -gntas
ootEeT  EECQQRCE g’

[ L1 Ll [

Do oDat 0ot ooz og*
“HTLF  ~IR OIS LR L
L4 1 65 TAT ag’

Ll Tl GE0Ed ST ag*

s oe SL O "8 oa-

isTTa [0 LSE°TT ag’

6944 86" LST TLT ad’

" HEYWErd T LETRE

L] ER RS DT R FEau

* INEEIERIEI =
SEEEY e

44 Y

E0"TRR"EE9"E

BECEOST¥E
BE"#Z
oo-

BT LRRTR
Ei"8§L"e
DEEZTE" R
og-
antaw
o004
[

05 HIT
LETWEA
BLCTINE
oL
EL"LTL"T
ag-

oa-

T aeL'T
B LTE
St
ET"&TH
LR 8 3
LY &
A1
ag"

2

L R
[T
L ]
L
i-dan e
FLORET'Z
CRERECE
FCERR DN

O% LARTRRLON ERTELEELRTEY

TETLL ST 3 FEECEY
SE'NE "
og- TR R
TL ALY 5T aEE LT
e bt -]
a4 taEy el ek "l
aar E2TERDTE
ag’ BETRED
aa- Bl i T
aa” bh" DEE
EETOE R R
- -1l
e & DO DOE "9
TR EIE LR ]
SETCHE BEBDE'R
s Bo°Bo0"T
e BOBOE "R
TR ERE BB HOD "BE
SCE¥ER OO ooR
FETET Lo EET
CETERE TR
[ oo ooe
LE™RE SRR
= [+J-R 11 S
== DO OOT T
LN B RRRTS
Ll T TR oo oos "
- Lo oRk
-1 B0 PATTE
i oo omt
LE " TLL 00 0K "%z
BT TRL D065 "TT
ER E%R"T GO O8T AT
LR 1AL T oo 0wl TTIE
LHTDRY
EE - A LABang
CEOESEL 6 - TEALSTASL

ADOGES WHMLETONEIEE
HENDECASRECD J0 il

ONITId EivT d0d SEILTYEEA THEE
SECE STHSWNICHIE ARRNIHCH wEIE
ROHE DY HRGL A90lE 315
SLHY EHL whd DOdA NI Kol B
WYEDOES W EWDOTETNT FTEN
EELGHd TVIDEAS (]
ENGLIATHIMGS Sane TTEE
OHT KTWAEL FTRAYES HRLE
DHIZNINY L1
ERIVIAR DA ¥LHTWH ALIEETA k11
BHT ST LN AT ReST Y iy 1]
LENARINT / ARONIT TS vEER
Lt ] bEER
-y s A e OTER
SUIWANN LEEMIIClE DEFE
TELTD « EOWMEELEIWE SHIoTicd Ti%%
ERE PSR - e H pive
T EEEY
AIEAWE 1 ]
BEITAANS SCENYTIESEIM DFCH
Bl mYD LIDEE DEEN
FENSEOE EECH
BT TYDE0L 1N ¥IEN
[+t § [1.44]
BENTHEI NS ¥ 4I008 TTWHE YIEY
BLOWIINOD  INTYR ¥ §ETT 41000 (4441
L e PR = A R Tice
SHITAAOS EITLE0 OTEY
(ELNS] MWL LN EOTEWRAT ¥IES
AL BN E1EY

L5 =g BAE ] TIzY

s} sErwr TOOWIWE BTEW

FEIYR T FEITTVE GaTH

 ERREES ARNNINI oos¥T

BOiiETHSERD Rraaw

RS

CEnd TYERSED EERALTASIAXH 0To-3 aKnd
=11 1 a0/t



LI T i

TOWH OF JUEEacacTss
IIFENDITIAE SCAY

74213233 -

sGLOEOD=

FED 4011 EEFREDITURRES DRUG FUNHD

18/a38,/3333

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ
uuuuuu
||||||
ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ
ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ
nnnnnn

. =

nnnnnn
nnnnnn

nnnnnn
nnnnnn

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ
nnnnnn
||||||

T 000,08

uuuuuuu

uuuuuu
EEEEEE



13138

= DEFARTHMENT -

T OF JONESRGROUGH
EXPEMDITINE Sinpany

=geadate

FRD #=012 EXFENDITUAES SANITATION FoWD

L0/OE/ 3028

i T L]

TS EOZE -

¥-7-B
PMHGENT

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu
+

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ
ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ
.......

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn
nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

3722438375828 88302883855838R383
43" S E x % % HERS 28 25VEl
:Jn: i A e ol G W
SEEAAEASRERERIENEANCISLEEIRR3 RIS
FEEE” R 4 % % % ERi 2 g§3v&d
:ﬂ - 1 w o : 2] if

uunnnﬂnnnunnﬂuuunuunuunnnﬂ#buﬂﬁag
R L L L L
WAATCTADDCTOO0D0D D000 D0 O 8@ =
nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn
A FD A ENAE BN BN B ERA AT SR B P =]
I u - - v om o= o= e = m T R T -
W oed W OE ] ] - MeAMER DS T WO DD n e =]
R R [T + 4 4 & W

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ
ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ
Wk ol ol A E A E T AP A A F A FFFAFFSENNE

kL

EE2, THE. 64

160, BET. 44 16,320,

S, 51367

3%, 788 59

= PN TOTALe -



Fo- 00T ~SE-FCH'CE
BRUREY -FRUFERLE
BO 80T ~R2CEID'WH
BOCOOT  =LETELETET
PETRET -DE"RER'ET
' HIVEN Hhivd
L] SHEI LRI
- LEmKLbeaEd -
GTIET ERlL
SE A4

S8 ¥ CLL

ELER LS AL
B0 STA"Y

dESOT LT
05"ak"ET

aa ag-
a9’ L -h
- -
@ e
- =N
2w
T =S
feoEfOCfE - EEDESTOfE

AEVAATE B IOMEL KR
HOOJUONSENAC S0 HKOIL

O EENES/I¥N - INEWANE FIOILNNTID SEEW

2ind K3 AHBHANE BT LT 1iEw

Tl TVHANED - LEEWAYE EIETISNOmT STER
~PREHRINE LHEHEAHNAHTAN HLTeTH -

HOTLATHIGED | Bve,

WY

FABKEANE IEDESNNENTEY EUTYEEss §FIS-F ONOE
Evieh T i =T EREE/SE/BT



oO-DOT DD EEZ LR po*
=80"00T =FOTROT og”
LLCFL BECCER "R LN
| Tl T BO°CTIE"LT oo’
B TH RO ERE "R oo’
L¥ DL CL Tie"t -1
DR FE EECLrRtLg o’
po oot  oocodE"E aa'
BO°DOT  DOCEEE R ag’
pi'bot  ob'odd"ad an'
EE &R oo TELEIC T ag*
-bo‘ooT o' LfECt ag*
SELTE =00 A85T T [
BOCDOT  Q0TEddtd aar
b Ls A {-RFe-H o’
Do°G0T a0 °ga0a"asE ag"
OO 00T 00 0%EFr an-
B8 TH A5 TTAEYIE 2
BOTEOT adTEEETY ="
ogooT  00tgesit [
0o'eaT agTeEltr =2
[ ] Gd Swl ' LF [-h
[ E-k £ 50 [
A0TOQT SRS L
e St sie'te ba-
00 34% SR oaR'SE po”
L~ md ELCEIR'S ]
LR L LETEEE'E be-
L ERRESL -1
09 EE  Db-DbE oo-
et B T LE PEE'L bo-
b ] SETTER'E 1N
EL"§ LETRTE ¥RERE
SFETETR =EETRETCR bo”
EE"TE BETRLTHE on-
“ESEL DT AN 6 EYT
SRURET  BRUORE ag-
OO-DOT  DOCooofot oo*
G0 EE  +BDTIET'T Bo”
LB TL S 'DATTIE ag"
¥1 %E sZ‘zooa oo-
EL"&8 AT EHATE -1
-0 1% SE'TIE ag-
| TR TS wOLOT TN og-
RE-DR TLOFRET on-
-1 5 13 BEOLTETCT ai"
i e SLURHLTILE ag-
fHIvE ALErTnE LETVET
L O EEEErOEET i i
- LERMLAATT -
[ 1k 3 AMIZ
L ard

ga’

o mat

BT SE9°LT
qd4 atd "1
BECCLE TRE
LE 4T
BOEETIET
-]

g

-1-N
a0 e
oL [ T
a& dmn et
"
6L
-

RO
[ R
e
FRFRT'T
-

EE- 18t

E¥ EET
PEESR'T
oo’

EE'EN
1
FOTREE"T
LETEET *¥T
ES RS "RT
A T 14
g’

og*

Dot TET*K
Y5 EI0TS
TLLEW
a8 35%°C
SL°1T

ST RITCLE
| [ [P ]
FLTETAE
HECEMLEE

HHALHTIYH WYL EEIYA
THTTLE EIN MO SETLTYESLY

(HTE"E) RONCE O FIQE-IaSwssay
CHST ' ) BdKGil I WETOL-LEmoLims

MWEI'T KOO YWEDLE

CHOS¥E) BIOH IWLLOG' 4D TT00-"SME
N MELC¥ ZEOE - fSwEmemT

EEEd I%d HADH BOHCH Cllcrdrs
[KS0* ¥) SOINT BTONANT TIOE--iET
[HES ' Z1BOHA CHTOHAAY TESE-"2M1
HAMES 7 HEIMA KODCIWIOwELNC
AAHIAEA HOTIWIEL a0y

WHd EROLIISKHES THIUOEY ELWLE
NTEENIEYA JTHONOOE TYNDIDEE 21 XN

%" B EEETEL
2 BOT o~
SETELE'E BOTEET'BY
ECERE'R BoCFER'LE
[ B DO°CHE'ES
ErRLE DETERRE
s Do oo om
. bR BSE'E
[ DO BES" &9
N bETUER"DL
o0 Do ooD"ooa "L
ol bg-
ob-EER'NT Do EEE LT
[N po“oonta
b BhTEEL
b 1011 ]
oo - 00" 0% vy
OE"EET 0L oo anE e
e’ GEHARTT
oo- ao-oas L
oo” go-osac
RO EROTY ad gEE" L
oo‘0os"t a4 °6dd e
an’ 4738w
LT aa gas"§e
-l ag gen it
-Z6dur 6" 3ad "3
LR L aaTEaatn
eE'S18 a9 945"
ag’ 343" 334
48 4 202l
FTHIT TR E
E5TWIL [
oLTear = Bp T aT
ELILE"W =T REEER
TE WEE -1
g’ SRR
ag- 7l 1T R
an gELE TR T TR
S 6L b bSE'EL
-1 oo oRETE
SRIEIY i BRE'S
L I8 & oo SLE
ECIETYe B0 EEE ' ROT
ERCEEYT DO EYS TR
RL"EE0'L bb' CE8"ER
EC Lo®'CH DO PEE"LEE
KT
LHIREND SRR
EZoZ/ oL/ = EZOESTOSfL

ANSNE FAULLTINGANT
HENSHOEERROS 40 KROL

A LLITHIGENE PR
L AINEACHA A0 OEIT MI
W00 « FERTEON

AZRENSAT RLTITEI T/ Ao

CAEE ALY Rl WL
ROLENWOART EDWOLEY
LISRETMITNE FAITOTIA VIRD

i p el THEL 2 PR T e i Sy B ]

SNl OHEIEIRNTONE

(RONLLE ALVE| BRTLAS0CON T LI

FO TNREL RS VT
S LT
ENIHETTAL

HELWH

STHLIETH

TECWEEE TOoNIVE IMEMaTols
EENEILNTYN ONITOIINT
THITOER

FEIETE ESENVTIESETH
EERA OEVD LTINS AR

Ol TR TN T HGRT
i
FIMORPIAL 7 SIN0E 1T

ELIWELNGD " INTYY ¥ ERSVE ' AInDa

W0 AMANCTINLE
EETGEANS HRLASHGS ST 440
[WLOS] WL IMEEEDTARERL
ELUDEARNT REACLIRE
AHFNAN I EY
MMILd]  BENEL TIOEEWS
SETMH 1 EELLTFTES

» HOTIWVHLATHIHTY H3IWm »

SrETETETEREY

ROTLATEGR

b Roggi =T

oiin
DRER

C188
ETEE
TiEE
OTEE
1111 ]
LEYS
BERS
CEYS
=112
GEL¥
*EET
DIER
41 1
L3413
LIe®
BRLE
L1113
E55%
259F
j3 313
L59%
£59%
i1+ 13
(1143
QESE
atawE
423
aTHE
S50
AvE
e
L Fo 40
FLEE
HELE
TETE
iR
b 3
I
TLE
FIER
ERER
e
STER
SIRE
mIET

BLOOW
BAOYH

Gl MARAE 7 MAINA FENSTOMESME OF0-§ ONOE

EZOZ/E0/0T



TRl 1 REOTEEE'E  BEUEER

RV BHOFTVE EL
L] e g el e

- LAEMEAAAT -

gErEL

£

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn



5 Td
LTI ]
=00 Q0T
£l
0499t
BL7EL
T BL
L 2
- ]
T
TE~FE
150§
TR}
ETTEE
T4 EF
T8 EE
BL LR
BE BN
BE*TE
Lo~
D& RL
LT Re
EE'LL

EEsEnaE

S ST LS
000090
“EL"0%
L
LR T T

L

*E'T

UL

o

EL"TREEY
[
LE"EBL'F
FETLT
DO-ODE"E
BETTIER'E
SLUSELW
BETRR'E
OREED"L
THEERD
L LA 11
2CLPTTES
E¥ " GEOTET
FLIWLETRE
T TEL"9TL

mEzsnEa

WRTERAE LU i g

[ L

[ LR

e L

[N b

[ TR ERE

Ll B E¥E"E

BETFEET Bo”

- EE"BTRY
BE" po*

-1 ET"EEL
1N BETEER
[+ -]

ag” *ECRY

-1 BETWLE
e QL RRT
-1 -4 3 T4 ]

ETEDE EaTamL

6a’ E5'3E

[:]: 0 OARFTIT

ag* BELITE

aa’ BETALTR

aa’ L1 L1l
e SR
iy g &=k

BECRLDTE O RRECNNL
oo- ad°aaq a1
[T 11 aa*
bg” A3 399 "a%
-1 -1 0 -{-1- B |
T EIT ag o008t
TE WOO°E ad-1ae ot
og* 2372a%°r
fECNEECE [0
ag- [
#3505 [ 2
AETLET o
ag- [
GL°E oD Dbe'E
LT RE SRTRRR'S
QL RIT 0D DED'ET
¥T§ES PEORDE'R
BRTET oo oep'E
fL o 0 bETEEE
SE-TLE'E Do’ LER"DE
ST-TER'T DO ELE'SE
METERTCE DO RLETTR
HCESE'OD LR FA R -1
HS =0
INENHIT LEDOna
fzozfocy/E - tZor/TofL

AiDERNE MANLLTONEANT
HEGGHAGARANDS 40 poans

ITEoEDd EEIVA L1414

EMIETES EINT Eod SEILTHMES a9Es

¥R T THRA aTRs

ERSINIVEL Y TEAVHL awLy

SOIIVHETEL ~ &b STLW

" LEIVH/FEIVANE EINRA JTLw

RRATI BEL®

IO ENT IO ETLE

SO - EEGED aanF

ENTHINTAL ASE¥

TEOTIER FITE

LLBAVE GETH

ETITELLOE ENORNVTTEISTH F¥EE

EHTHLE T Erd G i SEOw

INTRIINBE TTVRE MW

SWELRED LATYW T EEENET LEENIINLD ity

RRATIL&NE HATAAD ENER

THLAR) WL Latrldsatem ¥icw

EIRHENENT EEACTdRE TIEY

LEARAWIIEN (314

(WTd] FRENVL TIRA b4

EREYNM Y SEINYINE SOTH

& INEHTIWVARD dELEH & SECRET

ROLLATHOSE0 Biaow

WINH

O WEe3E 9 I FREOLTCERINE HR0-8 OHN
-k i CEDE/90/0T



a8 [ T R bRTTETRET
G2 0T SRER'SE oo”

e eel SR Rb0'RE -
S2TEAT  BRTDBRTEE oo”
SRUeEN SR 0DD'ODT L

FLOLE LE-CER'L oot

4 4% bETRRTDWT DO HOE &L
S0C0ET oR poo'oT LN

=G0 ODT -8ETEOT Ba’

EL EE DO OO0 DT oo*
PETRAT  QETRQETOR o
BoBeT - po'Goatat ag"
po‘oot G0 oad"s ag’
OO°OO0T  00°aonctE og-
BOTOAT G0 TadaTaT ad”

[ 1R | gt eI e 1B

LT ET TLS ¥ ™o HRE
#TTE g5 TER W EL-THFL'S
fad e | O " sLTH b
307007  E@TdAEEr 2"

G G RLLE -

L4 L Sl | E ] SL-TIE'ER
04 °aaT B3 @ae ' L Ba"

ROER SRR wo”

fL 0 e ET -H N

[Tk b - LE“LBE'LT
ER° TS ¥EORDECET oo”

Ll 1] (4 Bl -1 1 A 1
DU-DOT  DDCDOD'T po-

BLTEE EE BLLTE BT RTH

LI 8 BL BEL"E -1

BE"FE TY ERE'E oo-

ET L6 #TaE ai"

BT EL *TUREFTOL [

AL BT RAE 9T oo

BERL LIRS B 1 "

LR [ B RTATILE aa-

¢ R bRy gy S

L] (=g =t ] e g e

- LENWCEEAEE -
STFLT FdIZ
[ £ d

LETIRTTLET
oo

sk

SO ¥RL'R
| Tb 11 R 4
FTTERE'TT
]
BOTEER'T
-

og"

DS EHE
ET"ZOR

[ L5 1 71
BTN
LS EILTT
ag’
Lg-waR L
TT EaL C
5 TI¥
o
ORI AT
ER-sTL
8 ol -4 (R
M EET

CL WAL AL g ETR'ELL'T
ag* a3 SCE"SE
an* e npa ' uE
ag’ SR 0bd'SE
aa- 240~ D0 OO T
L T SROREE'R
L - OooTONT
an- b 000 0T
W57 0aT -
aa" 51101 ¢
- Do Do "on
- DO OO0 "0t
el GO OOE"E
-l 1R Rl
Boi- pDo“ooofat
FFERE BOTOSEE
S8 FLE'E LR TR ]
| [t 1.1 R 4 go‘oda”Et
TE BED*S aetogo oy
oo* gocaad et
ST EEL gooaw'at
og’ garaeatesT
ab’ [ TALL
SLOTTY ag 944"
TTCEOL [ Ll 1L Rl
6" EdL LN
65 TLd 39" edsd ' RE
BE AT -
ag’ TR
Lewac D00 0T
TR SoBE'N
af-dnt 3010
L5 3 GO ELY
| St~ Do Tio"ER
% TE'E DO~ ¥OR "L
TE"EEE'D Do ELH fpe
[P RS EE BE TARTLOR
AR
LMEHHTY Imoang
CEDE/DEFE - TE0E/TafL

ANOGENS FWLLTONASER
HEGSHSEBRNEEE A0 EmiE

+ BOILTETEISTS daivM «
WIALENNT ALafD NOLDWTHEWH - Wi 5509
ETEEEHTONE SSROLIVLS HELSOOE dEIVM osLy
HVEDGES LUEHEIIEEY L{VHILH TEI4 GLI%
EROVHDLEN HMTT dEIvwW LTE®
TER2IN EHTHIWH DHTHOA " IoFuTo s g
OEHEYHI A AL [ s ]
FECHEANE NOLIOMINY EH0FT SLDYW f=14
DHTIIE BINT Wod SRILTYHE SRER
Tl LLANGGT 080-4 JWid A 461
EuNidd SOInMEE 09v-4 OM0d mAR - ited
EYXTIVAL MEN - E £O0E
5 THS e ST OIEY
LA B 100 CERE
BT ETWES F R YEL TR
SOTINMETES - 4D EELY
LN/ FUINATE ITOIEEN DELE
EERid DELY
IO ENII0EYD OTLE
FESIAERS fedfddv BDD LELL
INIHENTEY OsEw
DRSS PRETT LIIIILN (T4 L]
FEIVITE LESLTL0E HEWE
TIDIENR a9ir
FEF ¥y asiw
EEVHIRIS W30 THE
EEIGAENS SOGENFTIENETH awie
CETHLYE PR T SLTw
T RIS Tl
EONTHEINHNE ¥ £Dnda TS | yis
ELOWHLNOD  LUTWH ¥ EEFYET 4Inbg [ 344
S8T3A4NE ASTAA0 aTtE
[WLnA] Wl LR OISR LA
ENOAINSKT ARADTSNE TR
LIEAT LS TLER
(MDTa] SEEWL TICHIN STER
RATMH 7 ERTEVTYT TR
= HGLLASTHLETY H3Lwm = [ 4 |
LA TS (L5514
EArWH

O OieEs 7 DR FRELIOSELNE DRDe§ OHE
Rl - i EEDE 90701



LT T
=0 00T
Lot
| a1 ]
a9 et
ot B ]
RN
- 14
EF-LF
®LTOE
-1l ]
£5°¥8
“ER DT
R ]
(4 -1 ]
oo oot
EfER
[-1-B -1}
ga‘aat
[ 1311
L Lo
1
-5 -1
saaat
iR
SEEL
ELTEL
EE"RE

ESGTE"LaE LA LA
=T6 At ag-
®ETET ag-
SLUEATUE [l
G §aa T e
¥ETIRE =
ey oo
LT SE8'T L
LE-wHd -
BLOLOR'OT po-
L] oo”
BB TEE'Y -1 111
EECETE oo*
EO TR oo*
LI ] ) ag-
oo ooo"t -1
B ZOLET [:1:
BRRORTE au”
a0'Gas -1
oL EaLen ag*
LSO 03" EETE
[=F i 4 [y
LR ga-
[-L 0 | B "
SETELTNE L
T [N
f = 1
BiFEF ' TET Do-
iV IRNOMT

BETTREDE
E& 0N
L1 L
BE"BLE
po”
FATRAT
oot

LB 11
£4'RET
FEEETTT
0o ot
aa-

L1 1o
Lo "ot
WETEET
ag”
g%l
e

o
SLEER
EE°SEE'D
BE"RSR'T
1]

L

0 ZER "L
EE DRLT
108t i
TR STOTIE

BE°TTODE
LIRS
EE'BE

gz vk
oo
#8°TL
g’

[ TR 14 4
aa:
F970ET
55
ad-

"

[ L1
S0 EW
0"
BETRR
oo’

oo”
BLTRERER
b4 R F |
¥ OER
Ba-

oo-

& 8L L
6T TCE

L E o -
e L

EEGESDE/E

af-oLs "gdE
og-
ag°aat
GdcEHE"E
L
o E
L
R eEEE
i el T
SRR EY
(- -F-R
Do ObE'E
BeTpaniE
bETERD'T
Do oon't
Do-ooo 't
BLTORTE
QUTBAE"E
od‘oos

oo LTT e
a0 aTIe"Et
33000 ¢
g 54t
a0 " %% T
4540 ST
a0 Tl e
S TETEEY
L5 L

ATy Y

- EEOESTOfL

SEEImSTEELS T LI008 TTYWE
L

SLOWESED ATV ¥ SRV ATNDE
FRITEEE ETARG
[Wres ) WL LT AN
EVATEHT SEAMIANE
LM AT LY

WOIE) BRWML TI0MINS

BROMH 3 SAINTYY

= HEACEE =

ON SRS ¥ Eive STEOLIONESKE
SOLEITDE

aids
STLE
aLLw
ELe
aRLE
-1
aEEE
51
oTEw
SENE
t 14l
oTey
BECY
-1
BRER
BEEY
FEEH
ST
L add
ET®
b4 d
atieE
L3447
EIEw
TLEN
aTER
3Tk
50 o

oFD-B asnd
EZOESED/SOT



0o“gaT a9taae 48t
Qe eat 2ATIAT'SR
aodat [ - -1 i |
00'0OT Q9T oee'aT
-1-& agr

or0E [T R a e
A% a8 ST AT
40T00T SR eRRtE
a3 Ew SRTRE'ET
- 4 [ -
L0 T SR DDE"N
FEORL FRTETTE
ol L ¥EOSLETET
LR W TE HER "%
WUEL FRORRRTIE
pE-00T  DDDOD"ST
L5 ke T4 TE EFT T
PR FoCOREETE
R IR EIT I
E0" 1k ELEOELIT
- -1 R L

i 1] b4 B T £
STE'HF  =iLLORYLT
T LR

-] -1 b ] 111 R
oo* ao*
LN =W "CE%°E
~H0TRAT =0 "dS8T

14 ] LS EEL"F
4 o CiL'E
L¥Ed F5ENES
aa- ag-

a5" L4 CE-LBD'E
i'es | L

L] e | ET ¥R "E
2 TEaT S 0EE'T
ERTEAT  SRTOND'E
L L BLEE
EL°EE EE“TET"S
“Ee"ER “QRTDETCER

| T ] BEDERTE
L=l 1 BRELRE
=R -1 -

LT R] 50° EZa 0N
B¥LE ET TGE"6Z
L¥EL T Lol "Nl
ER™EL 0R RERTSEY
fRIVREY ToETE

¥ NSO

- LEEebHraR -
LT AMIZ
T Fod

00" BRE'EY
BECOBE'ET
-1

Do-
~gaTobr
oo’

L

LY EEE
oo*

oo*

oo’

oo”

og'

oo*

og”
QETREE"T
aa*

(4 01 [ 4]
£ TIR e
-
FERER ]
LD B
e

o

e

et
Rl
o~

sp”

h

Do

po-
GE"SIE'LE
z8 EmD'0T
DRt TT
bo"

po-

ag"

aa-

aE-

Ol DO0 ' OE
e

oo-

ok
L TR
OO L%T 8
L1

F4 B d 1
ERTDOT"Y
BF° LS
LT |
g’

L L9878
SEEY

AT LEEat
AL LEwLE
oo’

A5 TERL
a0 wEL'S
R IHE'E
Qe”
L T
WEULRREE
A" aET

PR EER
L't
FETTER
P

LT ETH
EF"&E
BEOTEE'T
Do

Do”
BiTROETRE
TE S9L"¥
OO HEE TR
ES"BORTE
4 & [ 4]
g’

il TOE W
LA TWF'R
B [66 "8
o¥ TEL"G¥T

g’

oo*

ag*

ag’

ag*

ag’

o’

ag*

g’
ag-L¥e'n
Lo

AL EEE
SETROE'T
[ 5 ]
CE-REC'Y
e
Co-S8D'E
TLOEFD
#HeeE1's
EC-#OE"'¥T
e

ST 658
EE-HOE"E
DB GE®'C
oo”

BE ESOTY
ST WT 6E
oo*
EOTEAT
Of WaE
"TLTY
ag’
E0'0AE
ERAT
LR
ag*

ag-
SLUEAT
ik 1 a ks
e EERy
ELTaners
EL ELC'S
2%

SE bl
ETEIR'T
EE#s0'D
BEOEET'LY

EEDESaL/E

AT Q0EEET
Gd"GEE"SS
aaTaad eIy
LU
ad-gea ek
S3TEee N Y
S5 'SET
[0 R ]
[
0o ibdsn ' £
LN

B BBL'E
OO ODD 'BE
b GEb'S
BO- GO0 "DE
PETRRDERT
oo Goo"EE
101 R
bo BRE"IT
oo oo "E¥T
DO DDE°E
DO Db TSE
g0 gao "o
oo oon "ot
0o oo0o*og
GuTEARTOT
o aaaTat
og*
0a-oenc
-1 -1
oa-gaa’y
R E
35499
A%~ %T
29700 L
M CET

BETEEY
Bh°FER"ETT
OO BEL'LE
DECLER "R
LR TR T4 ]

= TEMESTASL

AHNGS NELIIOSXE
HERSHSGERROT AQ [0l

ATECOES AINTGO0 HEWM - Wi
SIIINIE W 04 HIRAE

[§) EOOENS BIITHEA
ERIIVAL IMRAINGa

AL B3 IndER GEsn

££10 - 1EEEIS IoJaac

4213 - ISF4LE SHCod

EERS ITWREEA THIUGDY
BHOTIATHRANG/ FANG

daire Lacied EReE

MWL TEAWEL
BILIISTTAL - 540

* IMTWH/SHTWANY WTNINEA
]

aio/EEToE

FECIAHAE DeiDddws §I0
AMKEALKT AR TS

DIFTE HIMTY * JTELOWTE
BHGTAVES LATT-DDElENE
LINFTA - STRASETE

EITAMNE ENEILLETYW TR
7334 TWBCISIC ENOTE
DO LRI Em0isWaF 1417

CHGE OIS 7 OLWN SETELLIOSESXE
Rl i

AT
| 311
L

L340
KIS

SOk
STER
LERE
DELE
SELk
oELE
PELE
GILk
FESP
gk
EI6*
E15%
oTEe
FETE
GEHE
(4423
f44 53
IO
EEWE
GEWE
TI¥
AT
S51®
oSt
el
awie
RECH
e
2l ]
SCER
e
i
FLER
ELLF
TR
1 344]
Eizh
[314)
BiEw
ooiw

DEEST

D¥0~-§ OKE
EEOESS0/0T



L EL

CL"WCE 485" T

RQTAT =WRTEAY

agtagt

[ ]

EFLESOET

BLBEE "BLE
BOTROT
-

LAND
a-d-&

LE°E90°TaT aa-estiéatir s EOILSIELERNS SIMTd EERIEMILEWE =
RO°ERT - CHITES EaVh B0d BEIYTVHEL asss
-] - RAIIWLE 1417 KEEN] EARDOT aras
Lo KOTIATHIRAS AEICN
e ST ol ]

TEaESacsE = EEBESTBSL
AWEE FELLIOEELNE T HEHAE Y HEIMH BTEOLTONE4EE See-F oRod
ERCOEOCTENAD £0 HMOL EO0A0IEs FEOESESDT



bE RL T ESE"wOS'T
=00 0BT =UETER
BO 66T oO°G00'E
[T DO BOD ' LE
[L kR DOTDERTDET
Do oot oo ooo ot
DOTOOT  DECOES
DEBOT  DOTEOOTL
S¥° 8 EB-SEE"T
| Lot ] TH SET"N
[ a1 ¥ ALTE
LA 1t FETIAETR
BEHL od " wio"e
EZ LN Do‘seR T
LI ] O H5¥"0S
(L4 L ST EYE"TH
Lk | TEOELYLE
L E 1 o0- oo ‘es
BT TL LR -t
[ 400} #LOGALTE
b4 B 14 CI LM ¥
ag-gatT  aaTgod
T i GE LAG
a3 gat adcgdEt
037a9T  0Q70RN"E
ET°LS g HLeTaTt
EE LK or sEsE’s
R EET TR
aE-mL - TesieT
LS EETTLE'Y
L& 0, IR
edc 4T a4 oil
FEOLE TR ETR'EN
EL"RL RN AT )
LT WL SETEERYNE
TR FE RER AT
CEINVMEE EOETYE
L1 o122l ]
= ISR WYER] =
L1%r 41 =L
[ s

%' L80"EEL
g’

:]-

oo’

g’

oo’

1

ba’

og*
L0 14 dh s
gt

gar

ag*

aa*

g’
ad-qag et
[: 1. I
oo~ gastc
e’

ag’

[l

aa-

AR 4T
ag-

-

SE SLE 6L
e sET'w
I SET"IY
[0 A
ma

s

e

e

e

.

b

AFTEHLTHER
a5 &1
aa’
Q0 "EEE "W
20 A5E e
=3 0
ga”
aar
TE LT
FLOEETTT
EETEET
R
LR E
BETECE
RN TR
BCERE T
A BLL'TE
A
]
SETEEE
LL™ER
el
THOERRT
[
Bo”
SRR ED
BT RBE'T
BE'EEE'E
LT HFE'T
T BEE'T
E0ER
oo~
LT
REOELETE
BL RBRR
CTRET TR

EEEE

a-d-&

5 b R 2 4
AETER

-1
aTEE L
TR ED
eielt

o

man

EOWE
EC-TEY
a0
EBETERDT
BL-EED'T
FETELT

TE e TR
¥R EETTHT
RGBS UIE
L]
H®OEEE
$EEEE
BETHT

-
TE“HOT'T
Bo*

ag

PO SEE"ST
o1 OEL

LS RERTT
LT ERECT
LA
oo’

oo*

e RRETS
P S0E"T
QTTRQETR
FOCESLTIE

mEEsEE

LEL LA

BECEEL'ERL'E
oo

OO ooO0'E
LR TR T
DO OERTISE
Do oDD'DT
bE"OEL
LRS- LR
DO DOE"T
DO OOE"ZT
bETEOE'E
pHTaoaTe
Do oooTET
LT T
bo'ooE o
oo ooa oL
OO"000*DET
oot gontog
' adE"L
gaooa"t
oo ooE"Y
[-[- 1T
ag-osL"s
oot osE L
enTaRs "L
LR T i | £
00" 0a8°KT
" aad 5
20" 0 §E
ag e
a9 aa "t
aa- g1t

U R ]
Ll TR
G ave il
a9t A" TIw

[£4-2 AT

Liviady XErLTONEdTE
HECOWDESTa0r 40 almds

» LHW1A LMDt Srsivw
AT BINT N0d SETLTYAEA
L00UTY NSNDH AR KNTIOCON
FANTT FOTSSTRIOLL a0l
CHINIANTENE LRVTL 42m

= SARTd LIERIWEAL HELVH o«

BOLIITHIESRD

DU EEEIE T MEIYH BEWLLTIHAANE
0093k

Ll
bRES
| F4:1
(141 ]
441 ]
TEDE
OTEY
O¥L¥
FRaY
DELY
oELY
oTL¥
DEEY
DESH
OTE¥
(41
aEwe
134 2 3
11143
aREe
ariw
[ F44d
BETH
FELW
LICF
ETiw
TELW
STEW
taiad
TTLH
aTiw
FLEF
ETER
TEEw
atTw
agte
LLEE

AISCW
f el ]

B3-S
e/ sefoT



b1l

1339

TOWH OF JOHNESRCRADOGH
EXPENDITURE SUS0GARY

/012033 =

S ELOEDT
FND #§-040 RFEDITURES EATER L ERNER PRI

10/05/2023

a/48,/2023

----------
ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ

|||||||||||||||
ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ

|||||||||||||||

nnnnnnnnnn ﬂn:lﬂh
n R =

nnnnnnn '-3--1-2

R S opzsIsg
L

]

nnnnnnn ﬂnﬁ-ﬁﬁg‘ﬂ
Er i B e e i S e o Bt
e uh

¥ -

+ -

o

1

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ

1§ [T T E

585, B4

5,547, 419,55

614,51

1,026,

BBl Bad.

18,



SEETART cURTORCTERRCT bo”

@3 3L ~BC°SFL'CRE "
r33"30L =B LEE'SEC oo~
8RR SETERE'T oo~

SRR -#1TRECTRIECY e’

llllllllllllllllllll

HIVKEH [ ml gl LRI
L} MR RN AR
FEL R e b
EFIET EHIL
g B4

% CIE"IRECE
LESE L1 ]
NE“CEZ"9EL

=00 R5E°T

BT AHTINSTT

BT TET WIS T -

g’ -
aa’ e
a0 TR 'T [-]-N

LA L T -0

CESEFOLSE - EEDESTO/fL

HEHILTN - LA TO0E L]
‘BNTNOSIENT SERE
RGLISNALARGS T0CHDS §-0 ey
SHANLTONEANE ONILL “CO¥A 0¥ 1-Xss =211
LI DR [ty ]
WIACNH

saTNNLIMEATE DINd " MOEd "0 §oXas DEO-B ONTE

=3i8i 0. CEOE 9070t



IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

DRI 2RI el EEL Ed ol HOILATE gD [ 3505
L] A S e AT AT EEALSE -d IMEWEILY IREOTE fimtey
- iEEKEAET foLy FTafL
FrElE JHEL LiNOENE EENLTONASES s PEOITONESNE ONOM © DOSA W Fo=0 2
Ei e B i e -l *=00 P10 P EENEE



DATE:

TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN

AGENDA PRESENTATION
OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #:

suUBJECT: Financial Report — Special Accounts

1

R R A = e
b LN OO0~ @0 AWM=

Current Year Property Taxes

Property Taxes Receivable Update

Local Sales Tax Collections

General Fund and Solid Waste Fund Savings Account Activity
Jackson Theatre Project — RD Cost Overrun Loan
Stage Door Project Analysis

General Fund — Fund Balance Reserve Accounts
Health Reimbursement Account 2022-23

K-8 School Construction Project

Water/Sewer Savings Account

Water Fund Capital Projects

County Water Lines

JRT - Schedule of Play Revenues & Expenses

JRT - 2023-24 Players Education Program

Wetlands Revenues and Expenditures — 2023 Season
Jonesborough Locally Grown Activity



Town of Joneshorough
2023-24 Current Property Tax
As of September 30, 2023

Property Appraised and Assessed Values:

Real and Perscnal Property Yalue
Taxable Assessed Value

Billings:
Real and Pergonal
Public LHilities

Total Billings

Adjustments:
Real and Personal Reductions
Real and Parsonal Pick-ups

Adjusted Tax Billing

Payments:
Reaal and Perscnal

Property Tax Outstanding

Reconciliation to Open Tax Listing:
Real and Personal
Public Utlities

Todal Open Tax List

Difference

658,721,526
186,321,246

2,701,691

7.99%

82.01%

2,701,881

(185)
42

2,701,568

(215.867)
2,485,701

2,485,701

2,485.701



Town of Jonesborough

Property Taxes Receivable
As of September 30, 2023

Tax Amount GI30/2023 /3012023 %
Year Bilted Balance Collected Adjustments Balance Collected
2013 § 1683183 £ 1127 § - 3 1,127 99.93%
2014 1,698,685 1,968 - 1968  09.88%
2015 1,714,059 B50 - 650 09.96%
2016 1,734,978 763 - TEI  DO.06%
2017 1,764,377 1,008 - 1,009 09.94%
2018 1,797,636 1,550 - 1,580 89,91%
2018 1,814,327 2,785 - 2,765 99.86%
2020 1,961,968 1.632 - 1632 84,92%
2021 2,028,891 14,208 6,501 345 8083  S0.60%
2022 2,116,289 83,214 23T (137) 58,346 8T.20%
Totals $108,887 $ 30232 § 208 % 78,863
2023 Taxes Billed in Oct., 2023 Real & Persanal 2,701,691
2023 Taxes Billed in Oct., 2023 Public Liilities - Future Billing
Collected Through S/30/23 (21586¥) 7.99%
Total Adjustments:
Reductions (165)
Pick-ups 42
Balance 2023 Property Taxes 2,485,701

Total Qutstanding Property Taxes 2,564,564




[xss v 00'SBY'9ET § | PE'EST'GSE'T S | PLGSP'99S'T § | TL'STLBEZ'T S | TETIE'966'T S | BEBO9'TIRT § | 6T'SET'D9LT S | GEOLYLNL'T § sjejo)
10109152 SO 1ED TbE T BV LGL 95664 56T Z0TaL DLT Z6TZE pOT 65 THT 651 aunf
et e D LT 96651 BEL ST'L99'FIE atats 961 9656 9T 70292951 £S8SZ°TST REW
T£9v9'0CE 0L EBDEEE 75°889'00F SEEST'ET | 9B@5595T | Z9BIZ6FL 09850251 ity
1T L6636'TVT | O0GLO'EZ | 9089551z | 0@ 9968l | 009BLE31 | OWGLLOST | OC9srOST | WiEN
__________ Tisecrest PTLEOVEL | BT ELZ PO ET06L ZVT SETZEPEL SOSPELIT | STSET'OTT AuBea
ETTSLZIT L PEEDET OSTEE'BLT | | 18122081 | ZZ'vEZ'SEL 85 9TV LET EOTFE VEL Asenuer
v OFe'E5E TT L EED STOETETE D6 LTULLT | EO'TROGAT YOBEYBET 0L 756 851 aquiasag |
¥CBEY'REL SEBOZYIL +8'809°E8T 9E'L19'ET EOTOZ'TST | @S BO9GZPT | LEZZE'SEL | Jaquansy
[EB0LELE SEZrE 961 16 56T PRI 312789151 T9 R 6YT S6ZBLLET IVTERSEPT | J9q0P0
S| VA | se'serozz iT°Z00°L0T 96884 BLT OB FLO'GST BO1S1 191 IBTL5TET 0L TVO LPT Jaquidag
TEGLLTIT LOBLY GBI TOveZ TET 09'E98'L5T VOEZELST | LT BB LEL 9E TLTOPT Vsnany
[xss'y 00589962 § | OE'9BE'9ZZ S | TrOE6TZZ S |ZEPECIST S |GEESLPST S| OB LGLOVT S | GG OTIGET S| 69CIOOFL S| AP
ymosg | vz-EZOT £2-T20Z TE-1202 12-0202 0Z-6102 GI-810Z BT-L10T £1-9107 oW
% Yiuow sajes [ie1ay
AL

SUDIIA|0] XEL S3|E5 [E307 aAfEiedwog
Yanosoqsauor jo umo]




i T %
HRLT R
120 Bea el HoiiE
AR
BN e
QTD0TSE i ]
Cired BFEETE 1 SeRETE loa . ] TR WEIrTRT [ 3y IERETL RPN BOMBEIE | EWRAEOIETT §  EREEMILM
— - e LA e
o 1 S ]
£ _sworm DT RN rERIE B, Wi oi-rarsr R SITIYW  f OOOENC § PYDEEWINT § ERBRAEN
== e o
[Eafieg ] RITAE
HEIEE
U Li- 10
T =T
EFes BT TEEMTE FEMNT DITRELTE B ELNRETT e SEREL B oWt WwThsT v dyr oty |
e I TEF] ST I T e Y T g FI
- g v e B =T mE ARG - ¥ ] Azseiniy C T T
WO FAPET ST L B R e |
FLOSE-Enar
ERTi-0dE-0
AdlfelTre EHCODY SOATY 1aEve 0llGE
i

ALY IREBOI0PF DEOREANT TR M



lackson Theater Project
RD Cost Oyerrun Loan
Interim Financing Pravided by First Horigan

AD Cost Gverrun Loan Funds 2,832,100,00
Bank of TH interim Financing [8.31.23) 1, 300,000,000

20Z1-22 Loan Draws/Payments

Total 2021-22 Draws {411,960.13)
Retsinsge Payable - 7021-22* [3%,068.22)
6/30/2022 Balance of Loan Funds Available 3,581,170,8%

H022-2023 Loan Deanws (3-010-030000-3533]
B/15/2022 Draw #6 - Ken Ross Architects -

hs Approved by BMA [0, D00.00}
G21/3033 Draw ¥F - GAC Pay App Dated B/31,/22 {233,105.38]
10/17/2022 Drave ¥7 - GAC Pay App Dated Bf31,/232 (112,412 76)
HAH23 Draw B - GAC Pay Apps Dated 1130022 & 12/31/22 (249,247.14]
2/16/2023 Draw 89 - GAC Fay Apps Dated 1731723 (113,61391)
42023023 Draw ¥11 - BrightRidge (8,9F7.00)
#f42023 Draw #10 - Clark Mexsen (7.350.00)
442023 Draw M10 - GRC Pay Apps Dated 2/28/23 (144,153.65)
5/15/2033 Draw #11 - GRE Pay Apps Dated 3/38/23 {137,145.14]
5/19/2023 Draw ¥11 - GRC Pay Apps Dated 4/30/23 (114,556.84)
Bf20/2023 Draw #12 - GRC Pay Apps Dated 5/31/23 [76,708.84)
FETIA023 Draw ¥13 - GRC Pay Apps Dated 6/30/33 ARSAP [97 198 63}
B/16/2023 Draw B14 - East TH Speinkles Dated 3,/28/2384,7 ARSAP [41,038.78)
0/11,/2023 Draw ¥15 - GRC Pay App F3E [90,&820.15)
97112023 Draw ¥16 - GRC Pay App F3T 1113,693.00)
9292023 Draw 817 - GRC Pay App F38 |162,418.10}
Totad 20232-23 Draws EI.TE'J.DJEJ_I}I'!
Aetainage Payabls - 2022-23* {56,614.34]
Balance of Loan Funds Available 1,704,518.31
* Funds not yet drawn for Retainage (125,583,236}
GRC Contradt 1 778,000000
Change orders -'IE:I.'I 1,.973185
Aemeraded Contract value 5.895,973.95
Total GRC Expenditures (including retasnage) Hiﬁ.nﬂ.?ﬂ
Contract remalnder (eacluding retainags) 1,553, 596,25
East Temneises Sprinkher o TG, 98100
Change orders (EMA approved 5.8.23) 18,500.00
Aumsended Contract valise 95, 481.00
Total Expenditures i64,132.08]
Contract remainder 31,347.592
BAMN cbiigated 1o Stage Door Concessions 00000 ¢

* 613723 BMA appraved to use up to 5250,000 for Stage Setup to Todd Hensley untd
additional AD funds are chiained

Balamce of funds after contract obligations ﬂmu

Mate: This report will be presented in-iesw of the detall contract analysis for GRC. Detail reparts available upan
request.



Torwn of
Godns Rash Caln, Inc. [GRC) Comirast

Jpckson Theatre Rencvations and Additions

Project Account ¥ 4-10-14200-8318
Ritalnags Account @ 10-200-2350

Todal Compheie Less Total Pakd Contract Balance
App. # and Stored Rotsinage  Less Rotainage  Less Rotainage Date Pald Ckd
§ GNoAOTIEE
1 5 628400 § 264248 5 0 SOTOAB0 5 583312468 SM4MR019 02740
2 08 447 38 4 822 37 §1,625.0 ETIETTA AReEME 93213
3 129 485 51 47428 121,011.33 60719070  THHEMS  9337E
4 1485, 528,61 9,402.00 180,347.91 E4ITA50.TE  ARNEMS 03T
5 303 043.04 1519715 28A, 745 B BAIL08TE  QMER010 03084
6 104, 22748 5,211.37 £0,016.08 500918030  10ATR0I8 9427
7 50, BA4.50 289925 55 585,65 404515040 1242048 D4TEA
B 112 506,45 5 84947 107,348 458 4B16,186.85 1232019 p4aE2
a 152 503.59 7.825.18 144,878.41 468350036  2MN20H  0EI7E
10 113.205.10 565928 108,285 85 48560TOR2E A0 05TEE
11 47, 108.72 17,085.34 320,751.38 422250054  ARIR0H  OScAT
12 A7 056 85 2,997.84 &1,758,01 LATARM4BE  AOES0I  DE2MD
13 ABARE 24 (85 BEEAE) 134,351.70 4,130,15045  BTR020 Tk
14 18,578.01 . 18,579.01 4,111,500.44  1UMORO0R  GTSEE
15 45 004,55 2.250.23 A2 TR 42 4066 ETETE  ATEE0Z! 0E538
16 66 914.71 A R4S T4 2,068,597 AB6E661.08  A2SR021  cAS3E
H T7.251.42 A,8E2. 57 73,388.25 A000ADEAE  BMOLD2 09183
18 108,730,895 5,424 85 100,204 40 ATEIATETI  SOSE01 99056
18 44,170.12 2.208.50 £1,561. 52 A T050856 AT CD4eE
2021-22
20 B4 fid 1 B4 273208 51,508.58 AFS4BEERS  MIBR0ZZ 101562
21 137 509,05 6,885,00 130,814,858 847 16700 dMRoEE 101802
22 104 022 45 6,248,132 09, 676.38 44224451  AZSP02? 102168
23 36,758.33 1,537.91 3450042 D408 48518 THALOEE 102081
24 4351293 217470 4133823 3,361,07325  TMAE0RZ 102081
2% 29,780.12 1,450, 51 28 300,51 3332 B33 BMOPORZ 103271
202-23
26 24837408 12.26A.70 233,105.36 308580807  @RIROEE 103803
27 118,329.22 551645 112412 76 POGRATORS  AVRGGE? 103023
28 22481478 19.240.74 21357405 2,743 BES D6 HAR0E 105049
28 38,182 20 1,900, 11 36273068 2,705 452 BE HAR0ZY 105049
an 119,553 548 5a7a N 11381381 25RGAEDDT  IMEMO2I 105119
M 161, 74088 T.507.04 144 153 65 2434 148,58 L5202 106616
32 144,363.30 7.218,18 137 148 14 2RO TREDR  SEIOO2ZI 106117
33 120,505 18 8,029, 31 114 556,84 216019003 SEAIO23 106117
a4 B0, 74615 4,037,311 TE, 708 84 208845208  GROGOZI 106514
s 102,314.34 B.118.7 B67. 10863 1,908, 13064  TRAZIAP 106825
36 5,600,168 4,780.01 8082015 150053048 U023 1073E
37 119,675.79 903,78 113 B62.00 1,7T0BR2ZES  OHAM023 107335
38 70,008 42 B.548.%2 162 418.10 1.500.896.27 Q002033 107486
§ 429607768 S135583.26 5 4170458443
Revised
Contract Changos: Cantract
Original Gontract T§1,778,000.00
Change Order i1 412006
Changa Drder #2 11, 230,44
Change Order #3 18,578.0
Change Order #4 130, 823.50
Change Orcer £5 215,225.00
Change Droer B4 485268
Change Cirder £7 2.440,000.00
Approved pay app 21 (8) 11,760.00
Deducson (pay Bpp 23) {2,B82.28)
Change Order #3 1§, 558,90
Change Order #10 [Time axtersion onky) .
Charge Ordar #11 079,200.00
Change Order #12 286,385.11
4,117,973.95

E SIS ITI0E



£400,000 STATE APPROPRIATION FUMNDS:

e
Sr5Ma
aaa1a
g
arana

araia

Payments by ScurcoThru GRC Pay Reguest 827
5

Furds Risoshed g 40000000
GRC Inc., - Pay Request 81 (5%, T06.80)
GRGC inc. - Pay Roquest 82 {01,628.01)
GREC Ine. - Pay Requesl #3 (123,011,337}
GRE Ing, - Pay Roquest #4 (126,550, 85)
Aocrued Intérest Theough 85315201 330442

Balance of Funds

Slaba Appropriation &3 38442
ECEH Toursm Enhancsmen Granl 50,000.00
ARC Gisstl 437 ATE S0
RD Logn #1 G598 305.73
ECU Coniribution 103,.038.70
Sonia KingWarn Eslate Conlrbution 1A SRl a2

RD Loan #3 Draevs (Interim Finanding Theu Fir 486,860,139 FYIE
RD Lean 82 Draws (Inledim Financing Thiu Fir 1,378 742 27 FYZ3
] 7

S AR OT,



TSMOE ELVITT
LsatTAG PR U Wt WSy SR
0’ MO THISTS IR K8 ' AT

gy
oow
[E i)
=k
O 2 BommpEg PiEE) S5 FLFE
WAL | B e - LAWY 30UEEE 000

98838 388 8% EgEE

BB
g
X

5 §5E§ &% gﬁﬁg

335348

OPTLET  OFRLE'T  OVRLET RS = Fupddpgg e, 01T ipEj iy - apa) dan

DODSEE 00O 0DSE'E Tuyanas w0 AR RERIER 1L Aoy uBnETY] - S daun

MSTIEE  OSEIYIT  OSEEFTL Juniiey Ado] U] F S Tunumg

=1} 4 DOUSE'EL  DODSLET  OOODRLT UDEITULEY B gy (idhuya ge g 1A
sapnp] Fusgine ) uonapeisg gy

LOTAENT  TOOSNVEL 00O OTEFEET Kl JUEANE R W WO WIS D000 Tswnhy Lo ETUED

=1 ]=] BLTBLRE BOORLED  GLTYLE Eansg sty Ldgp Sy Sl ET LOSEIIUDD
oy - deiing mjund pur naugEs

el OOTEL ag oo Augduwag UL wa] | PRERAD G

OFSTE oOSTE 0o oo Aurdwery gueag ] A P by Rty S0

oo DOEEE'ET  DODRLET  DIVDELET Aupdiie sy ELAOT, pausgan ] AUl

wo  oomot |G cveper e iy aues sesa oo

oM ool 00D ps i BAfEES LV AT O SuiTelg

OXOSS'T 0OUSYT 00D Dorose't Aanreyg Ouy eyl TLnufpdh e by

L WESSY  EUIDFEP D000 SER[D g VDT[] SR RRLILE e LT

SEETIT ORTSETL  OFTIIEL SN 150 BiEEntg SET'Y WD LE0'S 2000 B0 W

DODEE'E DOrDOUTL Aagrog 13 1Y OO0 PUT Wiy S0 PuT

DOWLLET  DORLLET SEL SAE P uBGRERL - B | gy

L5 TEEET  LTISEOT L5 LSENT WAED [ T AN DAY AT PO SRR - S0 SUOAGRTH

OOMEY'E  O0EWMOT OOESEL  OEriRE'c A By ELAIE, paudul SUDTLLIEY W ALER

DOTSIT  OTSTT 00U BO0OS'T ey apan | Ry pmsy ey geall el yies) ALY Ly

o5h WFITY SEET Aoking R SIFANE] P ] 5 sEIngE) Leaas
§ ‘SN NG | SRULN T ST g

porpos'r 0opsY QO DOOoEE Fupgenyy purpmruig FOOE] Y SRS upuing

ODODGETE OTI0TE OTLECEE  O0OOD'0E oy g Runeap (M1 Taee0 anGy s LSRRI RN B0 g - § e LU

VLT DFST  SPMEST 00D Juzgdn venRuN SEMISUNDR FITUTIE TEAY Sy

SEERLE  SFWITT Q0D Lo B uklpSury Nl Wl

DOSTE'L DUSLEWT 000SDE DOUDOR AR ursiay Y - EEAA)

JETSEE  LEAS9E  OWRlPS  GOD AT PR, ALY VWA A BRPIRU TR RUDERTY HEUE I - [FH A

DEDSE'L BUSEEL  SEH [ aje s BEEEELT I Ll - g ey ey - PR

¥IUGE  FTGEEE OO0 o0n BT BT | 1583 i - i SR M) g RN EET [T TT

o S5 TF ST (= )] Myddeg Lusimy 393 B A PARIPIG - AW Y g g

ETEr GTEF oo oo N1y WL 15T F] A PRUSRAD BT ST s

IFEOFT  EFEOFY 000 e FUMES kil SR o] A Paisdul - R [t B ETY, (TP

FLROEDL  WUOOEPD OODO0N  odo ] UREESE ] U fmaT A pREing o ) T

05 LBUSET OSLBYSET 000 oSk SN QRN S 8¢ v TTRSE 0OF'SE e upsr g

Raien i ] T T TR E] LT == QLT
Bupsewsy pawpnby o) piydde e a3
EowpE gy -GiSN  Suitue safreunpy
- IR WsasuRedng it
e



G¥ GES I8
P LODEDEL

TId DE viR'0v

D LPSESS rmpEt BRI e
SEwEsL Pitd Saurspoada} DEOE-STSE
B BLEBELE P Sy GLOC-ET00
“tiea 153 SERLSET P S BLOT-C 100
[esssrne Joreeoce swsivesr svsesTay BUGITEID LTSEYONE IVESOOTHFTOOTO
oo (5] g 05E e oo JU) "uncage i
= e oo BELE ’.._”_... oo oo R GRAn) - uanacy L) LS
oo oo ST T9TIST 000 oo T 18Ry
oo B e E.E BOr9EE OO0 LR LIS
o0 (1] BT TOISOE DOEMT 0D amuiay 300y ang pus Junray () yinougs prasgas
OFO0ES  COO0ES 00 MICOTE  DODIOOT oD Sy unumSy B ¥EAd
o o OULCET  OTLEET  DOD oo dging 3eE Mo Ay URWE A 1IN0y
[+ )a] [ 1] 17 Tl 2.9 18 oog oon L) iy
0 00D BEFFE  BSYFE 0OD oo My
o o OXBSET  GOESET  OOD oo R
oL o o OUSEE DOSEE OO - W s aBesn THTTS 0'd
oo oy DERITT P 00D on Funog 1Ay bEpng HED P 0| e wmay
OIS O ONOZY'S  COOEYS  OOOSLS AL S



SIENOWY PIAJAETY Pajuasal] [Ejo],

OF £S5 6EE s FI'155°9 16°T69'91  69°ITF'6IE

W0'zl) (00'09) L - TE6r-00TF1=01 FLEE-0000S-01 OSLT-D0T-01
§L'690'F - HyosT e SLGIED9 preOg SRHE-0000L-01 RELT-00T-01
FE'RERE . PE'BER'E LPGF00TFI-01 LLGE-DD00E-01 STLT-00T-01
[9'8TE'L I E¥l 19°58E°L LOSE-000C1 =01 SCLE-0000E-01 OZLZ-00Z-01
6895591 . 6205591 LIH-00TFI-01 $99E-0000£-01 BILT-00T-01
o618 - " Toals't QEEO-0OTF1-01 €6FE-0000E-01 LILT-DOT-0I
6O 1FES (L 19£) O0ILTT 9IEEE OPGE-00Tr1-01 SLA6E-D000£-01 SILT-00T-01
PR LET 91 = g FRLETON 906F-0001 [-01 SLEFE-0000€-01 S1LT-00T-01
SEE06°L (L azl) D0 FES SHE69'9 TOGI-00TE1-01 9L6E-D000E-01 TILT-00T-01
19 ED6'ST = 00'TLS 19 ISE'SE SOSF000T1-01 B1LE-0000E-01 11LT-00T-01
o1 LOG'ET = G1I°L06'ET Ur-00TF1-01 899£-0000€-01 01LT-00T-01
SPRIST - SFRICT SEHI-DOTTI-01 §96£-0000£-01 GOLT-00Z-01
T999LsL OLOE0'Y  SRGIL'IL 005H-000Z1-01 S1LE-0000£-01 S0LT-00Z-01
00°0FZ'TI - 00T Tl S1S-000Z 101 61LL-0000E=01 LOLT-00Z-01
00 Z8s 11 . 00 g0 OO'FLLLL OTSH000Z1-01 LILE-0000E-01 90LT-00Z-01
05 6LF'OF {0z "000°9) o e 19 FT6 LY 096001 P01 €96E-0000E=01 £0LT-00Z-01
F6109°L] . 00°sLE PE'OTILL OT05-005+1-01 FLLE-0000E-01 TOLT-00Z-01

PLOT | esumjeq pung sunjpuadiy sanmassy  grOp0e9  sannpoadiy anmaaay antasay
ATAE|RH Pajapay=aaa@ny H;.-Imﬁm
wasg o)
JAJSHEL ]
£T0T "0f Jaquadag jo sy
SIUNDIYY JAIIENY IIUB[EE pun
pung [&12ua7)

Y3N010qsIVOL JO UMO ],

[nynneaq yEnouogsauoy daay

=l HIEsapLs Ul
pUn] SSUREIUERY AR
S22 ] UOTEITMEOIENN g H42(

2o WOIRIED HRNEDHE Sd
andzexy puncuddune )

A S A

uoneEneg anjed

5SS WIS UND) S

539 4291 [oos Furata] Sd
siaafong (eady - @usy) Jomag
pun diysiejops Lauuyapy



Town of Jonesborough

Health Reimbursement Account
2023-24 Fiscal Year

Fund
Date General Solid Waste Water/Sewer Total Balance

6/30/2023 5 96,358.27 % 3751334 % 7177149 S 20564310 § 205643.10
Deposit 2. 730,00 750.00 2,310.00 5,790.00 211,433.10
Fees (1,074.44) = (1,074.44) 210,358.66
7172023 (7,047.07) (2,976.50) (10,023.57) 200,335.09
7/31/2023 (3,587.25]) {372.00) (1,522.25) i5,481.50) 194,853.59
T/31/2023 5 8737951 5 37.891.34 5 69,582.74 5 194,853.59
Aug Deposit 2,730.00 750,00 2,310.00 5,790.00 200,643.59
Fees [315.00) [315.00) 200,328.59
B/7r2023 (3,787.93) (3,787.93) 196,540.66
8/14/2023 (11,899.09) (11.899.09) 184,641.57
82172023 {6E6.58) [6BE.58) 183,974.99
8/28/2023 (376.74) [376.74) 183,598.25
8/31/2023 g 8941777 S 22,954.32 % 71,226.16 5 18359825
Sept Deposit 2,730.00 750.00 2,310.00 5,790.00 189,388.25
Fees - 189,388.25
9/1/1023 1,344.99 1,344.99 190,733.24
5/8/2023 {4,128.83) (6,040.95) (10,169.78) 1B0,563.46
9/15/2023 (902.07) {50.00) (952.07) 179,611.39
9/22/1023 (568.00) (2,500.00) (4,068.00) 175,543.39
9/30,/2023 5 8789386 5 23,704.32 5 6394521 § 175,543.39

B/30/2023 Balance 5 205,643.10

Year-to-date HRA Contributions 17.370.00

Year-to-date HRA Fees (1,389.44)

Year-to-date HRA Claims (46,080.27)

9/30/2023 Balance 4 175,543.39




Town of loneshorough

K-8 Schasl Construction Prajecy
Total Loan Drres 33,806,006 37
LEas 0021 Payeaenis [3.415,480.68)
Less MIT1-22 Paymmanis 13,7 EF0Te.0%)
Leas J0TT-23 Paysanis 115 NE,035. 77
Less 0T T-24 Payemenis EI,BIE.EIEH.!I.H
Total Project Paymeniy [RLEN, 165, 65)
1724/ 1001 Transfer from Gereral Fund Ohecking 20,0000
Chemred by check 1054 te Town of lonebarsugh . [ao.o00.00)
Loan Deward Lisis Payments Pl Transler From GF 50,72
Teee Grant Rebmburnement |Expenditure of K-8 relmbursed by prant) 7.870.00
Lo Dewary Leiet Paymanii _ ABEQTE
Batance of Cash oa Hand T
Baksnce of Cash on Hand B/30/2 1
Finnach Checking Aoooun E1 (BAN Procesds Balance DNLY presenbed heee] == -
Pinnacke Checking Acoound 2 o lamsarr
=% Canlaied Ralane of TH Ag Learning Cender Grant. Separsie Froject under depariment Ko, 5500 12A50.72
IMTERIM LOAN FLUMNDS:
Testal Fuorads Aviaila bibe A2, 75000000
Total Draws: [33. 806 0LE 37|
Batance of Loan Funds Avallable E943,383 €3
Balance of Contract With Bursill Consiruction {inchsling regairape) |B,094,599 34|
Balance of Contract With Clark Nexien (219200}
Balsnce of Contract With Burleson Constuction, Inc [RERSE R
Balance of Contract With Teifdark (Kitkan Tquip) .
Balanee of Funds Alves Ceatract Obligations ﬂl!l'lﬂ.‘ll

HOTE: Sumimary presenied abowe. Project detall racking avalabie wpon reguest.



GESTINL S NS0 1T (R i pre e sy D) B WL DODO0 D gy iy el
EACTINEE gy ooepag iy

A IO =
[ T8 L] ARIERY, BTYE Lianng ) Ty sl iy ST 0

]

SOUFELE 10 163 TR 45 B PAITAS LS00 Lo O DO LR .
DG WD S | RO DTS [ Cay DOT'EFE R Bxamsny Badiozor
AR e A T LR Gy DO ST BoTEEL ETRGE W i iy




3L PR [0 TUEnEal FTid Wi PasG RoUn e TUinmInag [ Baun pied pry a0, 5oy

[l lEEoes'tsyl § twlwied 4 oDl %

SUEIYE L9595°98 Appuey wedmTsresLtl  (SCRSCLD)  [vwssked poBau op meg) naeg vl
DYRATIOT DVDONDNE o /i Beg (Do esa'ENT] OO¥EEE0Tl  [vadipng w1 paus) E1507 WO
SLERTESE FEILM ULy pudy 1L B __H_..E.nm_ (0ro0aoE) BN a0 FRO0E
SUETD'ES ELMALT "l puog EXSETIEF  (ED9ZEESe bad 1L WSTTRMEL T
O REE'EN I MO0 ST . LFBEITS  LI9RGOTE) (v WO L E 1) dvastay dynkq quai
G T PEIT MOO ST [noroo'sE) oorono sel U 15
o e FEMSL MO WL [lagia 3 T4 (o0roow ¥ AT
DIrEFd’Ls FETIT MOD WSLT ey ah DO0oa’s e i g
o O 0 alprag [PESBETZ) 5 ToIES'Oe  (sDERSTERT Sy} N
TR i Ve COTONDOT §
BE L TYEL ]
AR ) ANDERY PRI FEAS ] Ty pauug B mie oy e woug pagslieng SETHE = (1)
M2 NTS PEINIUST UMM pavepmby 3 o) I0dIE RdoiNan = (3
siEApun S0 vaey Yl Beily = (g
SRR Tadas s KDY Jipa @ai o )
“SSTESIELT §
ML §8 Y S LT anaidy Wiy ARy L eDg
utapop EUY SPESTISS  § puaaasy BSeany L) Rang
{3l I'H [al ¥l m
SEEISTEET § ITI0E9T  § elioEvid § BYTES'TSEE FOEEYTL O § OTTMYREL S ETTEC'INEE O F RLTORIE § §207 “tg sendmy jo in a3uneg
PR ] 12U RuaMSs  ET0TRTNG
FESPRTERT § ITSOEWE £ ._n..E-..__lh § BYTES'TSE & u..__._.nlu..: £ nﬁ..—____..nln.: ECTRE'IEE & EI'ERLOS  § EE0Z "UE 4nf join s2unen
(5§ 71] wrmapgandny  EI0CITEN
EERE'S] EEEEY S O S5 Maiy KLNDD AEERE  ETOTITENS
20 TStER Lo g b BOERE"Fr A T Y SR CIODTEA
=784 ha T £ soge ma Muney  EEOE0EM
10§ TUng PATURARY « STUIAES DL SnuansE
[eipesgmact] [l Wisd WO WITH WA 04 EEDZESR
SE900 000 [edmd NOTD T 20)] tPun) vy 2001 EEOSWE
Honon0'ns] ropmads Of Wa0 0] BT
[T a ] oY PO moafoud WO 28N NOD IWTS MImoNE  EIOTITLE
1B ZLTET BSILTET JOGR 0 350 Mg AN SIDOERE  ET0LITLIE
e R [Tipi; g msuade N INT VY S0F W4D 01 EFDZSRE
BFIITHEET § TTNEYT  §  WDESOSIE § SUUGLOSYS TETEYIR  § STENMSE § EVIRITER § BEOaRL ET0T “TE MNT J3 BN S3umpeg
EF5LA IR MR ETOTITENL
CEEF ami@aay wiy KK 0] EROMTENE
B idl e MG A AN pin Seeay EDOLTRAL
Inaroon ‘e semuadcy Junmsdn - Wd0 0L ETOTARDIE
[l ige i1 14 [[wifiiafi] [Tl [da3 Bupsed ‘o) AIURC) BN W40 0L ERARMETL
forsreLd Orresl DOFELES (e ey} bsdrchl OO WTERFIUY TEIOREEY  EDODIETAL
rraaE Ay wod SIS 0l EROTAESL
ELSSINET § - § FUEITESR § SOEETLFS OTLSIEBR 0§ - § EUTECLLE 5 LULBET 5 EEOTfoEfa
[T TORUIT) B BpUR] YEEY WON MO0 IDSE pISUEAfY | Bl T pRASEILT
BETZ-00Z-0F Wf TTog warylquney  EnaEg geg gonwdimi g

FEEIDT
STTT-00T-Or/SITT-00T-0%
aniady ey Abucpy 9 junccong iluarg s fag e



AR Lk LT B Rawi o TRl FRIA] L B [P g Py el By JA0H

R S LI FRCSLOULAT £ PR 00 R TLL O eSOt et aray a0 T | St sl s el (ORI TR TisSwaEd 00 T PR 04 RN D0 WD R SN « )
M ESLETETE 138 O L = ]

— 1an mn] Sk By

Terarwa iy Ere [aerdsi ppeng (e ARER

Bl R
LT P RS aaa

Ty P P e
PR« WpLR P
PN - PR § T




. e
B e = T ] vz i | i E e g, i
: 94" P LRSS g ey =
pre— E— PR - P —— . purmnn FLE R A
gl AED M R 800 P O LY LAY B PR Emearua ‘aied B - 4 AT e [ sy bl 1 S el frimiain Wiy vy
] B ety ]
LA A UGy B 45 R LA RO (DAL gl lyl CIBEL O ELRE - Papeny Gy
i 8 iy i B ] TR £ Sl M Wi TR 0, ] R Rl gy 1R s s ey (L iy
Bk s T T e i ]
T N0 R TR T =y =y L
TRl sy o R TR T ]
[ERPY CIRE bmpy whasey  [fajeiipissecy (U we el L) seeploed
TEaaek]  E-NSET  THIFDME  FOMHECE EEERE EORCAE  dpORolNT EORESOl R
WRLETTE AOIETTL W i ern arse L amlasl 15010 -]
WY Mim i T [Ty T T o | [T BT - e
TR TS:Er- 13 O ELE L mmnasy Tapeny iy
FETCRL e T ELL Oy Sltauy ey d g
AL [ o] EEER Wi Seiach Tyl Ansy
ESTT oTIRENL TATRA WL i By e
L T L (TR Moy Tpamy drarar)
R B LTI moveasn gy dpeag
WRCHTIE FNLLEETT LA “F1 Eoman Taapmy dpeeg
BOWED TR - - et B PeTERL . PRI SsnliA T ITL] TR el e ey
T WD | e e T EHETRD TR -
IR PRI e R {1 | e T e T e ]
MY [Eg. atl = P ) N S ST P Mgy
(ELAY P N PRI B T e [y BT AN Lage g ] 5 e ity ity
adnal gEr L Ly YD PR v BE AT L TR i [ EF U L= il
EAEE GRS Bt R i e T dmy
aTeETet R ] NEMEDY Wi e Tagears) Aamnar
SALTE  rTRmn [Tieald WL TR worassn Ty Ay
[ e Hgo e AEAL' 1o sorman Tagmany Loy
DFINETE e BEORRE Big o ELATRSS T W e v ey Ay
130T [igon DT/ ey T Ay
AFRETE IVERLTY EEMELp “on iy, Tagpat | Riateiry
R i i EEHI B Bl Tt My
WEHTD  DEADYDY TR NRATLE ol ity g My
oy (=T ] LA - S g Aenar
IRl CSOETE I - A [ -0 ELSA L - ety Ry
L ] NEESEL rHSE FEEE sl BN HE 1 TSm0
AP B EREEGE TOT O S T O - LH SLRTIOWY - (T T LT Bepany spoageny
FTHi " o [ et Eata ol s B - T ) i Rt
TIEFE 2 = s Epopempan ripua g dswing
T AR TamRA Ll : S EE A
= TR EE ke LL/EE e nplmy fpmac oy sy - pmary
v PR i1 My DO - R ERapae]
MR I sRronn 1570 et ] B o) o Ol B0 L+ shem i
BCERTE I [l T W) N B E - )
-t o ETreE ERFIL « s
e Eges 00 FT0 PR - #s) ppaumy dpanar)
BT WFEORL SO0 RER 1EALNE « s gy dgta)
[=ITT§153 Him 1 ]
s e UL PEs ] ey
C I ] R T T =] wim bl G Aempni)
P iR R PR Ll T T — ] ———ty
- ) et T amE e
[t LT

£
&

FEESEEE P PERERERRREE ©



|




150
Fa g L= 3 H FRFINT T L BT OO0 [+ f o) nE
IR R | TN | T EREET | ~OFNTRRRE TN AR EEE R FEPERRE Y (PR T AREEOAGATE | ORI PR

ETTET Fail woEeey | apaas sp sy | aad g deny | ey ey TR Bursald B3 [ L T ssyp o | eses Suspulay

iy sy | pyspeou rag

FI-LTOD WWEA TYISI
SRENIDON ONY SENNLATE AVTd 40 TINOTHIS
TRIWIHL AHOL RGN KONDEOEEINGT




o adey

BELIAN] BN FINE Y "Ry Mpuual

ORI UORENO NI IS SR Desn e cus camai]

I T TWIOT ¢ TRW T TeieT 7 (PPl § WWete  § WCaee § WLeerer 5 Lo
FHSIE F OEEIFE O MR e vl 8 COBRRNL p dgapeel @ @EURELY % LODON
ZoiesE B EUEIEE § [voestll § nE § fmscrl & Eus's F WSADEEN B (NEEE D
£ SEELE § ¥

oSl §F RLBOED  F IBFOeNL & REWEE £ ezl & LT B oD

[T

lzrsaceer

n - 1= = F
[ (1] L BeE FiE 1% g el ol aip 1] L L]
SIEERAR e ERREOOSEEal || iR odoed e | S Saaai Ol | RR OO
p| 47T wEIT mEEUy | EEeo 51 oay | B A0 R HET R Sauw, BEED -l gaapiry AuerEy e TRy i T || e Bl
Spieged | pRnsvaa Ly
FEITOE WWEA TvIS3d

FIGHIAET ONY FANNIATH AV Ta 40 ITNORDE
FULYIHL AB0LMIHTH HONDUO0aSINDT



TOWNMN OF PONESBORDUGH
Z023-24 IAT PLAYERS EDUCATION PROGRAM

Balance 7L 1D 14

Epvanues §-10-30000- B559:

luly

Thisatie Gl P [Grges]

Theatre (Rass Fees [Town portion regalned 10%)

Frucation Werkshos

RETURNED CHECKS

Tartal Juby I 3
Augu

Theatre Cats Fees (Gross) 455,275.00

Theatre Taw Fees (Town portion retained 2096)

Edboration Waerkshep

RETURRL D CHECKS

Toad Assgiist S4B, 17500
September

Theatre Caa Foes {Gromes) 51.300.00
Thaatre Claia Fees {Town portios retalogd J00%|

Edhscathon Wiarkohop

Fundemaer

Tanad Bepbembes SED:LIII

Total Revenues mim ]

Eapendiberes & 10-14300-83 %5

oy

[efucation Mrecter Mipend

5% Class Fees - Bdscation Directoe

1650 Ticket fee - Education Disector Sk aa)
AT Player Payments

INT Player Markating

AT Education Teadser Paymants

Camp Expenie LS
ass Expanse

Fudy gt

Tatal July Sa5 80)
Aupat

[ducation Director Rigand

5% Class Fees - Education Director S50
10% Ticket Feesd - Education Direciod

IRAT Plasr Payimises

AT Plaryes Marketing.

JAT Education Teacher Paymenss 516, 750.00]
Camg Expania SIRESH)
s Evperas S[2.997.349)
Fursfratuer

Total August SIEE
Soptmmisar

Education Direcior Stpend

5% Chna Fee - Educifion Director
1% Thcket feses - Education Director
INT Maryws Paymnts

IRT Flaryer Marketing

IRT Edueation Teaches Paymenty
Camp Experas

Clang Expendn

Fundrater

Tatal Srptrmber -

Total Exzenditune S[5.014.68)
Balare ol Fundi §14,421. 56

Reviewed ard spprowed by lanetie Gaines, IRT Education Dinector

lanwette Galnes, Tducation Dinscher Dte



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES
2023 WETLANDS WATER PARK SEASON
01/01/2023 THROUGH 9/22/2023

Monthly YTD

Month Revenues  Expenditures Incomel(Loss) Incomel/{Loss)
January, 2023 b = $ (7.05125)|% (7.051.25)|% (7.051.25)
February, 2023 - (13,262.09) (13,262.09) (20,313.34)
March, 2023 1,175.00 (47.710.22) (46,535.22) (66,848.56)
April, 2023 5,760.23 (28,739.11) (22,978.88) (89,827 .44)
May, 2023' 15,289.93 (74,933.08) (59,633.13) (149, 460.57)
June, 2023° 172,204.75 (165,256.34) 7,038.41 (142 422.16)
July, 2023 220,528.69 (89,264 .86)] 131,263.83 {11,158.33)
August, 2023 49,254.05 (100.,275.73) (91,021.68) (62,180.01)
Seplember, 2023 11,149.85 (47,234.38) (36,384.53) (98,564.54)
October, 2023 . n - =
Movembear, 2023 - - - -
December, 2023 - - - -

Total $ 47546250 § (574,027.04) § (98,564.54)

Adjustments (Non-recurring ltems)

Capital Qutlay:;

Camera System
Computer System

Ductwork repair and
new 5 ton system

Debt Payments
Principal
Interest

Total Adjustments

Adjusted Total

11,379.70
14,760.99

26,233.00

32.400.00
1,189.46

85,963.15

$ 47546250 % !4&3.&53.89} $ (12,601.39)

"Includes $13,849 for new lifeguard umbrellas, lounge chairs (54) and fanback chairs (48)

and step ladders (4)

Includes &8,657 for water heaters, fryer and griddle




Jonesborough Locally Grown
Profit and Loss by Class

Januany - August, 2023

BOOMNE ST MET FARMERS MET LOCALLY GROWN TOTAL

Income
Fundralsing Evants £0.00
Farm to Table Dinner Sponsors 16,000.00 $16,000.00
Farm to Table Dinnar Ticket Sales 20,267.40 £20,267 .40
Ratfle Sales 196.00 $196.00
Special Dinners/Events 3,288.77 $3,280.77
Sponsorships 5,850.00 $5,850.00
Tetal Fundralsing Events 5,850.00 38,752.17 $45,602.17
Grants $0.00
Build It Up Relmursement 3,350.00 715.00 $4,065.00
DUFE Aeimbursamant 62,00 580,00 §1,272.00
FMPP [LISDA) 26,035.06 08, (135,06
NKC Reimbursement 1,115.74 $1,115.74
Produce Prascription Redemption 340.00 335.00 $675.00
SCBG (thru TDA) 3,002.43 $3.002.43
TAEP {thru TDA) 1,500.00 £1,500.00
Tawn of Jonesharough - Utilities 2,708.%3 £2.708.33
Total Grants 10,002.76 4,245.74 26,035.06 $40,373.56
Mamberships 7.981.27 $7.681.27
Other Contributions £0.00
Amazon Smike 152.45 $152.45
Credil card cash back 300.00 $300.00
Donation - genaral 326 91 14.00 13,044,15 §13,385.06
Danations - designatad 400.00 £400.00
Farm Fresh Fit Walking Program 6.0 10,007 .00 210,013.00
Intarest Eamed 148.24 $148.24
Total Other Contributions 732.91 10,021.00 13,644.84 $24,390.75
Pregram Sarvice Revenue S0.00
Loca food sales 219,808.71 £219,598.71
BSM ovanis 57160 £571.80
Catering 1,850.00 £1.850.00
Token Sakes for FM 10,681.00 25,00 £10,706.00
Total Local food sales 222 42031 10,681.00 2500  $233,126.31
Pragram Fes Incoma £0.00
Vandor Faes 2,701.17 3,895.45 $6.696.62
Tolal Program Fee Income 2,701.17 3,995.45 $6.696.62
Total Program Sesvica Revenus 225 121.48 14,676.45 2E00 23982293
14

Cash Basis Friday, Seplember 22, 2023 03:43 P GMT-04;00



Jonesborough Locally Grown

Profit and Loss by Class
January - August, 2023

BOOME 5T MKT  FARMERS MHKT LOGALLY GROMWN TOTAL
Salas of Promotional Products 881,80 201300 185,00 £3,079.80
Total Income $236,828.95 $36,606.18 $8TE2334  $381,.258.48
GROSS PROFIT $236,828.95 $36,806.18 $87623.34 $361,258.48
Expanzes
Admintsirative £0.00
Accounting Feses 1,250.00 $1,250.00
Donor Management Soltwans Fea'Expanse 20z1g $2.012.19
inswrranca $0.00
Board of Directors Insurance (ML VemonfISLE) 573.00 £573.00
e ; e tintn Ty
Meeling expanse 72 £10.72
Pestage, Mailing Servich 2340 $23.40
Profezsional mamberships 5,00 $75.00
Taxes and License Faas £0.00
Annual Hegistration Fee 325.95 2048 346,41
Business Licensa Fen 210,00 $210.00
Charitabla Solicitation Fae 10,00 $10.00
Sales Tax Pald 6,600.00 $8,600.00
Total Taxes and Liconss Feos B,52585 24096 $9,166.41
Total Administrative 8,825.05 418477  $13,110.72
cash an hand 0,00 0.00 £0.00
Facililias and Equipmani §0.00
Property Expense §0.00
Computeriprinter'alacironics 75,00 S75.00
Maintenanca and Repalr Costs £ 18202 &7 18202
Total Proparty Expensa 7,192.02 7500  §7,267.02
LHilities §0.00
Elactric 6,367,710 §6,367.70
Gas BEZ 35 $BE2.35
Phonafintemal 81998 o108
Total Utilities 8,149.23 $8,149.23
Total Faciliies and Equipmant 15,341,285 75.00 §15416.25
Operations $0.00
Bank and Cradit Cand Fees 4.623.18 3184 10.64 54,065,656
Farm fo Table Dinnar Expanses. 145100 3.016.43 23116143
Mileage'Travel expenses 132.51 124.92 283,87 §521.30
Musicians 150.00 S00.00 $1,050.00
Printing 26838 32610 £504.48
24

Cash Basis Friday, Seplember 22, 2023 03:43 PM GMT-04:00



Jonesborough Locally Grown

Profit and Loss by Class
January - August, 2023

BOONE STMKT  FAAMERS MKT  LOCALLY GROWN TOTAL
Program Expense (lood) §0.00
Catering 57.66 §57.66
Danation In-Kind (JAMA) 78.78 §78.78
oTC 80,580.67 §90,580.67
Evenis 1.366.30 164.01 £1,530.31
Kitchen 10,672.86 §10,572.66
Wholazale £9,719.05 §69,719.05
Total Program Expansa (food) 172,405 54 2278 $172B848.30
Program Expansa (non-lood) 50.00
Fasm Frash Fit Walking Expenses 10,523.73 £10,523.73
Token Paymants for FM 14,370.00 2400  $14,414.00
Total Program Expanse (non-food) 24,883.73 44.00  §24,837.73
FPromations £0.00
Advertising 100.00 4,050.00 1,078.52 55,228 52
Promolional Materials 45.00 17000 B0.00 £275.00
Promaotional Products (-shirts, totes, cookbooks) 2,280.43 §2,280.43
Total Premotions 145,00 4,220.00 341895  §7,783.95
Sarvice Expenses $0.00
Dishwasher 2 655,85 52 655,65
Kilchan Linans 91214 01294
Pest Cantral 128.00 §128.00
Shopkeep 803,00 $503.00
Subscriptions/Shopping Memberships 104,93 §104.53
Weab hosting/servicas 780.90 S0 00

Total Service Expanses 4,568.99 90483  $5500.82
Special Dinner Expenses B90.36 $59:0.36
Supplies T9.89 13,16 56305
Cleaning Supplies 178.51 S178.51
Food Service Consumables 3,168.18 $3.168.18
Kitchen Supplios 127.78 §127.78
Office Supplies a71.48 21.99 $353.47
Paper Products B45.62 $645.62
Tatal Supplies 457146 12,18 21.89 $4,606.61

Total Operations 186,771.68 30,752.03 B930.06  $226.463.67

Paersonngl Expanses £0.00
Empioyees $0.00
Houry 26,025.57 1922724  £45.252.81
Salaried 21,119.00 £21,119.00
IRA match 1,560.00 $1.560.00
Total Salaried 22 679.00 $22,679.00

Total Employees 48,704.57 16,227.24  $67,931.81

Cash Basis Friday, September 22, 2023 03:43 PM GMT-04:00

ard



Jonesborough Locally Grown

Profit and Loss by Class
January - August, 2023

BOONE ST MKT FARMERS MET LOCALLY GROYWN TOTAL

Payroll Expense 10,930.66 $19,930.66
Unamployment Tax {SUTA) a2e.71 2267
Total Payroll Expanse 20,267.97  $20,257.37
QuickBooks Direct Deposit Fea 117.25 $117.25
Wu-ﬂ_um Comp Insurance [ AccidanFund) 1,457.00 £1.457.00
Total Personnel Expenses 4B,704.57 41,058,856 $89,783,43
Tolal Expanses $250,743.45 $30,752.03 §54,050.50  $344,754,07
NET OPERATING INCOME §-22,914.50 $6,054.18 $33,364.75  $16,504.41
MET INCOME §-22.814.50 $6.054.18 £33,364.75 $16,504.41

Caszh Basiz Friday, Seplember 23, 2023 03:43 PM GMT-04:00

a4



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #;___2-a

SUBJECT:_Mavor Communications — Committee Appointment

Historic Zoning Commission

Appoint Nita VanTil to fill an unexpired term due to a resignation with the term
expiring September 2027.

Re-appoint Rebecca Moss and Chris Bassar with both terms expiring March 2028,



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #:___ 6-A

SUBJECT: 2™ Reading — Amend Title 11, Chapter 5, Section 11-516B, Municipal Code

BACKGROUND:

On July 10, 2023, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen adopted several amendments to
the Municipal Code found in Title 2, Alcoholic Beverages. The amendment is to delete
Section 11-516B of Title 11, Chapter 5§ in its entirety and replace with a new Section 11-
516B. To date, the Planning Commission has recommended approval, and the BMA
has passed on first reading.

The Ordinance is attached, and | am providing a snapshot of the main section that was
amended:

Current

(d) Markets, package or other stores selling retail beer; provided there is no external
signage advertising beer (beverages with five percent (5%) alcohol or less) or individual
varieties of beer. Note: Internal signage advertising beer or beer varieties, even signs
inside glass windows facing the exterior, are permitted,

Amendment

{d) Markets, package or other stores selling retail beer; provided there is no extemnal
signage advertising beer as defined in Section 2-201 of Title 2, Chapter 2 of the
municipal code or individual varieties of beer. Note: Internal signage advertising beer or
beer vanieties, even signs inside glass windows facing the exterior, are permitted.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the amendment to the Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 11, Chapter 5,
Planning and Zoning, Section 11-516B, as presented on second and final reading.



ORDINANCE NO.2023-12

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH MUNICIPAL CODE,
TITLE 11, ENTITLED “"PLANNING AND ZONING™” BY DELETING SECTION 11-516B
OF CHAPTER S INITS ENTIRETY AND REPLACING WITH A NEW SECTION 11-516B

SECTION 1. BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEMN
OF THE TOWN OF JONESEOROUGH, TENNESSEE, that Title 11 of the Jonesborough
Municipal Code, entitled "Planning and Zoning” is amended by deleting Section 11-516B
of Chapter 5 in its entirety and replacing with a new Section 11-516B as follows:

11-516B. R-4A (Special Transition) Residential District. (1) It is the intent of this district
to allow residential property in areas along major arterial routes, gateways into
Jonesborough and especially at the intersection of what are or could be the intersections
of major arterial routes, with adjacent nearby commercial properties or what the planning
commission may determine to be logical locations for some fulure commercial activity, to
be used for non-residential purposes; provided that they meet applicable standards, the
residential nature and character of any existing structure housing said non-residential
activity is not changed and that new construction meets the standards and guidelines
established for the R-4A zone. The requirements for the district are designed to protect
the essential residential, historic, and aesthetic characleristics of the area. In order to
achieve the intent of the R-4A (Special Transition) Residential District, as may be shown
on the zoning map of the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee, the following uses are
permitted:

(@) Any use permitted in an R-4 (Transition) Residential District, also with the
exception of mobile homes and mobile home parks and warehouse structures which are
expressly prohibited.

(b) Restaurants or eating establishments with more than seventy-five (75) seats
that may have pick-up windows but not external menu boards and outside intercom type
ordering.

{c) Markets that also sell gasoline or fuels but with no repair or service component;
provided that:

(1) Detailed lighting plans are submitted with the initial site plan that shows
a minimal approach to site lighting while maintaining reasonable safety standards.

(i) Freestanding monument signs are no more than ten feet (10 in height
and with a single side sign face totaling no more than seventy (70) square feet and
any electronic messaging indicating gas prices only and a minimum of time
between message changes of six (6) seconds with no transition time between
changes. The board of zoning appeals upon consideration of the critera
established in § 11-516A(14)(i) of the R-4 zone ordinance may authorize a
variance of up to twenty-five percent (25%) of the sign face square footage and
height restrictions.



(iii) Building mounted signage meets the current sign ordinance standards
for commercial properties.

{d) Markets, package or other stores selling retail beer, provided there is no
external signage advertising beer as defined in Section 2-201 of Title 2, Chapter 2 of the
municipal code or individual varieties of beer. Note: Internal signage advertising beer or
beer varieties, even signs inside glass windows facing the exterior, are permitied,

(&) Shopping centers with more than three (3) business units per building andfor a
building with more than a maximum of five thousand (5,000) square feet; provided that:

(i} A master plan of the entire property is submitted to the planning
commission for approval showing all building locations and building sizes to be
constructed initially, if in phases,

and all building locations and sizes intended with a complete build-out of the site. Any
changes in the initial master plan for the property must be approved by the planning
commission.

(i1} An architectural drawing of the design of the buildings showing external
details and also indicating design efforts to reduce the effect of massing on the
appearance of any building over five thousand (5,000) square feet, is submitted to
the planning commission for approval.

(i) The architectural drawing of each building to be constructed in the
project or initial phase that is submitted meets the standards and guidelines for
building in an R-4 zone, other than building size.

(iv) No individual business considered a "big box retailer,” or over fifteen
thousand (15,000) square feet is permitted.

(f) Unless specified otherwise above, all other uses listed in § 11-516A(13) of the
R-4 zone ordinance are also prohibited in an R-4A zone.

{2) The standards and guidelines govemning the design of new development and
improvements to existing developments shall be the same standards and guidelines
adopted for the R-4 zone. In addition, the following conditions also apply to development
in an R-44 zone:

(a) Properties in an R-4A District to be used for non-residential purposes must
meet the criteria established in § 11-516A(14) of the R-4 zone ordinance, with the
exceptions otherwise established in this chapter including the following exceptions on
setback reguirements.

(i) R-4A developments that involve a master site plan including multiple
buildings may request variances on setback requirements; provided that a
buffering plan is indicated in the site plan and the current use of adjoining
properties is identified and future use projected showing how the R-4A
development will not negatively impact adjoining property owners.



(i} The setbacks variances requested can be justified based on topography,
highway or street considerations, and/or the attention given to providing functional
open space and beautification,

(b) Developments within a R-4A zone that involve multiple buildings and the
submittal of a master site plan, may request a separate freestanding development sign
on the following conditions:

(i) The single side of the sign face is not more than one hundred (100)
square feet,

(i) The sign is a monument sign not more than twelve feet (12') in height.

(i} The sign advertises the general name of the complex or development
and not individual businesses.

(c) Developments within a R-4A zone that involve multiple buildings and the
submittal of a master site plan must include within the site plan a pedestrian access plan
showing the following:

(i) How pedestrians from adjoining properties can safely access the
development.

(i) How pedestrians can safely access all buildings and parking areas within
the development.

(iily The location of all sidewalks and walkways.

(v} To what extent pedestrians can be separated from vehicular traffic
within the development.

(v) Any possible connection to the town's walkway system (Lost State
Scenic Walkway) where applicable.

(d) Developments within the R-4A zone that involve multiple buildings and the
submittal of a master site plan must include within the site plan a detailed point or points
of vehicular access to the property showing steps taken to maximize safe ingress and
egress to the arterial route(s) and any connecting side streets.

(e) Developments within the R-4A zone that involve multiple buildings and the
submittal of a master site plan, must also submit the following:

(i) Locations on the site plan in which landscaping will be planted or
constructed.

(i} A landscape/beautification plan showing the location of plant material,
including trees, and efforts to blend the development into the natural environment.



(iii) Beautification of points of ingress and egress.

(f) The street lighting must be underground and the type of street light fixture
submitted with the site plan. (as added by Ord. #2012-01, Feb. 2012)

SECTION 2. That this Ordinance shall become effective immediately from and after
its passage as provided by law.

Motion was made by _Alderman Causey and seconded _Alderman Dickson  that the
preceding ordinance be adopted on first reading. Those veting for the adoption thereof

were:_Alderman Causey, Alderman Dickson, Alderman Countermine and

Alderman Wolfe
Those voting against;

PASSED ON FIRST READING June 30, 2023

Motion was made by and seconded by
that the preceding ordinance be adopted on first reading. Those voting for the adoption
thereof were:

Those voting against:

PASSED ON SECOND READING

CHUCK VEST, MAYOR
ATTEST:

JANET JENNINGS, TOWN RECORDER

APPROVED AS TO FORM

JAMES R. WHEELER, TOWN ATTORNEY



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN

AGENDA PRESENTATION
DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #: 6-B

SUBJECT: 2™ Reading — Amend Title 11, Chapter 5, Section 11-517D, Municipal Code

BACKGROUND:

On July 10, 2023, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen adopted several amendments to
the Municipal Code found in Title 2, Alcoholic Beverages. The amendment is to delete
Section 11-517D of Title 11, Chapter 5 in its entirety and replace with a new Section 11-
517D. To date, the Planning Commission has recommended approval, and the BMA,
has passed on first reading.

The Ordinance is attached, and | am providing a snapshot of the main section that was
amended:

Current

(1) These facilities are defined as follows: A facility that manufactures intoxicating
liquors including alcohol, spirits, liquors, wines and every liquid or solid, patented or not,
containing alcohol, spirits, liquor or wine, and capable of being consumed by human
beings, but nothing in this section shall be construed or defined as including or relating
to the manufacture of any beverage with alcohol content of five percent (5%) or less,

Amendment

{1} These facilities are defined as follows: A facility that manufactures intoxicating
liquors including alcohol, spirits, liquors, wines and every liquid or solid, patented or nof,
containing alcohol, spirits, liqguor or wine, and capable of being consumed by human
beings.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the amendment to the Jonesborough Municipal Code, Title 11, Chapter 5,
Planning and Zoning, Section 11-517D, as presented on second and final reading.



ORDINANCE NO._2023-13

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH MUNICIPAL CODE,
TITLE 11, ENTITLED “PLANNING AND ZONING" BY DELETING SECTION 11-517D
OF CHAPTER 5N ITS ENTIRETY AND REPLACING WITH A NEW SECTION 11-517D

SECTION 1. BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
OF THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE, that Title 11 of the Jonesborough
Municipal Code, entitied *Planning and Zoning" is amended by deleting Section 11-517D
of Chapter 5 in its entirety and replacing with a new Section 11-517D as follows:

11-517D. Distilling Company Owverlay Disfrict. It is the intent of this district to provide
suitable locations for the possible operation of a distilling company meeting all state and
federal requirements that legally manufactures and sells intoxicating liquors within the
corporate limits of the Town of Jonesborough.

(1) These facilities are defined as follows: A facility that manufactures intoxicating
liquors including alcohol, spirits, liquors, wines and every liquid or solid, patented or not,
containing alcoheol, spirits, liguor or wine, and capable of being consumed by human
beings.

{2) In order to achieve the intent of the Distilling Company Overlay District, the
requirements of this overlay district are established to locate any manufacturer of
intoxicating liquors in an appropriate location that is deemed suitable for such purpose;
enhancing the local economy, increasing the potential of the town, while ensuring the
safety and general welfare of visitors and residents.

The privilege tax payment of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) is established by
ordinance 2014-02, March 2014 in order to be licensed with the town to engage in the

manufacturing of intoxicating liquors.

(3) The DC Overlay District when approved will be shown on the zoning map of
Jonesborough.

{4} The underlying properties of the overlay zone will normally be a business or
manufacturing zone.

(5) The DC overlay may be within the historic district, especially when the operation
is developed to accommodate tourists, and there is a retail component that can enhance
the economic well-being of Jonesborough's historic downtown area.

(6) Distilling company facilities can be located in the DC overlay zone; provided:

{a) The manufacturing facility meets all state and federal requirements for the
legal manufacture and sale of intoxicating liquors.

(b) The manufacturing building is five hundred feet (500°) from an active
church or school, as measured directly from building to building, unless in a B-2
Central Business District where this distance requirement building to building is
one hundred fifty feet (150°).



{c) A site plan and map is submitted to the Jonesborough Regional Planning
Commission for approval providing the following information:

(i) The availability of parking.
(i) Adequate pedestrian access.

(iii) Schematic of building showing location on property, setbacks,
street access, exterior lighting, any changes impacting drainage and
stormwater management and utilities.

(iv) Odor control plan.

(v) General overview of business plan including any area for retail
liquor sales.

(vi) If in the historic district, approval is required from the historic
zoning commission on any exterior building improvements and signage.

{(d) The Jonesborough Regional Planning Commission reviews and approves
the site plan and the use of the property for a distilling company manufacturing intoxicating
liquors.

{e) A landscape plan must be submitted to the tree and townscape board and
be approved before a regular certificate of occupancy is issued. (as added by Ord.
#2014-02, March 2014)

SECTION 2. That this Ordinance shall become effective immediately from and after
its passage as provided by law.

Mation was made by Alderman Countermine and seconded Alderman Dickson that the
preceding ordinance be adopted on first reading. Those voting for the adoption thereof

were:;_Alderman Countermine, Alderman Dickson, Alderman Causey and
Alderman Wolfe

Those voling against:

PASSED ON FIRST READING June 30, 2023

Maotion was made by and seconded by
that the preceding ordinance be adopted on first reading. Those voting for the adoption
thereof were:

Those voting against:

PASSED ON SECOND READING

CHUCK VEST, MAYOR



ATTEST:

JANET JENNINGS, TOWN RECORDER

APPROVED AS TO FORM

JAMES R. WHEELER, TOWN ATTORNEY



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN

AGENDA PRESENTATION
DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #:__7-A

SUBJECT: Amendment #2 — Community Development Partners — Consulting Contract

BACKGROUND

Community Development Partners, LLC (CDP) has been working with the town on
several projects within our water utility system to include AMI/AMR, water transmission
main, and water treatment plant. The attached Amendment #2 was submitted in May of
2023; however, it has not been fully executed. COP representative Evan Sanders has
provided a breakdown of Amendment #2 increasing their consulting contract by $70,000
which includes their services for the easement acquisitions needed for the water
transmission main project, and services related to the TDEC ARPA funding. In short,
CDP services are for:

$60,000 Admin for direct allocation of ARPA funding (original contract)
$10,000 USDA Environmental (Amendment #1 - already approved)
$20,000 Transmission main easement services (Amendment #2)
$50,000 TDEC ARPA admin (Amendment #2)

All of these costs will come out of the direct allocation of ARPA, funding.

All the consulting services being rendered by CDP relative to our water utility system’s
ongoing projects are essential to our continued positive progressive movement.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Amendment #2 in the amount of $70,000.00 to consulting contract between
Community Development Pariners, LLC and Town of Jonesborough, Tennessesa, as
presented.



AMENDMENT #2
TO
COMSULTING CONTRACT
BETWEEN COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS, LLC
AND
TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE

This Consulting Contract, by and between COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PARTMERS, LLC

and the TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE Is hereby deleted in is entirety and
replaced with the Consulting Contract attached hereto. For the purposes of;

1. ARTICLE IV-COMPENSTATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT, this seclion s hereby
amended to increase the tolal compensation from Seventy Thousand Dollars ($70,000) to One
Hundred and Forty Thousand Dollars (140,000,

2, To include all applicable ARPA Terms and Conditions

The effective date of this amandmeant is December 22, 2021. The other terms and canditions of
this agreement nol expresshy amended hereby shall remain in full force and effect.

INAWITHNESS WHEREQF;

TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH

By.

Mayor

Aftest:

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS, LLC,

By: g‘“ ﬂﬂ ﬂ“"é’"

President

ot Lewu,ad—ﬂu—




CONSULTING CONTRACT

between
Community Development Partners, LLC
and
Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee

THIS CONSULTING CONTRACT, entered inlo a5 of this 22nd day of December, 2021
by and bebyeen COMBMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PARTHERS, LLC FCONSLLTANTY
and the Town of Jonasborough, TENNESSEE (CCLIENTT). The Contract peralins to the
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAM ACT (ARPA).

Whareas the CLIENT daesires o engage lhe CONSULTANT bo render professional
administralive consulting zervices (professional sendces) and Io sdvise the CLIENT on
the CLIENT'S compkance with funding allocated under the Coronavirus Stabe and Local
Fizcal Recovery Fund [(SLFRF) of the Amencan Rescue Plan Acl (ARPAY: and the
CONSULTANT agrees 1o provide such prolessional advice bo the CLIENT, Therafore, the
CLIENT and the CONSULTANT do madually agres as follows:

ARTICLE 1 - SCOPE of SERVICES for ADMINISTRATIVE CONSULTING
ASSISTANCE

The CONSULTANT shall provide professional sdministralive senices o the CLIENT 1o
asaigl the Clenl in complying with the ARPA, Including, bul nof limited to, the activilies

described in Attachment A

ARTICLE Il - TIME for PERFORMAMNCE

Tha services fo be provided shall commenca upon axecution of this Conlract by boath
parties and will remain in effect wnlil complation and doseout of ARPA activities unless
earlier terminated in wriling by alther pary pursuant to Arkcle Wia) ar (b)),

ARTICLE Il - GENERAL PROVISIONS

a, Personnel: The CONSULTANT warranls that it has the professional personned
cagabily of perdonming the services as called for herain, in a salisfactory and propes
manner, of will secure the senvices of such personnel as may be requred lo
parform these sandcas.

b, Subcontracting: ko work of serices covered by this Confract shall be suboon-
tracied without the prior consenl of the CLIENT. Any work or sanices subcon-
trached hersunder shall be spacified by writlen agreement and shall be subject 1o
aach provision of this Contract.

¢, Access bo Materials: The CLIENT agrees fo make available o lhe
CONSULTANT any documents, planning maferials, or any other information in ita
possession or othensise readiy available which has a bearing on the ARPA
funding for the CLIENT, al no expense to the CONSLUL TANT,

ARTICLE IV = COMPENSATION and METHOD of PAYMENT

For services rendered under this Contraci, the CLIENT agrees 1o pay the
CONSULTANT for all cosls, bolh direct and indired], aliributable lo the servicos rendered
{a= described in ARTICLE | of this Contract). Such paymeni shall ba due upon the
preseniation of perodic invsices cerlifying swch amounts are due and payable. The total
amount to be paid undar this section for services and costs shall be One Hundred and
Forly Thousand Collars (5140,000).



ARTICLE ¥ = TERMS and CONDITIONS
a. Termination of Contract for Cause/Breach of Contract If either parly falls 1o

d

fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligaticns under thizs Conbract, or if a party
breaches ary of the covenanls, agresments, or stipulations of this Contracd, tha
nan-breaching parly shall thereupon have the righl 1o lerminate this Conltract only
if such bresch % ol cuned within ten (10) days from recelpd of writian nolice from
the nonbreaching parly 1o the bréaching pary of such breach. In such an avanl,
all finsshed o unfinished documents, data, sludes, surveys, drawings, maps,
modals, photographs, and reports or olher materals prepared by the
CONSLTL TANT undar this Contract shall, at the oplion of the CLIENT, become (he
CLIENT's propedy, and lhe CONSLULTANT shall be enfiled lo receiw
compenaation for any work complabed on such decuments or matenial ar slhensise
thraugh the date of termination.

Termination for Convenienca: The CLIENT or CONSLL TANT miay terminate (his
Conlract al any time by giving written nolice of such lerminalion and speciying fhe
affeclive date thereof at leasd fiflean (15) days prior to the affective dabe of such
terrnination. In such case, all finished or undinished docemends and other malerials
a5 dexcribed In the abowe clausa, shall, at the discredion of the CLIENT, become
CLIEMT'S progarly.

Ifihe Confract ks ferminated by the CLIENT as provided herain, the CONSULTANT
shall be enfiled o receive compensalion for any work compleded on such
documents and materials or ofherwise through the date of lerminaficn, The
COMNSULTANT shall also be reimbursed (in addition fo the above paymenl) for thal
podtion of the aclual oul-of-pocket expensas nod olherwize eimbursed under this
Conract, Ihal hve been incurmed by the COMSUL TANT during the Contract period
and are directy altribulabls 1o the uncompleted porion of the services covered by
this Cond gl

. Changes: The CLIENT may periodically requesi changes of (he

CONSLLTANT In the Scope of Senices to be performed hereunder. Such
changes, of renegotiathon, iIncluding any Increasa or decraase in the amount of the
CONSLLTANT S compensation mufeally agreed upon by and between the
CLIENT and the CONSULTANT, shall be incorporated in writlen Amendments 1o
this Contract. The Coniract can be exiended under mulually agreed provisions
through a writtan Amandmant Lo this documanl.

Assignability: The CONSUL TANT shall not assign any Inberast on ihis Conirac
and shall nod ransder any Interest n the zame withoul the prior witlan consent of
the CLIENT, provided, however, that claims for money by the CONSUL TANT from
the CLIENT undar this Conlract may be assigned o a bank, trusl company, of
olhar firancial instution withoad such approval. Writlen nolice of any such
assignment or transfer shall be promptly fumished fo the CLIENT,

Confidentiality: All of the reports, infarmalion, data, ele,, given to, prepared, or
assemblad by the CONSULTANT under this Conlracl ane confidential, and Ihe
COWSULTANT agrees thal they shall not be made available to any ndividual of
organization witheut the prior wrilten approvel of the CLIENT, subject to applicabla
legeal requiremints,

Publication, Reproductien and Use of Material: No malerial produced i whole
or in part unders this Contract shall be subject fo copyright by or on behadf of (ha
COMSULTANT In the United Slates or in any other coundry. The CLIENT shall
have unresiricled aulhorily to publish, disclese, distibute, and cihensise use, in
whaole or In parl, any reports, dala_ or odher matertals prepared under this Contract.



ARTICLE VI = COMPLIANCE with APPLICABLE LAWS and REGULATIONS

Regulations: The CONSULTANT shall comply with applicable laws, regulalions
ordinances, and coedes of the Linited States Geovernmenl, the State of Tennessea,
and local govarmmenlt(s] with respact to the CONSULTANT'S engagemenl &k 4
cangultant to the CLIENT hereundar, incleding those ciled in thes Ariche W,

Audits and Inspection/Access {0 Records/Record Retention; A1 any lime
during normal business hours, the CONSUL TANT shall make records with respect
b matters covared by this Contract available 1o the CLIENT for examination,

The CONSLNLTANT shall ratain a8 documenls, papers, and records which an
direclly pertinent o this Contracl for 8 pediod of five (5) years follewing complelion
of the contracted work amnd expiration of tha Conlract,

Title VI Civil Rights Act of 1964: Undaer Tille V1 of the Civil Rights Acl of 1864,
mo perscn shall, on the grounds of race, color or national ongin, be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benafits of, or be subjected o discriminadion under
any program of sctivity recaiving Faderal financial assistiance.

The CONSLUE TANT ehall be in compliance with the CLIENT z Titla V1 policy of non-
dEscriminalion on (he basis of race, codor, nathonal orgin, age, sex, or disabildy in
fls hiving and employrnen practices, of In admission to, access to, or operation of
ils programs, services, of aciivilies

The Fair Housing Act, Title Vill of the Civil Rights Act of 1958 (42 US5.C, §§
A801 et seq.); This acl prohibils dizcrimination in housing based on race, color,
raligion, nafional arign, sex, familial status, or disability.

. Interest of Members of the CLIENT and Other Local Public Officials; No

afficer, membes, or employee of tha CLIENT,; no member of the local governing
body, and no ofher public official of the governing body of the locality or localilies
in which tha prejec! is sfuated or being carrled out, who exercises any functions
or responsibilfies in the review o approval of the undenaking or carrying out of
this projecl, shall participate m any decision relaling io this Confract which affects
his personal interast or the interest of any corparation, parinership, or association
in which he is direcly or ndirectly inlerested of has any persanal or pecunany
inberest, direct or indirect, in this Coniract or the proceeds thereof, The CLIENT
ahall fake appropriala sbteps ta assure complianos.

Interest of the CONSULTANT, The CONSULTANT covenanls thal it presenlly
has no inferasi and shall nol acquire any interest, direcl of indirec], which would
conflict In any manner or degres with the perddormance of serices required 1o be
perdormed under this Contract. The CONSULTANT further covenanls that in the
pedormance of Ihiz Conlract, no person having any such interast shall ba employed.

Officlals Mot to Benafit No mambers of or delegate 1o the Congness of the United
States of America, and no Resident Commissionar, shall be admitted fo any shane
af pan hereof, or o any banedit 1o arise hare from,

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended,

The CONSULTANT will not discriminate againsl any employee of applicant far
employmend because of physical or mental handicap regarding any posilion for
which the employee or applicant for emplogmant is guaified. The CONSULTANT
agrees bo ke alfirmative action lo employ, advancs inemploymend, and olherwise
freal qualified handicapped individusts wilhoul diserimination bazed upon thedr
physical or mental handicap n o employmenl praclices such as the following:
employment, upgrading, demotion of fransfer, recruitment, adverdising, layolf or
terminaticn, rates of pay of other forms of compansation, and selacion jor iraining,
inciuding apprenliceship. The CONSULTANT agrees fo comply with the ndes,
regulalions, and relevanl crders of the Sacretary of Lebor Isswed pursuan
1o this Al

Tithe W of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended; This acl
prohibiis discrimination based on disabiliy under programs, aclivilies, and sanices
provided of made avallable by state and local governmends, instrumendaliteas, or
agenies ibeaels



i, Age Diecrimination Act of 1575 (Applicable to Contracts of $2,000 or greater):
Mo persons in the Unlled Siales, based on age, shall be excluded from
participation In, be denled the benefis of, or be subjecied fo discriminalion In
recaiving Federal tinancial assisiance,

ARTICLE Wil - ADDITIONAL SERVICES OF CONSULTANT

If authorized in writing by the CLIENT, ihe CONSLL TANT shall fumish adddional services
which are nal par of the serices described on Aftachment A, Under this Contract, all
s and cosls for additional services will ba negodlated as to activities and compensation.
Lipan mulual agreement bebween e CLIENT and the CONSLLTANT, and wrilien
authorizalion from the CLIENT te procead, the CONSLL TANT will provide the additional

sanice(s).

ARTICLE VIl = INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

COMSULTAMT = an indepandent confractor of the CLIENT, and this Coniract shall nal ba
construed Bo create any association, parinership, joint wenture, employmenl, or agency
relaticnahip between the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT for any purposa. COMNSLILTANT
shall hive no aulhodly (and shall not kald itsel aut as having authority) 1o bind tha CLIENT.

ARTICLE X = MUTUAL INDEMMIFICATION

To the extend permited by applicable law, each paty (s “Indemnifying Party”) shall
indernnify, hold harmiess, and defend the othar party and ils officers, direclors, employaes,
apenls, affikatas, and asslgns (collectheedy, "Indemnified Party™) againsl any and all lsses,
damages, labsities, claims, aclions, judgments, penaltes, fines, cosls, or expenses of
whatover kind, incheding professional fees an albemeys’ fees, lhat are Incurred by
Indeminified Parly arising oul of any breach of representation, wamanly, of covenand made
under this Agreament by Indemnifying Pary,

IN WITHESS WHERECGF, the CLIENT and the COMSULTANT have caused lhis Conlrach
1o b executed by (e duly authorized aofficars en lhe day and year first above wrillen,

Tewn ol Jonesborough

Alfest:

Commanify Development Pariners, LLC

“President

Aftast:

-




ATTACHMENT A
DETAIL OF ADMINISTRATIVE CONSULTING SERVICES

Hame of Project: 1he Town of Joneshorowgh Coronavines Stale and Local Fiseal
Recovery Fund (SLFRF) of the Amedican Rescue Plan Acl {ARPA),

Hame of perscn or company providing services;
Community Development Partners, LLEC.

1_Planning $10,500.00

A, Communily and stakeholder oulreachienpagement
whara requined

B, Review Masler Plan, comprehansive plans, or ofher
plans to denlify projects or activities thalt may be aligible
for SLFRF funding

C. Asszist with farmulaling goals, recommendations, and
estabiizh pricrty of eligible aclivities for ARPA
expendilures based on bosl practices, local confext, and
comimunity nead

0. Develap documentation for aligible projecis, aclivities,
and usas of funds

E. Draft and coordinate with the Town's staff lo subamil
inillal spend péan fo Slabe of Tennessee Depaiment of
Finamea & Administration (FAA)

2 Project Files/General Management £11,550.00
A Creale, complels, and maintaln Ming system of
documentation and data Tor use of funds
B. Perodic mainlanancefupdates

3 Reporting and Monitoring §17,850.00
A Prepare and coordingle with tha Town's stalf o submil
Performance and Financial Repors 1o the US Treasury

B. Prapare and coordinate with the Town"s stalf 1o Submil
annual spanding plan updates to Sdato of Tennesseo

Department of FAA

. Provide monthly or periodic stalus repot regarding usa
and slabus of funds for officials and sl

0. Provide elecironéc and other comemuenications wilh kecal,
slate, and federal entities

4 Equal Opportunity/Title VI §5, 250,00

f, Advise on Titke IV complianoe
B. DBE Soliciiation for compelitive bid
. Onesile posler documentation




5 Project Management £31,500.0:0

A, Review sub-recipient, confraclor, and aligibility,
ingluding suspension and debarmant manitaring

B. Coordinate with ihe Town's siaff, lechnical
consuliantsfenginears {o formudate and reviens front-end
bid manual

C. Review contracts, requests for paymants and other
purchasing docurments

0. Collect, evaluale, and manage programmalic
documants and dala for each project

E. Forany conslruction project, assist in establishing
applicable labor standards, confractor neparting
reguiremants, and moniber conlraciors when applicabli
(does nol include inspeclion services)

& Financlal Management £23,10:0.00
A, Devalop/create Iracking syslem
B. Wiork with the Town's stall lo track ARPA funds
G Cooedinate payment sef up
0. Wioak with tha Town's slaff lo review payment regues

for each eliglble project
E, Perindic monitoring of expemiures
7 Audit and Closeout $5,250.00

A, Work with the Town"s staff to prepare for single audits
of expenditures and work with the Town®s suwditors as
needed

B, Final ClosepulPerormance Heports

GRAND TOTAL $105,000.00



ATTACHMENT A
DETAIL OF ADMINISTRATIVE CONSULTING SERVICES

HName of Project:  the Town of Jonesborough Waler Treatment Plant and
Transmésslon Line = Environmental Assessmant

Mame of person oF company providing services;
Community Development Partners, LLEC,

1 Envirenmental Assess et £10,0:00.00

A, Formal of Ervironmental Assessment

Lewvel of Detail

. Maps, Tablas, llustrations, Pholographs

EA Tabla of Cenlants

Purpose and Mead for Propasal

Albernativas Inclisding the Proposed Action

and Mo Aclion

Affected Environmenl

Environmental Consequences

Cumulalive Efiecls

Swmmary of Mitigation

Coordination, Consultation, and

Comespondenca

k. Rilaremnos

sppop

e e



ATTACHMENT A

DETAIL OF ADMINISTRATIVE CONSULTING SERVICES

Name of Project:  the Town of Jonesborough Waler Treatment Plant and

Transmission Line —

Acquisition Services

HName of person or company providing services:
Community Development Partners, LLS.

1 _Acquisition Services £25.000.00

A Master list of casemeanls

&,
b

.
d.

"Documentation of Salicitation for Appraisal
Services” (il applicably)
“Agreement for Appraisal Sandces® (if
applicable)
Site Acquisition Report
Copy of bookled Wihen a Pubiic Agancy
Aquirgs Your Propenly
Allernative documentation or valualion for
easemens usder $10,000
Latler from State, County or City if thedr right-
ofway is whed
Individual easementiproperty files (as
required for donation or purchase)
i. Copy of *Preliminary Acquisition
Motica” indicaling that bookled was send
ii. Documentation “When a Pubfic Agency
Acquires Your Properly” was sen
iil. “Wahwer of Righds
v, “Imvitadion lo Accompany Appeaiser
v. Copy of appraisal (if appicable) or
"Shoarl Form for Easerments®
vi. Appraisal Repon Review, f applicable
vii. Shor form for Easemaents, if applicable
will. Copy of "Statement for the Basiz of
Determinalion of Jus! Compeanaatian,”
i applicable
"Offer fo Purchase” (if appicabie)
*Offer of Sala of Land”
Dociimentation for any pagmenl above the
just compansation vilus
Copy {frond and back) of canceled check
indicating payment far the acquisfion
"Statement of Seltlement Cosl®

. Copy of "Easemen Agresment” or e o

property (if applicabile)

, Documentation concerming condemnation

proceadings (i appbcable)
“Wodice of Intant Mot 1o Acquire” (if applicabla)

The proposed amaunt identifies and includes all professional sdministralive services,
expected costs, and axpenditures thal are deemed necessary Lo carry oul those activitles,
Peradic invoices shall be submilted on a monthly basis. The curmitative amaunt involced
shal not exceed the maximum limit established in this agreement unless otherwise

arnended.



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #:__ 7-B

suBJECT: Participation in State Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)

BACKGROUND:

The State Treasurer operates the State Pooled Investment Fund which includes the
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). The legislation providing for the
establishment of the LGIP (Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 9, Chapter 4, Part 7)
authorizes investment in the LGIP for local governments and other political subdivisions.

The Finance Director and | have discussed completing the Application and Agreement
to Participate State of Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool and strategically
investing funds from both the general and water funds to capture the better interest
rates as compared to current local banking rates. As such, we are recommending the

BMA’s approval for us to submit a completed application and to begin investing into
LGIP, while at the same time maintaining a strong cash on hand balance.

The plan to invest funds and to withdraw funds will require action by both the Town
Administrator and Finance Director to maximize segregation of duties by adding shared
responsibility to the process (investment/withdrawal).

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve for the Town Administrator and Finance Director to submit the Application and
Agreement to Participate State of Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool, as

presented.



APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT TO PARTICIPATE
STATE OF TENNESSEE LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL

[Date:
MEMRBERSHIF DATA
Wame of Government Unit: | B
Account Mame: | | County: I
Auddress: Phone: | |
Fax w: I I

FERSONS TO CONDUCT LGIP TRANSACTIONS (Designate one fo receive stafements)
Bame (Print or Typek: Titke: Signature:

L— I ——
| |

BANK WHICH WILL PROCESS TRANSFERS T AND FROM LGIP f.-'f.l'l'ﬂﬂ'l q’rpﬂ-ll rﬂ_p or Baenk fm:rﬁ:-.r each aceeini)
ot e ﬁ
Bank Address:

Bank T/R Number: | |

Account Mumber: | == 4|_
Marme of Account: | _i

D you wish to authorize other LGIP accounts established by your local government to receive transfers from this account?
a WiEs B o 1 yes, please provide a list of account numbers and names.

NOTARIZATION

{L/'We) hereby make oath that (1/we} are authorized by the govemnment unit named above to enter into this agreement
with the Tennessee Local Government Investment Pool and 1o transact business therewith, The governing body accepts
the terms and conditions of the LGIP as may be set forth from time 1o time by the State Treasurer in authorized writlen
communication. We agree to provide prompt written notification of any change in authorized personnel.

Mame (Print or Typel: Title: Signature of Authorized Officer(s)
| . ] |
| — | — )
Sworn before me this day of __ : ; County of ; State of Tennessee
Motary Public Signature Date My Commission Expires SEAL:

For LGIP Office Use Only;
Account Mumber Assigned Date

TR 0307 Appendix A-1 RDA 21326




APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS

Retumn this application to LGIP Office, P.O, Box 198785, Nashville, Tennessee 37219-8785. A copy should be retained for
your records. Complete the lines on the application as follows:

Date ks current date on which application is completed.
MEMBERSHIF DATA
Name of Government Unit is the name of the governmental unit for which the account(s) is being opened.

Account Name is the name in which the governmental unit wishes the LGIP to carry fis account. (This may reflect the
purpose for which funds are being invested, e.g. “General Fund™.)

Address is the mailing address to which all LGIP statements and other mailed communication is to be directed.
County is the name of the county in which your governmental unit is located.

Phone is the telephone number at which an authorized person of your unit can be reached regarding LGIF matters.
Fax Number is the number of the facsimile machine convenient to your operation (if applicable).

FERSDONS TO CONDUCT LGIP TRANSACTIONS

Name, Title, and Signature of the individuals of your unit who are designated to transact business in the LGIP. Fleare
findicate with an asterisk the perzon fo whom siatemenis showld be walled

BANK WHICH WILL PROCESS TRANSFERS TO AND FROM LGIP

Bank Name is the bank from which you will make LGIP deposits and to which withdrawals from the LGIF will be sent.
Bank Address is the mailing address of the bank named above.

Bank TransitRouting Number is the routing number of the bank named above,

Acconnt Number is the number of your acoount at the bank named above.

Name of Account is the designated name in which the bank named above carries your account.

Be sure to altech a deposit slip or bank letter for each bank account you will be using for LGIF transactions.
NOTARIZATION

MName, Title, and Signature of the authorized officen(s) entering into this agreement with the LGIP for the governmental
unit. Officer(s) should sign application before a notary public,

Notary Public Signature, Dates and Seal must be completed by a notary public in order for your application to be
nocepled.

NOTE: Upon receipt and aceeptance of this application by the LGIP office, you will be notified by mail of your LGIP
account number. You will have 1o have this number in order 1o transact business in the LGP and the identity of the number
should be restricted 1o suthorized personnel. Showld there be any changes to the informartion on this application, an
Information Change Form showld be completed immediately.

Appendix A-2



TELOAL FOUR TH TEEATIAY vl ekl (BUCATION  ETTIREBAIAT  UANOLAGADD PICPERTY DR TTRENTE

Imygstmagnt Mandagement

Local Government Investment Pool

The Local Government Irvestment Poal (LGIP) presants a sousd imastment opticn fiw hocal govermment
0ffecials,

Safety. Liquidity. A competitive
return on investments,

The abjectives of the fund are safety, liquidity, and a
competithve refurm on investments, The LGIP is commingled
with the State Pooled Investment Fund [(SPIFL By
commingling all of the dollars into a single investrment pool,
the ecosamies of scade are formed creating a fund that is

cest-ellectree and provides ample liguidity for all participants

=}

An opportunity for local governments to reduce the need for
additional tax revenue

b creating a safe, bguid, and efficient opporu e ondailahle 10 all lacal gomisrnre s offscials wathin the State

I 1 o " ¥ - Hhir . i
1l i pabhic-mance siicd Ve i Ay Ol 10 sest [aspder Tunds untl oy e nieededa
ihil ing the 53 shurn ai wisHments A% = S L P L CalF e osiidies @ Eoenl S0 resciy
reie B0 Crisades adohtEsnal FE
Ly B3 = han TS5 miflion | k]l Labes Sl | P al Pasli I

Local Government Option for American Rescue Plan Funds

Leaim ke

How it works



The State Treasurer operates the State Pooled Investment Fund which includes the Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP). The legislation providing for the establishment of the LGIP (Tennessee Code
Annotated, Tithe 9, Chapter 4, Part 7) authorizes investment in the LGIP for local governments and ather
palitical subdevisions,

b

Past rates (annualized rates by month)

Minth 23 mrr i b iRl naih F.o

January 4315% e BT LB LG 1.31%
February a5iN o s 1ETH 2384 13
March 3.54'% Al ] L=l 137w 2A0% 1AW
Agril gl ams % i 2A41% L%
My 4% o] L 51w 240% 1.1%
Jure ELe T8 o A 138% 1.79%
by 5.16% 130 % ATH 270% T1ETH
Augest 5.15W 1.0 el AT 1.29% 151%
september 245% L] iF. 2id% 15T
Oetaber 195% 3% BiL 200 L10%
Mavember 145% A% i 1 E4% 2.18%
December 185 i T 1.74% 126

* Pt walied B July 2020 threnggh Februay 2001 were updated Apell 13, 071, Eo informnation fegarding (e adfusiment, Wesw Corredion ol
darvcusali ol Rawes by e fiof Ehe SFIFL GIF

Apply or Manage Your Account

15 Crevwwrileiad any AgpliCaticn [ Dwanlnad o Tramnsacmon m I prrmalmin Clasngs Redquinst
[ [
Portfolio
Terasury publehes 2 maonlbly haldings repoi ke thie Stibe Posled Investment Fund and Lecal Gowernmens imvsstrerent Posl
* Sugusi J003 * june 2013 * el
* faby 3033 ol "] = March 2033
SPIF Policy

The Lecal Gowermment irsestmend Pool (LGIF) has Been commingled wich funds feid in the Stave Pooled
Irrsestment Fund (SPIFL The Investment Policy of L SPIF estabihes the criveria the Board detenmines
pruderns in consideration of the purposes. terms, ditribriion requinements and cirer drosmstances of te
SAF and in the best inberest of the partkipanis



Fial (P i spmeng Folaoy 1 Dossridasad the &neial Report

Interagency Cash Flow Projection

Tennesses Imeragency Cash Fow Commiibes was created by TOA 53610 2o establish, comple, ard mainkain
an {Bumonth roling cash Row projection that projests sll matenial searces and uses of pooied imastment
fiand Cash grodecbed to be recefved and exgendsd by the sLate on s monthly bass.

The avwanpliond itilded b penelats the cash Mow projection feliow the preseniatien of cash Nows

MIOTE « 3l fambars are ungudned

B Hoer Loyt Aissiinpi o s for Cashn How Catimales

Intermediate 1ernm investment Funa
& longerterm investment option far participants of the LGIP is the Intermediate Term Investrnent Fund {ITHF)

e AboiE (fe Infermedale T IensesS0madit i

Frequently Asked Questions

Click amy of the following questions to view the answer,

Wit te thie LGIF? ”~
How do | become a participant? ~
What is the account struCiure? e
Howt are the funds invested? ~
s.5he LGIP a secure investment option? =
How are sarnings caloulated? #
ithat is the administrative fee? n

Investment Management  Contact Us Mailing Address




Have gquaitions abou Invesiment
Warsagamenc? Pl vt the indhidual funds

e e Fdarmation and tunsd-speciiic
ConlaEL aarT

I it s 5
Bank Collateral Pogl

Imemedile i ament Fued
L5 S -AT22

Lecyl Gresnment iesment Pl
LS S X118

Please wait the individual funds fer mailing

addretses per fund:
Bank Coflaleral ool
lebermediate Investrmend Fund

% ; )
HOC R DTl 0

I FEASLY

i prwmraids Wai il
il by T il Baing o ferd
Plaidvelie, TH 37 0a0 0%

LEJinlw] -

[Tt
Bmpaini Fulil Beuaal

Yok, Thile Wi sarrd Pulelir Sy a Pl

Recent News

TH Sy v T prararwes i 105 4o annhinrsls

filege ruieg
Fiiiay el eypie |, 02T § Shelll By

Ceniprissn hecimrie o B Teouviusee £dy To Cfbed
Lirrngeis ofl Sorwa e dwvviet] Pr gy it G Wobardeed
Fephphters

fgubay Lapgal L | lEiie Page

Tovsiin= v Trepniy linglssesi Bopeig
Irirawhng fo dema e |ervie s lh ifdiiig
TRy

Vrpbarakan =l BT | Sl Ea

Hexlarec] Limks

Fruwvuns g Ldvermmemd
W airay, |3 G ol dussse= Iy
D e vidr Tane Cevqerollin
Py Sereiary nl Hade

il el A e T S T v

& Eopyright 200 - Terneiiee Departmest of Tredaury



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN

AGENDA PRESENTATION
DATE.___ OCTOBER 186, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #:__7-C

SUBJECT: Property Agreement for Drainage Work at 260 East Main Street

BACKGROUND:

When the Street Department completed the East Main Street Sidewalk Project, there was
some drainage work also completed. There was an existing culvert under East Main that
drained into a pipe at 260 East Main Street. As a part of this project, additional drainage
was added to this culvert. As a result, it is flooding the yard at 260 East Main Street.

This is not a surprise. Myself, Malcolm Highsmith, and Todd Wood met with the property
owner, Tammy Rowe, prior to the project start and talked about this possibility. Mrs. Rowe
was assured that if the project negatively impacted their property, we would make the
necessary repairs.

| am attaching Todd Wood's engineering drawing to depict the repairs that need to be
made to correct this problem. | have shared this with the property owners and they are

fine with the recommendation.

| am also attaching an agreement that will need to be approved and signed by the Mayor
and the property owner prior to completing the work, as the repair will require Town staff
to be on their property to complete.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the engineer's design of repairs at 260 East Main Street, and the property
agreement allowing Town staff to work on private property to make the repairs.



FIRR P g e T
d i dalrr T

AN A Gl

-
i --

%%




PROPERTY OWNER AGREEMENT FOR
STORM WATER IMPROVEMENTS
AT 260 EAST MAIN STREET

THIS AGREEMENT entered intothe _ day of October, 2023, between the Board of
Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee (hereinafter referred to as “the
Town™), and Tammy R. Rowe and Milton Andy Rowe (hereinafter, collectively, if applicable,
referred 1o as the “Property Owner"™).

WHEREAS, the Property Owner are sole owners of property located at 260 East Main Street in
the Town of Jonesborough, Washington County, Tennessee; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to enter in an agreement whereby the Town will make alterations
of the drainage way on 260 East Main Street in an effort to improve stormwater containment; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Jonesborough have determined
that it is in the public's interest o improve the storm water drainage way at 260 East Main Street,
and the Property Owner agrees with the determination; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree that the Town is entering into an arrangement to do work on private
property for the benefit of the public without obligation to do so; then

IT IS THEREFORE UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT:

The parties agree that the Town will perform the scope of work shown on the Plan of the Town's
consulting engineer, DTWood Engineering, Inc. dated the day of September, 2023, and
aftached as Exhibit A.



The parties agree that the Town of Jonesborough is granted authority to enter on to the property
of the Property Owner to complete the work as outlined in the above referenced Plan and the
Exhibit to this agreement, and the Town of Jonesborough agrees to restore the property with
respect to grading and seeding to its current condition and to minimize the effect of the
construction to the extent possible,

The parties agree that the Town will be responsible for the labor and material costs of any
improvements made on the property of the Property Owner. The parties acknowledge that each
has been afforded the opporiunity o review the Plan referenced above as “Exhibit A" and
understand the scope and nature of the work outlined therein, and have additionally had the
opportunity to have an engineer or other expert of their choosing, review the property if they so
desire, and therefore agree to release and hold-harmless the Town of Jonesborough and DTWood
Engineering, Inc. for the design of the improvements to these properties throughout the
subdivision and the resulting changes to stormwater runoff,

The parties acknowledge and agree that the improvements agreed to herein may not resolve all
stormwater issues associated with the East Main Sireet sidewalk and drainage project, and that
the improvements are designed to make the situation at the above referenced property better, but
not necessary prevent any additional problems. The parties agree that the Town and DTWood
Engineering, Inc. make no representations or warranties with respect to the design construction
or operation of the improvements discussed herein.

The parties acknowledge that the Town of Jonesborough is offering to conduct this work on
private property as a general benefit to the welfare of the surrounding neighborhood within the
corporate limits of the Town of Jonesborough, and that the Town of Jonesborough has no legal
responsibility for undertaking such improvement and therefore, the parties agree to release and
hold-harmless the Town of Jonesborough and DTWood Engineering, Inc. for any and all claims
related to the operation and use of the improvements outlined in the Plan and on “Exhibit A™ to
this agreement, to the extent they are implemented according to the Plan and “Exhibit A™ to this
agreement whether those improvements are located on the property of the Property Owner or
otherwise,

The parties agree that employees, contractors or other laborers working on these improvements
will remain at all times employees of the Town of Jonesborough and the Town of Jonesborough
shall provide workers' compensation coverage for all such persons, or required proof of such
coverage from any contractor,

The Property Owner agrees to execute an easement for any catch basin, or tile that is constructed
by the Town on property of the Property Owner to allow for reasonable access for the
construction and maintenance of the improvements associated with this agreement.



The parties specifically agree that all obligations and rights granted hereunder shall run with the
land and that their heirs, agents or assigns shall be bound by this agreement

IN WITNESS whereto, the parties affix their signatures on the date set forth above.

FROPERTY OWNER PROPERTY OWNER

STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON

PERSONALLY appeared before me, a Notary Public in and for the State and County
aforesaid, with whom I am personally acquainted (or who proved his identity to me on the basis
of satisfactory evidence), and who acknowledged that he executed this instrument for the purposes
therein contained, and as he free act and deed.

WITNESS my hand at office in the State and County aforesaid, this, the
Day of , 2023,

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:




BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE

CHUCK VEST, Mayor

ATTEST:

JANET JENNINGS, Town Recorder

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

JAMES R. WHEELER, Town Attorney



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN

AGENDA PRESENTATION
DATE:.___ OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #___7-D

SUBJECT:_Resolution Authorizing General Obligation Bond — K-8 School Project

BACKGROUND:

As the new Jonesborough K-8 School Project enters into its final stages of completion,
we continue to fund the project through Bond Anticipation Motes, or interim financing.
The town is working with USDA Rural Development to issue their Bonds on the majority
of the project so as to reduce interest rate costs from the overall interim financing of the
initial $32,750,000. The additional $10,000,000 in financing is the subject matter of the
agenda itemn. As the project is getting closer to completion, the $10,000,000 will need to
be extended for a short-term until we complete the project.

As such, it is advantageous to the Town of Jonesborough to extend and renew the
Series 2022 MNote through the issuance of that cerfain not to exceed $10,000,000
General Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension MNote, Series 2023 (the “Series 2023
Extension Note"). Adams and Reese Bond Counsel Cindy Barnett prepared the
resolution for adoption.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Town of Jonesborough to extend and renew the Series 2022 Note through
the issuance of that certain not to exceed 310,000,000 General Obligation Bond
Anticipation Extension Mote, Series 2023 (the "Series 2023 Extension Note”), as
presented,



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-16

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, AND PROVIDING DETAILS, OF A
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION EXTENSION NOTE IN THE
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $10,000,000; AUTHORIZING
THE SALE THEREQF; AND, PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF SUCH NOTE

WHEREAS, the Town of Jonesborough, Washington County, Tennessee (the
“Municipality™), is authorized by Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennesses Code Annotated, as amended, to
issue and sell bonds for the purpose of financing a portion of the costs of certain public works
projects, consisting of the acquisition, construction, improvement, renovation and equipping of
public buildings within the Municipality, including a public school and related athletic and parking
facilities; the acquisition of all property real and personal appurtenant thereto or connected with
such work; to pay legal, fiscal, administrative, architectural and engineering costs; to reimburse
the Municipality for the costs of the above projects; to pay capitalized interest (collectively, the
“Project™); and to pay costs incident to the financing thereof,

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Municipality (the “Board™), adopted
an “Initial Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of a Not to Exceed $10,000,000 General Obligation
Bond of the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee, to Provide Funding for Certain Public Works
Projects and to Fund the Incidental and Necessary Expenses Related Thereto” (the “Initial
Resolution™), authorizing and directing, among other things, the issuance by the Municipality of
its general obligation bond (the “Bond™), for the purpose of financing the costs of such Project and
the costs incident to the financing thereof;

WHEREAS, the Initial Resolution authorized payment of the principal of, and interest on,
the Bond from funds of the Municipality legally available therefore and to the extent necessary
from ad valorem taxes to be levied on all taxable properly within the corporate limits of the
Municipality, without limitation as to time, rate, or amount,

WHEREAS, the Town Recorder published a copy of the Initial Resolution in a newspaper
of general circulation within the Municipality;

WHEREAS, the Municipality is authorized by Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code
Annotated, as amended, to issue and sell bond anticipation notes, in one or more series, for the
purpose of providing funds to finance the Project in anticipation of the issuance and sale of the
Bond;

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2022, the Board adopted Resolution No. 2022-06, authorizing
the issuance of a general obligation bond anticipation note in the aggregate principal amount of
not to exceed $10,000,000;



WHEREAS, on May 20, 2022, the Municipality, pursuant to Resolution No. 2022-06,
issued its $10,000,000 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2022 (the “Series 2022
Mote™);

WHEREAS, the Board finds that it is advantageous to the Municipality to extend and
renew the Series 2022 Note through the issuance of that certain not to exceed $ 10,000,000 General
Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Node, Series 2023 (the “Series 2023 Extension Note™ or
the “Note™); and

WHEREAS, it is now, therefore, necessary and desirable to provide for the execution,
terms, issuance, sale, and payment of the Notes,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Authorization. For the purpose of providing funds to renew and extend the
the Series 2022 Note, there shall be issued pursuant to, and in aceordance with, the provisions of
Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, and other applicable provisions of
law, interest bearing general obligation bond anticipation extension notes, in one or more series,
of the Municipality, in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $10,000,000,

Section 2. Definitions. Without limiting any other definitions of terms and words in
other sections of this Resolution, the following words and terms shall have the meanings indicated
unless otherwise plainly apparent from the context:

“Act” means Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended,

“Advance” means the principal amount of the Notes advanced by the purchaser from time
to time.,

“Authorized Representative of the Municipality” means the then Mayor or the then Town
Recorder of the Municipality, authorized by resolution or by law to act on behalf of and bind the
Municipality.

“Board” means the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Jonesborough,
Tennessee.

“Bond” or “Bonds” means the not to exceed $10,000,000 General Obligation Bond of the
Municipality authorized by the Initial Resolution of the Board.

“Bond Counsel” means an attomey or firm of attoreys recognized as having experience
in matters relating to the issuance of municipal obligations.



“Closing Date™ means the date of delivery and payment of cach Note (or any temporary
Note as authorized by Section 11 hereof pending the preparation and delivery of the definitive
MNote).

“Code™ means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable
regulations of the United States Department of the Treasury promulgated thereunder, as in effect
on the date of issuance of the Notes.

“Interest Payment Date™ means each date on which interest shall be payable on each Note,
according to its terms so long as such Note shall be Quistanding.

“Mayor” means the duly elected, qualified and acting Mayor of the Municipality, and his
or her successors.

i

‘Municipality™ means the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee.

“Mote” or "MNotes™ means, individually or collectively as the context dictates, the Series
2023 Extension Note.

“Outstanding,” “Motes Cuistanding,” or “Outstanding Notes™ means, as of a particular
date, all Notes issued and delivered under this Resolution excepi: (1) any Note paid or redeemed

or otherwise canceled by the Municipality at or before such date; (2) any Note for the payment of
which cash, equal 1o the principal amount thereof with interest to date of maturity, shall have
theretofore been deposited prior to maturity by the Municipality for the benefit of the Owner
thereof, (3) any Mote in lieu of or in substitution for which another Note shall have been delivered
pursuant to this Resolution, unless proof satisfactory to the Municipality is presented that any Note,
for which a Note in lieu of or in substitution therefor shall have been delivered, is held by a bona
fide purchaser, as that term is defined in Article 8 of the Uniform Commercial Code of the State,
as amended, in which case both the Note in lieu of or in substitution for which a new Note has
been delivered and such new Note so delivered therefor shall be deemed Outstanding; and, (4) any
Note deemed paid pursuant to a refunding which has not concurrently been called for redemption
except that any such Note shall be considered Outstanding until the maturity thereof only for the
purposes of being exchanged, transferred, or registered.

“Cramer”, “Moteholder”™, or any similar term, when used with reference to the Notes, means
any Person who shall be the registered owner of any then Outstanding Note or Notes,

“Person”™ means an individual, partnership, corporation, trust, or unincorporated
organization, or a governmental entity or agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Prior Mote™ means the Series 2022 Note.

“Registration Agent” means the then Town Recorder of the Municipality acting by and on
behalf of the Municipality.



“Resolution” means this Resolution, as supplemented and amended.

“Series 2022 Note” means the Municipality’s $10,000,000 General Obligation Bond
Anticipation Note, Series 2022,

“Series 2023 Extension Note™ means the Municipality's General Obligation Bond
Anticipation Extension Note, Series 2023, in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed
£10,000,000 authorized by this Resolution of the Board.

“State™ means the State of Tennessee.

“Town Recorder™ means the duly appointed, qualified and acting Town Recorder of the
Municipality, and his or her successors.

Section 3. Terms and Provisions of the Notes, Said Series 2023 Extension Note shall
be designated “General Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Note, Series 2023, The Series
2023 Extension Note shall be dated as of its date of original issuance and delivery, and shall be
1ssued as a draw-down obligation; shall bear interest on the principal advanced thereunder at a rate
not to exceed the maximum rate per annum allowed by law; shall be of such denomination and
contain such terms, conditions, and provisions, other than as expressly provided or limited herein,
as may be agreed upon by the Mayor of the Municipality and the purchaser of such Series 2023
Extension Note; and, shall mature not later than November 1, 2025, upon delivery of the Bond, or
upon prepayment, whichever shall be earlier, The Series 2023 Extension Note shall be fully
registered as to principal and interest and shall be numbered R-1.

Section 4, Redemption. Each Note shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity at
the option of the Municipality, at any time, as a whole or in part, in integral multiples of Five
Thousand Dollars ($5,000), at the par value thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date.
Ten (10) days' written notice of intended redemption shall be given to the registered owners, but
the registered owner of such Note may waive such notice,

Section 5. Form of Notes. Execution. (a) FEach Note is issuable only as a fully
registered note, without coupons, in minimum denominations of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000),
The Series 2023 Extension MNote issued under this Resolution shall be substantially in the form set
forth on Exhibit “A™ attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated herein as fully as though
copied, with such appropriate variations, omissions, and insertions as are permitted or required by
this Resolution, the blanks therein to be appropriately completed when each Note is prepared, and
may have endorsed thereon such legends or text as may be necessary or appropriate to conform to
any applicable rules and regulations of any governmental authority or any usage or requirement of
law with respect thereto or as otherwise desired by the Municipality.

{b)  Each Note shall be executed in such manner as may be prescribed by applicable
law in the name, and on behalf, of the Municipality with the manual or facsimile signature of the
Mayor and attested with the manual or facsimile signature of the Town Recorder, and with the

4



official seal, or a facsimile thereof, of the Municipality impressed or imprinted thereon. Each Note
shall not be valid for any purpose unless authenticated by the manual signature of the Registration
Agent on the certificate set forth on such Note.

() In the event any officer whose manual or facsimile signature shall appear on the
Notes shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Note, such manual or such facsimile
signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes as if he or she had remained in
office until such delivery. Each MNote may bear the facsimile signature of, or may be manually
signed by, such individuals who, at the actual time of the execution of such Note, were the proper
officers of the Municipality to sign such Note, although on the respective dates of the adoption by
the Municipality of the Initial Resolution or this Resolution, such individuals may not have been
such officers.

Section 6. Negotiability of Notes. Each MNote issued under this Resolution shall be
negotiable, subject to the provisions for registration and transfer contained in this Resolution and
in such Note.

Section 7. Registration Books and Registration Agent. The Municipality herchy
designates the Town Recorder of the Municipality, acting by and on behalf of the Municipality, as

note registrar (the “Registration Agent™) with respect to each of the Notes and authorizes the
Registration Agent so long as such Note shall remain Outstanding, to maintain at the principal
office of the Registration Agent, books for the registration and transfer of such Note on behalf of
the Municipality. The Registration Agent shall register in such books and permit to be transferred
thereon, under such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Note entitled to registration or
transfer and Lo authenticate and deliver the Note either at original issuance, upon transfer, or as
otherwise directed by the Municipality. The Registration Agent is authorized to make all payments
of principal and interest with respect to the Notes,

Section 8. Exchange of Notes. Each Note upon surrender thereof at the principal office
of the Registration Agent, together with an assignment of such Note duly executed by the Owner
thereof, or his, her, or its attorney or legal representative, may be exchanged for an equal aggregate
principal amount of Note of the same maturity, of any denomination or denominations authorized
by this Resolution, and bearing interest at the same rate as the Note surrendered for exchange.

Section 9. Transfer of Notes. (a) Each Note shall be transferable only on the
registration books maintained by the Registration Agent at the principal office of the Registration
Agent, upon the surrender for cancellation thereof at the principal office of the Registration Agent,
together with an assignment of such MNote duly executed by the Owner thereof or his, her, or its
attorney or legal representative, and upon payment of the charges hereinafter provided, and subject
to such other limitations and conditions as may be provided therein or herein. Upon the
cancellation of the Note, the Registration Agent shall, in exchange for the surrendered Note,
deliver in the name of the transferce or transferces a new Note or Notes of authorized
denominations, of the same aggregate principal amount and maturity and rate of interest as such




surrendered Note, and the transferee or transferces shall take such new Note or Notes subject to
all of the conditions herein contained,

(b}  The Municipality and the Registration Agent may deem and treat the Person in
whose name a Note shall be regisiered upon the registration books maintained by the Registration
Agent as the absolute owner thereof, whether such Note shall be overdue or not, for the purpose
ol receiving payment of the principal of and the interest on, such Note and for all other purposes.
All such payments so made to the registered Owner thereof shall be valid and effectual to satisfy
and discharge the liability of the Municipality or the Registration Agent upon such Note to the
extent of the sum or sums so paid. Neither the Municipality nor the Registration Agent shall be
affected by any notice to the contrary.

Section 10.  Regulations with Respect to Exchanges and Transfers, (a) In all cases in
which the privilege of exchanging or transferring Notes is exercised, the Municipality shall
execute, and the Registration Agent shall deliver, Notes in accordance with the provisions of this
Resolution. For every exchange or transfer of Notes, whether temporary or definitive, the
Municipality may make a charge, unless otherwise herein to the contrary expressly provided,
sufficient to pay for any tax, fee, or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to
such exchange or transfer, all of which taxes, fees, and other governmental charges shall be paid
by the person or entity requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the exercise
of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer.

(b) Meither the Municipality nor the Registration Agent shall be obligated to exchange
or transfer any Note during the fifteen (15) calendar days next preceding the maturity thereof or
any call for redemption.

Section 11.  Mutilated, Lost, Stolen, or Destroved Note, (a) In the event a Note is
mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the Municipality may execute, and the Registration Agent
shall deliver, a new Note of like maturity, interest rate, and principal amount, and bearing the same
number (but with appropriate designation indicating that such new Note is a replacement Note) as
the mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Note, in exchange for the mutilated Note or in substitution
for the Note so destroyed, lost, or stolen. In every case of exchange or substitution, the Noteholder
shall furnish to the Municipality: (1) such security or indemnity as may be required by an
Authorized Representative of the Municipality to hold the Municipality harmless from all risks,
however remote; and, (2) evidence satisfaction to an Authorized Representative of the
Municipality of the mutilation, destruction, loss, or theft of the subject Note and the ownership
thereof. Upon the issuance of any Note upon such exchange or substitution, the Municipality may
require the Orwner thereof to pay a sum sufficient to defray any tax or other governmental charge
that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses, including printing costs and
counsel fees, of the Municipality. In the event any Note which has matured or is about to mature
shall become mutilated or be destroyed, lost, or stolen, the Municipality may, instead of issuing a
MNote in exchange or substitution therefor, pay or authorize the payment of the same (without
surrender thereol except in the case of a mutilated Note) if the Owner thereof shall pay all costs
and expenses, including attorneys fees, incurred by the Municipality in connection therewith, as

6



well as a sum sufficient to defray any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in
relation thereto and shall furnish to the Municipality such security or indemnity as an Authorized
Representative of the Municipality may require to save the Municipality harmless and evidence to
the satisfaction of an Authorized Representative of the Municipality of the mutilation, destruction,
loss, or theft of such Note and of the ownership thereof.

(b)  Ewvery Note issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section shall constitute an
additional contractual obligation of the Municipality {whether or not the destroyed, lost, or stolen
Mote shall be found at any time to be enforceable) and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this
Resolution equally and proportionately with any and all other Notes duly issued under such
Resolution.

{c) Each Mote shall be held and owned upon the express condition that the provisions
of this Section are exclusive, with respect to the replacement or payment of a mutilated, destroved,
lost, or stolen Note, and, to the maximum extent legally permissible, shall preclude all other rights
or remedies, notwithstanding any law or statute now existing or hereafter enacted to the contrary.

Section 12.  Authentication. Only if a Note shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of
authentication, substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit “A” hereto duly executed by the
Registration Agent with respect to the Series 2023 Extension Note or substantially in the form set
forth in Exhibit “B™ hereto duly executed by the Registration Agent with respect to the Series 2023
Extension Note, shall it be entitled to the rights, benefits, and security of this Resolution. No Note
shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless, and until, such certificate of authentication
shall have been duly executed by the Registration Agent. Such executed certificate of
authentication by the Registration Agent upon a Note shall be conclusive evidence that such Note
has been duly authenticated and delivered under this Resolution as of the date of authentication,

Section 13.  Source of Payment; Security. The Notes, including the principal thereof
and the interest thereon, is payable from funds of the Municipality legally available therefore and

to the extent necessary from ad valorem taxes to be levied for such purpose on all taxable property
within the corporate limits of the Municipality without limitation as to time, rate, or amount. Said
Notes shall be a direct general obligation of the Municipality, for which the punctual payment of
the principal of and interest on the Notes the full faith and credit of the Municipality is hereby
imevocably pledged. The Notes shall additionally be payable from, but not secured by, lease
payments received by the Municipality under that certain Building Lease Agreement dated as of
MNovember 13, 2019, by and between the Municipality and Washington County, Tennessee, as
amended and restated on October 20, 2020, as further amended.,

Section 14.  Levy of Taxes. For the purpose of providing for the payment of the
principal of and interest on the Notes, there shall be levied in each year in which such Notes shall
be outstanding a direct tax on all taxable property in the Municipality, fully sufficient to pay all
such principal and interest falling due prior to the time of collection of the next succeeding tax
levy. Said tax shall be assessed, collected, and paid at the time, and in the same manner, as the
other taxes of said Municipality, shall be in addition to all other taxes, and shall be without

7



limitation as to time, rate, or amount. The Board of the Municipality is required by law and shall
and does hereby pledge to levy such tax. Principal and interest, or any of the foregoing, falling
due at any time when there shall be insufficient funds on hand from such tax levy for the payment
thereol shall be paid from the general fund or other available funds of the Municipality, but
reimbursement therefor may be made from the taxes herein provided when the same shall have
been collected. All such taxes levied and collected with respect to the Series 2023 Extension Note
shall be deposited in a special fund to be designated “Bond Anticipation Extension Note, Series
2023 Note Fund” (the “Series 2023 Extension Note Fund™) and used solely for the payment of
principal and interest on the Series 2023 Extension Note as the same shall become due.

section 15, Sale of Motes. The MNotes shall be sold at a private negotiated sale in
accordance with the terms of this Resolution as determined by the Mayor and Town Recorder of
the Municipality. The Mayor and the Town Recorder are authorized to cause the Notes to be
authenticated and delivered to the successful purchaser or purchasers as the case may be, and to
exceute, publish, and deliver all certificates and documents, as they shall deem necessary in
connection with the sale and delivery of the Notes.

Section 16.  Disposition of Note Proceeds. The proceeds advanced from the sale of the
Series 2023 Extension Note from time to time shall be paid to the official of the Municipality
designated by law as the custodian of the funds thereof, to be deposited in the special fund
previously authorized by Resolution No. 2022-06 known as the “Bond Anticipation Note, Series
2022 Construction Fund” (referred to herein as the “Construction Fund™). Monies in the
Construction Fund shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the Municipality, shall
be secured in the manner prescribed by applicable siatutes relative to the securing of public or trust
funds, if any and may be invested in accordance with State law. Monies in the Construction Fund
shall be expended only for the purposes authorized by this Resolution.

Section 17. Covenants. The Municipality covenants that, while the Notes remain
outstanding and unpaid, it will:

(1) use its best efforts to provide permanent financing for the Project and the
purposes authorized herein and issue the Bond as soon as the Municipality determines that
it is practicable and in the best interest of the Municipality so to do;

(1)  maintain its existence; and,

(iii)  duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid, as herein provided the principal
installments or redemption price of each Note and the interest thereon, at the dates and
places and in the manner stated herein and faithfully and punctually perform all duties
required by the Constitution and laws of the State and the Act, including the making and
eollecting of taxes in an amount at least sufficient to pay principal of and interest on each
Mote.



section 18,  Mandatory Redemption of Notes. Contemporaneously with the issuance
and sale of the Bond, each Note then outstanding, even though it may have not have matured, shall
be paid, both principal and interest to date of payment, and the Note or Notes shall thercupon be
surrendered by the registered owners thereof and cancelled. The Registration Agent shall give the
regisiered owner of the Note not less than ten (10) days written notice of the contemplated date of
delivery of the Bond and retirement of such Note by mail, addressed to the registered owner of the
Note at his, her, or its address as shown on the registration books of the Registration Agent;
provided, that any such registered owner may waive such nitice.

Section 19.  Remedies of Noteholders. (a) Except as herein expressly limited, the
Owner or Owners of each Note shall have and possess all the rights of action and remedies afforded
by the common law, the Constitution and statutes of the State and of the United States of America
for the enforcement of payment of the Note, and of the pledge of the funds hereunder, and of all
covenants of the Municipality hereunder.

{(b)  Upon the occurrence of an event of default in the payment of principal or interest,
the Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in principal amount of each Note
outstanding may exercise any one or more of the following remedies either singly or in
combination with ¢ach other:

(i) either at law or in equity, by suit, action, mandamus, or other proceedings,
in any court of competent jurisdiction enforce and compel performance of all duties
imposed upon the Municipality by the provisions of this Resolution; or,

(i1}  take any other action permitted by law, the Act, or this Resolution,

section 20.  Non-Arbitrage Certification. The Municipality certifies and covenants with
the Owners of each Note that so long as the principal of the Note remains unpaid, monies on
deposit in any fund or account in connection with such Note, whether or not from any other source,
will not be used in a manner which will cause the Note 1o be an “arbitrage bond™ within the
meaning of Section 148 of the Code and any lawful regulations promulgated thereunder, as the
same presently exist, or may from time to time hereafier be amended, supplemented or revised.
The Municipality reserves the right, however, to make any investment of such moneys permitted
by Tennessee law and this Resolution if, when and to the extent that said Section 148 or regulations
promulgated thereunder shall be repealed or relaxed or shall be held void by final decision of a
court of competent jurisdiction, but only if any investment made by virtue of such repeal,
relaxation or decision would not, in the opinion of counsel of recognized competence in such
matters, result in making the interest on the Note subject to inclusion in gross income of the Owners
thereof for federal income tax purposes.

The Municipality covenants that it shall comply with Section 148(f) of the Code, unless
legally exempted therefrom and it represents that in the event it shall be reguired by Section 148(1)
of the Code and the Regulations to pay Rebatable Arbitrage pursuant to the Code and the
Regulations to the United States Government it will make such payments as and when required by

9



said Section 148(f) and will take such other actions as shall be necessary or permitted to prevent
the interest on the Note from becoming subject to inclusion in federal gross income of the Owners
of the Note for federal income tax purposes. The Municipality further covenants that it will not
take any action that will cause the interest on the Note 1o be subject to inclusion in gross income
of the Owners thereof for federal income tax purposes under Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of
the Code.

Section 21.  Annual Budget. The Municipality shall submit its annual budget to the State
Dyirector of Local Finance for approval immediately upon the Municipality’s adoption of the
budget.

Section 22, Amendments. After the issuance of each Note, no change, vanation, or
alteration of any kind in the provisions of this Resolution which would impair the rights of the
Noteholders shall be made in any manner, until such time as all of the principal of and interest on
such Note shall have been paid in full unless the consent of all of the Owners of all then
Outstanding Notes has been obtained; provided, however, that the Municipality is hereby
authorized to make such amendments to this Resolution as will not impair the rights of
MNoteholders. The laws of the State of Tennessee shall govern this Resolution.

section 23, Failure to Present Mote. (a) In the event a Note shall not be presented for
payment when the principal of, and interest on, such Note becomes due at maturity and in the event
monies sufficient to pay such Note shall be held by the Municipality for the benefit of the Owner
thereof, all liability of the Municipality to such Owner for the payment of such Note shall forthwith
cease, erminate, and be completely discharged. Thercupon, the Municipality shall hold such
monics, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Owner of such Note who shall
thereafter be restricted exclusively to such monies for any claim under this Resolution or on, or
with respect to, said Note,

(b)  If a Note shall not be presented for payment within a period of five (5) years
following the date when such Note becomes due, such Note shall (subject to the provisions of any
applicable escheat or other similar law and subject to the defense of any applicable statute of
limitation} thereafter constitute an unsecured obligation of the Municipality,

section 24, Paymenis Due on Saturdays, Sundays, and Holidays. In any case where the

date of maturity or interest on or principal of the Notes shall be a Saturday or Sunday or shall be,

at the place designated for payment, a legal holiday or a day on which municipal corporations
similar to the Municipality are authorized by law to close, then the payment of the interest on, or
the principal of such Note need not be made on such date but must be made on the next succeeding
day not a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday or a day upon which municipal corporations similar
te the Municipality are authorized by law to close, with the same force and effect as if made on
the date of maturity and no interest shall accrue for the period afier such date.

section 25, No Action to be Taken Affecting Validity of the Notes, The Board hereby
covenants and agrees that it will not take any action, that would in any manner affect the validity

10



of the Notes or limit the rights and remedies of the Owners from time to time of such Motes or
affect the exclusion of interest thercon from the gross income of the holders thereof for federal
income lax purposes,

Section 26.  Miscellaneous Acts, The Mayor, the Town Recorder, the Town Attormey,
and all other appropriate officials of the Municipality are hereby authorized, empowered, and
directed to do any and all such acts and things, and (o execute, acknowledge, and deliver all such
documents, instruments, and certifications, specifically including but not limited to arbitrage
certifications, in addition to those acts, things, documents, instruments, and certifications
hereinbefore authorized and approved, as may in their discretion, be necessary or desirable to
implement or comply with the intent of this Resolution; or any of the documents herein
authorized and approved, or for the authorization, issuance, and delivery of the Notes.

Section 27.  Engagement of Bond Counsel and Placement Agent. The Board hereby

approves the engagement of Adams and Reese LLP to serve as bond counsel with respeet to the
issuance of the Bond and the Notes and Raymond James & Associates, Inc. to serve as placement
agent with respect to the issuance of the Notes.

Section 28.  No Recourse Under Resolution or on Notes. All stipulations, promises,
agreements, and obligations of the Municipality contained in the Initial Resolution or this

Resolution shall be deemed to be the stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the
Municipality and not of any officer, director, or employee of the Municipality in his or her
individual capacity, and no recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or interest
on the Notes or for any claim based thereon or on the Initial Resolution or this Resolution against
any officer, director, or employee of the Municipality or against any official or individual
executing the Notes.

Section 29, Partial Invalidity. If any one or more of the provisions of this Resolution,
or of any exhibit or attachment thereto, shall be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any
respect, by final decree of any court of lawful jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, or of any exhibit or attachment
thereto, but this Resolution, and the exhibits and attachments thereto, shall be construed the same
as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein, or therein,
as the case may be.

Section 30.  Severability. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this Resolution
shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of
such section, paragraph, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof,

Section 31,  Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions and Effective Date. All resolutions and

orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution, are, to the extent of such
conflict, hereby repealed and this Resolution shall be in immediate effect from and after its
adoption, the welfare of the Municipality requiring it.

11



12



Approved and adopted this 16th day of October, 2023.

MAYOR
Adtest:

TOWN RECORDER

13



STATE OF TENNESSEE)
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON)

I, Janet Jennings, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Town Recorder of the
Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee (the “Municipality”), and, as such official, | further certify as
follows: (1) that attached hereto is a copy of a resolution excerpted from the minutes of the meeting
of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen (the “Board™) of said Municipality held on October 16, 2023;
{2) that | have compared said copy with the original minute record of said meeting in my official
custody; (3) that said copy 15 a true, correet and complete transcript from said original record insofar
as said original record relates, to, among other maiters, the authorization of the issuance of a not to
exceed 510,000,000 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Note, Series 2023, of said
Municipality; (4) that the actions by said Board including the aforementioned, at said meeting were
prompily and duly recorded by me in a book kept for such purposes; and, (5) that a quorum of the
members of said Board was present and acting throughout said meeting.

WITHESS my official signature and the seal of said Municipality this 16th day of October,
2023,

TOWN RECORDER

(SEAL)



EXHIBIT “A"
FORM OF SERIES 2023 EXTENSION NOTE
Registered Registered
No. R-1 £10,000,000

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON
TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION EXTENSION NOTE,
SERIES 2023

Interest Rate: Maturity Date: Dated Date:
b

Registered Owner:

Principal Amount:  TEN MILLION DOLLARS ($10,000,000)

THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENMNESSEE (the “Municipality™), a lawfully
organized and existing municipal corporation located in Washington County, Tennessee, for value
received, hereby acknowledges itself indebted and promises to pay, as hereinalter provided, to the
Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns as hereinafter provided, on the Maturity
Date identified above, upon the presentation and surrender hereof at the principal office of the Town
Recorder, Town Hall, Jonesborough, Tennessee (the “Registration Agent™), the Principal Amount
identified above, and to pay interest from the date hereof on said Principal Amount as advanced from
time o lime, or such later date as to which interest has been paid, to the Maturity Date, such interest
being due and payable on the Maturity Date at the Interest Rate per annum set forth above, by check,
drafl, or warrant to the Registered Owner hereof at the address shown on the registration books of the
Mote Registrar on the fifteenth (15th) calendar day next preceding an interest payment date, in any
cain or currency of the United States of America which on the date of payment thereol is legal tender
for the payment of public and private debis,

In the event that any amount payable hereunder as interest shall at any time exceed the rate of
interest lawfully chargeable on this note under applicable law, any such excess shall, to the extent of
such excess, be applied against the principal hereof as a prepayment thereof without penalty, and such



excess shall not be considered to be interest.  All rates of interest specified herein shall be computed
on the basis of a three hundred sixty (360} day year composed of twelve (12) months of thirty (30)
days cach,

The principal hereof and all installments of interest hereon, shall bear interest from and afier
their respective due dates at the same rate of interest payable on the principal hereof,

This note is authorized and issued pursuant to and in full compliance with, the Constitution
and the statutes of the State of Tennessee, including, but not limited to, Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee
Code Annotated, as amended. Section 9-21-117, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, provides
that this note and the income therefrom shall be exempt from all state, county, and municipal taxation
in the State of Tennessee, except as otherwise provided in said Code.

This note is known as “General Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Note, Series 2023
(the *Mote™), issued by the Municipality in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed
$10,000,000. The Note, which is issued for the purpose of renewing and extending the outstanding
principal of that certain not to exceed $ 10,000,000 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Note, Series
2022, dated May 20, 2022, the proceeds thereof have been or will be used by the Municipality for the
purpose of financing a portion of the costs of certain public works projects, consisting of the
acquisition, construction, improvement, renovation and equipping of public buildings within the
Municipality, including a public school and related athletic and parking facilities; the acquisition of
all property real and personal appurtenant thereto or connected with such work; to pay legal, fiscal,
administrative, architectural and engineering costs; to reimburse the Municipality for the costs of the
above projects; and to pay capitalized interest (collectively, the “Project™); and to pay cosis incident
to the issuance and sale of the Note, is authorized by appropriate resolutions of the Board of Mayor
and Aldermen and particularly that certain Resolution of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen, adopted
on April 26, 2022, entitled “Initial Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of a Mot to Exceed
S 10,000,000 General Obligation Bond of the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee, o Provide Funding
for Certain Public Works Projects and to Fund the Incidental and Necessary Expenses Related
Thereto,” and that certain Resolution, adopted on October 16, 2023, entitled “Resolution Authorizing
the Issuance, and Providing Details, of a General Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Note in the
Aggregate Principal Amount of Not to Exceed $10,000,000; Authorizing the Sale Thereof: and,
Providing for the Payment of Such Note,” as such resolutions may be from time to time amended or
supplemented in accordance with their terms (such resolutions as so amended or supplemented, being
herein called collectively, the “Resolution™), and is issued pursuant to, and in full compliance with,
the Constitution and the statutes of the State of Tennessee, including, but not limited to, Title 9,
Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended (the “Act™). Copies of said Resolution are on
file at the office of the Town Recorder of the Municipality, and reference 15 hereby made to said
Resolution and the Act, for a more complete statement of the terms and conditions upon which the
Note is issued thereunder, the rights, duties, immunities, and obligations of the Municipality, and the
rights of the Registered Owner hereof.

This note is payable from the proceeds of the General Obligation Bond of the Municipality in
anticipation of which it is issued. This note, including the principal hereof and the interest hereon, is
payable from funds of the Municipality legally available therefore and the extent necessary from ad
valorem taxes to be levied for such purpose on all taxable property within the corporate limits of the
Municipality without limitation as to time, rate, or amount. This note shall be a direct general




obligation of the Municipality, for which the punctual payment of the principal of and interest on this
note the full faith and credit of the Municipality has been irrevocably pledged. This note shall
additionally be payable from, but not secured by, lease payments received by the Municipality under
that certain Building Lease Agreement dated as of November 13, 2019, by and between the
Municipality and Washington County, Tennessee, as amended and restated on October 20, 2020, as
further amended.

This note is transferable by the Registered Cwner hereof in person or by his, her, or its attorney
or legal representative at the principal office of the Registration Agent, bul only in the manner and
subject to the limitations and conditions provided in the Resolution and upon surrender and
cancellation of this note. Upon any such transfer, the Municipality shall execute and the Registration
Agent shall authenticate and deliver in exchange for this note a new fully registered note or notes,
registered in the name of the transferee, of authorized denominations, in an aggregate principal
amount equal to the principal amount of this note, of the same maturity and bearing interest at the
same rate. For every exchange or transfer of notes, whether temporary or definitive, the Municipality
and the Registration Agent may make a charge, unless otherwise herein to the contrary expressly
provided, sufficient to pay for any tax, fee, or other governmental charge required to be paid with
respect to such exchange or transfer, all of which taxes, fees, or other governmental charges shall be
paid by the person or entity requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the
exercise of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer.

The Municipality and the Registration Agent may deem and treal the person or entity in whose
name this note is registered as the absolute owner hereof, whether such note shall be overdue or not,
for the purpose of receiving payment of the principal of and interest on, this note and for all other
purposes. All such payments so made shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability
upon this note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the Municipality nor the
Registration Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The MNote is issuable only as a fully registered MNote, without coupons, in minimum
denominations of $5,000. At the principal office of the Registration Agent, in the manner and subject
io the limitations, conditions, and charges provided in the Resolution, a fully registered Note may be
exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of a fully registered Note of the same maturity,
ol authorized denominations, and bearing interest at the same rate.

The Note shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Municipality, at
any time, as a whole or in part, in integral multiples of $5,000, at the par value thereof plus accrued
interest to the redemption date. Ten (10) days written notice of intended redemption shall be given
to the Registered Owners, but the Registered Owner of any note may waive such notice,

This note shall have all the qualitics and incidents of, and shall be a negotiable instrument
under, the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of Tennessee, subject only to provisions respecting
registration of such note. This note is issued with the intent that the laws of the State of Tennessee
shall govemn its construction.

It is hereby certified, recited, and declared that all acts and conditions required to be done and
o exist precedent to, and in the issuance of, this note in order to make this note a legal, valid, and
binding obligation of the Municipality, have been done, and did exist in due time and form as required



by the Constitution and statutes of the State of Tennessee, and that this note and the issue of which it
i5 a part, together with all other indebtedness of such Municipality, does not exceed any limitation
preseribed by the Constitution or statutes of the State of Tennessee.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE, by its Board
of Aldermen has caused this note to be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor
and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Town Recorder, to have its official seal, or a
facsimile thereof, to be impressed or imprinted hereon, all as of

MAYOR

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

TOWN RECORDER



Date of Authentication:
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This Note is described in the provisions of the within mentioned Resolution and is the General
Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Note, Series 2023, of the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee,

By:

Town Recorder, as Registration Agent



(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto

{Please type or print name, address, and social security number or other identifying number of
Assignee)

the within note and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint

. Attorney, to transfer the same note on the books

kept for registration hereby with full power of substitution in the premises.

Date:

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED: SIGNATURE:

NOTICE: The signature to this
assignment must correspond with the
name of the registered owner as it
appears upon the face of the within
note in every particular, without
alteration or cnlargement or any
change whatever.



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN

AGENDA PRESENTATION
DATE:___OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #:___ 7T-E

SUBJECT:_Initial Resolution Authorizing General Obligation Bond — Jackson Theatre

BACKGROUND:

The General Obligation Bond Initial Resolution is a second resolution needing BMA
approval associated with borrowing the additional $1,200,000 to complete the final
elements of the Jackson Theatre Project, and in particular the staging, such as lighting,
sound, rigging, and other finishing components in order to provide for a myriad of
performances and other activities in the facility. The previous resolution passed by the
BMA in August 2023 authorized a Bond Anticipation Note (BAN), interim financing, to
complete the project. Both resolutions are part of the overall plan for once the project is
complete, USDA Rural Development (RD) will assume the debt and the town will be
obligated to pay off said debt to RD,

As a reminder, the BAN or interim financing through Bank of Tennessee was a
compelitive rate of 2.99%.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Initial Resolution authorizing the issuance of a not to exceed $1,200,000
General Obligation Bond to complete the Jackson Theatre Project, as presented.



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-17

INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A NOT TO EXCEED
$1,200,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND OF THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH,
TENNESSEE, TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR CERTAIN PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS AND
TO FUND THE INCIDENTAL AND NECESSARY EXPENSES RELATED THERETO

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the public interest of the Town of Jonesborough,
Tennessee (the “Municipality™), to issue its General Obligation Bond (the “Bond™), for the purpose
of financing certain public works projects, as hereinafter specified.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE:

SECTION 1. That for the purpose of financing a portion of the costs of certain public
works projects, consisting of the construction, improvement, renovation and equipping of a public
building known as the Jackson Theatre; the acquisition of all property real and personal,
appurtenant thereto or connected with such work; to pay legal, fiscal, administrative, architectural
and engineering costs; o reimburse the Municipality for the costs of the above project; and to pay
costs incident to the issuance and sale of the Bond, the issuance of the Bond of the Municipality
in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed One Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars
($1,200,000) is hereby authorized. The Bond shall be issued at a date, at a rate or rates of interest
not to exceed the maximum rate allowed by law, and upon terms and conditions to be later
determined.

SECTION 2. That the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bond, shall be
pavable from funds of the Municipality legally available therefor, and to the extent necessary, from
ad valorem taxes to be levied for such purpose on all taxable property within the corporate limits
of the Municipality, without limitation as to time, rate, and amount and for the punctual payment
of said principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bond, the full faith and credit of the
Municipality will be irrevocably pledged.

SECTION 3. That the Bond deseribed and authorized by this Resolution shall be issued
pursuant to Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended (the “Act™).

SECTION 4. That after the adoption of this Resolution, the Town Recorder is directed to
cause this Resolution, with the notice preseribed by the Act, to be published in full once in a
newspaper published and having general circulation in the Municipality.

SECTION 5. That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption, the welfare
of the Municipality requiring it.



Adopted and approved this 16th day of October.

MAYOR

ATTEST:

TOWN RECORDER

NOTICE

The foregoing Resolution has been adopted. Unless within twenty
{20} days from the date of publication hereof a petition, signed by at
least ten percent (10%) of the registered voters of the Town of
Jonesborough, Tennessce, shall have been filed with the Town

Recorder protesting the issuance of the Bond, such Bond will be
issued as proposed.



STATE OF TENNESSEE )]
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON i}

I, Janet Jennings, hereby certify that [ am the duly qualified and acting Town Recorder of
the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee (the “Municipality™), and, as such official, I further certify
as follows: (1) that attached hereto is a copy of an Initial Resolution excerpted from the minutes
of the meeting of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of said Municipality held on October 16,
2023; (2) that I have compared said copy with the original minute record of said meeting in my
official custody; (3) that said copy is a true, correct, and complete transcript from said original
record insofar as said original record relates to, among other matters, the authorization of the
issuance of a not to exceed $1,200,000 General Obligation Bond of said Municipality; (4) that the
actions by the said Board of Mayor and Aldermen including the aferementioned, at said meeting
were promptly and duly recorded by me in a book kept for such purpose; and, (5) that a quorum
of the members of said Board of Mayor and Aldermen was present and acting throughout the
meeting.

WITNESS my official signature and seal of said Municipality this 16th day of October,
2023,

TOWN RECORDER
(SEAL)



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #: 7-F

SUBJECT:_Resolution Authorizing Issuance General Obligation Bond — Jackson Theatre

BACKGROUND:

As the Jackson Theatre Project enters into its final stages of completion, we continue to
fund the project through Bond Anticipation Notes, or interim financing. The town is
working with USDA Rural Development to issue their Bond on the $2,832,100, however
the note is due with First Horizon who we have the interim financing with. USDA
General Counsel does have the $2 832 100 bond issuance under review but has not
provided us a definite date for closing. As such, the Finance Director and | believe it to
be in the best interest of the BMA to approve the bond extension on the $2,832,100 so
that we have a plan in place in addressing the interim financing as needed.

As such, it is advantageous to the Town of Jonesborough to extend and renew the
Series 2021 Note through the issuance of that certain not to exceed $2,832,100
General Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Mote, Series 2023 (the "Series 2023
Extension Note"). Adams and Reese Bond Counsel Cindy Bamnett prepared the
resolution for adoption.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Town of Jonesborough to extend and renew the Series 2021 Note through
the issuance of that certain not to exceed 352,832,100 General Obligation Bond
Anticipation Extension MNote, Series 2023 (the “Series 2023 Extension Note"), as
presented.



RESOLUTION NO, 2023-18

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, AND PROVIDING DETAILS, OF A
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION EXTENSION NOTE IN THE
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $2,832,100; AUTHORIZING
THE SALE THEREOF; AND, PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF SUCH NOTE

WHEREAS, the Town of Jonesborough, Washington County, Tennessee (the
“Municipality™), is authorized by Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Anpotated, as amended, to
issue and sell bonds for the purpose of financing a portion of the costs of certain public works
projects, consisting of the construction, improvement, renovation and equipping of a public

building known as the Jackson Theatre; the acquisition of all property real and personal

appurtenant thereto or connected with such work; to pay legal, fiscal, administrative, architectural
and engineering costs; to reimburse the Municipality for the costs of the above projects; to pay
capitalized interest (collectively, the “Project”); and to pay costs incident to the financing thereof;

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Municipality (the *Board™), adopted
an “Initial Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of a Not to Exceed 32,832,100 General Obligation
Bond of the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee, to Provide Funding for Certain Public Works
Projects and to Fund the Incidental and Necessary Expenses Related Thereto™ (the “Initial
Resolution™), authorizing and directing, among other things, the issuance by the Municipality of
its general obligation bond (the “Bond™), for the purpose of financing the costs of such Project and
the costs incident to the financing thereof;

WHEREAS, the Initial Resolution authorized payment of the principal of, and interest on,
the Bond from funds of the Municipality legally available therefore and to the extent necessary
from ad valorem taxes to be levied on all taxable property within the corporate limits of the
Municipality, without limitation as to time, rate, or amount;

WHEREAS, the Town Recorder published a copy of the Initial Resolution in a newspaper
of general circulation within the Municipality;

WHEREAS, the Municipality is authorized by Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code
Annotated, as amended, to issue and sell bond anticipation notes, in one or more series, for the
purpose of providing funds to finance the Project in anticipation of the issuance and sale of the
Bond,

WHEREAS, on September 13, 2021, the Board adopted Resclution No. 2021-11,
authorizing the issuance of a general obligation bond anticipation note in the aggregate principal
amount of not to exceed $2,832,100;



WHEREAS, on October 18, 2021, the Municipality, pursuant to Resolution No. 2021-11,
issued its $2,832,100 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2021 (the “Series 2021

Note™);

WHEREAS, the Board finds that it is advantageous to the Municipality to extend and
renew the Series 2021 Note through the issuance of that certain not to exceed $2,832,100 General
Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Note, Series 2023 (the “Series 2023 Extension Note™ or
“Note™); and

WHEREAS, it is now, therefore, necessary and desirable to provide for the execution,
terms, issuance, sale, and payment of the Series 2023 Extension Note.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Authorization. For the purpose of providing funds to renew and extend the
Series 2021 Note, there shall be issued pursuant to, and in accordance with, the provisions of Title

9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, and other applicable provisions of law,
interest bearing general obligation bond anticipation extension notes, in one or more series, of the

Municipality, in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed £2,832,100.

Section 2. Definitions. Without limiting any other definitions of terms and words in
other sections of this Resolution, the following words and terms shall have the meanings indicated
unless otherwise plainly apparent from the context:

“Act” means Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended.

“Advance™ means the principal amount of the Notes advanced by the purchaser from time
to time.

“Authorized Representative of the Municipality™ means the then Mayor or the then Town
Recorder of the Municipality, authorized by resolution or by law to act on behalf of and bind the

Municipality.

“Board” means the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Jonesborough,
Tennessee.

“Bond™ or “Bonds™ means the not to exceed $2,832,100 General Obligation Bond of the
Municipality authorized by the Initial Resolution of the Board.

“Bond Counsel” means an attomey or firm of attorneys recognized as having experience
in matters relating to the issuance of municipal obligations.



“Closing Date” means the date of delivery and payment of each Note {or any temporary
Mote as authorized by Section 11 hereof pending the preparation and delivery of the defimitive
Note).

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable
regulations of the United States Department of the Treasury promulgated thereunder, as in effect
on the date of issuance of the Notes,

“Interest Payment Date™ means each date on which interest shall be payable on each Note,
aceording to its terms so long as such Note shall be Outstanding.

“Mayor” means the duly elected, qualified and acting Mayor of the Municipality, and his
or her successors.

“Municipality” means the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee.

“Mote” or “Notes” means, individually or collectively as the context dictates, the Series
2023 Extension Note.

“Outstanding,” “Notes Outstanding.” or “Quistanding Notes™ means, as of a particular
date, all Notes issued and delivered under this Resolution except: (1) any Note paid or redeemed
or otherwise canceled by the Municipality at or before such date; (2) any Note for the payment of
which cash, equal to the principal amount thereof with interest to date of maturity, shall have
theretofore been deposited prior to maturity by the Municipality for the benefit of the Owner
thereof: (3) any Note in lieu of or in substitution for which another Mote shall have been delivered
pursuant to this Resolution, unless proof satisfactory to the Municipality is presented that any Note,
for which a Note in lieu of or in substitution therefor shall have been delivered, is held by a bona
fide purchaser, as that term is defined in Article 8 of the Uniform Commercial Code of the State,
as amended, in which case both the Note in lieu of or in substitution for which a new Note has
been delivered and such new Mote so delivered therefor shall be deemed Outstanding; and, (4) any
Note deemed paid pursuant to a refunding which has not concurrently been called for redemption
except that any such Note shall be considered Outstanding until the maturity thereof only for the
purposes of being exchanged, transferred, or registered.

“Orwner”, “Moteholder”, or any similar term, when used with reference to the Notes, means
any Person who shall be the registered owner of any then Outstanding Mote or Notes.

“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation, trust, or unincorporated
organization, or a governmental entity or agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Prior Note"” means the Series 2021 MNote.

“Registration Agent” means the then Town Recorder of the Municipality acting by and on
behalf of the Municipality.



“Resolution” means this Resolution, as supplemented and amended.

“Series 2021 MNote" means the Municipality's $2,832,100 General Obligation Bond
Anticipation Note, Series 2021.

“Series 2023 Extension Note™ means the Municipality’s General Obligation Bond
Anticipation Extension Note, Series 2023, in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed
£2,832,100 authorized by this Resolution of the Board.

“State” means the State of Tennessee.

“Town Recorder™ means the duly appointed, qualified and acting Town Recorder of the
Municipality, and his or her successors.

Section3.  Terms and Provisions of the Series 2023 Extension Note. Said Series 2023
Extension Mote shall be designated “General Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Note, Series
2023." The Series 2023 Extension Note shall be dated as of October 1, 2023, and shall be issued
as a draw-down obligation; shall bear interest on the principal advanced thereunder at a rate not to
exceed the maximum rate per annum allowed by law; shall be of such denomination and contain
such terms, conditions, and provisions, other than as expressly provided or limited herein, as may
be agreed upon by the Mayor of the Municipality and the purchaser of such Series 2023 Extension
MNote; and, shall mature not later than October 1, 2025, upon delivery of the Bond, or upon
prepayment, whichever shall be earlier. The Series 2023 Extension Note shall be fully registered
as to principal and interest and shall be numbered R-1.

Section 4. Redemption. Each Note shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity at
the option of the Municipality, at any time, as a whole or in part, in integral multiples of Five
Thousand Dollars ($5,000), at the par value thereof plus acerued interest 1o the redemption date.
Ten (10} days® written notice of intended redemption shall be given to the registered owners, but
the registered owner of such Note may waive such notice.

Section 5. Form of MNotes: Execution. (a) Each Note is issuable only as a fully
registered note, without coupons, in minimum denominations of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000).
The Series 2023 Extension Note issued under this Resolution shall be substantially in the form set
forth on Exhibit “A™ attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated herein as fully as though
copied, with such appropriate variations, omissions, and insertions as are permitted or required by
this Resolution, the blanks therein to be appropriately completed when each Note is prepared, and
may have endorsed thereon such legends or text as may be necessary or appropriate to conform to
any applicable rules and regulations of any governmental authority or any usage or requirement of
law with respect thereto or as otherwise desired by the Municipality.

(b) Each Note shall be executed in such manner as may be prescribed by applicable
law in the name, and on behalf, of the Municipality with the manual or facsimile signature of the
Mayor and attested with the manual or facsimile signature of the Town Recorder, and with the

4



official seal, or a facsimile thereof, of the Municipality impressed or imprinted thereon. Each Note
shall not be valid for any purpose unless authenticated by the manual signature of the Registralion
Agent on the certificate set forth on such Note.

{c}  In the event any officer whose manual or facsimile signature shall appear on the
Motes shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Note, such manual or such facsimile
signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes as if he or she had remained in
office until such delivery. Each Note may bear the facsimile signature of, or may be manually
signed by, such individuals who, at the actual time of the execution of such Note, were the proper
officers of the Municipality to sign such Note, although on the respective dates of the adoption by
the Municipality of the Initial Resolution or this Resolution, such individuals may not have been
such officers,

Section 6.  Negotiability of Notes. Each Note issued under this Resolution shall be
negotiable, subject to the provisions for registration and transfer contained in this Resolution and
in such Note.

Section 7. Registration Books and Registration Agent. The Municipality hereby
designates the Town Recorder of the Municipality, acting by and on behalf of the Municipality, as
note registrar (the “Registration Agent™) with respect to each of the Notes and authorizes the
Registration Agent so long as such Note shall remain Outstanding, to maintain at the principal
office of the Registration Agent, books for the registration and transfer of such Note on behall of
the Municipality. The Registration Agent shall register in such books and permit to be transferred
thereon, under such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Note entitled to registration or
transfer and io authenticate and deliver the Mote either at original issuance, upon transfer, or as
otherwise directed by the Municipality, The Registration Agent is authorized to make all payments
of principal and interest with respect to the Motes.

Section 8. Exchange of Notes. Each Note upon surrender thereof at the principal office
of the Registration Agent, together with an assignment of such Note duly executed by the Cwner
thereof, or his, her, or its attorney or legal representative, may be exchanged for an equal aggregate
principal amount of Note of the same maturity, of any denomination or denominations authorized
by this Resolution, and bearing interest at the same rate as the Note surrendered for exchange.

Section 9. Transfer of Motes. (a) Each Note shall be transferable only on the
registration books maintained by the Registration Agent at the principal office of the Registration
Agent, upon the surrender for cancellation thereof at the principal office of the Registration Agent,
together with an assignment of such Note duly executed by the Owner thercof or his, her, or s
attorney or legal representative, and upon payment of the charges hereinafter provided, and subject
to such other limitations and conditions as may be provided therein or herein. Upon the
cancellation of the Note, the Registration Agent shall, in exchange for the surrendered Note,
deliver in the name of the transferee or transferces a new Note or Notes of authorized
denominations, of the same aggregate principal amount and maturity and rate of interest as such



surrendered Note, and the transferee or transferees shall take such new Note or Notes subject to
all of the conditions herein contained.

{(b)  The Municipality and the Registration Agent may deem and treat the Person in
whose name a Note shall be registered upon the registration books maintained by the Registration
Agent as the absolute owner thereof, whether such Note shall be overdue or not, for the purpose
of receiving payment of the principal of and the interest on, such Note and for all other purposes.
All such payments so made to the registered Owner thereof shall be valid and effectual to satisfy
and discharge the liability of the Municipality or the Registration Agent upon such Note to the
extent of the sum or sums so paid. Meither the Municipality nor the Registration Agent shall be
affected by any notice to the contrary.

Section 10.  Regulations with Respect to Exchanges and Transfers. (a) In all cases in
which the privilege of exchanging or transferring Notes is exercised, the Municipality shall
exccute, and the Registration Agent shall deliver, Notes in accordance with the provisions of this
Resolution. For every exchange or transfer of Notes, whether temporary or definitive, the
Municipality may make a charge, unless otherwise herein to the contrary expressly provided,
sufficient to pay for any tax, fee, or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to
such exchange or transfer, all of which taxes, fees, and other governmental charges shall be paid
by the person or entity requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the exercise
of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer.

(b Meither the Municipality nor the Registration Agent shall be obligated to exchange
or transfer any Mote during the fifteen (15) calendar days next preceding the maturity thereof or
any call for redemption.

Section 11, Mutilated, Lost, Stolen, or Destroyved MNote. (a) In the event a Note is
mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the Municipality may execule, and the Registration Agent
shall deliver, a new Note of like maturity, interest rate, and principal amount, and bearing the same
number (but with appropriate designation indicating that such new Note is a replacement Note) as
the mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Note, in exchange for the mutilated Note or in substitution
for the Mote so destroyed, lost, or stolen. In every case of exchange or substitution, the Noteholder
shall furnish te the Municipality: (1) such security or indemnity as may be required by an
Authorized Representative of the Municipality 10 hold the Municipality harmless from all risks,
however remote; and, (2) evidence satisfaction to an Authorized Representative of the
Municipality of the mutilation, destruction, loss, or theft of the subject Note and the ownership
thereof. Upon the issvance of any Note upon such exchange or substitution, the Municipality may
require the Owner thereof to pay a sum sufficient to defray any tax or other governmental charge
that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses, including printing costs and
counsel fees, of the Municipality. In the event any Note which has matured or is about to mature
shall become mutilated or be destroyed, lost, or stolen, the Municipality may, instead of issuing a
Note in exchange or substitution therefor, pay or authorize the payment of the same (without
surrender thereof except in the case of a mutilated Note) if the Owner thereof shall pay all costs
and expenses, including attorneys fees, incurred by the Municipality in connection therewith, as

6



well as a sum sufficient to defray any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in
relation thereto and shall furnish to the Municipality such security or indemnity as an Authorized
Representative of the Municipality may require to save the Municipality harmless and evidence to
the satisfaction of an Authorized Representative of the Municipality of the mutilation, destruction,
loss, or theft of such Note and of the ownership thereof.

(b)  Every Note issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section shall constitute an
additional contractual obligation of the Municipality (whether or not the destroyed, lost, or stolen
Note shall be found at any time to be enforceable) and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this
Resolution equally and propertionately with any and all other Notes duly issued under such
Resolution.

(c) Each Mote shall be held and owned upon the express condition that the provisions
of this Section are exclusive, with respect to the replacement or payment of a mutilated, destroyed,
lost, or stolen Note, and, to the maximum extent legally permissible, shall preclude all other nghts
or remedies, notwithstanding any law or statute now existing or hereafter enacted 1o the contrary.

Section 12, Authentieation. Only if a Note shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of
authentication, substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit “A™ hereto duly executed by the
Registration Agent with respect to the Series 2023 Extension Note, shall it be entitled to the rights,
benefits, and security of this Resolution. No Note shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose
unless, and until, such certificate of authentication shall have been duly executed by the
Registration Agent. Such executed certificate of authentication by the Registration Agent upon a
MNote shall be conclusive evidence that such Note has been duly authenticated and delivered under
this Resolution as of the date of authentication,

Section 13,  Source of Payment; Security. The Notes, including the principal thereof
and the interest thereon, is payable from funds of the Municipality legally available therefore and
to the extent necessary from ad valorem taxes to be levied for such purpose on all taxable property
within the corporate limits of the Municipality without limitation as to time, rate, or amount, Said
MNotes shall be a direct general obligation of the Municipality, for which the punctual payment of
the principal of and interest on the Notes the full faith and credit of the Municipality is hereby

irrevocably pledged.

Section 14.  Levy of Taxes. For the purpose of providing for the payment of the
principal of and interest on the Notes, there shall be levied in each year in which such Notes shall
be outstanding a direct tax on all taxable property in the Municipality, fully sufficient to pay all
such principal and interest falling due prior to the time of collection of the next succeeding tax
levy. Said tax shall be assessed, collected, and paid at the time, and in the same manner, as the
other taxes of said Municipality, shall be in addition to all other taxes, and shall be without
limitation as to time, rate, or amount. The Board of the Municipality is required by law and shall
and does hereby pledge to levy such tax. Principal and interest, or any of the foregoing, falling
due at any time when there shall be insufficient funds on hand from such tax levy for the payment
thereof shall be paid from the general fund or other available funds of the Municipality, but

7



reimbursement therefor may be made from the taxes herein provided when the same shall have
been collected. All such taxes levied and collected with respect to the Series 2023 Extension Note
shall be deposited in a special fund to be designated “Bond Anticipation Extension Note, Series
2023 Note Fund” (the “Series 2023 Extension Note Fund™), and used solely for the payment of
principal and interest on the Series 2023 Extension Note as the same shall become due.

Section 15.  Sale of Notes. The Motes shall be sold at a private negotiated sale in
accordance with the terms of this Resolution as determined by the Mayor and Town Recorder of
the Municipality. The Mayor and the Town Recorder are authorized to cause the Notes to be
authenticated and delivered to the successful purchaser or purchasers as the case may be, and to
execute, publish, and deliver all certificates and documents, as they shall deem necessary in
connection with the sale and delivery of the Notes.

Section 16.  Disposition of Note Proceeds, The proceeds advanced from the sale of the
Series 2023 Extension Note from time to time shall be paid to the official of the Municipality

designated by law as the custodian of the funds thereof, to be deposited in the special fund
previously authorized by Resolution No. 2021-11 known as the “Bond Anticipation Note, Series
2021 Construction Fund” (referred to hercin as the “Construction Fund™). Monies in the
Construction Fund shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the Municipality, shall
be secured in the manner prescribed by applicable statutes relative to the securing of public or trust
funds, if any and may be invested in accordance with State law. Monies in the Construction Fund
shall be expended only for the purposes authorized by this Resolution.

Section 17.  Covepants. The Municipality covenants that, while the Motes remain
outstanding and unpaid, it will:

(i)  use its best efforts to provide permanent financing for the Project and the
purposes authorized herein and issue the Bond as soon as the Municipality determines that
it is practicable and in the best interest of the Municipality so to do;

(i)  maintain its existence; and,

(iii)  duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid, as herein provided the principal
installments or redemption price of each Note and the interest thereon, at the dates and
places and in the manner stated herein and faithfully and punctually perform all duties
required by the Constitution and laws of the State and the Act, including the making and
collecting of taxes in an amount at least sufficient to pay principal of and interest on each
Note,

Section 18. Mandatory Redemption of Notes. Contemporaneously with the issuance
and sale of the Bond, each Note then outstanding, even though it may have not have matured, shall
be paid, both principal and interest to date of payment, and the Note or Notes shall thereupon be
surrendered by the registered owners thereof and cancelled. The Registration Agent shall give the
registered owner of the Note not less than ten (10) days written notice of the contemplated date of

8



delivery of the Bond and retirement of such Note by mail, addressed to the registered owner of the
MNote at his, her, or its address as shown on the registration books of the Registration Agent;
provided, that any such registered owner may waive such notice.

Section 19.  Remedies of Noteholders. (a) Except as herein expressly limited, the
Owner or Owners of each Note shall have and possess all the rights of action and remedies afforded
by the common law, the Constitution and statutes of the State and of the United States of America
for the enforcement of payment of the Note, and of the pledge of the funds hereunder, and of all
covenants of the Municipality hereunder.

{(b)  Upon the occurrence of an event of default in the payment of principal or interest,
the Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in principal amount of each Mote
outstanding may exercise any on¢ or more of the following remedies either singly or in
combination with each other:

(i) either at law or in equity, by suit, action, mandamus, or other proceedings,
in any court of competent jurisdiction enforce and compel performance of all duties
imposed upon the Municipality by the provisions of this Resolution; or,

{ii}  take any other action permitted by law, the Act, or this Resolution,

Section 20.  Non-Asbitrage Certification. The Municipality certifies and covenants with
the Owners of each Note that so long as the principal of the Note remains unpaid, monies on

deposit in any fund or account in connection with such Note, whether or not from any other source,
will not be used in a manner which will cause the Note to be an “arbitrage bond™ within the
meaning of Section 148 of the Code and any lawful regulations promulgated thereunder, as the
same presently exist, or may from time to time hereafier be amended, supplemented or revised.
The Municipality reserves the right, however, to make any investment of such moneys permitted
by Tennessee law and this Resolution if, when and to the extent that said Section 148 or regulations
promulgated thereunder shall be repealed or relaxed or shall be held void by final decision of a
courl of competent jurisdiction, but only if any investment made by virtue of such repeal,
relaxation or decision would not, in the opinion of counsel of recognized competence in such
matters, result in making the interest on the Note subject to inclusion in gross income of the Owners
thereof for federal income tax purposes.

The Municipality covenants that it shall comply with Section 148(f) of the Code, unless
legally exempted therefrom and it represents that in the event it shall be required by Section 148(f)
of the Code and the Regulations to pay Rebatable Arbitrage pursuant to the Code and the
Regulations to the United States Government it will make such payments as and when required by
said Section 148(f) and will take such other actions as shall be necessary or permitted to prevent
the interest on the Note from becoming subjeet to inclusion in federal gross income of the Cwners
of the Note for federal income tax purposes. The Municipality further covenants that it will not
take any action that will cause the interest on the Note to be subject to inclusion in gross income



of the Owners thereof for federal income tax purposes under Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of
the Code.

Section 21.  Annual Budget. The Municipality shall submit its annual budget to the State
Director of Local Finance for approval immediately upon the Municipality's adoption of the
budget.

Section 22. Amendments. After the issuance of each Note, no change, variation, or
alteration of any kind in the provisions of this Resolution which would impair the rights of the
Moteholders shall be made in any manner, until such time as all of the principal of and interest on
such Note shall have been paid in full unless the consent of all of the Owners of all then
Outstanding Notes has been obtained; provided, however, that the Municipality is hereby
authorized to make such amendments to this Resolution as will not impair the rights of
Moteholders. The laws of the State of Tennessee shall govern this Resolution.

Section 23, Failure to Present MNote, (a) In the event a Note shall not be presented for
payment when the principal of, and interest on, such Note becomes due at maturity and in the event

monies sufficient to pay such Note shall be held by the Municipality for the benefit of the Owner
thereof, all liability of the Municipality to such Owner for the payment of such Note shall forthwith
cease, terminate, and be completely discharged. Thereupon, the Municipality shall hold such
monies, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Owner of such Note who shall
thereafier be restricted exclusively to such monies for any claim under this Resolution or on, or
with respect to, said Note,

(b) If a Note shall not be presented for payment within a period of five (5) years
following the date when such Note becomes due, such Note shall (subject to the provisions of any
applicable escheat or other similar law and subject to the defense of any applicable statute of
limitation) thereafier constitute an unsecured obligation of the Municipality.

Section 24.  Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays. and Holidays. In any case where the
date of maturity or interest on or principal of the Notes shall be a Saturday or Sunday or shall be,

at the place designated for payment, a legal holiday or a day on which municipal corporations
similar to the Municipality are authorized by law to close, then the payment of the interest on, or
the principal of such Note need not be made on such date but must be made on the next succeeding
day not a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday or a day upon which municipal corporations similar
to the Municipality are authorized by law to close, with the same force and effect as if made on
the date of maturity and no interest shall accrue for the period after such date.

Section 25.  No Action to be Taken Affecting Validity of the Notes. The Board hereby
covenanis and agrees that it will not take any action, that would in any manner affect the validity
of the Notes or limit the rights and remedies of the Owners from time to time of such Notes or
affect the exclusion of interest thereon from the gross income of the holders thereof for federal
income tax purposes,

10



Section 26.  Miscellaneous Acis. The Mayor, the Town Recorder, the Town Attorney,
and all other appropriate officials of the Municipality are hereby authorized, empowered, and
directed to do any and all such acts and things, and to execute, acknowledge, and deliver all such
documents, instruments, and certifications, specifically including but not limited to arbitrage
certifications, in addition to those acts, things, documents, instruments, and certifications
hereinbefore authorized and approved, as may in their discretion, be necessary or desirable to
implement or comply with the intent of this Resolution; or any of the documents hercin
authorized and approved, or for the anthorization, issuance, and delivery of the Notes.

Section 27,  Engagement of Bond Counsel. The Board hercby approves the
engagement of Adams and Reese LLP to serve as bond counsel with respect to the issuance of
the Bond and the Notes.

Section28.  No Recourse Under Resolution or on Notes, All stipulations, promises,
agreements, and obligations of the Municipality contained in the Initial Resolution or this
Resolution shall be deemed to be the stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the
Municipality and not of any officer, director, or employee of the Municipality in his or her
individual capacity, and no recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or interest
on the Notes or for any claim based thereon or on the Initial Resolution or this Resolution against
any officer, director, or employee of the Municipality or against any official or individual
executing the Notes.

Section 29.  Partial Invalidity. If any one or more of the provisions of this Resolution,
or of any exhibit or attachment thereto, shall be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any
respect, by final decree of any court of lawful jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, or of any exhibit or attachment
thereto, but this Resolution, and the exhibits and attachments thereto, shall be construed the same
as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein, or therein,
as the case may be.

Section 30,  Severability. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this Resolution
shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of
such section, paragraph, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof.

Section31.  Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions and Effective Date. All resolutions and

orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution, are, to the extent of such
conflict, hereby repealed and this Resolution shall be in immediate effect from and after its
adoption, the welfare of the Municipality requiring it.

11



Approved and adopied this 16th day of October, 2023,

MAYOR
Adftest:

TOWN RECORDER

12



STATE OF TENNESSEE)
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON}

I, Janet Jennings, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Town Recorder of the
Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee (the “Municipality™), and, as such official, | further certify as
follows: (1) that attached hereto is a copy of a resolution excerpted from the minutes of the meeting
of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen (the “Board") of said Municipality held on October 16, 2023;
(2) that | have compared said copy with the original minute record of said meeting in my official
custody; (3) that said copy is a true, correct and complete transcript from said original record insofar
as said original record relates, to, among other matters, the authorization of the issuance of a not to
exceed $2,832,100 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Mote, Series 2023 of said
Municipality; (4) that the actions by said Board including the aforementioned, at said meeting were
promptly and duly recorded by me in a book kept for such purposes; and, (5) that a quorum of the
members of said Board was present and acting throughout said meeting.

WITNESS my official signature and the seal of said Municipality this 16th day of October,
2023.

TOWN RECORDER

(SEAL)



EXHIBIT “A"
FORM OF SERIES 2023 EXTENSION NOTE

Registered Registered
No, R-1 §£2.832,100
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON
TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION EXTENSION NOTE,

SERIES 2023
Interest Rate: Maturity Date: Dated Date:

%o
Registered Owner:

Principal Amount: TWO MILLION EIGHT HUNDRED THIRTY-TWO THOUSAND ONE
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,832,100)

THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE (the “Municipality™), a lawfully
organized and existing municipal corporation located in Washington County, Tennessee, for value
received, hereby acknowledges itself indebted and promises to pay, as hereinafter provided, to the
Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns as hereinafler provided, on the Maturity
Date identified above, upon the presentation and surrender hereof at the principal office of the Town
Recorder, Town Hall, Jonesborough, Tennessee (the “Registration Agent”™), the Principal Amount
identified above, and to pay interest from the date hereof on said Principal Amount as advanced from
time to time, or such later date as to which interest has been paid, to the Maturity Date, such interest
being due and payable on the Maturity Date at the Interest Rate per annum set forth above, by check,
draft, or warrant to the Registered Owner hereof at the address shown on the registration books of the
Mote Registrar on the fifteenth (15th) calendar day next preceding an interest payment date, in any
coin or currency of the United States of America which on the date of payment thereof is legal tender
for the payment of public and private debds.

In the event that any amount payable hereunder as interest shall at any time exceed the rate of
interest lawfully chargeable on this note under applicable law, any such excess shall, to the extent of



such excess, be applied against the principal hereof as a prepayment thereof without penalty, and such
excess shall not be considered to be interest, All rates of interest specified herein shall be computed
on the basis of a three hundred sixty (360) day year composed of twelve (12) months of thirty (30)
days each.

The principal hereof and all installments of interest hereon, shall bear interest from and after
their respective due dates at the same rate of interest payable on the principal hereof,

This note is authorized and issued pursuant to and in full compliance with, the Constitution
and the statutes of the State of Tennessee, including, but not limited to, Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee
Code Annotated, as amended. Section 9-21-117, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, provides
that this note and the income therefrom shall be exempt from all state, county, and municipal taxation
in the State of Tennessee, except as otherwise provided in said Code,

This note is known as “General Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Note, Series 2023™
(the “Note™), issued by the Municipality in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed
£2,832,100. The Note, which is issued for the purpose of renewing and extending the outstanding
principal of that certain not to exceed $2,832,100 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Note, Series
2021, dated October 18, 2021, the proceeds thereof have been or will be used by the Municipality for
the purpose of financing a portion of the costs of certain public works projects, consisting of the

construction, improvement, renovation and equipping of a public building known as the Jackson
Theatre; the acquisition of all property real and personal appurtenant thereto or connected with such

work; to pay legal, fiscal, administrative, architectural and engineering costs; to reimburse the
Municipality for the costs of the above projects; and to pay capitalized interest (collectively, the
“Project”); and to pay costs incident to the issuance and sale of the Note, is authorized by appropriate
resolutions of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen and particularly that certain Resolution of the Board
of Mayor and Aldermen, adopted on September 13, 2021, entitled “Initial Resolution Authorizing the
Issuance of a Not to Exceed $2,832,100 General Obligation Bond of the Town of Jonesborough,
Tennessee, to Provide Funding for Certain Public Works Projects and to Fund the Incidental and
Mecessary Expenses Related Thereto,” and that certain Resolution, adopted on October 16, 2023,
entitled “Resolution Authorizing the Issuance, and Providing Details, of a General Obligation Bond
Anticipation Extension MNote in the Aggregate Principal Amount of Not to Exceed $2,832,100;
Authorizing the Sale Thereof; and, Providing for the Payment of Such Note,” as such resolutions may
be from time to time amended or supplemented in accordance with their terms (such resolutions as
so amended or supplemented, being herein called collectively, the “Resolution™), and is 1ssued
pursuant to, and in full compliance with, the Constitution and the statutes of the State of Tennessee,
including, but not limited to, Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended (the “Act”™).
Copies of said Resolution are on file at the office of the Town Recorder of the Municipality, and
reference is hereby made to said Resolution and the Act, for a more complete statement of the terms
and conditions upon which the Note is issued thereunder, the rights, duties, immunities, and
obligations of the Municipality, and the rights of the Registered Owner hereof.

This note is payable from the proceeds of the General Obligation Bond of the Municipality in
anticipation of which it is issued. This note, including the principal hereof and the interest hereon, is
payable from funds of the Municipality legally available therefore and the extent necessary from ad



valorem taxes to be levied for such purpose on all taxable property within the corporate limits of the
Municipality without limitation as to time, rate, or amount. This note shall be a direct general
obligation of the Municipality, for which the punctual payment of the principal of and interest on this
note the full faith and credit of the Municipality has been irrevocably pledged.

This note is transferable by the Registered Owner hereof in person or by his, her, or its attomey
or legal representative at the principal office of the Registration Agent, but only in the manner and
subject to the limitations and conditions provided in the Resolution and upon surrender and
cancellation of this note, Upon any such transfer, the Municipality shall execute and the Registration
Agent shall authenticate and deliver in exchange for this note a new fully registered note or notes,
registered in the name of the transferee, of authorized denominations, in an aggregate principal
amount equal to the principal amount of this note, of the same maturity and bearing interest at the
same rate. For every exchange or transfer of notes, whether temporary or definitive, the Municipality
and the Registration Agent may make a charge, unless otherwise herein to the contrary expressly
provided, sufficient to pay for any tax, fee, or other governmental charge required to be paid with
respect to such exchange or transfer, all of which taxes, fees, or other governmental charges shall be
paid by the person or entity requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the
exercise of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer.

The Municipality and the Registration Agent may deem and treat the person or entity in whose
name this note is registered as the absolute owner hereof, whether such note shall be overdue or not,
for the purpose of receiving payment of the principal of and interest on, this note and for all other
purposes. All such payments so made shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability
upon this note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the Municipality nor the
Registration Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The MNote is issuable only as a fully registered Note, without coupons, in minimum
denominations of $5,000. At the principal office of the Registration Agent, in the manner and subject
to the limitations, conditions, and charges provided in the Resolution, a fully registered Note may be
exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of a fully registered Note of the same maturity,
of authorized denominations, and bearing interest at the same rate.

The Note shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Municipality, at
any time, as a whole or in part, in integral multiples of $5,000, at the par value thereof plus accrued
interest to the redemption date. Ten (10) days written notice of intended redemption shall be given
to the Registered Owners, but the Registered Owner of any note may waive such notice.

This note shall have all the qualitics and incidents of, and shall be a negotiable instrument
under, the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of Tennessee, subject only to provisions respecting
registration of such note. This note is issued with the intent that the laws of the State of Tennessee

shall govern its construction.

It is hereby certified, recited, and declared that all acts and conditions required to be done and
to exist precedent to, and in the issuance of, this note in order to make this note a legal, valid, and
binding obligation of the Municipality, have been done, and did exist in due time and form as required
by the Constitution and statutes of the State of Tennessee, and that this note and the issue of which it



is a part, together with all other indebtedness of such Municipality, does not exceed any limitation
prescribed by the Constitution or statutes of the State of Tennessee.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE, by its Board
of Aldermen has caused this note to be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor
and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Town Recorder, to have its official seal, or a

facsimile thereof, to be impressed or imprinted hereon, all as of

MAYOR

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

TOWN RECORDER



Date of Authentication:

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This MNote is described in the provisions of the within mentioned Resolution and is the General
Obligation Bond Anticipation Extension Note, Series 2023, of the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee.

By:

Town Recorder, as Registration Agent



(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto

(Please type or print name, address, and social security number or other identifying number of
Assignee)

the within note and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint

, Attorney, to transfer the same note on the books

kept for registration hereby with full power of substitution in the premises.

Date:

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED: SIGNATURE:

MNOTICE: The signature to this
assignment must correspond with the
name of the registered owner as it
appears upon the face of the within
note in every particular, without
alteration or enlargement or any
change whatever.



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #: -G

SUBJECT: 1™ Reading — Ordinance Title 10, Creating new Chapter 4 Parks, Green Spaces

BACKGROUND:

Currently the Town does not have an ordinance with respect to activities occurring
within its parks, walking trails, or green spaces. The only ordinance with respect to
parks is the Recreation Commission, otherwise known as the Parks and Recreation
Advisory Committee,

Staff feels it is imperative that the Town adopt an ordinance relating to activities that
are allowed and/or acceptable within the Town's public spaces. As an example, if an
officer is called to a disturbance within the Town's parks or walkway system, there are
ordinances governing the officer's response.

As such, the officer is bound at that point to determine whether a state law violation
has occurred and take the appropriate action, which would be arrest, or a citation.
With established ordinances, it gives the officer, as well as, Recreation staff, additional
tools to regulate unwarranted or unacceptable behavior within the Town's park
system.

The attached draft ordinance addresses behavior within our parks and green spaces,
and it also establishes by ordinance the operating hours of our parks.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Ordinance Title 10 Offenses-Miscellaneous, creating a new Chapter 4
“Parks, Green Spaces, Trails, and Public Property” on first reading, as presented.




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE 10 OF THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
MUNICIPAL CODE BY ADDING CHAPTER 4

SECTION 1. BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN OF THE
TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENMESSEE, that Title 10 of the Jonesborough
Municipal Code, entitled "Offenses — Miscellaneous” is amended by adding Chapter
4 and to read as follows:

CHAPTER 4
PARKS, GREEN SPACES, TRAILS, AND PUBLIC PROPERTY

SECTION
10-401. General Rules

10-402. Wildlife and Environment
10-403. Solicitation

10-404. Additional Rules

10-405. Penalty

10-401. Rules and regulations for use of town parks, green spaces, and public
properties—Generally.

The following rules and regulations are established for all town parks and recreation
areas, walking trails, and public property:

{1) Firearms. No person shall possess, carry or discharge any firearm, shotgun, rifle,
pistol, bow and arrow, crossbow, blowgun, slingshot, BB gun, air gun or paint gun
in & town park or recreation area. "Firearm" means any device designed, made or
adapted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive or any device readily
convertible to do so. This restriction shall not apply to duly authorized law
enforcement officers acting in their official duties.

{2) Animals. All dogs, cats and other animals shall be kept on a leash which is not
more than six feet in length. All animals other than dogs and cats shall be kept on
paved or concrete surfaces or areas designated for such animals. Every person
bringing an animal into a town park or recreational areas shall comply with Title 3,
Chapter 3 of the Jonesborough Municipal Code, and must remove any and all
animal waste. No person shall abandon any animal.

ANIMALS ARE PROHIBITED FROM BEING ON THE PLAYING SURFACE OF
ANY ATHLETIC FIELD, SPORTS VENUE, OR PLAYGROUND.

(3) Vending and advertising. The vending or sale of merchandise or services is
prohibited without written permission from the town administrator or his designee.



(4

()

(€)

(7

(8)

(9)

The erection or placement of signs, posters, banners or other advertising devices
is prohibited without written permission from the Town Administrator or his
designee.

Speed limits. Mo vehicle shall travel at a speed in excess of 10 miles per hour
unless a higher speed limit is posted. For the purposes of this provision, the term
"vehicle” shall include golf carts, bicycles and all other types of vehicles whether
motorized or non-motorized.

Vehicles and bicycles.

(a) All motorized vehicles shall remain on paved roadways except for emergency
vehicles and city vehicles.

(b) Wehicles shall park only in designated parking areas.

(¢) Bicycles shall remain on paved roadways, paved trails and areas designated
for bicycles. All riders of bicycles shall wear safety helmets.

Alcoholic beverages. Alcoholic beverages of any kind are prohibited except as
may be authorized by permit.

Swimming. Swimming is prohibited except in Wetlands Waterpark during normal
business hours when a lifeguard is on duty and subject to such rules as may be
posted.

Fees. No person shall enter, use or attempt to use a city park or recreation area
without paying such fees as may be prescribed by the Board of Mayor and
Alderman from time to time.

Use for other purposes. No person shall use any park, or similar recreational
property within the town, except for the recreational purpose or use to which such
property is customarily devoted.

{10) Hours of operation. Mo person shall enter, use or attempt to use a town park or

recreational area from dusk to dawn, except for an activity or event which is
supervised, conducted, or approved by the town, or for which the person has
written permission from the town administrator or his designee.

{11) Fires. Fires are prohibited except in grills installed by the town, or in accordance

with the written authorization of the town administrator or his designee.

(12) Camping. Camping is prohibited except in accordance with the written

authorization of the town administrator or his designee, or prior approval of the
Board of Mayor and Alderman. This is to include the prohibition of motorized or
pull-behind campers, tents, or open-air camping. In addition, no overnight parking
is permitted in town parks, except for an activity or event which is supervised,
conducted, or approved by the town, or for which the person has written permission
from the Town Administrator or his designee.



(13) Litter. No person shall throw or deposit litter in any park within the Town except
in public receptacles and in such a manner that the litter will be prevented from
being carried or deposited by the elements upon any part of the park, or upon any
street, walkway, greenspace, or other public property. Where public receptacles
are not provided, all such litter shall be carried away from the park by the person
responsible for its presence and properly disposed of elsewhere.

(14) Parking. Parking within any park shall be only in designated spaces and shall be
for the exclusive use of park users. Parking is prohibited overnight and when the
park is closed. All parking regulations shall comply with Title 9, Chapter 5 of the
Jonesborough Municipal Code.

10-402 Wildlife and Environment.

(a)

(b)

{c)

The hunting or trapping of wildlife is prohibited. For these purposes, the
term “hunting" shall mean the driving, flushing, attracting, pursuing,
worrying, following after the trail of, searching for, trapping, shooting at,
stalking or lying in wait for wildlife, whether or not such wildlife is then or
subsequently captured, killed, taken or wounded.

Mo person shall damage, destroy or remove any plant life, animal life or
natural structure in any town park or recreational area, except as
authorized in subsection c, below.

Fishing (except for turtles) is permitted, subject to the regulations of the
Tennessee Wildlife Resources Agency or its lawful successor, by
persons holding a valid Tennessee fishing license. The town
administrator or his designee, may give written authorization for persons
to perform research, wildlife management, conservation or educational
projects which might otherwise be prohibited by this section.

10-403 Solicitation. No person shall be permitted to solicit, peddle, sell, or in any way
distribute any article or item in the town's parks, unless it is in conjunction with a town-
sponsored special event and prior approval is obtained from the Town Administrator.

10-404 Additional Rules and Regulations.

(a)

(b)

All persons shall comply with such other reasonable rules, conditions,
restrictions and limitations as may be posted or announced in the town
parks from time to time by the town administrator or his designee.

If any individual or group of individuals fails to follow any park regulation
or any town policy, or ordinance related to the use of town parks, the
individual or group may be requested to cease use and leave park
property. Refusal to comply shall result in a response from the Police
Department.



(c)

(d})

(e)

Any organization, group, civic club, individual, firm, or corporation
utilizing a park or recreational facility for any purpose, or sponsoring or
promoting any activities therein, shall clear the park of all rubbish, trash,
or other debris immediately after said use. Violation of this section shall
result in forfeiture of the right to further use of the park and related
facilities.

The Board of Mayor and Alderman may from time to time establish other
regulations or restrictions as policy to govemn the use of town parks and
recreational facilities.

The Board of Mayor and Alderman shall have the authority to establish
fees and charges for the use of town parks and public spaces,
recreational facilities and programs.

10-405 Penalty for viclation.

It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any of the foregoing rules and regulations,
and any viclation shall be subject to the penalty provided in Titles 9 and 10 of the
Jonesborough Municipal Code.

(a)

Motwithstanding any provisions to the contrary and in addition to the
Municipal Code for the Town of Jonesborough, individuals in violation of
this chapter shall be subject fo penalties as outlined in Title 39 of the
Tennessee Code.

SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately from and after its
passage as provided by law.

Motion was made by and seconded

that the preceding ordinance be adopted on first reading. Those voting for the adoption
thereof were:

Those voting against:

ATTEST.

PASSED ON FIRST READING

CHUCK VEST, MAYOR

JANET JENNINGS, RECORDER



APPROVED AS TO FORM

JAMES R. WHEELER, TOWN ATTORNEY

Motion was made by and seconded by that
the preceding ordinance be adopted on second and final reading. Those voting for the
adoption thereof were;

Those voting against:

PASSED ON SECOND READING

CHUCK VEST, MAYOR

ATTEST.

JANET JENNINGS, TOWN RECORDER

APPROVED AS TO FORM

JAMES R. WHEELER, TOWN ATTORNEY



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #: 7-H

SUBJECT: Resolution — Amend Town’s Water Conservation Resolution Section 7 Part C

BACKGROUND:

Water Plant Director Luke Cole is requesting BMA action to amend Section 7 of the
town's Water Conservation Resolution. The resolution authorizes and sets forth
guidelines for the declaration of water shortage emergency. TDEC has advised that
Section 7 part “c” needed to be amended to meet their requirements. The resolution
provided shows the existing parts “a” and “b” as well as the amended language for part
G

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Resolution amending the Town of Jonesborough Water Conservation
Resolution Section 7, part “c", as presented.



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-19

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH WATER
DEPARTMENT AMENDING “THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH WATER

CONSERVATION RESOLUTION" SECTION 7

WHEREAS, it is necessary to impose certain restrictions on the use of water because of
shortages which can occur for various reasons, and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to have a plan for implementation of measures which restrict
the non-essential use to water during such emergencies for the greatest public benefit
with particular regard to public health, fire protection, and domestic use; and

WHEREAS, such implementation procedures must be of a form which can be enacted
fairly and quickly to preserve the health and welfare of individuals.

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend Section 7, Customer Non-Compliance, Part "c” to
meet the requirements of the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH,
TENNESSEE BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN, THAT SECTION 7, NON-
COMPLIANCE, PART “C" BE AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 7. CUSTOMER NON-COMPLIANCE

(a)  Any failure of a customer to comply with the requirements of a declared water
shortage emergency may be reported to any official of the Town of
Jonesborough and shall be investigated by the Board of Mayor and Alderman,
If non-compliance is found to exist, the board of Mayor and Alderman shall
request immediate compliance by the customer. Should the customer fail or
refuse to immediately comply with the request, the Board of Mayor and
Alderman shall immediately discontinue water service to the customer in
question.

(b)  Any customer whose service is disconnected because of a failure to comply
with the requirements of a declared water shortage emergency shall have the
right, after the first such disconnection, to have service reinstated upon
payment to the Town of Jonesborough of its customary reconnection charge
and upon execution of a written statement that hefshe will comply with the
requirements of the declared emergency. If service is disconnected because of
subsequent failure to comply, such customer shall have the nght to
reinstatement of service only after approval of the Board of Mayor and
Alderman and subject to such terms and conditions as the Board of Mayor and
Alderman shall impose.



(c)  The decision of the Board of Mayor and Alderman may be appealed for a
hearing to the Board of Mayor and Alderman. The disconnection shall remain
in effect until the appeal is heard, A hearing shall be conducted within seventy-
two (72) hours of the time the request for hearing is made by the customer, In
the event a hearing is not conducted within the seventy-two hours, service shall
be reinstated until the hearing is conducted. All requests for a hearing shall be
made to the Board of Mayor and Alderman of the Town of Jonesborough.

DULY PASSED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN on this the 16" day of
October, 2023.

Motion was made by and duly seconded by that
this Resolution be adopted. Those voting for the adoption thereof were:

Those vaoting against:

CHUCK VEST, MAYOR

ATTEST:

JANET JENNINGS, RECORDER

APFROVED AS TO FORM:

JAMES WHEELER, TOWN ATTORNEY



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN

AGENDA PRESENTATION
DATE: COCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #: 7-l

SUBJECT: Approval of Bid for Tiger Park Accessories

CKG ND:

The town solicited bids for “Tiger Park Accessories”. Part of the LPRF grant project is the
purchase of trashcans, tables, and benches. There are ten (10) benches along the
walkways, thirteen (13) double trash receplacles, and four (4) hexagon tables (one
handicap accessible) that are under the small pavilion near the athletic playground. All
the products have composite boards with cedar finish and the benches have cast iron
frames.

We received two bids, one from Belson Outdoors and the other from Park Warehouse.
Both bids were using the same products which met specifications, and Belson bid
$43,985.18 including delivery, and Park Warehouse bid $46,760.23. Belson is the low
bidder and meets specifications, and they used the bid form we supplied as required while
Park Warehouse did not.

[

In the LPRF grant application, the project budget for these accessory items are as

follows:
Affixed Tables $21,900.00
Affixed Benches $27.200.00
Affixed Trashcans 545 500.00

Total  $94,600.00

Mote: An LPRF requirement is that itemns like trashcans, in order to be grant-eligible, have
to be secured to the ground so they are not removed from the park. We have to
have them on concrete or asphalt pads anyway in order to make them ADA
accessible, so we will bolt them down.

Obviously, the bid is less than half of the budget. We may decide to have a couple of
tables at the concession stand, but we need to make sure there is room. The concrete
around the concession/ restroom building is also the truck access lo the transformer
providing power to the building and balifield lighting.




The recommendation from Project Manager Bob Browning is to approve the low bid on
the park accessories from Belson Outdoors at $43,985.18, which meets specifications

and budget.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve awarding the bid for Tiger Park Accessories to Belson Outdoors in the amount
of $43,985.18, as presented.



MEMO

To:  Glenn Rosenoff
Board of Mayor and Alderman

From: Bob Browning
Date: October 10, 2023

RE: Tiger Park Accessories Bid

Part of the LPRF grant project is the purchase of trashcans, tables, and benches. There
are ten (10) benches along the walkways, thirteen (13) double trash receptacles, and four
(4) hexagon tables (one handicap accessible) that are under the small pavilion near the
athletic playground. All the products have composite boards with cedar finish and the
benches have cast iron frames.

We received two bids, one from Belson Outdoors and the other from Park Warehouse.
Both bid were using the same products which met specifications, and Belson bid
$43,985.18 including delivery, and Park Warehouse bid $46,760.23. Belson is the low
bidder and meets specifications, and they used the bid form we supplied as required while
Park Warehouse did not.

In the LPRF grant application, the project budget for these accessory items is as follows:

Affixed Tables $21,900.00
Affixed Benches $27,200.00
Affixed Trashcans $45,500.00

Total  $94,600.00

Note: An LPRF requirement is that items like trashcans, in order to be grant-eligible, have
to be secured to the ground so they are not removed from the park. We have to
have them on concrete or asphalt pads anyway in order to make them ADA
accessible, so we will bolt them down.

Obviously the bid is less than half of the budget. We may decide to have a couple of
tables at the concession stand, but we need to make sure there is room. The concrete
around the concession/ restroom building is also the truck access to the transformer
providing power to the building and ballfield lighting.

The recommendation is to approve the low bid on the park accessories from Belson
Qutdoors at $43,985.18, which meets specifications and budget.



BID OPENING FOR;:
Tiger Park Accessories

DATE:_Thursday, September 21, 2023

BIDS RECEIVED FROM 0 AI?IDUHT‘
L4 *
Delson OQutdoors E’a&sﬂl zﬂn‘;,f’?ﬁ‘" 5.4

Park Warthpuse ("yii%hrm ) L TU0.2%

e

THOSE IN ATFENDANCE:
' =
rpoa
&

I{ T




NOTICE TO BID
TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
PARK ACCESSORY EQUIPMENT
TIGER PARK

The Town of Jonesborough Is now accepling bids for the purchase of accessory
equipment for Tiger Park located at North Cherckee Street. Bids will be received until

Thursday, September 214 at 2 p.m. at Town Hall, 123 Boone Sireet, Jonesborough, TN
37659 at which time they will be publicly opened.

This project may be funded in part by a Local Parks and Recreation Fund grant
administered by the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation
Recreation Educational Services Divislon.

BID SPECIFICATIONS

General: Equipment will be located at Tiger Park, 720 M Cherokee Street, in
Jonesborough, throughout the athletic field areas.

General Comments on Accessory Equipment Bid Specifications

Substitutions: Bidders may provide subslitutions for equipment listed in bid
specifications, including all materials, coatings and wheelchair accessibility. However,
any substitutions must be clearly identified and include detailed specifications and pholo
or visual showing appearance Including falluse zones. Acceptance of any substitution
is not guaranteed and will be based on its compatibility with the overall layout, intended
use of feature specified, general specifications and conformance to theme. Any
equipment submitted as a substitution must clearly indicate which equipment item in the

bid specifications the substituted equipmant is replacing.

General

» Bids must include bid form provided in specification packet and must be signed
by a principal of firm submitting

# Bids must include cost of all materials

« This project may be funded in part by a Local Park and Recreation Fund grant
administered by the Tennessee Depariment of Envirenment and Conservation
Recreation Resources Division

+ Bids must be good and remain in place for a period up to ninety (80) days from
the date of submittal

» The Jonesborough Board of Mayor and Alderman reserves the right to reject any
or all bids

« Any variations from the specifications must be clearly identified and a justification
included

« Bidders must be responsible for procassing and handling warranties of materials,
Warranties must detail what is covered, whal is excluded, and any conditions of
sarvice, and an expected response time.

« The project is also funded in part by Rural Development = USDA, a federal
agency, and awarded bidder must submit federal assurance forms as required



Recycle/Trash Receptacles
» 100% recycled plastic square trash receptacle with recycling
Bin accessibility through side door
Two (2) rigid plastic 32 gallon liners for each included
Integrated rain cap
Anchor kit included
Stainless steel fastenars and piano hinge on door
Solid, UV protected color-through components
Top opening accessible from all sides
Height: 46 %" high, 42 %" wide, 21 7/8" deep
Black frame, cedar panals
Or equal

Trash Receptacles

» 100% recycled plastic square trash receptacle
Bin accessibility through side door
Rigid plastic 32 gallon liner included
Integrated rain cap
Anchor kit included
Stainless steel fasteners and piano hinge on door
Solid, UV protected color-through components
Top opening accessible from all sides
Height: 46 34" high, 20" wide
Black frame, cedar panals
Or equal

Benches
» 100% recycled HDPE 4' long bench with backs

Black frame, cedar colored planks/siats

Anchor kit included

UV protected, selid color molded slats

26 3" wide, 30 %" high, 16 %" seat height, 4' long
Or equal

5 8 8 ® ®

Handicap Accessible Tables

6" hexagonal recycled plastic picnic table

Black frame, cedar colored planks/slals

Anchor Kit included

UV protected, solid color molded slals

Step in sealing and universal access area

Total width: 78 %" round/ex, Top width: 40" wide, 2-seat lengths: 28 34" long, 2
seat lengths: 25 11/16" long, 30 %" top height, 17 4" seat height

& 8 8 # & @



= Orequal

Tables
« &' hexagonal recycled plastic picnic table
Black frame, cedar colored planks/slats
Anchor kit included
UV protected, solid color molded slats
Open seating for &
Total width: 77 1/8° round/hax, Top width: 40" wide, seat length: 25 11/16° long,
sealt with: 8 14", 30 1" top height, 17 %" seat height
= Orequal

& & & 8 &

Substitutions

While cedar colored planks/panels and black frames are preferred, any subsfitution
needs to indicate how planks/panels of trash receptacies, benches and tables are all
color coordinated.



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
123 Boone Street
Jonesborough, TN 37659
{423) 763-1030 - Fax (423) 7563-1074
BID FORM

ACCESSORY EQUIPMENT
TIGER PARK

September 21, 2023

TOTAL EQUIPMENT - §

TOTAL DELIVERY - %

WARRANTY:

Variation(s) to Bid: (may list on separate sheet) Any alternates bid on
trash receptacles, tables and benches should coordinate in style,
color, etc. Any alternatives bid should have a way for the benches,
tables and trash receptacles to be anchored to the ground or in-

ground.

By signing this document, the undersigned hereby agrees fo the prices and all other terms and
condilions conlained in this bid and associated docurments relating to this bid and will fumnish
lems as specified if this bid iz accepled.

NAME OF FIRM:

REPRESENTATIVE:




ADDRESS:

PHOME: FAX:

SIGNATURE DATE

D TB EE V.



Individual Price

" Recycle/Trash
Receptacles

Trash
Receplacles

Banches

Handicap
Accessible
Tables

Tables

TOTAL




Tiger Park Accessories Bid

Addendum 1

aty.

Individual Price

Extended Price

Recycle/Trash
Receptacles

13

Trash
Receptacles

12

Benches

10

Handicap
Accessible
Tables

Tables

TOTAL




NOTICE TO BID
TOWN OF JONESEOROUGH
PARK ACCESSORY EQUIPMENT
TIGER PARK

The Town of Jonesborough is now accepting bids for the purchase of accessory
equipment for Tiger Park located at North Cherokee Sireet. Bids will be received until
Thursday, September 21* at 2 p.m. at Town Hall, 123 Boone Streel, Jonesborough, TN

37659 at which time thay will be publicly opened.

This project may be funded in part by a Local Parks and Recreation Fund grant
administered by the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation
Recreation Educational Services Division.

BID SPECIFICATIONS

General: Equipment will be located at Tiger Park, 720 N Cherokee Street, in
Jonesborough, throughout the athletic field areas.

General Comments on Accessory Equipment Bid Specifications

Substitutions: Bidders may provide substitutions for equipment listed in  bid
specifications, including all materials, coatings and wheelchair accessibility, However,
any substitutions must be clearly identified and include detailed specifications and photo
or visual showing appearance including fallluse zones. Acceptance of any substitution
is not guaranteed and will be based on its compatibility with the overall fayout, intended
use of fealure specified, general specifications and conformance to theme. Any
equipment submitted as a substitution must clearly indicate which equipment itern in the
bid specifications the substituted equipment is replacing.

General

« Bids must inciude bid form provided in specification packet and must be signed
by a principal of firm submitting

+ Bids must include cost of all materials

« This project may be funded in part by a Local Park and Recreation Fund grant
administered by the Tennessee Depariment of Environment and Conservation
Recreation Resources Division

« Bids must be good and remain in place for a period up to ninety (90) days from
the date of submittal

s The Jonesborough Board of Mayor and Alderman reserves the right to reject any
or all bids

s Any variations from the specifications must be clearly identified and a justification
included

s Bidders must be responsible for processing and handling warranties of materials.
Warranties must detail what is covered, what is excluded, and any conditions of
service, and an expected response lime.

s The project is also funded in part by Rural Development — USDA, a federal
agency, and awarded bidder must submit federal assurance forms as required



Recycle/Trash Receptacles
« 100% recycled plaslic square trash receptacle with recycling
Bin accessibility through side door
Two {2) rigid plastic 32 gallen liners for each included
Integrated rain cap
Anchor kit included
Stainless steel fasteners and piano hinge on door
Solid, UV protected color-through components
Top opening accassible from all sides
Height: 46 %" high, 42 3" wide, 21 7/8" deep
Black frame, cedar panels
Or equal

& &% & @ §F & @ @ @ @

Trash Receptacles
s 100% recycled plastic square trash receplacle

Bin acoessibility through side door

Rigid plastic 32 gallon liner inciuded

Integrated rain cap

Anchor kit included

Stainless steel fasteners and piano hinge on door
Solid, UV protected color-through components
Top opening accessible from all sides

Height: 46 %" high, 20" wide

Black frame, cedar panels

Or equal

Benches

100% recycled HDPE 4' long bench with backs
Elack frame, cedar colored planks/slats

Anchor kit included

LY protected, solid color molded slats

26 34" wide, 30 4" high, 16 4" seat height, 4' long
Or equal

& @ & & @

Handicap Accessible Tables
» B hexagonal recycled plastic picnic table
» Black frame, cedar colored planks/slats
« Anchor kit included
= UV protected, solid color molded slats
s Step in seating and universal access area
« Total width: 78 %" round/hex, Top width: 40" wide, 2-seat lengths: 28 4" long, 2
seat lengths: 25 11/16" long, 30 %" lop height, 17 }2" seat height



Or aqual

Tables

& @ @ & B

&' hexagonal recycled plastic picnic table

Black frame, cedar colored planks/slals

Anchor kit included

UV protected, solid color molded slats

Open sealing for 6

Total width: 77 1/8" round/hex, Top width: 40° wide, seat length: 25 11/16" long,
seat with: 9 %" , 30 14" top height, 17 4" seat height

Or equal

Substitutions

While cedar colored planks/panels and black frames are preferred, any substitution
needs to indicate how planks/panels of irash receptacles, benches and tables are all
color coordinated.



TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
123 Boone Street
Jonasborough, TN 37659
(423) T53-1030 — Fax (423) 753-1074

BID FORM

ACCESSORY EQUIPMENT
TIGER PARK

September 21, 2023

TOTAL EQUIPMENT — §__ #40.604.00

TOTAL DELIVERY - § $3,381.18

WARRANTY: 3 Year warranty through Belson Outdoors

Whether in commercial or residential applications, all products manufactured
: in

materials, workmanship, and breakage in accordance with our published

components ﬁul to rot, split, crack, or splinter during this period.

Variation(s) to Bid: (may list on separate sheet) Any alternates bid on
trash receptacles, tables and benches should coordinate in style,
color, etc. Any alternatives bid should have a way for the benches,
tables and trash receptacles to be anchored to the ground or in-

ground.
Attached separately are the spec sheets for each item quoted

By signing this document, the undersigned heraby agrees fo the prices and all olher terms and
conditions corlained in this bid and associaled documents relaling o this bid and will furnish

items as specified If this bid is accepled.

NAME OF FIRM: Balson Quidoors LLC

REPRESENTATIVE: ___ Kate Plattenberger



ADDRESS:627 Amersale Dr, Naperville IL 60563

PHONE:_630-209-0328

Aard ﬁ&ﬁﬁmfa«f&b —

SIGNATURE

BID MUST IGNED TO



Individual Price

Extended Price

RecycleiTrash

Trash
Receptacles

Bencheos

Handicap
Accessible
Tables

Tables

TOTAL




G527 Amareale Drive
Mapervilla, IL 60563
Phone: (B00) 3235864
Fax: (630% 897-05873
salesffbelson.com

BELSON

OUTD GRS

Model # CAAWB-P Dimension Sheet

CAMBRIDGE RECYCLED PLASTIC BENCH

I ] ‘ *

o | |_ . - T =|_| i 1
Y = H__I

! 11&'5' %__' - - — ==l 15tm'
Y Y

www. balsom,com



G627 Amarsala Drive

> i b Haparville, IL GH563
BELS Phona: (BOO) 3235664
Fax (E30) AST-05673

OUTD ﬂ!ﬂ 5 sales{Bbeison com

Model # HT-100H Dimension Sheet

Universal Access Recycled Plastic Hexegon Picnic Table

wvnw. balson.com



LS

ouUTD

Dimension Sheet

Model # HT-100

Recycled Plastic Hexagon Picnic Table

www. balson.com



Wi f

BELS

OUTD O

627 Amersale D,
Maparvile, IL GO5E3
Phar: (B00] 323-5664
Faux: (630) 857-0573
sales@balaon, com

Model # 2T32 Dimension Sheet

DOUBLE 32 GALLON TWO-TONED SQUARE RECEPTACLE

- | 212" ] 777

Z2-718°

e, bz hsoerh Gobami



G827 Amessale Drive

Hapenvlle, IL B0SE3
BELS Phona: (B00) 321-5664
Fax: (520} 857-0573

ouT |.'I' salasibelson com

Model # T32 Dimension Sheet

32 GALLON TWO-TONED SQUARE RECEPTACLE

] - f 2 ~—— 3713/ Gt
[ #
™ et ]
 p—
[ Ol
EE*—‘
10-1/2°
————————————— L | i
i
46-3/4%
20-5/87 I
16-1/4"
L
= 1 )
lg—— 71-T/BY ——

warer belsonocom



WAREHOUSE

Bhling

Cralg Ford

TOWRN OF JOMESBEORDUGH, TH
123 Boone Street
Joneshorough, TH 37659

Farl: Werehouse LLC

T4G5 W Atlantic fve,, Suite #200-294
Delray Beach, FL 33446
ERB-321-5334

Cuallty Commercial 5ite Furnishings o
Muntclpzlties, Echools & Propernty Managars

Ehipping

Craig Ford

TOWH OF [OMESBOROUGH, TH-Tiger Park
720 W Cherokee Street

Janesborough, TH 37650

Phone; (443) 753-6410

Quote: Q282431

Quote Explration

$46,760.23

Cruote Dake

Ceptember 19, 2023 30 Drarys (10419/2023) If you receive a lower quote, please remember our
best price guarantes!

Cales Rep: Rose =520

Raf#:

Descriptlon SkU Cost Oty Total

32 Gallon - Dowble Trash Redeptachs - AR 1301 1. 000.00 13 $otd T5 G0

Rectangular-squara - 2-Tone - Line £1,675.52 $21,781.74

included - Recycled Flastic

Cabor: Oedla

gase :  Black

Cambridge Bench - With Back . ARk 1 -1 £4946,00 $366.08 10 S DG

Recycled Plastec $3,660.80

St dFT

Aurim Diptions Ko Asm

Colbor : Cedar

Feansn ! Black

37 Gallon - Trash Receptacie - Square - 2EBIA1 251 Hoaaaa 12 TR AL

2-Tone - Liner Included - Recycled §1,085.04 $13,020.44

Pigstic

Colar : Cedar

Dasa | Blark

Open Plonks Table - Hexagon - Recycled  488pgigd-1 BLdEdal 3 FERC R

Plastic 2111232 $3,336.96

ABE Sarfes - Picnle Table Product 3 - 4E8-5PCL- [ L | 1 Wl

Special PICHICTABLE-3 $1.080.35 £1,080.25

COFEN HECAGOM UHIVERSAL ACOESS TARLE:
OIPEN HEXAGON UNVERSAL ACCESS TABLE
Calar; Cedar

Base ; Black

QREZ4N Tofd



parlc Warehouse LLE

4495 W, Atlantic Ave., Sulie #200- 294
Delray Beach, FL 334456
RER-321-5334

Quality Commercizl Sita Furnishings for
sunicipalitles, Schools & Froperty hMenagirs

Daseription SKL Carl iy Totsl
Discount §EB4731
Subitotal 543 880,23
Shipping 53.880.00
R T i e [T
Total $46,760.23

Guote Note: All of our benches ship knocked down unless otherwise nated, assembly required.
Estimated lead fime 12 weeks, Freight includes natification hefore delivery and full truck. A fogklift is
reeded on site to offfoad and place this merchandise, No liftgate. The customer will need a way io
Unload the truck. Thanks for the opportunity to do business)

Q2A2431 2al3



Park Warshouss LLC
7495 W, Atlantic Ave,, Sulte #200-294
A Delray Beach, FL 33445

B88-371-5324

Ouatity Commiercial Site Furnishings for
Municipaltiies, Schools & Property Managers

SHIFFING:

B e haaa s i quid FOUR Dasivariet are mace dusing redviiel Burnens o, Rirh - S konny « Fridey.

« dyirlirr) Enipyng chaogcs are foo THigme daibsany 1o any douiaroial laalion on o SoRTeITe! e fote.

« Thw truc driear b ander no ehipainn i helig you unised.

o ek il Bl 10 AEIREE B IR Wi Thiy mapthd joe Fe i Aol kanal L.

l.q,dm-ul Sarvioan Avwaflabba: Beibsuii oy, Limied A0cais Dedvary, Likgain Servie, Wrstie Daibrely, Cotiituiion St Deleeny,
Eiraaly Brfiae Dederngd

e

LERVICE MECREF ENCIRE:
o e i i i tha SEIvites neggersied And The T serviorl e 10 dilver et o pethar Efode or B deliaby e
o prodieotl, Park TR e right 1o thargs b cuniear for oy ReOHART SREGORS Barvite previied B e e of delboey Cupineal Intlals

Casindiimd mitialy

IMEPECTICNN OF SHIFMENTS (OR DAMAGED PRODUCT):
W B 1T e e Bl 1 v My That dlelivtry 1S For e posrenl prosl, counsthe rearmbser ol i iy daiirrr, sndd insgpadd fof

Hpedget
+ i sy of i pe BUST bk versatied on the deliveey Tee provided by e dalivery ditvs o the sime ol delvig sod repocded Lo

bl 48 hosry oF X [ —
+ T Wisehouns deet MOT GUARSHTER neplacmsessl Bail5 of Siokeri FREL ol chaege tue w roacesled of et epaiind Smages Custamer il
CABCELLATIOME:

u:mmmmhmwmﬂw‘wwumnwnpmmmmhmm ek e
pu.-mrqmu.undM|mup1mmmmummqm.dmnuumwmmmmm- of S Comtames lalitah
[CETURME:

-wuqmmummﬂmmmmmmmm+whmwmﬂw Ak el conciese

+ W T el Wi MR FeC R T b T e (0TS (he il sl by i Cunlonives Depasirvupnd et iy
gt can b fehsned

+ Ehipping Briunree Al merchanding mund be isluined iR origieal Treegi Paspuiil, o Coliscl ahiprianHs ane soepied

+ B Shacking & Fists- The cLAlorear H i Akt o7 o minksus 398 i king e ard all ralates iiajing CTorpan oo prodial i
i e el T P oo b daravge o dalueL, Dxiirad shipping, chanpi wil ot be sefinded. Cupgoawsr lresialy

o Webnrlerr: for oaling Bruer, Pad Wisreteus b bl e porible if CUnsrer onses ICOTE0 (et or sl L AR GEnaT and reviosk deud gl

= asspmbily Unusly Aeguied mﬂwmntmﬂ“ﬂdnmummdwmw

* Made-ta-Order 6F Persanaliped e ane ned petumadie sniess a dederl in santaciuring b pressited oy winh plcEued A7 R recen,

= giplsn Dikaraize nosed, shipping charges Inclls suadard dalbrery onfy. Lifipace 1mvice, ey telor e ebvery arallelle ot pddiioaal cows.

-smi.-umuum-lhdmmﬂﬂmmundmuwmmrmu-uwmndmﬂmﬂmmmmm
.mwm““lnﬁdﬂﬂh‘wﬂﬂuqd:ﬁrupﬂhﬁhiﬂﬂm DUE TO FLACTUATIONS AND BRCERTAINTY
OF AW LIATERIAL COSTE, THIE QUOTE |5 VALID FOR 14 DAYS ONLY. ANY LEAD TIMES QUOTED ARE ISTIMATES AMD MAY CHANGE
[LE TO VOLATILITY AND DEMAND OF AW MATERIALS,

T e [hay peoporil, pleate Sn bl and indial s SO0 abares,

Sigraiure ol Authonized Person Dt Pl B
'h“mmpﬂiﬂlhﬂ"wﬂudlﬂuﬁlﬂunﬂhlﬂumﬂhﬂh
Quaoia: QEan
Toial 445,760,273
Terms: Credit Card

QIB2431 3of3



Cuote # Here |5 the Ouole a5 per your request, The 'E'hlpphg'tnluil has bean applied,

WQ 349596 Tai place an order, simply click “Submit Order Confirmation’ below.
Plaasa print this page for your reconds.
Customer Order Confirmation is required o process onder.
. 627 Amarsale Drive Toll Frea: 1-B00-323-5684 QUOTE #
BE MNapondle, IL. 60563 :mw: :wﬂﬁ wa 349596
T 5 = . ’ Expired 10/10/2023
Modal # Description Lbs Cuantity Unit Price Unit Total
32 Galon Recyched Plastc Two-Toned
Fecaptacle With Linar
T32 BL Black 115 12 §0B0.00 511.B68.00

CO Cadar - Vertical Slat Design
*Dizeaunt Applied®
Double 32 Gallon Recycled Plaslic Two-
Toned Receplachks With Liners
Taz BL Black 200 13 $1,604,00 $30,652.00
CO Cedar - Vartical Slat Design
*Discount Applied*
Recycled Plaslic Haxagonal Shaped
Picnic Tabés
HT-104 BL Black Frama 254 k| $1.075.00 $3237.00
G0 Cedar Top/Seals
*Dizcount &ppliad*
Recycled Plastic Hexagonal Shaped
Univarsal Access Picnie Tabla
HT-1040H BL Black Frama 2ar 1 1T 51.097.00
CO Cadar Topd'Seals
*Dizcount Appliad®
Rocyclad Plaslic 4' Cambridge Banch
With Back, 2 Legs
CAIWE-P CD Cedar BackiSeal 0. 10 $116.00  53,160.00
*Discount Appliad*
VWood Or Concrate Surface Mount Anchor
AK-PP1Y Kit, Cplional 1 1 $47.00 $470.00
*Discaunt Appliad®

-

Sublotal & GRG Subtotal| $40,604.00
0.0000% Tax $0.00
Gustomer Order Conflirmalion ts reguired to process order, Shipping| $3,381.18
Your Onder will not be shippaed without your "Order Conlirmation® Grand Tolal, $43,985.158
| FirsliLas=t Mame Rachel Conger

| Company City af Jonesborough Ship To City of Jonesborough ,
Address 1 123 Boona 54 FAddress 1 720 N Cherciea 54 |

| Address 2 Address 2
! City Jonesbarough City Jonesbaauigh i
' State TH Stale TH |

Zip Code 37658 Zip Coda 37659

Country LESA Coundry USA




Phane 423.791-38688 Phone 423-791-3860
| Fax Contact Ruchel Confer
Emall RachelC@ljonesbarughinarg Emal RachelCifjonesboroughin.ong

|  Phané Call 24 Hours Prior lo Delivarys

| Dedivary to Reskdential or Non-Commerdal Truck Rouls Addresses

Pawer Lifgals Senvices - Driver will lower shipment from the truck to the geound {Only)
Order Power Liftgate Service If — Yoy will be unable to unload the shipmant from the ek,
© Does Not apply to UPS shipments

KP-E

- I g
s ﬂ e ™0 B o
Was CASOIenr

MlaslarCand A=arican Expross

Cuslemer Confirmation is Required to Complale Order

| Emall Order Confimation RachelC ionesboroughin org
Fax Ovder Confirmalion

Cusiomar Servios Representative Cal (M-F B:00mm - 4:30pm CET)

Whal iz ihe best day and lime io call?
Contact Mame (If Ceferan! fan 'Sakd Toj Phane

Submit Order Confirmation Cancel Order




TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
AGENDA PRESENTATION

DATE: OCTOBER 16, 2023 AGENDA ITEM #: 7-J

SUBJECT: Resolutions for Tiger Park and Jonesborough K-8 School Project

BACKGROUND:

As you are aware, we have been awarded the Local Parks and Recreation Fund Grant
(LPRF) for Tiger Park at the new Jonesborough school and grant dollars awarded total
$2,245,000. Funding sources will include current school project funds and a not to exceed
$2,000,000 of additional funds that was approved by the Washington County Board of
Commissioners. The resolutions before you authorize the town to pursue the additional
$2,000,000. This will be added to the overalt debt service on the school project and will
be made part of the overall payments from the county to the town on the new
Jonesborough K-8 School debt service.

The Initial Resolution authorizes the issuance of a note to exceed $2,000,000 General
Obligation Bond for the purpose of “financing a portion of the costs of certain public works
projects, consisting of the acquisition, construction, improvement, renovation and
equipping of public buildings within the Municipality, including a public school, related
athletic and parking facilities, playgrounds and roads; the acquisition of all property real
and personal, appurtenant thereto or connected with such work™. The initial resolution
provides that unless within twenty (20) days from the date of publication hereof a petition,
signed by at least ten percent (10%) of the registered voters of the Town of Jonesborough,
Tennessee, shall have been filed with the Town Recorder protesting the issuance of the
Bond, such Bond will be issued as proposed.

The second Resolution is the Bond Anticipation Note (BAN) authorizing the issuance,
sale, and payment of a $2,000,000 Bond by the Town of Jonesborough; and authorizing
the issuance of a BAN prior to the issuance of the Bond. The BAN is necessary as USDA,
Rural Development will issue a bond to pay off the BAN and the town would begin paying
the debt to USDA.

The third Resolution is the USDA Bond Resolution whereby at the completion of the
project, USDA will pay off the BAN and issue a Bond to be added to the overall debt

service for the School Project.



RECOMMENDATION:

1. Approve the Initial Resolution authorizing the issuance of a not to exceed $2,000,000
General Obligation Bond of the Town of Jonesborough, as presented.

2. Approve the Resolution authorizing the issuance, sale and payment of a $2,000,000
Bond by the Town of Jonesborough and authorizing the issuance of a Bond
Anticipation Note, Series 2023, as presented.

3. Approve the USDA Bond Resolution authorizing the terms, issuance, execution, sale
and payment of a General Obligation Bond, Series 2023C in the principal amount of
not to exceed $2,000,000, as presented.



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-20

INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A NOT TO EXCEED
$2,000,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND OF THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH,
TENNESSEE, TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR CERTAIN PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS AND
TO FUND THE INCIDENTAL AND NECESSARY EXPENSES RELATED THERETO

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the public interest of the Town of Jonesborough,
Tennessee (the “Municipality”), to issue its General Obligation Bond (the “Bond”), for the
purpose of financing certain public works projects, as hereinafter specified,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE:

SECTION 1. That for the purpose of financing a portion of the costs of certain public
works projects, consisting of the acquisition, construction, improvement, renovation and
equipping of public buildings within the Municipality, including a public school, related athletic
and parking facilities, playgrounds and roads; the acquisition of all property real and personal,
appurtenant thereto or connected with such work; to pay legal, fiscal, administrative,
architectural and engineering costs; to reimburse the Municipality for the costs of the above
projects; to pay capitalized interest; and to pay costs incident to the issuance and sale of the
Bond, the issuance of the Bond of the Municipality in the aggregate principal amount of not to
exceed Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) is hereby authorized. The Bond shall be issued at a
date, at a rate or rates of interest not to exceed the maximum rate allowed by law, and upon terms
and conditions to be later determined.

SECTION 2. That the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bond, shall be
payable from funds of the Municipality legally available therefor, and to the extent necessary,
from ad valorem taxes to be levied for such purpose on all taxable property within the corporate
limits of the Municipality, without limitation as to time, rate, and amount and for the punctual
payment of said principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bond, the full faith and credit
of the Municipality will be irrevocably pledged. The Bond shall be additionally payable from,
but not secured by, lease payments received by the Municipality under that certain Building
Lease Agreement dated as of November 13, 2019 by and between the Municipality and
Washington County, Tennessee, as amended and restated on October 20, 2020, as further
amended,

SECTION 3. That the Bond described and authorized by this Resolution shall be issued
pursuant to Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended (the “Act™).

SECTION 4. That after the adoption of this Resolution, the Town Recorder is directed
to cause this Resolution, with the notice prescribed by the Act, to be published in full once in a
newspaper published and having general circulation in the Municipality.

SECTION 5. That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption, the
welfare of the Municipality requiring it.



Adopted and approved this 16th day of October, 2023.

MAYOR

ATTEST:

TOWN RECORDER

NOTICE

The foregoing Resolution has been adopted. Unless within twenty
(20) days from the date of publication hereof a petition, signed by
at least ten percent (10%) of the registered voters of the Town of
Jonesborough, Tennessee, shall have been filed with the Town
Recorder protesting the issuance of the Bond, such Bond will be
issued as proposed.



STATE OF TENNESSEE)
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON)

1, Janet Jennings, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Town Recorder of
the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee (the “Municipality”), and, as such official, I further certify
as follows: (1) that attached hereto is a copy of an Initial Resolution excerpted from the minutes
of the meeting of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of said Municipality held on October 16,
2023; (2) that I have compared said copy with the original minute record of said meeting in my
official custody; (3) that said copy is a true, correct, and complete transcript from said original
record insofar as said original record relates to, among other matters, the authorization of the
issuance of a not to exceed $2,000,000 General Obligation Bond of said Municipality; (4) that
the actions by the said Board of Mayor and Aldermen including the aforementioned, at said
meeting were promptly and duly recorded by me in a book kept for such purpose; and, (5) that a
quorum of the members of said Board of Mayor and Aldermen was present and acting
throughout the meeting.

WITNESS my official signature and seal of said Municipality this 16th day of October,
2023.

TOWN RECORDER
(SEAL)



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-21

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, AND PROVIDING DETAILS, OF A GENERAL
OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF
NOT TO EXCEED $2,000,000; AUTHORIZING THE SALE THEREOF; AND, PROVIDING FOR
THE PAYMENT OF SUCH NOTE

WHEREAS, the Town of Jonesborough, Washington County, Tennessee (the “Municipality”),
is authorized by Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, to issue and sell bonds for
the purpose of financing a portion of the costs of certain public works projects, consisting of the
acquisition, construction, improvement, renovation and equipping of public buildings within the
Municipality, including a public school, related athletic and parking facilities, playgrounds and roads;
the acquisition of all property real and personal appurtenant thereto or connected with such work; to pay
legal, fiscal, administrative, architectural and engineering costs; to reimburse the Municipality for the
costs of the above projects; to pay capitalized interest (collectively, the “Project”); and to pay costs
incident to the financing thereof;

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Municipality (the “Board”), adopted an
“Initial Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of a Not to Exceed $2,000,000 General Obligation Bond of
the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee, to Provide Funding for Certain Public Works Projects and to
Fund the Incidental and Necessary Expenses Related Thereto” (the “Initial Resolution™), authorizing
and directing, among other things, the issuance by the Municipality of its general obligation bond (the
“Bond”), for the purpose of financing the costs of such Project and the costs incident to the financing
thereof;

WHEREAS, the Initial Resolution authorized payment of the principal of, and interest on, the
Bond from funds of the Municipality legally available therefore and to the extent necessary from ad
valorem taxes to be levied on all taxable property within the corporate limits of the Municipality,
without limitation as to time, rate, or amount; '

WHEREAS, the Town Recorder has been instructed to publish a copy of the Initial Resolution
in a newspaper of general circulation within the Municipality;

WHEREAS, the Municipality is authorized by Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated,
as amended, to issue and sell bond anticipation notes, in one or more series, for the purpose of
providing funds to finance the Project in anticipation of the issuance and sale of the Bond; and,



WHEREAS, in order to proceed as expeditiously as possible with the construction of the
Project, it is necessary that an interest bearing general obligation bond anticipation note be issued for
the purpose of providing funds in anticipation of the issuance of such Bond.

NOW, THEREFORE, BEIT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN
OF THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Auwuthorization. For the purpose of providing funds in anticipation of the issuance
of the Bond, there shall be issued pursuant to, and in accordance with, the provisions of Title 9, Chapter
21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, and other applicable provisions of law, the interest bearing
general obligation bond anticipation note (the “Note™) of the Municipality, in the aggregate principal
amount of not to exceed Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000), or such lesser amount as may be necessary
for the construction of the Project and costs incident to the financing thereof.

Section 2. Definitions. Without limiting any other definitions of terms and words in other
sections of this Resolution, the following words and terms shall have the meanings indicated unless
otherwise plainly apparent from the context:

“Act” means Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended.

“Advance” means the principal amount of the Note advanced by the purchaser from time to
time.

“Authorized Representative of the Municipality” means the then Mayor or the then Town

Recorder of the Municipality, authorized by resolution or by law to act on behalf of and bind the
Municipality.

“Board” means the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee,

“Bond” or “Bonds” means the not to exceed $2,000,000 General Obligation Bond of the
Municipality authorized by the Initial Resolution of the Board.

“Bond Counsel” means an attorney or firm of attorneys recognized as having experience in
matters relating to the issuance of municipal obligations,

“Closing Date” means the date of delivery and payment of the Note (or any temporary Note as
authorized by Section 11 hereof pending the preparation and delivery of the definitive Note).



“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations
of the United States Department of the Treasury promulgated thereunder, as in effect on the date of
issuance of the Note.

“Interest Payment Date” means each date on which interest shall be payable on the Note,

according to its terms so long as the Note shall be Outstanding.

“Mayor” means the duly elected, qualified and acting Mayor of the Municipality, and his or her
SUCCESSOrS.

“Municipality” means the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee.

“Note” or “Notes” means the $2,000,000 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Note, Series
2023, of the Municipality authorized by this Resolution of the Board.

“Qutstanding,” “Notes Qutstanding,” or “Outstanding Notes™ means, as of a particular date, all

Notes issued and delivered under this Resolution except: (1) any Note paid or redeemed or otherwise
canceled by the Municipality at or before such date; (2) any Note for the payment of which cash, equal
to the principal amount thereof with interest to date of maturity, shall have theretofore been deposited
prior to maturity by the Municipality for the benefit of the Owner thereof; (3) any Note in lieu of or in
substitution for which another Note shall have been delivered pursuant to this Resolution, unless proof
satisfactory to the Municipality is presented that any Note, for which a Note in lieu of or in substitution
therefor shall have been delivered, is held by a bona fide purchaser, as that term is defined in Article 8
of the Uniform Commercial Code of the State, as amended, in which case both the Note in lieu of or in
substitution for which a new Note has been delivered and such new Note so delivered therefor shall be
deemed Qutstanding; and, (4) any Note deemed paid pursuant to a refunding which has not concurrently
been called for redemption except that any such Note shall be considered Outstanding until the maturity
thereof only for the purposes of being exchanged, transferred, or registered.

- “Owner”, “Noteholder”, or any similar term, when used with reference to the Note, means any

Person who shall be the registered owner of any then Outstanding Note or Notes.

“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation, trust, or unincorporated organization, or
a governmental entity or agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Registration Agent” means the then Town Recorder of the Municipality acting by and on
behalf of the Municipality.




“Resolution” means this Resolution, as supplemented and amended.
“State” means the State of Tennessee.

“Town Recorder” means the duly appointed, qualified and acting Town Recorder of the

Municipality, and his or her successors.

Section 3. Terms and Provisions of the Note. Said Note shall be designated “General
Obligation Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2023”. The Note shall be dated as of the date of its issuance
and shall be issued as a draw-down obligation; shall bear interest on the principal advanced thereunder

at arate not to exceed the maximum rate per annum allowed by law, payable semiannually commencing
six months from the date of its issuance; shall be of such denomination and contain such terms,
conditions, and provisions, other than as expressly provided or limifed herein, as may be agreed upon
by the Mayor of the Municipality and the purchaser of such Note; and, shall mature not later than two
(2) years after the date of issuance, upon delivery of the Bond, or upon prepayment, whichever shall be
earliet. The Note shall be fully registered as to principal and interest and shall be numbered R-1.

Section 4. Redemption. The Note shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity at the
option of the Municipality, at any time, as a whole or in part, in integral multiples of Five Thousand
Dollars ($5,000), at the par value thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date. Ten (10) days’
written notice of intended redemption shall be given to the registered owners, but the registered owner
of the Note may waive such notice.

Section 5. Form of Note; Execution. (a) The Note is issuable only as a fully registered

note, without coupons, in minimum denominations of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000). The Note
issued under this Resolution shall be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto,
and by this reference incorporated herein as fully as though copied, with such appropriate variations,
omissions, and insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution, the blanks therein to be
appropriately completed when the Note is prepared, and may have endorsed thereon such legends or
text as may be necessary or appropriate to conform to any applicable rules and regulations of any
governmental authority or any usage or requirement of law with respect thereto or as otherwise desired
by the Municipality.

(b)  The Note shall be executed in such manner as may be prescribed by applicable law in the
name, and on behalf, of the Municipality with the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and
attested with the manual or facsimile signature of the Town Recorder, and with the official seal, or a
facsimile thereof, of the Municipality impressed or imprinted thereon. The Note shall not be valid for



any purpose unless authenticated by the manual signature of the Registration Agent on the certificate set
forth on the Note.

(¢c) In the event any officer whose manual or facsimile signature shall appear on the Note
shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Note, such manual or such facsimile signature
shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes as if he or she had remained in office until
such delivery. The Note may bear the facsimile signature of, or may be manually signed by, such
individuals who, at the actual time of the execution of such Note, were the proper officers of the
Municipality to sign such Note, although on the respective dates of the adoption by the Municipality of
the Initial Resolution or this Resolution, such individuals may not have been such officers.

Section 6. Negotiability of Note. The Note issued under this Resolution shall be negotiable,
subject to the provisions for registration and transfer contained in this Resolution and in the Note.

Section 7. Registration Books and Registration Agent. The Municipality hereby designates
the Town Recorder of the Municipality, acting by and on behalf of the Municipality, as note registrar
(the “Registration Agent™) with respect to the Note and authorizes the Registration Agent so long as the
Note shall remain QOutstanding, to maintain at the principal office of the Registration Agent, books for
the registration and transfer of the Note on behalf of the Municipality. The Registration Agent shall
register in such books and permit to be transferred thereon, under such reasonable regulations as it may
prescribe, the Note entitled to registration or transfer and to authenticate and deliver the Note either at
original issuance, upon transfer, or as otherwise directed by the Municipality. The Registration Agentis

authorized to make all payments of principal and interest with respect to the Note.

Section 8. Exchange of Note. The Note upon surrender thereof at the principal office of the
Registration Agent, together with an assignment of such Note duly executed by the Owner thereof, or
his, her, or its attorney or legal representative, may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal
amount of Note of the same maturity, of any denomination or denominations authorized by this
Resolution, and bearing interest at the same rate as the Note surrendered for exchange.

Section 9. Transfer of Note. (a) The Note shall be transferable only on the registration
books maintained by the Registration Agent at the principal office of the Registration Agent, upon the
surrender for cancellation thereof at the principal office of the Registration Agent, together with an
assignment of such Note duly executed by the Owner thereof or his, her, or its attorney or legal
representative, and upon payment of the charges hereinafter provided, and subject to such other
limitations and conditions as may be provided therein or herein. Upon the cancellation of the Note, the
Registration Agent shall, in exchange for the surrendered Note, deliver in the name of the transferee or
transferees a new Note or Notes of authorized denominations, of the same aggregate principal amount




and maturity and rate of interest as such surrendered Note, and the transferee or transferees shall take
such new Note or Notes subject to all of the conditions herein contained.

(b) The Municipality and the Registration Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose
name the Note shall be registered upon the registration books maintained by the Registration Agent as
the absolute owner thereof, whether such Note shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving
payment of the principal of and the interest on, such Note and for all other purposes. All such payments
so made to the registered Owner thereof shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability
of the Municipality or the Registration Agent upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.
Neither the Municipality nor the Registration Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

Section 10.  Regulations with Respect to Exchanges and Transfers. (a) In all cases in which

the privilege of exchanging or transferring Notes is exercised, the Municipality shall execute, and the
Registration Agent shall deliver, Notes in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. For every
exchange or transfer of Notes, whether temporary or definitive, the Municipality may make a charge,
unless otherwise herein to the contrary expressly provided, sufficient to pay for any tax, fee, or other
governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, all of which taxes,
fees, and other governmental charges shall be paid by the person or entity requesting such exchange or
transfer as a condition precedent to the exercise of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer.

(b) Neither the Municipality nor the Registration Agent shall be obligated to exchange or
transfer any Note during the fifteen (15) calendar days next preceding the maturity thereof or any call
for redemption.

Section 11.  Mutilated, Lost, Stolen. or Destroyed Note. (a) In the event the Note is
mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the Municipality may execute, and the Registration Agent shall
deliver, a new Note of like maturity, interest rate, and principal amount, and bearing the same number

(but with appropriate designation indicating that such new Note is a replacement Note) as the mutilated,
destroyed, lost, or stolen Note, in exchange for the mutilated Note or in substitution for the Note so
destroyed, lost, or stolen. In every case of exchange or substitution, the Noteholder shall furnish to the
Municipality: (1) such security or indemnity as may be required by an Authorized Representative of the
Municipality to hold the Municipality harmless from all risks, however remote; and, (2) evidence
satisfaction to an Authorized Representative of the Municipality of the mutilation, destruction, loss, or
theft of the subject Note and the ownership thereof. Upon the issuance of any Note upon such exchange
or substitution, the Municipality may require the Owner thereof to pay a sum sufficient to defray any
tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses,
including printing costs and counsel fees, of the Municipality. In the event any Note which has matured
or is about to mature shall become mutilated or be destroyed, lost, or stolen, the Municipality may,



instead of issuing a Nofe in exchange or substitution therefor, pay or authorize the payment of the same
(without surrender thereof except in the case of a mutilated Note) if the Owner thereof shall pay all
costs and expenses, including attorneys fees, incurred by the Municipality in connection therewith, as
well as a sum sufficient to defray any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation
thereto and shall furnish to the Municipality such security or indemnity as an Authorized Representative
of the Municipality may require to save the Municipality harmless and evidence to the satisfaction of an
Authorized Representative of the Municipality of the mutilation, destruction, loss, or theft of such Note
and of the ownership thereof.

(b)  EveryNoteissued pursuant to the provisions of this Section shall constitute an additional
contractual obligation of the Municipality (whether or not the destroyed, lost, or stolen Note shall be
found at any time to be enforceable) and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally
and proportionately with any and all other Notes duly issued under such Resolution.

{c) The Note shall be held and owned upon the express condition that the provisions of this
Section are exclusive, with respect to the replacement or payment of a mutilated, destroyed, lost, or
stolen Note, and, to the maximum extent legally permissible, shall preclude all other rights or remedies,
notwithstanding any law or statute now existing or hereafter enacted to the contrary.

Section 12.  Authentication. Only if the Note shal! have endorsed thereon a certificate of
authentication, substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit “A” hereto duly executed by the
Registration Agent, shall it be entitled to the rights, benefits, and security of this Resolution. No Note
shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless, and until, such certificate of authentication shall
have been duly executed by the Registration Agent. Such executed certificate of authentication by the
Registration Agent upon the Note shall be conclusive evidence that such Note has been duly
authenticated and delivered under this Resolution as of the date of authentication.

Section 13, Source of Payment; Security. The Note, including the principal thereof and the
interest thereon, is payable from funds of the Municipality legally available therefore and to the extent
necessary from ad valorem taxes to be levied for such purpose on all taxable property within the
corporate limits of the Municipality without limitation as to time, rate, or amount. Said Note shall be a
direct general obligation of the Municipality, for which the punctual payment of the principal of and
interest on the Note the full faith and credit of the Municipality is hereby irrevocably pledged. The
Note shall additionally be payable from, but not secured by, lease payments received by the
Municipality under that certain Building I.ease Agreement dated as of November 13, 2019, by and
between the Municipality and Washington County, Tennessee, as amended and restated on October 20,
2020, as further amended.




Section 14.  Levy of Taxes. For the purpose of providing for the payment of the principal of
and mnterest on the Note, there shall be levied in each year in which such Note shall be outstanding a
direct tax on all taxable property in the Municipality, fully sufficient to pay all such principal and
interest falling due prior to the time of collection of the next succeeding tax levy. Said tax shall be
assessed, collected, and paid at the time, and in the same manner, as the other taxes of said
Municipality, shall be in addition to all other taxes, and shall be without limitation as to time, rate, or
amount. The Board of the Municipality is required by law and shall and does hereby pledge to levy
such tax. Principal and interest, or any of the foregoing, falling due at any time when there shall be
insufficient funds on hand from such tax levy for the payment thereof shall be paid from the general
fund or other available funds of the Municipality, but reimbursement therefor may be made from the
taxes herein provided when the same shall have been collected. All such taxes levied and collected
shall be deposited in a special fund to be designated “Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2023 Note Fund”
(the “Note Fund™) and used solely for the payment of principal and interest on the Note as the same

shall become due.

Section 15.  Sale of Note. The Note shall be sold at a private negotiated sale in accordance
with the terms of this Resolution as determined by the Mayor and Town Recorder of the Municipality.
The Mayor and the Town Recorder are authorized to cause the Note to be authenticated and delivered to
the successful purchaser as the case may be, and to execute, publish, and deliver all certificates and
documents, as they shall deem necessary in connection with the sale and delivery of the Note.

Section 16.  Disposition of Note Proceeds. The proceeds advanced from the sale of the Note
from time to time shall be paid to the official of the Municipality designated by law as the custodian of
the funds thereof to be deposited in a special fund, which is hereby authorized to be created, to be
known as the “Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2023 Construction Fund” (the “Construction Fund”) to
be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the Municipality. Monies in the Construction Fund
shall be secured in the manner prescribed by applicable statutes relative to the securing of public or trust
funds, if any and may be invested in accordance with State law. Monies in the Construction Fund shall
be expended only for the purposes authorized by this Resolution.

Section 17.  Covenants. The Municipality covenants that, while the Note remains outstanding

and unpaid, it will:
(1) use its best efforts to provide permanent financing for the Project and the
purposes authorized herein and issue the Bond as soon as the Municipality determines that it is

practicable and in the best interest of the Municipality so to do;

(ii) maintain its existence; and,



(1i1)  duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid, as herein provided the principal
installments or redemption price of the Note and the interest thereon, at the dates and places and
in the manner stated herein and faithfully and punctually perform all duties required by the
Constitution and laws of the State and the Act, including the making and collecting of taxes in
an amount at least sufficient to pay principal of and interest on the Note,

Section 18.  Mandatory Redemption of Note. Contemporaneously with the issuance and sale
of the Bond, the Note then outstanding, even though it may have not have matured, shall be paid, both
principal and interest to date of payment, and the Note shall thereupon be surrendered by the registered
owners thereof and cancelled. The Registration Agent shall give the registered owner of the Note not
less than ten (10) days’ written notice of the contemplated date of delivery of the Bond and retirement

of'the Note by mail, addressed to the registered owner of the Note at his, her, or its address as shown on
the registration books of the Registration Agent; provided, that any such registered owner may waive
such notice.

Section 19.  Remedies of Noteholders. (a) Except as herein expressly limited, the Owner or
Owners of the Note shall have and possess all the rights of action and remedies afforded by the common
law, the Constitution and statutes of the State and of the United States of America for the enforcement
of payment of the Note, and of the pledge of the funds hereunder, and of all covenants of the
Municipality hereunder.

(b) Upon the occurrence of an event of default in the payment of principal or interest, the
Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in principal amount of the Note outstanding may
exercise any one or more of the following remedies either singly or in combination with each other:

() either at law or in equity, by suit, action, mandamus, or other proceedings, in any
court of competent jurisdiction enforce and compel performance of all duties imposed upon the
Municipality by the provisions of this Resolution; or,

(i)  take any other action permitted by law, the Act, or this Resolution.
Section 20.  Non-Arbitrage Certification. The Municipality certifies and covenants with the

Owners of the Note that so long as the principal of the Note remains unpaid, monies on deposit in any
fund or account in connection with the Note, whether or not from any other source, will not be used in a

manner which will cause the Note to be an “arbifrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148 of the
Code and any lawful regulations promulgated thereunder, as the same presently exist, or may from time
to time hereafter be amended, supplemented or revised. The Municipality reserves the right, however,



to make any investment of such moneys permitted by Tennessee law and this Resolution if, when and to
the extent that said Section 148 or regulations promulgated thereunder shall be repealed or relaxed or
shall be held void by final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, but only if any investment
made by virtue of such repeal, relaxation or decision would not, in the opinion of counsel of recognized
competence in such matters, result in making the interest on the Note subject to inclusion in gross
income of the Owners thereof for federal income tax purposes.

The Municipality covenants that it shall comply with Section 148(f) of the Code, unless legally
exempted therefrom and it represents that in the event it shall be required by Section 148(f) of the Code
and the Regulations to pay Rebatable Arbitrage pursuant to the Code and the Regulations to the United
States Government it will make such payments as and when required by said Section 148(f) and will
take such other actions as shall be necessary or permitted to prevent the interest on the Note from
becoming subject to inclusion in federal gross income of the Owners of the Note for federal income tax
purposes. The Municipality further covenants that it will not take any action that will cause the interest
on the Note to be subject to inclusion in gross income of the Owners thereof for federal income tax
purposes under Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code.

Section 21.  Annual Budget. The Municipality shall submit its annual budget {o the State
Director of Local Finance for approval immediately upon the Municipality’s adoption of the budget.

Section 22.  Amendments. After the issuance of the Note, no change, variation, or alteration
of any kind in the provisions of this Resolution which would impair the rights of the Noteholders shall

be made in any manner, until such time as all of the principal of and interest on the Note shall have been
paid in full unless the consent of all of the Owners of all then Outstanding Notes has been obtained;
provided, however, that the Municipality is hereby authorized to make such amendments to this
Resolution as will not impair the rights of Noteholders. The laws of the State of Tennessee shall govern
this Resolution.

Section 23.  Failure to Present Note. (a) In the event the Note shall not be presented for
payment when the principal of, and interest on, such Note becomes due at maturity and in the event
monies sufficient to pay such Note shall be held by the Municipality for the benefit of the Owner
thereof, all liability of the Municipality to such Owner for the payment of such Note shall forthwith
cease, terminate, and be completely discharged. Thereupon, the Municipality shall hold such monies,
without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Owner of such Note who shall thereafter be
restricted exclusively to such monies for any claim under this Resolution or on, or with respect to, said
Note.

10



(b)  Ifthe Note shall not be presented for payment within a period of five (5) years following
the date when such Note becomes due, such Note shall (subject to the provisions of any applicable
escheat or other similar law and subject to the defense of any applicable statute of limitation) thereafter
constitute an unsecured obligation of the Municipality.

Section 24.  Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays, and Holidays. In any case where the date
of maturity or interest on or principal of the Note shall be a Saturday or Sunday or shall be, at the place
designated for payment, a legal holiday or a day on which municipal corporations similar to the
Municipality are authorized by law to close, then the payment of the interest on, or the principal of such

Note need not be made on such date but must be made on the next succeeding day not a Saturday,
Sunday, or a legal holiday or a day upon which municipal corporations similar to the Municipality are
authorized by law to close, with the same force and effect as if made on the date of maturity and no
interest shall accrue for the period after such date.

Section 25. No Action fo be Taken Affecting Validity of the Note. The Board hereby
covenants and agrees that it will not take any action, that would in any manner affect the validity of
the Note or limit the rights and remedies of the Owners from time to time of such Note or affect the
exclusion of interest thereon from the gross income of the holders thereof for federal income tax

purposes.

Section 26. Miscellaneous Acts. The Mayor, the Town Recorder, the Town Attorney, and
all other appropriate officials of the Municipality are hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to
do any and all such acts and things, and to execute, acknowledge, and deliver all such documents,
instruments, and certifications, specifically including but not limited to arbitrage certifications, in
addition to those acts, things, documents, instruments, and certifications hereinbefore authorized and
approved, as may in their discretion, be necessary or desirable to implement or comply with the
intent of this Resolution; or any of the documents herein authorized and approved, or for the
authorization, issuance, and delivery of the Note.

Section 27. Engagement of Bond Counsel and Placement Agent. The Board hereby

approves the engagement of Adams and Reese LLP to serve as bond counsel with respect to the
issuance of the Bond and the Note and Raymond James & Associates, Inc. to serve as placement
agent with respect to the issuance of the Note.

Section 28. No Recourse Under Resolution or on Note. All stipulations, promises,

agreements, and obligations of the Municipality contained in the Initial Resolution or this Resolution
shall be deemed to be the stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the Municipality and
not of any officer, director, or employee of the Municipality in his or her individual capacity, and no

11



recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Note or for any claim
based thereon or on the Initial Resolution or this Resolution against any officer, director, or
employee of the Municipality or against any official or individual executing the Note.

Section 29. Partial Invalidity. If any one or more of the provisions of this Resolution, or of
any exhibit or attachment thereto, shall be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, by
final decree of any court of lawful jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall
not affect any other provision hereof, or of any exhibit or attachment thereto, but this Resolution, and
the exhibits and attachments thereto, shall be construed the same as if such invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable provision had never been contained herein, or therein, as the case may be.

Section 30. Severability. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this Resolution shall be
held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section,
paragraph, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof.

Section 31.  Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions and Effective Date. All resolutions and

orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution, are, to the extent of such
conflict, hereby repealed and this Resolution shall be in immediate effect from and after its adoption,
the welfare of the Municipality requiring it.

12



Approved and adopted this 16th day of October, 2023.

MAYOR
Attest:

TOWN RECORDER

13



STATE OF TENNESSEE) ‘
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON)

I, Janet Jennings, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Town Recorder of the
Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee (the “Municipality”), and, as such official, T further certify as
follows: (1) that attached hereto is a copy of a resolution excerpted from the minutes of the meeting of
the Board of Mayor and Aldermen (the “Board”) of said Municipality held on October 16, 2023; (2)
that [ have compared said copy with the original minute record of said meeting in my official custody;
(3) that said copy is a true, correct and complete transcript from said original record insofar as said
original record relates, to, among other matters, the authorization of the issuance of a not to exceed
$2,000,000 General Obligation Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2023, of said Municipality; (4) that the
actions by said Board including the aforementioned, at said meeting were promptly and duly recorded
by me in a book kept for such purposes; and, (5) that a quorum of the members of said Board was
present and acting throughout said meeting.

WITNESS my official signature and the seal of said Municipality this 16th day of October,
2023.

TOWN RECORDER

(SEAL)

14



FORM OF NOTE

EXHIBIT “A”



Registered Registered
No. R-1 $

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON
TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE,
SERIES 2023

Interest Rate: Maturity Date: Dated Date:

Registered Owner:

Principal Amount:

THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE (the “Municipality™), a lawfully organized
and existing municipal corporation located in Washington County, Tennessee, for value received,
hereby acknowledges itself indebted and promises to pay, as hereinafter provided, to the Registered
Owner identified above, or registered assigns as hereinafter provided, on the Maturity Date identified
above, upon the presentation and surrender hereof at the principal office of the Town Recorder, Town
Hall, Jonesborough, Tennessee (the “Registration Agent™), the Principal Amount identified above, and
to pay interest from the date hereof on said Principal Amount as advanced from time to time, or such
later date as to which interest has been paid, to the Maturity Date, such interest being due and payable
semiannually on and , commencing at the Interest Rate
per annum set forth above, by check, draft, or warrant to the Registered Owner hereof at the address
shown on the registration books of the Note Registrar on the fifteenth (15th) calendar day next
preceding an interest payment date, in any coin or currency of the United States of America which on
the date of payment thereof is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.

In the event that any amount payable hereunder as interest shall at any time exceed the rate of
interest lawfully chargeable on this note under applicable law, any such excess shall, to the extent of
such excess, be applied against the principal hereof as a prepayment thereof without penalty, and such
excess shall not be considered to be interest. All rates of interest specified herein shall be computed on



the basis of a three hundred sixty (360) day year composed of twelve (12) months of thirty (30) days
each.

The principal hereof and all instailments of interest hereon, shall bear interest from and after
their respective due dates at the same rate of interest payable on the principal hereof.

This note is authorized and issued pursuant to and in full compliance with, the Constitution and
the statutes of the State of Tennessee, including, but not limited to, Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code
Annotated, as amended. Section 9-21-117, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, provides that this
note and the income therefrom shall be exempt from all state, county, and municipal taxation in the

State of Tennessee, except as otherwise provided in said Code.

This note is known as “General Obligation Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2023” (the “Note™),
issued by the Municipality in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $2,000,000. The Note,
which is issued for the purpose of financing a portion of the costs of certain public works projects,
consisting of the acquisition, construction, improvement, renovation and equipping of public buildings
within the Municipality, including a public school, related athletic and parking facilities, playgrounds
and roads; the acquisition of all property real and personal appurtenant thereto or connected with such
work; to pay legal, fiscal, administrative, architectural and engineering costs; to reimburse the
Municipality for the costs of the above projects; and to pay capitalized interest (collectively, the
“Project™); and to pay costs incident to the issuance and sale of the Note, is authorized by appropriate
resolutions of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen and particularly that certain Resolution of the Board of
Mayor and Aldermen, adopted on October 16, 2023, entitled “Initial Resolution Authorizing the
Issuance of a Not to Exceed $2,000,000 General Obligation Bond of the Town of Jonesborough,
Tennessee, to Provide Funding for Certain Public Works Projects and to Fund the Incidental and
Necessary Expenses Related Thereto,” and that certain Resolution, adopted on October 16, 2023,
entitled “Resolution Authorizing the Issuance, and Providing Details, of a General Obligation Bond
Anticipation Note, in the Aggregate Principal Amount of Not to Exceed $2,000,000; Authorizing the
Sale Thereof; and, Providing for the Payment of Such Note”, as such resolutions may be from time to
time amended or supplemented in accordance with their terms (such resolutions as so amended or
supplemented, being herein called collectively, the “Resolution™), and is issued pursuant to, and in full
compliance with, the Constitution and the statutes of the State of Tennessee, including, but not limited
to, Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended (the “Act™). Copies of said Resolution
are on file at the office of the Town Recorder of the Municipality, and reference is hereby made to said
Resolution and the Act, for a more complete statement of the terms and conditions upon which the Note
is issued thereunder, the rights, duties, immunities, and obligations of the Municipality, and the rights of

the Registered Owner hereof.



This Note 1s payable from the proceeds of the General Obligation Bond of the Municipality in
anticipation of which it is issued. This Note, including the principal hereof and the interest hereon, is
payable from funds of the Municipality legally available therefore and the extent necessary from ad
valorem taxes to be levied for such purpose on all taxable property within the corporate limits of the
Municipality without limitation as to time, rate, or amount. This Note shall be a direct general
obligation of the Municipality, for which the punctual payment of the principal of and interest on this
Note the full faith and credit of the Municipality has been irrevocably pledged. This Note shall
additionally be payable from, but not secured by, lease payments received by the Municipality under
that certain Building Lease Agreement dated as of November 13, 2019, by and between the
Municipality and Washington County, Tennessee, as amended and restated on October 20, 2020, as
further amended.

This Note is transferable by the Registered Owner hereof in person or by his, her, orits attorney
or legal representative at the principal office of the Registration Agent, but only in the manner and
subject to the limitations and conditions provided in the Note Resolution and upon surrender and
cancellation of this Note. Upon any such transfer, the Municipality shall execute and the Registration
Agent shall authenticate and deliver in exchange for this Note a new fully registered note or notes,
registered in the name of the transferee, of authorized denominations, in an aggregate principal amount
equal to the principal amount of this Note, of the same maturity and bearing interest at the same rate.
For every exchange or transfer of notes, whether temporary or definitive, the Municipality and the
Registration Agent may make a charge, unless otherwise herein to the contrary expressly provided,
sufficient to pay for any tax, fee, or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such
exchange or transfer, all of which taxes, fees, or other governmental charges shall be paid by the person
or entity requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the exercise of the privilege of
making such exchange or transfer.

The Municipality and the Registration Agent may deem and treat the person or entity in whose
name this Note is registered as the absolute owner hereof, whether such Note shall be overdue or not,
for the purpose of receiving payment of the principal of and interest on, this Note and for all other
purposes. All such payments so made shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability
upon this Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the Municipality nor the
Registration Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The Note is issuable only as a fully registered Note, without coupons, in minimum
denominations of $5,000. At the principal office ofthe Registration Agent, in the manner and subject to
the limitations, conditions, and charges provided in the Resolution, a fully registered Note may be
exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of a fully registered Note of the same maturity, of
authorized denominations, and bearing interest at the same rate.



The Note shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Municipality, at
any time, as a whole or in part, in integral multiples of $5,000, at the par value thereof plus accrued
interest to the redemption date. Ten (10) days’ written notice of intended redemption shall be given to
the Registered Owners, but the Registered Owner of any note may waive such notice.

This Note shall have all the qualities and incidents of, and shall be a negotiable instrument
under, the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of Tennessee, subject only to provisions respecting
registration of such Note. This Note is issued with the intent that the laws of the State of Tennessee
shall govern its construction.

It is hereby certified, recited, and declared that all acts and conditions required to be done and to
exist precedent to, and in the issuance of, this Note in order to make this Note a legal, valid, and binding
obligation of the Municipality, have been done, and did exist in due time and form as required by the
Constitution and statutes of the State of Tennessee, and that this Note and the issue of which it is a part,
together with all other indebtedness of such Municipality, does not exceed any limitation prescribed by
the Constitution or statutes of the State of Tennessee.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE, by its Board of
Aldermen has caused this Note to be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and
attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Town Recorder, to have its official seal, or a

facsimile thereof, to be impressed or imprinted hereon, all as of ,2023.
MAYOR

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

TOWN RECORDER



Date of Authentication: , 2023

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This Note is described in the provisions of the within mentioned Resolution and is the General
Obligation Bond Anticipation Note, Series 2023, of the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee.

By:

Town Recorder, as Registration Agent



(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto

(Please type or print name, address, and social security number or other identifying number of
Assignee)

the within note and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint

, Attorney, to transfer the same note on the books

kept for registration hereby with full power of substitution in the premises.

Date:

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED: SIGNATURE:

NOTICE: The signature to this
assignment must correspond with the
name of the registered owner as it
appears upon the face of the within
note in every particular, without
alteration or enlargement or any
change whatever.



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-22

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TERMS, ISSUANCE, EXECUTION, SALE, AND
PAYMENT OF A GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND, SERIES 2023C, IN THE PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $2,000,000, OF THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH,
TENNESSEE '

WHEREAS, the Town of Jonesborough, Washington County, Tennessee (the
“Municipality”), is authorized by Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, to
issue and sell bonds, in one or more series, for the purpose of financing a portion of the costs of certain
public works projects, consisting of the acquisition, construction, improvement, renovation and
equipping of public buildings within the Municipality, including a public school, related athletic and
parking facilities, playgrounds and roads; the acquisition of all property real and personal, appurtenant
thereto or connected with such work; to pay legal, fiscal, administrative, architectural and engineering
costs; to reimburse the Municipality for the costs of the above projects; to pay capitalized interest
(collectively, the “Project”); and to pay costs incident to the issuance and sale of general obligation
bonds of the Municipality, as hereinafter defined;

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Municipality (the “Board”) has adopted
an “Initial Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of a Not to Exceed $2,000,000 General Obligation
Bond of the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee, to Provide Funding for Certain Public Works Projects
and to Fund the Incidental and Necessary Expenses Related Thereto” (the “Initial Resolution™),
authorizing and directing, among other things, the issuance by the Municipality of its bonds for the
purpose of financing the costs of such Project and the costs incident to the financing thereof}

WHEREAS, the Initial Resolution authorized payment of the principal of, and interest on, the
bonds from funds of the Municipality legally available therefore and to the extent necessary from ad
valorem taxes to be levied on all taxable property within the corporate limits of the Municipality,
without [imitation as to time, rate, or amount,

WHEREAS, the Town Recorder shall publish a copy of the Initial Resolution in the Johnson
City Press, a newspaper of general circulation within the Municipality;

WHEREAS, the Board of the Municipality deems it necessary and desirable to acquire,
construct, improve, renovate and equip the Project and that a General Obligation Bond, Series 2023C
(the “Bond”™), of the Municipality be issued in the principal amount of not to exceed Two Million
Dollars ($2,000,000), for the purpose of providing, together with such other monies as may be
available to the Municipality for such financing, funds for such Project; and,

WHEREAS, the United States of America has agreed to purchase said Bond when and if
issued;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND
ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:



Section 1. Definitions. Without limiting any other definitions of terms and words in other
sections of this Resolution, the following words and terms shall have the meanings indicated unless
otherwise plainly apparent from the context:

“Act” means Title 9, Chapter 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended.

“Bank” or “Banks” means a bank or trust company which is a member of the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation, and is authorized under the laws of the United States of America or the State
of Tennessee to engage in the banking business in this State.

“Board” means the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee.

“Bond Payment Date” means that certain date of the month thirty (30) days after the Closing
Date and on that certain date every month thereafter until the retirement date.

“Bond” means that certain not to exceed $2,000,000 General Obligation Bond, Series 2023C,
of the Municipality authorized by this Resolution of the Board.

“Closing Date” means the date of delivery by the Municipality of the Bond, to the Original
Purchaser.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations
of the United States Department of the Treasury promulgated thereunder, as in effect on the date of
issuance of the Bond, and as hereafter amended, supplemented, or revised insofar as such
amendments, supplements, or revisions shall pertain to or affect the Bond.

“Fiscal Year” means the twelve (12) month period commencing upen the 1st day of July of
each calendar year.

“Mayor” means the duly elected, qualified, and acting Mayor of the Municipality, and his or
her successors.

“QOriginal Purchaser” means the United States of America.

“Project” means those certain public works projects, consisting of public buildings within the
Municipality, including a public school, related athletic and parking facilities, playgrounds and roads,
which are to be acquired, constructed, improved, renovated, and equipped with the proceeds of the
sale of the Bond.

“Registration Agent” means the Town Recorder of the Municipality, and his or her successor
or successors hereafter appointed in the manner provided in this Resolution.

“Resolution” means this Resolution, as supplemented and amended.

“State” means the State of Tennessee.



“Town Recorder” means the duly appointed, qualified, and acting Town Recorder of the
Municipality, and his or her successors.

Section 2. Determination of Purpose. The Board hereby finds, determines, and declares
that, in the public interest of the Municipality, it is necessary and desirable that the Municipality
immediately acquire, construct, improve, renovate, and equip the Project.

Section 3. Construction of Project. The Board hereby determines to proceed as
expeditiously as possible with the acquisition, construction, improvement, renovation, and equipment
of the Project in accordance with the plans and specifications thereof.

Section 4. Issuance of Bond. In order to obtain funds for the acquisition, construction,
improvement, renovation and equipment of such Project, there shall be issued, in accordance with the
provisions of the Act, the Bond of the Municipality in the original principal amount of not to exceed
Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000).

Section 5. Authority. The Bond shall be issued pursuant to the authority granted by the
Act and any other applicable provisions of law,

Section 6. Authorization and Terms. The Bond shall be issued as a fully registered Bond,
without coupons, numbered R-1, with such series designations as determined by the officials of the
Municipality executing such Bond, in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed Two Million
Dollars ($2,000,000).

The Bond shall be designated “General Obligation Bond, Series 2023C.” Said Bond shall be
a fully registered bond in the principal amount of not to exceed Two Million Dolars ($2,000,000)
numbered R-1. Said Bond shall be dated as of the date of delivery to the purchaser thereof; shall be
in typed, printed, or photocopied form, or any combination thereof, as shall be approved by the
purchaser of the Bond, the acceptance of such Bond by such purchaser to be conclusive evidence of
such approval; shall bear interest on the unpaid principal amount thereof from and after said date of
delivery at a rate not exceeding three and eight hundred seventy-five thousandths percent (3.875%)
per annum, such principal and interest being payable monthly on the Bond Payment Date,
commencing in the calendar month next succeeding the Closing Date of the Bond and continuing
through and including the Bond Payment Date of the three hundred thirty-fifth (335™) calendar month
thereafter, in an amount computed such that the aggregate sum of the principal and interest payable
on each of such dates shall be a fixed constant amount calculated to reduce the outstanding principal
of the Bond to zero at the three hundred thirty-sixth (336™) calendar month, with a final payment of
all remaining principal and interest on the Bond Payment Date of the three hundred thirty-sixth (336%)
calendar month, all of the foregoing payments to be applied first to the interest thereon then due and
payable, and then to the outstanding principal thereof; provided, however, that in no event shall the
final payment of the principal of, and interest on, the Bond extend beyond the twenty-eighth (28t)
anniversary of the date of the Bond. The approximate annual aggregate principal and interest
requirement on the Bond is calculated as not to exceed Nine Thousand Seven Hundred Eighty Dollars
(89,780), assuming an interest rate of three and eight hundred seventy-five thousandths percent
(3.875%) per annum.



Section 7. Execution of Bond. The Bond shall be executed in such manner as may be
prescribed by applicable law in the name, and on behalf, of the Municipality with the manual or
facsimile signature of the Mayor and attested with the manual or facsimile signature of the Town
Recorder, and with the official seal, or a facsimile thereof, of the Municipality impressed or imprinted
thereon. The Bond shall not be valid for any purpose unless authenticated by the manual signature
of an officer of the Registration Agent on the certificate set forth on the Bond.

Section 8. Registration and Negotiability. The Town Recorder is hereby appointed the
Registration Agent and as such official shall establish and maintain suitable books (the “Registration
Books™) for recording the registration, conversion, and payment of the Bond, and shall also perform
such other duties as may be required in connection with any of the foregoing.

The Bond shall be fully registered as to both principal and interest and shall be fully negotiable
upon proper endorsement by the registered owner thereof. No transfer of the Bond will be valid
unless such transfer is noted upon the Registration Books at the office of the Town Recorder of the
Municipality, as Registration Agent, upon presentation of the Bond at such office for verification of
the endorsements made on the Payment Record attached to the Bond of the principal of and interest
on paid or prepaid on the Bond, and the notation of such registration by the Registration Agent. All
assignees shall take the Bond subject to such condition.

At the request of the owner of the Bond, the Municipality shall cause to be prepared, executed,
and delivered to the registered owner, in exchange for such installment bond, a serial bond in an
aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of such installment bond then unpaid,
bearing interest at the same rate or rates as provided in such installment bond. Upon any such
exchange, such installment bond shall be cancelled. The reasonable expenses in connection with such
exchange shall be paid by the owner of the installment bond.

Any notice to the contrary notwithstanding, the Municipality and all of the officials,
employees, and agents thereof, including the Registration Agent, may deem and treat the registered
owner of the Bond as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, including, but not limited to,
payment of the principal thereof, and the interest thereon, regardless of whether such payment shall
then be overdue,

Section 9. Redemption. The Bond shall be subject to call and redemption, and
installments of principal shall be subject to prepayment, at any time prior to maturity, at the option of
the Municipality, without premium or penalty, upon payment, to the registered owner thereof, of the
principal so redeemed or prepaid, plus interest accrued thereon until the date of redemption or
prepayment. If installments of principal are so prepaid, such prepayments shall be only in inverse
order of maturity.

Notice of intended redemption or intended prepayment of installments or portions of
installments of principal shall be given by first-class mail to the registered owner of the Bond. Such
notice shall be given not less than thirty (30) calendar days nor more than one hundred eighty (180)
calendar days prior to the date fixed for redemption or prepayment. Each such notice of redemption
or prepayment shall designate the date and place of redemption or prepayment; shall specify the
principal amount of the installments of principal to be prepaid; and shall state that provided sufficient



funds are available on such redemption or prepayment date to pay the principal of and the unpaid
interest accrued on the Bond if such Bond is to be redeemed, or the installments of principal to be
prepaid, the interest on such Bond or on such installments of principal shall cease to accrue from and
after the redemption or prepayment date specified.

Section 10.  Payment. The principal of, and interest on, the Bond shall be payable in any
coin or currency of the United States of America, which is legal tender for the payment of public and
private debts as of the date of payment thereof. The principal of and interest on the Bond shall be
payable by check, draft, or warrant of the Municipality mailed to the registered owner thereof at the
address shown on the Registration Books of the Municipality and payment in such manner shall
forever discharge and release the obligation of the Municipality to the extent of the principal, interest,
or both so paid; provided, however, that the Bond shall be surrendered to the Registration Agent for
cancellation upon payment in full of all principal and interest.

Payments made by the Municipality on the Bond and received by the registered owner thereof
shall be applied to the interest due and the balance shall be applied to the installment of principal due
at the time such payments are received.

Any delinquent payment made by the Municipality will be applied by the registered owner of
the Bond in the following sequence:

(1) past due interest,

(2) past due installments of principal,
(3) interest due, and

(4) installment of principal due.

If any extra payments are made by the Municipality and received by the registered owner of the Bond,
such extra payments shall be applied to the installments of principal in inverse order of maturity.

Section 11.  Source of Payment; Security. The Bond, including the principal thereof,
premivm, if any, and interest thereon, is payable from funds of the Municipality legally available
therefor, and to the extent necessary, from ad valorem taxes to be levied for such purpose on all
taxable property within the corporate limits of the Municipality, without limitation as to time, rate,
and amount and for the puncfual payment of said principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the
Bond, the full faith and credit of the Municipality is hereby irrevocably pledged. The Bond is
additionally payable from, but not secured by, lease payments received by the Municipality under
that certain Building Lease Agreement dated as of November 13, 2019 by and between the
Municipality and Washington County, Tennessee, as amended and restated on October 20, 2020, as
further amended.

Section 12.  Levy of Taxes. For the purpose of providing for the payment of the principal
of and interest on the Bond, there shall be levied in each year in which such Bond shall be outstanding
a direct tax on all taxable property in the Municipality, fully sufficient to pay all such principal and
interest falling due prior to the time of collection of the next succeeding tax levy. Said tax shall be




assessed, collected, and paid at the time, and in the same manner, as the other taxes of said
Municipality, shall be in addition to all other taxes, and shall be without limitation as to time, rate, or
amount. The Board of the Municipality is required by law and shall and does hereby pledge to levy
such tax. Principal and interest, or any of the foregoing, falling due at any time when there shall be
insufficient funds on hand from such tax levy for the payment thereof shall be paid from the general
fund or other available funds of the Municipality, but reimbursement therefore may be made from the
taxes herein provided when the same shall have been collected. All such taxes levied and collected
shall be deposited in a special fund to be designated “Bond Fund, School Project” (the “Bond Fund™)
and used solely for the payment of principal and interest on the Bond as the same shall become due.
There shall be deposited in the Bond Fund, on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of each month, an
amount which, together with any monies which may be available for such payment for such month
from the proceeds of the Bond or otherwise, shall be not less than the interest and installment of
principal payable on the Bond, if issued, on the Bond Payment Date of the next succeeding calendar
month. Monies in the Bond Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the principal of and
interest on the Bond, if issued; and said monies are hereby expressly and exclusively pledged for said

purpose.

Section 13.  Form of Bond. The Bond shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein as fully as though copied.

Section 14.  Covenants Regarding the Project. The Municipality hereby covenants and
agrees with the registered owner of the Bond, if issued, that so long as the principal of, or interest on,
the Bond, if issued, remains outstanding and unpaid:

(a) That the Municipality will duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid, as
herein provided the principal installments or redemption price of the Bond and the interest
thereon, at the dates and places and in the manner stated herein and faithfully and punctually
perform all duties required by the Constitution and laws of the State and the Act, including
the making and collecting of taxes in an amount at least sufficient to pay principal of and
interest on the Bond.

(b) That the Municipality will maintain and keep proper books or records and
accounts separate from all other records and accounts of the Municipality, in which complete
entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the Bond, or provided therefor; that it will
cause the books and accounts of the Municipality to be audited annually by certified public
accountants; that any such owners of the Bond, if issued, shall have the right to inspect at all
reasonable times all records and accounts and data relating thereto; and, that the Municipality
will furnish to any registered owners of the Bond, if issued, all data and information relating
to the Bond which may be reasonably requested.

(c) That unless approved in writing by the Original Purchaser, no changes shall be
made in the plans and specifications for the improvements of the Project financed by means
of the proceeds of the sale of the Bond.

(d)  That each officer of the Municipality or person, other than Banks, having
custody of funds of the Municipality shall be under fidelity bond at all times in an amount
required by State law and the holder of the Bond.



Section 15.  Remedies of Bondholders. So long as the principal of, or interest on, the Bond
remains unpaid and outstanding, the owner of the Bond may, either at law or in equity, by suit, action,
mandamus, or other proceedings, and in any court of competent jurisdiction, enforce and compel
performance by the officials of the Municipality of all duties of the Municipality under this
Resolution, or under any applicable laws.

Section 16.  Defeasance and Release of Lien. So long as the United States of America is
the owner of the Bond herein authorized, the Municipality shall not issue any bonds or other
obligations for the purpose of defeasing or otherwise refunding the Bond herein authorized without
immediately prepaying the Bond.

Section 17.  Sale of Bond. The Mayor and the Town Recorder are hereby authorized to
execute the Bond and deliver the same to the United States of America, in exchange for the purchase
price thereof, which price shall be at par, with no premium or discount.

Section 18.  Disposition of Bond Proceeds. The proceeds from the sale of the Bond and
from the sale of the note issued in anticipation of the Bond, shall be deposited with a Bank in a special
fund to be known as the “Construction Fund, School Project” (the “Construction Fund”), and shall be
disbursed solely for the payment of the costs of acquiring, constructing, improving, renovating, and
equipping the Project, all in the manner and according to the terms required by the United States of
America, Department of Agriculture, including costs of acquisition, construction, improvements,
renovations and equipment, costs of necessary architectural and engineering services, legal,
administrative and clerical costs, costs of reimbursement, capitalized interest and other necessary
miscellaneous expenses. Monies in the Construction Fund shall be secured in the manner prescribed
by applicable statutes relating to the securing of public or trust funds, if any, or if legally permissible,
by a pledge of readily marketable securities having at all times a market value of not less than the
amount in said Construction Fund. Any proceeds from the sale of the Bond remaining in the
Construction Fund after the completion of such acquisition, construction, improvements, renovations
and equipment shall be used at the earliest practicable date for the payment of the Bond, as herein
provided. If any grant funds are obtained from the United States Government, or any agency thereof,
for the acquisition, construction, improvement, renovation and equipment of the Project, and
deposited in the Construction Fund as herein provided, any excess of such grant funds after such
completion shall be returned to the appropriate official or agency of the United States Government;
provided, however, that excess monies remaining after such completion shall be allocated so that
excess proceeds from the sale of the Bond shall be in the same proportion to excess grant funds that
the total proceeds from the sale of the Bond bore to the total of the funds so granted.

Section 19.  Non-Arbitrage Certification. The Municipality certifies and covenants with
the Owners of any series of tax-exempt bonds issued hereunder that so long as the principal of any
Bond remains unpaid, monies on deposit in any fund or account in connection with the Bond, whether
or not from any other source, will not be used in a manner which will cause the Bond to be an
“arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. The Municipality reserves the right,
however, {0 make any mvestment of such monies permitted by Tennessee law and this Resolution if,
when and to the extent that said Section 148 or regulations promulgated thereunder shall be repealed
or relaxed or shall be held void by final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, but only if any
investment made by virtue of such repeal, relaxation, or decision would not, in the opinion of Bond
Counsel, result in making the interest on the Bond subject to federal income taxation.




The Municipality covenants that it shall comply with Section 148(f) of the Code, unless
legally exempted therefrom, and the Municipality represents that in the event it shall be required by
Section 148(f) of the Code to pay “Rebatable Arbitrage,” as such term is defined and used in the
Code, pursuant to the Code, to the United States Government, it will make such payments as and
when required by said Section 148(f) and will take such other actions as shall be necessary or
permitted to prevent the interest on the Bond from becoming subject to inclusion in the gross income
of the Owners of the Bond for purposes of federal income taxation.

Section 20.  Resolution a Contract. The provisions of this Resolution shall constitute a
contract between the Municipality and the owners from time to time of the Bond and, after the
issuance of the Bond, no change, variation, or alteration of any kind in the provisions of this
Resolution shall be made in any manner, except as provided in the following Section, until such time
as all of the principal of, and interest on, the Bond shall have been paid in full.

Section 21.  Modification of Resolution. The owners of seventy-five percent (75%) of the
aggregate principal amount of the Bond at any time outstanding (not including such Bond which may
then be held or owned by or for the account of the Municipality, but including such refunding bonds
as may have been issued for the purpose of refunding the Bond or any installments of principal
thereof, if such refunding bonds are not then owned by the Municipality) shall have the right from
time to time to consent to and approve the adoption by the Board of a resolution or resolutions
modifying any of the terms or provisions contained in this Resolution; provided, however, that this
Resolution may not be so modified or amended in such manner as to:

(a) make any change in the maturity of the installments of principal of the Bond;
(b)  make any change in the rates of interest borne by the Bond;
(c) reduce the amount of the principal payable on the Bond;

(d)  modify the term of payment of principal of or interest on the Bond or impose any
conditions with respect to such payment;

(e) affect the rights of less than all of the owners of the Bond; or,

(H reduce the percentage of the aggregate principal amount of the Bond, the consent of
the owner(s) of which is required to effect further modification of this Resolution.

Whenever the Municipality shall propose to amend or modify this Resolution under the
provisions of this Section 21, it shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be filed with the
owner or owners of the Bond. Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of the proposed
amendment and shall state that a copy of the proposed amendatory Resolution is on file in the office
of the Registration Agent for public inspection.

Such amendatory resolution may be adopted if, and only if, within one (1) year from the date
of the filing of said notice, an instrument or instruments executed by the owner(s) of the Bond then
outstanding, as determined in this Section, have been filed with the Registration Agent, which



mstrument or instruments refer to the proposed amendatory resolution described in said notice and
specifically consent to and approve the adoption thereof.

If the owner(s) of the Bond, outstanding at the time of the adoption of such amendatory
resolution, as defined in this Section 21, or the predecessors in title of such owners shall have
consented to and approved the adoption thereof as herein provided, and not revoked such consent as
provided in this Section 21, no owner of the Bond whether or not such owner has consented to, or
revoked any consent, shall have any right or interest to object to the adoption of such amendatory
resolution or to object to any of the terms or provisions therein contained or to the operation thereof
or to enjoin or restrain the Municipality from taking any action pursuant to the provisions hereof,

Any consent given by the owners of the Bond, pursuant to the provisions of this Section, shall
be irrevocable for a period of six (6) months from the date of the issuance of the notice provided for
above, and shall be conclusive and binding upon all future owners of the Bond during such period.
Such consent may be revoked at any time after six (6) months from the date of issuance of such notice
by the owner of the Bond who gave consent, or if such person no longer holds the Bond by the then
owner of the Bond by filing notice of such revocation with the Registration Agent; provided, however,
that such revocation after six (6) months from said date of issuance shall not be effective if the owners
of seventy-five percent (75%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bond then outstanding as defined
in this Section 21, shall have consented to and approved the amendatory resolution referred to in such
revocation prior to the attempted revocation.

The date and date of the execution of any instrument under the provisions of this Section 21
may be proved by the certificate of any official in any jurisdiction who, by the laws thereof, is
authorized to take acknowledgements of deeds within such jurisdiction, that the person signing such
instrument acknowledged before him or her the execution thereof, or may be proved by an affidavit
of a witness to such execution sworn to before such official.

All such information with respect to the Bond shall be determined by reference to the
Registration Books.

Section 22.  No Action to be Taken Affecting Validity of the Bond. The Municipality
hereby covenants and agrees that it will not take, cause to be taken, nor permit to be taken, any action,
including, but not limited to any action pertaining to the Project, or the use thereof, that would in any
manner affect the validity of the Bond or limit the rights and remedies of the owners from time to
time of such Bond or affect the tax status of the interest payable thereon.

Section 23.  Bond Anticipation Note. Pending delivery of the Bond, a bond anticipation
note shall be issued by the Municipality for the purpose of providing funds in anticipation of the
issuance of the Bond, and to evidence funds obtained on an interim basis from sources other than the
Original Purchaser. On October 16, 2023, the Municipality approved the issuance of a $2,000,000
bond anticipation note, in one or more series (the “Bond Anticipation Note™), in connection with the
Project. The Bond Anticipation Note shall be payable within no more than two (2) years from its date
of issuance, subject to extension as permitted by applicable law. The Bond Anticipation Note shall
bear interest at such rate as shall be negotiated with the purchaser thereof.




The Bond Anticipation Note shall be issued in an aggregate principal amount that does not
exceed the principal amount of the Bond authorized by this Resolution.

The proceeds of the sale of the Bond Anticipation Note shall be deposited in the Construction
Fund upon the terms as set forth therein.

Section 24.  Severability. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this Resolution shall be
held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason whatsoever, the invalidity or unenforceability of
such section, paragraph, or provision shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any of the
remaining provisions hercof.

Section 25.  Conflicting Resolutions and Effective Date. All resolutions and orders or parts
thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution, to the extent of such conflict, are hereby
repealed and this Resolution shall be in immediate effect from and after its adoption, the welfare of
the Municipality requiring it.




Adopted and approved this 16th day of October, 2023.

MAYOR
Attest:

TOWN RECORDER



STATE OF TENNESSEE)
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON)

I, Janet Jennings, hereby certify that T am the duly qualified and acting Town Recorder of the
Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee (the “Municipality™), and, as such official, I further certify as
follows: (1) that attached hereto is a copy of a resolution excerpted from the minuies of the meeting
of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen (the “Board™) of said Municipality held on October 16, 2023;
(2) that T have compared said copy with the original minute record of said meeting in my official
custody; (3) that said copy is a true, correct, and complete transcript from said original record insofar
as said original record relates to, among other matters, the authorization, issuance, and sale of a not
to exceed $2,000,000 General Obligation Bond, Series 2023C, of said Municipality; (4) that the
actions by said Board, including the aforementioned, at said meeting were promptly and duly recorded
by me in a book kept for such purposes; and, (5) that a quorum of the members of said Board was
present and acting throughout said meeting.

WITNESS my official signature and the seal of said Municipality this 16th day of October,
2023.

Town Recorder

(SEAL)



FORM OF BOND

EXHIBIT “A”



REGISTERED REGISTERED
NO.R-1 $2,000,000

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON
TOWN OF JONESBOROUGH
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND,
SERIES 2023C

KNOW ALL YE BY THESE PRESENTS, that the Town of Jonesborough, Tennessee (the
“Municipality”), a lawfully organized and existing municipal corporation, for value received,
acknowledges itself indebted, and hereby promises to pay in the manner hereafter provided, to the
registered owner hereof, or legal representatives, the principal sum of Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000), and to pay to the registered owner hereof, or legal representatives, interest on the unpaid
principal balance hereof at the rate of three and eight hundred seventy-five thousandths percent
(3.875%) per annum from and after the date hereof, such interest and principal being payable monthly
in the amount 0f $9,780 onthe ____ day of each calendar month, commencing on
with a final payment on , all of the foregoing payments to be applied first to the
interest hereon then due and payable, and then to the outstanding principal hereof.

Both the principal hereof and the interest hereon are payable in lawful money of the United
States of America by check, draft, or warrant mailed to the registered holder hereof at the address
shown on the registration books, as hereinafter provided, of the Municipality, and payment in such
manner shall forever discharge and release the obligation of the Municipality to the extent of the
principal or interest, or both, so paid; provided, however, that upon payment in full of all principal
hereof and interest herein, this Bond shall be surrendered to the Town Recorder of the Municipality
(the “Town Recorder”) for cancellation.

This Bond shall be fully registered as to both principal and interest in the name of the holder
thereof on the registration books of the Municipality kept for such purposes by the Town Recorder,
or his or her successor officials, as registration agent (the “Registration Agent”). No transfer of this
Bond shall be valid unless at the written request of the registered holder owner, or the attorney duly
authorized in writing for such registered owner, such transfer is noted by the Registration Agent upon
both the within Bond and said registration books at the office of the Town Recorder of the
Municipality, as Registration Agent, upon presentation hereof at such office for verification of the
endorsements made or the Payment Record attached to the Bond of the principal of and interest or
paid or prepaid hereon and the notation of such registration by the Registration Agent. All assignees
shall take this Bond subject to such condition.

Any notice to the contrary notwithstanding, the Municipality and all of the officials and
employees thereof, including the Registration Agent, may deem and treat the registered owner hereof,
as determined in the above manner, as the absolute owner of this Bond for all purposes, including,
but not limited to, payment of the principal hereof and the interest hereon, regardless of whether any
such payments shall then be overdue.



Any, including all, installments of the aggregate principal sum of this Bond shall be subject
to call and redemption prior to maturity at any time at the option of the Municipality, without premium
or penalty, as a whole or in part, in inverse order of maturity, upon payment to the registered holder
hereof of the principal so redeemed, plus interest accrued thereon to the date of redemption, said
principal and accrued interest to be paid by check, draft, or warrant mailed on or before the redemption
date to said registered holder at the address shown on the registration books of the Municipality.

Notice of intended redemption, specifying both the date of redemption and the aggregate
principal amount to be redeemed, shall be given to the registered owner hereof by first-class mail, not
less than thirty (30) days, nor more than one hundred eighty (180) days, prior to the date fixed for
redemption. Said notice shall also state that interest on the aggregate principal amount to be so
redeemed shall cease to accrue from and after the redemption date specified, provided sufficient funds
are available on said redemption date to fully pay said aggregate principal amount redeemed and the
unpaid interest accrued thereon.

This Bond is issued to finance the acquisition, construction, improvement, renovation and
equipping of certain public works projects, including a public school, related athletic and parking
facilities, playgrounds and roads, including all property, real and personal, appurtenant thereto or
connected with such work, and defraying all necessary and incidental expenses in connection
therewith, under authority of, and in full compliance with the Constitution and statutes of the State of
Tennessee, including Chapter 9, Title 21, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, and under and
pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Municipality on October
16, 2023 (the “Resolution”). Reference is hereby made to said Resolution for a more complete
statement of the terms and conditions upon which this Bond is issued, the rights and duties of the
Municipality, and the rights of the holder hereof. By acceptance of this Bond, the registered owner
hereof shall be conclusively deemed to assent to all the provisions of said Resolution.

The Bond, including the principal thereof, premium, if any, and interest thereon, is payable
from funds of the Municipality legally available therefor, and to the extent necessary, from ad valorem
taxes to be levied for such purpose on all taxable property within the corporate limits of the
Municipality, without limitation as to time, rate, and amount and for the punctual payment of said
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bond, the full faith and credit of the Municipality
is hereby irrevocably pledged. The Bond is additionally payable from, but not secured by, lease
payments received by the Municipality under that certain Building Lease Agreement dated as of
November 13, 2019 by and between the Municipality and Washington County, Tennessee, as
amended and restated on October 20, 2020, as further amended.

For a more complete statement of the funds from which and conditions under which this Bond
is payable, the general covenants and provisions pursuant to which this Bond is issued, and the terms
upon which the above described Resolution may be modified, reference is hereby made to the
Resolution.

It is hereby certified, recited, and declared that all acts and conditions required to be done and
to exist precedent to, and in the issuance of, this Bond, in order to make such Bond a legal, valid, and
binding obligation of the Municipality, have been done, and did exist in the due time and form, and
as required by the Constitution and statutes of the State of Tennessee; that this Bond, together with



all other indebtedness of the Municipality, does not exceed any limitation prescribed by the
Constitution or statutes of the State of Tennessee.

Section 9-21-117, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, provides that this Bond and the
income herefrom are exempt from all state, county, and municipal taxation in the State of Tennessee,
except inheritance, transfer and estate taxes, provided, however, under certain other statutes and under
certain conditions, the principal of and interest on this Bond may be subject to corporate excise
taxation in the State of Tennessee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Municipality, by its Board of Mayor and Aldermen, has caused
this Bond to be signed by its Mayor, countersigned by its Town Recorder, all as of this __ day of
, 2023,

Mayor

ATTEST:

Town Recorder



{(Form of Assignment)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto

the within Bond, together with
accrued interest thereon, and all right, title, and interest thereto, and hereby irrevocably authorizes,
constitutes and appoints attorney to
transfer said Bond on the registration books of the within named Municipality kept by the Bond
Registrar, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

In the presence of;




(Form of Registration Provisions)
This Bond shall be registered on the books of the Municipality kept for such purpose by the
Town Recorder of the Municipality, or his or her successor(s), as Registration Agent. The principal

and interest on this Bond shall be payable only to, or upen the order of, the registered owner, or his,
her, or its legal representatives.

REGISTRATION

(No writing in these blanks except by Bond Registrar)

Date of Name, Address and Signature of
Registration Tax [.D. No. of Registered Owner Bond Registrar

, 2023 USDA Rural Development

4300 Goodfellow Blvd, Bldg 104

St. Louis, MO 63120-1703




